HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E4 COUNTY HOUSING

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
Tuesday, August 27, 2024, 12 pm

Olivette City Center

1140 Dielman Road

Olivette, Missouri 63132

AGENDA

Item
1. Roll Call

2. Approval of Minutes,
Special Meeting July 17, 2024

3. Public Comments
4. Presentation of the City of Olivette
Housing Authority Audit Report
for year ending 2023
5. Mayor’s Report
6. Executive Director’s Report
7. Financial Reports
8. Other Business
A. 5-Year PHA Plan (2025-2029)
B. Annual PHA Plan (2025)
C. Capital Fund Action Plan (2029)
D. Housing Administration Report

E. Facilities and Maintenance Report

9. Executive Session

Individual
Terri Acoff-States

Chairwoman

Chairwoman

Rich Larsen, Partner
Novogradac & Co., LLP

Mayor Waldman
Shannon Koenig

Carolyn Riddle

Shannon Koenig
Shannon Koenig
William Barry
Kawanna Tate

William Bary

Chairwoman

Action
Informational

Motion, 2", Vote

Informational

Motion, 2", Vote

Informational
Informational

Motion, 2", Vote

Motion, 2nd, Vote
Motion, 2nd, Vote
Motion, 2nd, Vote
Informational

Informational

Motion, 2", Vote

Subject to an affirmative vote of the Board of Commissioners, an Executive Session may be

held to discuss personnelissues, real estate, or litigation matters pursuant to RSMo Sections

610.021 t0 610.022.

10. Next Meeting
October 29, 2024

11. Adjournment

Chairwoman

Chairwoman

Informational

Motion, 2", Vote



OLIVETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
WEDNESDAY, JULY 17, 2024
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

ROLL CALL:

COMMISSIONERS:

Ellen Schapiro, Vice Chairwoman
Stephanie Afful, Commissioner
Suzann Antoine, Commissioner
Dona Turpin, Commissioner

STAFF:

Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO
Terri Acoff-States, Executive Assistant

Kurt Schulte, Development Officer

Walker Gaffney, Development Manager

GUESTS:

Missy Waldman, Mayor
Maxine Weil, Council Member
Jennifer Yackley, City Manager
Darren Mann, Finance Director
Amy De La Hunt, Bailey & Co.

ABSENT:
Nikeyia Ingram, Chairwoman

Approval of Minutes of Special Board Meeting held Wednesday, June 12, 2024.

Vice Chairwoman Ellen Schapiro asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the special board meeting
held Wednesday, June 12, 2024. Commissioner Stephanie Afful motioned for approval. Commissioner
Suzann Antoine seconded the motion. Upon roll call the “Ayes” and “Nays” were as follows:

AYES NAYS
E. Schapiro None
S. Afful

S. Antoine

D. Turpin

The Vice Chairwoman declared the motion passed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Vice Chairwoman Ellen Schapiro asked for a motion to end the Regular Session and enter into an Executive
Session to discuss real estate matters pursuant to RSMo Sections 610.021 to 610.022. Commissioner
Stephanie Afful motioned to enter. Commissioner Suzann Antoine seconded the motion. Upon roll call the
“Ayes” and “Nays” were as follows:

AYES NAYS
E. Schapiro None
S. Afful

S. Antoine

D. Turpin

The Vice Chairwoman declared the motion passed.



Vice Chairwoman Ellen Schapiro motioned to exit Executive Session and entered back into the Regular
Session. Commissioner Stephanie Afful motioned to exit. Commissioner Suzann Antoine seconded the
motion to exit and upon roll call the “Ayes” and “Nays” were as follows:

AYES NAYS
E. Schapiro None
S. Afful

S. Antoine

D. Turpin

The Vice Chairwoman declared the motion passed.

NEXT BOARD MEETING:

A regular board meeting is scheduled for August 27, 2024.

ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING:

There being no further business to come before the board, Vice Chairwoman Ellen Schapiro motioned to
adjourn. which motion was seconded by Commissioner Stephanie Afful. Upon roll call, “Ayes” and “Nays”
were as follows:

AYES NAYS
E. Schapiro None
S. Afful

S. Antoine

D. Turpin

The Vice Chairwoman declared the motion passed.

Chairwoman

Secretary

Date



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

WITH
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Page
Report of Independent Auditors 1-3
Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-9
Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position 10
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 11
Statement of Cash Flows 12-13
Notes to Financial Statements 14-21

Supplementary Information: ‘
Financial Data Schedule 22-26



\ 4

0‘ NOVOGRADAC

& CO M PA N Y LLPe CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Olivette:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Olivette (the
"Authority") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, as listed in the accompanying table of
contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Authority as of July 29, 2024, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the year then

‘ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Opinioh

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
("GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. ‘

~Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

1144 Hooper Avenue, Suite 203, Toms River, New Jersey 08753
www.novoco.com | 732.503.4257

1



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Matters (continued)

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying financial data schedule is also not a required
part of the basic financial statements and is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying financial data schedule is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

July 29, 2024
Toms River, New Jersey



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



OLIVETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

As Management of the Authority, we offer readers of the Authority’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Authority for the year ended December 31, 2023. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Authority’s
financial statements as presented elsewhere in this Report.

Financial Highlights as of December 31, 2023

1. The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close of the
most recent fiscal year by $306,993 (net position) as opposed to
$220,482 for the prior fiscal year.

2. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority’s Proprietary
Fund reported ending unrestricted net position of $291,088.

3. The Authority’s cash and cash equivalent balance (including restricted
cash) at December 31, 2023 was $294,369 representing an increase
of $73,733 from the prior year.

4. The Authority had total operating revenues of $188,325 and total
operating expenses of $108,536 for the year ended December 31,
2023.

5. The Authority’s capital outlays for the fiscal year were $6,413.

6. The Authority’s expenditures of federal awards amounted to $122,296
for the year.

Using the Annual Report

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the Authority’'s general purpose financial statements.
The Authority’s general purpose financial statements and Notes to
Financial Statements included in this Report were prepared in
accordance with GAAP applicable to governmental entities in the
United States of America for Proprietary Fund types.



OLIVETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2. Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of the Authority’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business. They consist of Statement of Net Position,
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and
Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the
Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net position will
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
presents information showing how the Authority’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, ‘regardless of the timing of unrelated cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
depreciation and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Cash Flows present relevant information about the
Authority’s cash receipts and cash payments during the year.

The basic financial statements report on the Authority’s activities. The
activities are primarily supported by HUD subsidies and grants. The
Authority’s function is to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing to
low income and special needs populations. The basic financial
statements can be found on pages 10 through 13 in this Report.

2. Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic
financial statements. The Notes to Financial Statements can be found
in this Report after the basic financial statements.



OLIVETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

A. The Authority as a Whole

The Authority’s Net Position increased during the year ended December
31, 2023, as detailed in the table below. The Authority’s revenues are
primarily subsidies and grants received from HUD. The Authority receives
subsidies each month based on a pre-approved amount by HUD. Grants
are drawn down based on need against a pre-authorized funding level.
The Authority’s revenues were sufficient to cover all expenses, excluding
depreciation expense during the fiscal year.

A portion of the Authority’s net position reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress).
The Authority uses these capital assets to provide housing services for its
tenants; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
The unrestricted net position of the Authority is available for future use to
provide program services.

A summary of the Authority’s Statements of Net Position as of December 31,
2023 and 2022 is as follows:

12/31/23 12/31/22
Cash and Other Assets $ 336,667 $ 233,070
Capital Assets — Net 15,905 10,574
Total Assets $ 352,572 $ 243,644
Less: Total Liabilities 45 579 26,162
Net Position $ 306,993 $ 220,482
Invested in Capital Assets 15,905 10,574
Unrestricted 291,088 209,908

Total Net Position $ 306,993 $ 243,644

Cash and other assets (including restricted cash) increased $103,597,
primarily due to the Authority having an increase in operating revenues of
$73,326 during the year.



OLIVETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

A. The Authority as a Whole (continued)

A summary of the Authority’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position for the year’'s ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

[ ]
Computations of Changes in Net Position is as follows: Years Ended
12/31/23 12/31/22
Revenues
Tenant Revenues $ 72442 $ 63,382
HUD and Other Government Grants 115,883 44 229
Other Revenues - 7,388
Total Operating Revenues 188,325 114,999
Expenses
Other Operating Expenses 107,454 100,589
Depreciation Expense 1,082 1,399
Total Operating Expenses 108,536 101,988
Excess (Deficiency) of Operating
Revenues Over Expenses 79,789 13,011
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest on Investments 309 28 |
Net other income 309 28 |
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Grants 80,098 13,039
Capital Grants
HUD Capital Grants 6,413 -
Excess of Revenues over Expenses 86,511 13,039
Net Position — Beginning of Year 220,482 207,443
Net Position — End of Year $ 306,993 $ 220482




A

OLIVETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

The Authority as a Whole (continued)

HUD and Other Governmental Grants increased $71,654 primarily due to
increases in the operating portion of the Public Housing Capital Fund
program, which totaled $34,030 and an increase in the Public Housing
program grant of $44,037. :

Ordinary maintenance and operations increased $18,158 primarily due to
increases in contract costs for building repairs in the amount of $32,644.

Budgetary Highlights

For the year ended December 31, 2023, individual program or grant
budgets were prepared by the Authority and were approved by the Board
of Commissioners. The budgets were primarily used as a management
tool and have no legal stature. Also, the Authority adopted a
comprehensive entity-wide annual budget. The budgets were prepared in
accordance with the accounting procedures prescribed by the applicable
funding agency.

As indicated by the excess of revenues over expenses, the Authority’s net
position increased during the fiscal year. This increase in net position was
primarily the result of increased revenues in the Public and Indian Housing
Program and the Public Housing Capital Fund Program.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

. Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Authority’s investment in capital
assets for its Proprietary Fund was $15,905 and $10,574, respectively (net
of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress.

Major capital assets purchased with grants of $6,413 during the year
ended December 31, 2023, pertained to expenditures made in accordance
with the Authority’s Capital Fund Program.

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in the
notes to the Financial Statements, which is included in this Report.



OLIVETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued)

. Long Term Debt

The Authority has no long-term interest bearing debt.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority’s budget
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024:

. The state of the economy.

. The need for Congress to fund the war on terrorism and the continued cut-
back on HUD subsidies and grants.

. The Authority’s inability to fund any shortfalls rising from a possible

economic downturn and reduced subsidies and grants due to limited
reserves.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the
Authority’s finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Executive Director,
Olivette Housing Authority.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 289,974
Tenant security deposits 4,395
Accounts receivable - HUD 34,030
Accounts receivable - tenants, net 8,081
Prepaid expenses 187
Total current assets 336,667
Non-current assets:
Capital assets, net » 15,905
Total non-current assets 15,905
Total assets $ 352,572
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 35,915
Accrued expenses 152
Accrued compensated absences, current 218
Tenant security deposits 4,395
Prepaid tenant rent 4,872
Total current liabilities 45,552
Non-current liabilities: »
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 27
Total non-current liabilities 27
Total liabilities _ 4".879
NET POSITION
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 15,905
Unrestricted 201,088
Total net position 206,993
Total liabilities and net position $ 352,572

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
10



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Operating revenues:

Tenant revenue $ 72,442

HUD operating grants 115,883

Total operating revenues 188.325
Operating expenses:

Administrative 47,775

Asset management fee 1,680

Tenant services 676

Utilities 10,837

Ordinary maintenance and operations 27,978

Protective services 261

Insurance 9,957

General 8,290

Depreciation 1,082
Total operating expenses 108,536
Operating income 79,789

Non-operating revenues:
Investment income 309
Net non-operating revenues 309
Income before capital grants 80,098
Capital grants 6.413

Change in net position 86,511
Net position, beginning of the year 220,482
Net position, end of year $ 306,993

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
11



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from grantors $ 76,595
Cash received from tenants 70,735
Cash paid to employees (24,696)
Cash paid to suppliers (49,210)
Net cash provided by operating activities 73.424
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchases of capital assets (6,413)
Capital grants 6.413
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Investment income 309
Net cash provided by investing activities 309
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 73,733

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of year 220,636
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of year $ 294,369
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash to the
Statements of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 289,974
Tenant security deposits 4,395
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 204,369

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
12



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Operating income $ 79,789

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation 1,082
Bad debt expense 3,171
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - HUD and other government (34,030)
Accounts receivable - tenants (8,660)
Prepaid expenses 9,655
Accounts payable 18,979
Accrued compensated absences 180
Prepaid tenant rent 3,782
Other current liabilities (524)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 73,424

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
13



NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Organization

The Housing Authority of the City of Olivette (the "Authority") is a governmental, public
corporation created under federal and state housing laws for the purpose of engaging in the
development, acquisition and administrative activities of the low-income housing program and
other programs with similar objectives for low and moderate income families residing in the City
of Olivette, MO (the "City"). The Authority is responsible for operating certain low-rent housing
programs in the City under programs administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD"). These programs provide housing for eligible families under the United
States Housing Act of 1937, as amended.

The Authority is governed by a board of five members who serve by appointment. The governing
board is essentially autonomous but responsible to HUD. An executive director is appointed by
the Authority's board to manage the day-to-day operations of the Authority. The Authority is
managed and administered by the Housing Authority of St. Louis County ("HASLC"). The
Authority does not meet the definition of a component unit of HASLC.

B. Basis of Accounting / Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments
("GASB 34", as amended. GASB 34 requires the basic financial statements to be prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and requires the
presentation of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows. GASB 34 also requires the Authority to include
management's discussion and analysis as part of the Required Supplemental Information.

The Authority's primary source of non-exchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies. In
accordance with GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions,
grant and subsidy revenue is recognized at the time eligible program expenditures occur and/or
the Authority has complied with the grant and subsidy requirements.

Effective January 1, 2023, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No.96, Subscription-Based
Information Technology Arrangements ("GASB 96"). GASB 96 improves the financial reporting
by establishing a definition for subscription-based information technology arrangements
("SBITA") and providing uniform guidance for accounting and financial reporting for transactions
that meet the definition of SBITA. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the adoption of GASB
96 did not have a material effect on the financial statements of the Authority.

C. Reporting Entity

In accordance with GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus - An Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 34, the Authority's financial statements include those of the Housing
Authority of the City of Olivette and any component units. Component units are legally separate
organizations whose majority of officials are appointed by the primary government or the
organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is a potential for those
organizations either to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on, the primary government. An organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with
the primary government if any one of the following conditions exist:

14



NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Reporting Entity (continued)

1. The primary government (Authority) is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources.

2, The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

3. The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization,

Based upon the application of these criteria, this report includes all programs and activities
operated by the Authority. There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under these criteria in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the Authority is not
included in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

D. Description of Programs

The Authority maintains its accounting records by program. A summary of the significant
programs operated by the Authority is as follows:

Public and Indian Housing Program
The Public and Indian Housing Program is designed to provide low-cost housing. Under this

program, HUD provides funding via an annual contributions contract. These funds, combined
with the rental income received from tenants, are available solely to meet the operating expenses
of the program.

Public Housing Capital Fund Program
The purpose of the Capital Fund Program is to provide another source of funding to cover the cost

of physical and management improvements and rehabilitation on existing low-income housing
and improving the central office facilities. Funding for this program is provided by grants from
HUD.

E. Use of Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the allowance
for doubtful accounts, accrued expenses and other liabilities, depreciable lives of properties and
equipment and contingencies. Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates.

F. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The Authority adopts annual, appropriated operating budgets for all its programs receiving federal
expenditure awards. All budgets are prepared on a HUD basis, which differs with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. All appropriations lapse at HUD's
program year end or at the end of grant periods.

15



NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

HUD requires housing authorities to invest excess funds in obligations of the United States,
Certificates of Deposit or any other federally insured investment.

HUD also requires that deposits be fully collateralized at all times. Acceptable collateralization
includes FDIC insurance and the market value of securities purchased and pledged to the political
subdivision. Pursuant to HUD restrictions, obligations of the United States are allowed as
security for deposits. Obligations furnished as security must be held by the Authority or with an
unaffiliated bank or trust company for the account of the Authority.

For the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at time of purchase.

It is the Authority's policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with HUD requirements,

H. Accounts Receivable, Net

Rents are due from tenants on the first day of each month. As a result, tenants' accounts
receivable balances primarily consist of rents past due and vacated tenants. Also included in
accounts receivable are those amounts that tenants owe the Authority as payment for committing
fraud or misrepresentation, These charges usually consist of retroactive rent and other amounts
that may be determined by a formal written agreement or by a court order. An allowance for
doubtful accounts is established to provide for all accounts, which may not be collected in the
future for any reason.

The Authority recognizes a receivable from HUD and other governmental agencies for amounts
billed but not received and for amounts unbilled, but earned as of year-end.

1. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Management evaluates the collectability of outstanding receivables on a regular basis and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of outstanding accounts.
J. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid as of year-end that will benefit future operations.

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged directly to
expense as they are incurred. Expenditures determined to represent additions or betterments are
capitalized. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful lives of the following asset groups:

. Buildings 30 Years
. Furniture and Equipment 3 - 10 Years
o Infrastructure 40 Years

The Authority has established a capitalization threshold of $500.

16



NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
L. Impairment of Long Lived Assets

The Authority evaluates events or changes in circumstances affecting long-lived assets to
determine whether an impairment of its assets has occurred. If the Authority determines that a
capital asset is impaired, and that impairment is significant and other-than-temporary, then an
impairment loss will be recorded in the Authority's financial statements. For the year ended
December 31, 2023, no impairment losses were recognized.

M. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and
sick leave computed in accordance with GASB Standards. A liability for compensated absences
that is attributable to services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event
that is outside the control of the Authority and its employees, is accrued as employees earn the
rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that are contingent
on a specific event that is outside the control of the Authority and its employees are accounted for
in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

N. Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Authority defines its operating revenues as income derived from charges to residents and
others for services provided as well as government subsidies and grants used for operating
purposes. Operating expenses are costs incurred in the operation of its program activities to
provide services to residents and others. The Authority classifies all other revenues and expenses
as non-operating.

0. Regulated Leases

The Authority is a lessor of residential dwelling units under regulated leases as defined by GASB
87 and as such recognizes rental revenue in accordance with the terms of the lease contract. The
leases which are twelve months in length are regulated by HUD as to rent, unit size, household
composition and tenant income. For the year ended December 31, 2023, rental revenue earned
under the aforementioned leases totaled $62,029.

P. Net Position Classifications
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components (if applicable):

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net position - Consists of resources with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position - All other resources that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or
"net investment in capital assets."

17



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Q. Use of Restricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for a particular restricted use, it is
the Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed.

R. Taxes

The Authority is a unit of local government and is exempt from real estate, sales and income taxes.

S. Economic Dependency

The Public and Indian Housing Program of the Authority is economically dependent on operating
grants and subsidies from HUD. The program operates at a loss prior to receiving the grants.

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents
(including restricted cash and tenant security deposits) was $294,369, and the bank balances
approximated $295,810.

Of the bank balances, $260,114 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining
balance of $35,696 was collateralized with the pledging financial institution as of December 31,
2023.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As of
December 31, 2023, the Authority's bank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents (including tenant security deposits) consist of the following:

Cash Category Amount
Operating $ 289,974
Tenant security deposits 4,395

Total $ 204,369

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

As of December 31, 2023, accounts receivable - HUD and other government consists of amounts
due from the Authority's Public Housing Capital Fund Program grant in the amount of $34,030.
Management estimates this amount to be fully collectable and therefore no allowance has been
established.

As of December 31, 2023, accounts receivable - net consists of tenant accounts receivable of
$18,415, which is shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $10,334.

18



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
Restricted deposits consist of tenant security deposits, which are held in a trust and restricted for
refund to tenants upon termination or discontinuance from the Public and Indian Housing
program.

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

Capital assets consist primarily of expenditures to acquire, construct, place in operation and
improve the facilities of the Authority and are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2023,

January 1, December 31,
Description 2023 Additions  Dispositions  Transfers 2023
Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land $ 8,400 $ - $ - $ - $ 8,400
Construction in progress - 6,413 - - 6.413
Total 8,400 6,413 - - 14,813
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings 607,204 - - - 607,204
Furniture and equipment 16,120 - - - 16,129
Total 623,333 - - - 623,333
Less: accumulated depreciétion 621,159 1,082 - - 622,241
Net capital assets $ 10574 $___ 5331 $ - $_ - §__ 15905

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to $1,082.

NOTE 6. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Accrued compensated absences represents accumulated leave for which employees are entitled to
receive payment in accordance with the Authority's Personnel Policy.

Compensated absences activity for the years ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Amount
Beginning compensated absences $ 65
Compensated absences earned 180
Compensated absences redeemed -
Ending compensated absences 245
Less: current portion 218
Compensated absences, net of current portion $ 27

19



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the following changes occurred in the Authority's accounts
payable:
December 31, December 31, Due in
2023 Additions  Retirements 2023 One Year
Accounts payable -
vendors $ 11,678  $ 185 $ (11,678) $ 185 $ 185
Accounts payable - due
to HASLC - 25,353 - 25,353 25,353
Accounts payable -
other government 5.258 10,377 (5.258) 10,377 10,377
Totals $ 16,936  $_ 350915 $_ (16,036) $ 35,915 $_ 35,915
NOTE 8. COOPERATION AGREEMENT

In March of 1971, the Authority entered into a co-operation agreement (the "Agreement") with
HASLC. The Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until terminated by agreement of
both parties, or by either party upon serving written notice thereof, at least 60 days prior to the
date of termination. The Agreement provides for HASLC to manage and staff the Authority and to
provide for the administration of Authority programs. Included in administrative expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2023, are management fees of $9,139 and bookkeeping fees of $1,260,
incurred to HASLC.

NOTE 9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disaster. The Authority
maintains insurance to cover risks that may occur in normal operations. Several state funds
accumulate assets and the state of Missouri assumes all risks for claims of Authority employees
for unemployment compensation benefits and workers' compensation benefits.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage and settlement amounts for the
last three years.

NOTE 10. CONTINGENCIES

The Authority receives financial assistance from HUD in the form of grants and subsidies.
Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions
of the grant agreements and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for
eligible purposes. Substantially all grants, entitlements and cost reimbursements are subject to
financial and compliance audits by HUD. As a result of these audits, costs previously reimbursed
could be disallowed and require payments to HUD. As of December 31, 2023, the Authority
estimated that no material liabilities will result from such audits.

20



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OLIVETTE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the financial statement date but before the financial statements were
available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent
events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the financial statement date are
recognized in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence
about conditions that existed after the financial statement date require disclosure in the
accompanying notes to the financial statements. Management evaluated the activity of the
Authority through July 29, 2024 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued)
and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the
financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

21



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Housing Authority of the City of Olivette (MO132)

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

St. Louis, MO

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Project Total Total
111 Cash - Unrestricted $289,974 $289,974
112 Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development $0 $0
113 Cash - Other Restricted $0 $0
114 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits $4,395 $4,395
116 Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities $0
100 Total Cash $204,369 $294,369
121 Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects $0 $0
122 Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects $34,030 $34,030
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government $0 $0
126 Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous $0 $0
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants $12,073 $12,073
126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants -$7,163 -$7,163
126.,2 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other $0 $0
127 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current $0 $0
128 Fraud Recovery $6,342 $6,342
128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud -$3,171 -$3,171
129 Accrued Interest Receivable $0 $0
120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts $42,111 $42,111
131 Investments - Unrestricted $0 $0
132 Investments - Restricted $0 $0
135 Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability $0 $0
142 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets $187 $187
143 Inventories $0 $0
143.1 Allowance for Obsolete Inventories $0 $Q
144 Inter Program Due From $0 $0
145 Assets Held for Sale $0 $0
150 Total Current Assets $336,667 $336,667
161 Land $8,400 $8,400
162 Buildings $561,950 $661,950
163 Furniture, Equig & Machinery - Dwelling $16,129 $16,129
164 Furniture, Equi it & N inery - 1 $0 $0
165 Leasehold Improvements $45,254 $45,254
166 Accumulated Depreciation -$622,241 -$622,241
167 Construction in Progress $6,413 $6,413
168 Infrastructure $0 $0
160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $15,905 $15,905
171 Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current $0 $0
172 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due $0 $0
173 Grants Receivable - Non Current $0 $0
174 Other Assets $0 $0
176 Investments in Joint Ventures $0 $0
180 Total Non-Current Assets $15,905 $15,905
200 Deferred Outflow of Resources $0 $0
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $352,572 $352,572

See report of independent auditors. 22

Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2023



Housing Authority of the City of Olivette (MO132)

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

St. Louis, MO

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Project Total Total
311 Bank Overdraft $0 $0
312 Accounts Payable <= 90 Days $185 $185
313 Accounts Payable >80 Days Past Due $0 $0
321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable $162 $152
322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion $218 $218
324 Accrued Contingency Liability $0 $0
325 Accrued Interest Payable $0 $0
331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs $0 $0
332 Account Payable - PHA Projects $25,353 $25,353
333 Accounts Payable - Other Government $10,377 $10,377
341 Tenant Security Deposits $4,395 $4,395
342 Unearned Revenue $4,872 $4,872
344 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings $0 $0
344 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings $0 $0
345 Other Current Liabilities $0 $0
346 Accrued Liabilities - Other $0 $0
347 Inter Program - Due To $0 $0
348 Loan Liability - Current $0 $0
310 Total Current Liabilities $45,552 $45,5652
351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue $0 $0
352 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings $0 $0
353 Non-current Liabilities - Other $0 $0
354 Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current $27 $27
355 Loan Liability - Non Current $0 $0
356 FASB 5 Liabilities $0 $0
357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities $0 $0
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities $27 $27
300 Total Liabilities $45,579 $45,579
400 Deferred Inflow of Resources $0 $0
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets $15,905 $15,905
511.4 Restricted Net Position $0 $0
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position $291,088 $291,088
513 Total Equity - Net Assets / Position $306,993 $306,993
600 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net $362,572 $352,572

See report of independent auditors. 23

Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2023



Submission

Housing Authority of the City of Olivette (MO132)

Type: Audited/Single Audit

St. Louis (MO)

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Low Rent Capital Fund i Total Project
70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue $62,029 $0 $62,029
70400 Tenant Revenue - Other $10,413 $0 $10,413
70500 Total Tenant Revenue $72,442 $0 $72,442
70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants $88,266 $27,617 $115,883
70610 Capital Grants $6,413 $6,413
70710 Management Fee
70720 Asset Management Fee
70730 Book Keeping Fee
70740 Front Line Service Fee
70750 Other Fees
70700 Total Fee Revenue
70800 Other Government Grants $0 $0 30
71100 Investment Income - Unrestricted $309 $0 $309
71200 Mortgage Interest Income $0 $0 $0
71300 Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale $0 $0 $0
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets $0 $0 $0
71400 Fraud Recovery $0 $0 $0
71500 Other Revenue $0 $0 $0
71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets $0 $0 $0
72000 Investment Income - Restricted $0 $0 $0
70000 Total Revenue $161,017 $34,030 $195,047
91100 Administrative Salaries $10,726 $0 $10,726
91200 Auditing Fees $5,686 $0 $5,686
91300 Management Fee $9,139 $0 $9,139
91310 Book-keeping Fee $1,260 $0 $1,260
91400 Advertising and Marketing $3,597 $0 $3,597
91500 Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative $3,529 $0 $3,629
91600 Office Expenses $18,739 $0 $13,739
91700 Legal Expense $10 $0 $10
91800 Travel $89 $0 $89
91810 Allocated Overhead $0 $0 $0
91900 Other $0 $0 $0
91000 Total Operating - Administrative $47,775 $0 $47,775
92000 Asset Management Fee $1,680 $0 $1,680
92100 Tenant Services - Salaries $462 $0 $462
92200 Relocation Costs $0 $0 $0
92300 Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services $214 $0 $214
92400 Tenant Services - Other $0 $0 $0
92500 Total Tenant Services $676 $0 $676
93100 Water $27 $0 $27
93200 Electricity $1,345 $0 $1,345
93300 Gas $0 $0 $0
93400 Fuel $0 $0 $0
93500 Labor $0 $0 $0
93600 Sewer $9,465 $0 $9,465
93700 Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities $0 $0 $0
93800 Other Utilities Expense $0 $0 $0
93000 Total Utilities $10,837 $0 $10,837

See report of independent auditors.

24

Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2023



Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

Housing Authority of the City of Olivette (MO132)

St. Louis (MO)

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Low Rent Capital Fund | Total Project
94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor $13,508 $0 $13,508
94200 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other $2,557 $0 $2,557
94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts $9,521 $0 $9,521
94500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance $2,392 $0 $2,392
94000 Total Maintenance $27,978 $0 $27,978
95100 Protective Services - Labor $0 $0 $0
95200 Protective Services - Other Contract Costs $261 $0 $261
95300 Protective Services - Other $0 $0 $0
95500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services $0 $0 $0
95000 Total Protective Services $261 $0 $261
96110 Property Insurance $7,408 $0 $7,408
96120 Liability Insurance $2,131 $0 $2,131
96130 Workmen's Compensation $11 $0 $11
96140 All Other Insurance $407 $0 $407
96100 Total insurance Premiums $9,957 $0 $9,957
96200 Other General Expenses $0 $0 $0
96210 Compensated Absences 30 $0 $0
96300 Payments in Lieu of Taxes $5,119 $0 $5,119
96400 Bad debt - Tenant Rents $3,171 $0 $3,171
96500 Bad debt - Mortgages $0 $0 $0
96600 Bad debt - Other $0 $0 $0
96800 Severance Expense $0 $0 $0
96000 Total Other General Expenses $8,290 $0 $8,290
96710 Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable $0 $0 $0
96720 Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) $0 $0 $0
96730 Amortization of Bond Issue Costs $0 $0 $0
96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost $0 $0 $0
96900 Total Operating Expenses $107,454 $0 $107,454
97000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses $53,563 $34,030 $87,593
97100 Extraordinary Maintenance $0 $0 $0
97200 Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized $0 $0 $0
97300 Housing Assistance Payments $0 $0 $0
97350 HAP Portability-In $0 $0 $0
97400 Depreciation Expense $1,082 $0 $1,082
97500 Fraud Losses $0 $0 $0
97600 Capital Outlays - Governmental Funds
97700 Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds
97800 Dwelling Units Rent Expense $0 $0 $0
90000 Total Expenses $108,536 $0 $108,536
See report of independent auditors. 25

Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2023



Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

Housing Authority of the City of Olivette (MO132)

St. Louis (MO)

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Low Rent Capital Fund i Total Project

10010 Operating Transfer In $27,617 $0 $27,617

10020 Operating transfer Out $0 -$27,617 -$27,617

10030 Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government $0 $0 $0

10040 Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit $0 $0 $0

10050 Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds

10060 Proceeds from Property Sales

10070 Extraordinary ltems, Net Gain/Loss $0 $0 $0

10080 Special ltems (Net Gain/Loss) $0 $0 $0

10091 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In $0 $0 $0

10092 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out $0 $0 $0

10093 Transfers between Program and Project - In $0 $0 $0

10094 Transfers between Project and Program - Out $0 $0 $0

10100 Total Other financing Sources (Uses) $27,617 -$27,617 $0

10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses $80,098 $6,413 $86,511

11020 Required Annual Debt Principal Payments $0 $0 $0

11030 Beginning Equity $220,482 $0 $220,482

11040 Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors $0 $0 $0

11050 Changes in Compensated Absence Balance

11060 Changes in Contingent Liability Balance

11070 Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability

11080 Changes in Speclal Term/Severance Benefits Liability

11090 Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling Rents

11100 Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

11170 Administrative Fee Equity

11180 Housing Assistance Payments Equity

11190 Unit Months Available 168 168

11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 168 168
See report of independent auditors. 26

Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2023



MEMORANDUM

HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E] COUNTY HOUSING

To:
FROM:
Date:

Subject:

Olivette Housing Authority Board of Commissioners
Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO
August 27,2024

Executive Director’s Report

This memo provides information about select Housing Authority activities.

Safety Initiatives
Staff have been working over the past several months to ensure the safety of everyone
in County Housing communities including residents, landlords, staff, and visitors.

County Housing issued a workplace safety policy last month that outlines employee
requirements for clear identification, advance notice of interactions, training, and
reporting. Staff have also started revising disaster preparedness and emergency
response plans.

In addition, staff are drafting updates for the Admissions and Continued Occupancy
Policy (ACOP) for the public housing program, public housing leases, board policies,
main building policies, and general communications. Proposed updates to the ACOP
will be presented to the board for review and approval.

New Commissioner Manual

Staff assembled a manual for commissioners that provides basic information about
County Housing and the Olivette Housing Authority. This is a new resource for board
members and will be provided to all housing authority commissioners associated with
County Housing.



MEMORANDUM

HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E] COUNTY HOUSING

To:
Through:
From:
Date:

Subject:

Olivette Housing Authority Board of Commissioners
Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO
Carolyn Riddle, Interim Finance Director

August 27,2024

Financial Summary

This memo provides a narrative explanation for the period ending June 30, 2024 financial

reports.

Recommendation
Staff recommend the Board approve the financial statements and accompanying
narrative, as prepared.

Highlights

A. Revenue

The total operating income is under budget by 28% primarily due to the year-to-date
operating subsidy, which under the projected amount by 57%. Total tenant charges are
higher than budget due is repayment income and higher tenant rent received.

B. Expense
Total operating expenses are under budget by 31%. This is primarily due to lower
contract costs and professional fees.

C. Netlncome
Total operating netincome is $6,693 year to date. However, the total netincome is
$6,152 including depreciation.

D. Cash

As of June 30, 2024, the cash balance in the operating bank account was $267,025.
There was $3,736 of operating subsidy received in June, tenant rental income for the
month was $4,713, and operating expenses payments made were $2,256.

Attachments

A. Budgeted Income Statement
B. Cash Report

C. Tenant Rents



Olivette Housing Authority
Budgeted Income Statement
As of June 30, 2024

OPERATING ITEMS

Total Operating Subsidy

Total Capital Grants

Total Tenant Charges

Total Investment Income

Total Miscellaneous Other Income
Total Income

Total Rents and Utility Reimbursement

Total Salaries

Total Benefits and Taxes

Total Training, Seminars, Conferences
Total Admin

Total Utilities

Total Materials

Total Contract Costs

Total Tenant Services Expense

Total Other Maintenance Expenses

Total Outside Services

Total Other Occupancy Expenses
Total Occupancy Expense

Total Insurance
Total Outside Services
Total Professional Fees
Total Other Fees
Total Telephone and Technology
Total Other Administrative Expenses
Total Internal Charges
Total Other General

Total Expenses
Total Net Operating Income
NON-OPERATING ITEMS
Total Depreciation Expense

Total Non- Operating Items

Net Income (Loss)

Olivette HA
YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance % Variance Monthly Actual Monthly Budget Variance % Variance
20,611 47,442 (26,832) 3,736 7,907 (4,172)
1,230 - 1,230 - - -
35,494 32,552 2,942 5,364 5,425 (61)
128 131 (4) 19 22 (2)
- 50 (50) - 8 (8)
57,463 80,176 (22,714) -28% 9,119 13,363 (4,244) -32%
819 - 819 165 - 165
11,495 27,327 (15,832) 2,393 4,555 (2,162)
3,824 6,712 (2,888) 799 1,119 (320)
16,138 34,039 (17,902) -53% 3,356 5,673 (2,317) -41%
4,433 4,496 (63) 873 749 124
718 1,430 (712) - 238 (238)
10,105 13,891 (3,785) 8 2,315 (2,307)
7 236 (229) - 39 (39)
306 976 (670) 78 163 (84)
3,677 2,931 746 506 489 18
19,246 23,960 (4,714) -20% 1,466 3,993 (2,528) -63%
5,733 4,300 1,433 955 717 239
2,397 154 2,243 59 26 33
143 2,300 (2,157) 143 383 (240)
4,570 4,645 (75) 762 774 (13)
521 1,497 (976) 95 250 (154)
552 1,634 (1,082) (187) 272 (459)
1,470 1,457 13 245 243 2
15,386 15,987 (601) -4% 2,073 2,665 (591) -22%
50,770 73,987 (23,217) -31% 6,895 12,331 (5,436) -44%
6,693 6,190 503 2,224 1,032 1,192
(541) (699) 159 (90) (117) 26
(541) (699) 159 (90) (117) 26
6,152 5,490 661 2,134 915 1,219




Olivette Housing Authority
Cash Report

June 2024
Olivette US Bank
BEGINNING BOOK CASH BALANCE 6/1/2024 $ 260,031.86
ADD:
Tenant Rent 4,713.00

Security Deposits -
FSS Deposits -

Capital Fund -
Operating Subsidy 3,735.56
Interest 19.42
Transfer
Other Revenue -
TOTAL DEPOSITS 8,467.98
LESS:
Other Transfers
Manual Checks
Checks (938.12)
NSF/ Service Fees -
Withdraws/Other Deductions (1,318.35)
Operating Subsidy Out -
TOTAL PAYMENTS (2,256.47)
ENDING BOOK CASH BALANCE 6/30/2024 $ 266,243.37
Olivette US Bank
Ending Bank Balance 6/30/2024 $ 266,243.37
Outstanding Checks (545.45)
ACH in Transit 1,327.00

Other Items -

Adjusted Bank Balance 6/30/2024 $ 267,024.92



Olivette Housing Authority

Tenant Rent
Date = 06/01/2024 - 06/30/2024

Period Date Person Property Account Amount Reference Notes
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0010954) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 286.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0018158) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 1,036.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000694) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 477.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000325) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 373.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000307) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 184.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000313) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 384.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000316) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 279.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0010032) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 685.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000248) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 607.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0012791) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 397.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000310) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 290.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24
06/2024 6/1/2024 (t0000247) 1132bolv (rent) Tenant Rent 366.00 :TRC :06/24 :Rent 06/24

Total 5,364.00

Page 1 of 1



MEMORANDUM

HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E] COUNTY HOUSING

To:
Through:
From:
Date:

Subject:

Olivette Housing Authority Board of Commissioners
Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO

Emily Smith, Director of Program Compliance & Training
August 27,2024

5-Year PHA Plan (2025-2029)

This memo provides an overview of the 5-Year PHA Plan requirements. In addition, enclosed is
the 5-Year PHA Plan for 2025-2029.

Recommendation
Staff recommend the Board review the Olivette Housing Authority’s 2025-2029 Plan and
authorize the Board Chairwoman to sign the Civil Rights Certification.

Overview

The 5-Year PHA Plan is a comprehensive strategic planning document required by HUD.
It outlines our mission, goals, and strategies for the upcoming five years to address the
housing needs in the communities we serve.

HUD requires all public housing authorities to submit a comprehensive 5-year PHA Plan
to guide and inform the subsequent Annual Plans. This plan is identical to the County
Housing 5-Year PHA Plan.

Attachments
A. 5-Year PHA Plan (2025-2029)
B. Civil Rights Certification



5_Yea r PHA Pla n U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development OMB No. 2577-0226

(for All PHAs)

Office of Public and Indian Housing Expires: 03/31/2024

Purpose. The 5-Year and Annual PHA Plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic PHA policies, rules, and requirements
concerning the PHA’s operations, programs, and services, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the public of the
PHA’s mission, goals and objectives for serving the needs of low- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families

Applicability. The Form HUD-50075-5Y is to be completed once every 5 PHA fiscal years by all PHAs.

PHA Information.

Al

PHA Name: _Olivette Housing Authority PHA Code: ___MO-132

PHA Plan for Fiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY): _01/2025
The Five-Year Period of the Plan (i.e. 2019-2023): _ 2025-2029
PHA Plan Submission Type: [X] 5-Year Plan Submission [J Revised 5-Year Plan Submission

Availability of Information. In addition to the items listed in this form, PHAs must have the elements listed below readily available to the public.
A PHA must identify the specific location(s) where the proposed PHA Plan, PHA Plan Elements, and all information relevant to the public hearing
and proposed PHA Plan are available for inspection by the public. Additionally, the PHA must provide information on how the public may
reasonably obtain additional information on the PHA policies contained in the standard Annual Plan, but excluded from their streamlined
submissions. At a minimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans, including updates, at each Asset Management Project (AMP) and main office or central
office of the PHA. PHAs are strongly encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on their official websites. PHAs are also encouraged to provide
each resident council a copy of their PHA Plans.

The Draft 2025 PHA 5-Year Plan is available for viewing at the following locations:

PHA Main Administrative Office
8865 Natural Bridge Road
St. Louis, MO 63121

Housing Authority of St. Louis County
Website at www.countyhousing.org

[J PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete table below.)

i i No. of Units in Each Program
Participating PHAs PHA Program(s) in the Program(s) not in the g

Code Consortia Consortia PH HCV

Lead PHA:

Page1of8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)



http://www.countyhousing.org/

Plan Elements. Required for all PHAs completing this form.

B.1

Mission. State the PHA’s mission for serving the needs of low-income, very low-income, and extremely low-income families in the PHA’s
jurisdiction for the next five years.

We all need affordable housing. Affordability is relative. Home is universal.

The mission of the Olivette Housing Authority, through its relationship with County Housing (the Housing Authority of St. Louis County), is
to provide decent, safe, and affordable housing, ensure equal housing opportunity, promote self-sufficiency, and improve the quality of
life and economic vitality of extremely low-income, very low-income, low- and moderate-income families and individuals in our
community.

We believe that affordable housing should be more than shelter—it should serve as a doorway to a better life. In addition to providing
housing itself, we work to help increase the stability and economic mobility of residents. We work with providers of holistic supportive
services designed to help individuals and families achieve greater well-being, self-sufficiency, and economic success.

Affordable housing ensures there is a safe home for children, elderly and disabled adults, employees of local businesses, and other
members of our community. We believe that, when executed and managed properly, affordable housing is an asset that makes all
communities stronger.

Page 2 of 8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)




B.2

Goals and Objectives. Identify the PHA’s quantifiable goals and objectives that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low-income, very low-
income, and extremely low-income families for the next five years.

Through its relationship with County Housing, the Olivette Housing Authority has identified five core objectives that will move the agency
towards fulfilling its mission. The core objectives are data-driven, with an emphasis on setting annual key results and monitoring progress
on those results throughout the year.

Objective 1: Deliver services safely, effectively, and efficiently.

The first objective is to establish excellence in our basic operations. Streamlined processes and procedures and an emphasis on quality
control ensure that residents' housing needs are met. Findings on the finance/single audit, along with earned PHAS scores, indicate how
well those processes and procedures work.

Our goalis to be a standard or high-performing PHA for each year during this five-year period.

Objective 2: Foster a customer-centered culture.

Every client or employee deserves to be treated with respect and empathy. Staff is working to improve customer service quality so that it is
easy to do business with the Housing Authority and easy to find the information that residents need. All employees are expected to be
helpful and caring and to treat everyone fairly.

Our goal is to meet or exceed the customer service expectations of our residents, landlords, and community partners each year for the
next five years.

Objective 3: Help our residents and families gain self-sufficiency through partnerships with other organizations in the community.
Through its relationship with County Housing, the Olivette Housing Authority completed a partnership plan to establish which
organizations in the community can help provide supportive services to residents. These partnerships are prioritized based on the services
they offer and their capacity to serve our residents. There are plans for putting more formal relationships in place to increase housing
stability and self-sufficiency for residents.

Our goals in this area are to increase the number of partnerships we have with other organizations, increase the amount of programming
we offer to residents, and establish a core program offering that remains consistent from year to year.

Objective 4: Expand access to desirable and affordable housing.
Through its relationship with County Housing, the Olivette Housing Authority’s strategy for expanding access will be targeted at:
a. Primarily extremely low-income (30% AMI), elderly, and disabled households; using an equity lens, to:
i. Increase production of rental units
ii.  Preserve existing units
iii. Improve quality and eliminate substandard housing
iv.  Improve housing stability
b.  New production for lower income levels, including workforce and mixed-income housing.
c. Increasing homeownership opportunities.
d. Increasing mobility.

Through our relationship with County Housing, our goal is to leverage at least 200 new affordable housing units in St. Louis County for our
residents and community members in areas of opportunity through advocacy, LIHTC applications, and the strategic use of project-based
vouchers over this five-year period.

Objective 5: Position the Olivette Housing Authority through its relationship with County Housing as a partner and advocate in the region.

Our goal over the next five years is for our residents and community to consider the Housing Authority as a partner and advocate for quality
affordable housing in the region.

Page 3 of 8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)




B.3

Progress Report. Include a report on the progress the PHA has made in meeting the goals and objectives described in the previous 5-Year Plan.

The past five-year period was a time of tremendous change, re-direction, and growth for the Housing Authority of St. Louis County and the
Olivette Housing Authority by proxy. During this time, the executive leadership experienced 100% turnover as well as high turnover across
all departments. While the five-year plan informed much of what was accomplished, the response to the pandemic and the change in
leadership did take the agency in a new direction, complete with an agency-wide rebranding.

The following is the progress made toward the goals and objectives of the previous 5-year plan:
. The pursuit of additional housing resources

County Housing staff work continuously to support the new development of affordable housing in our community. While the
additional housing resources we secured were not directly in the City of Olivette, they were in the St. Louis County community.
During this time, we closed on the Wellington Family Homes low-income housing tax credit project, which will transform 186 of
the former Wellston Housing Authority public housing units into fully rehabbed housing. Staff have also worked to secure
financing to redevelop the Arbor Hill apartments to create larger units of affordable housing to meet the housing needs of
families today.

. Acquisition of new units, when appropriate
No new units were acquired in the City of Olivette during this time frame.
. Leverage of other sources of funds

County Housing has secured Emergency Rental Assistance Program (ERAP) funds, HOME Investment Partnership funds,
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, Community Development Block Grant COVID (CDBG-CV) funds, and
FEMA assistance for our residents and our developments. Many of these support the Olivette public housing residents.

. The renovation and modernization of existing inventory

County Housing staff have used CFP to modernize and renovate the existing public housing inventory with activities such as
bathroom remodels, appliance upgrades, exterior siding, and other renovations.

. Improvement of PHAS/SEMAP assessment scores

While our goalis always to be a high-performing public housing authority, we did encounter some obstacles in our public
housing program during the previous five years. With the onset of the global COVID-19 pandemic, it was difficult to maintain a
high MASS score with high tenant balances and an eviction moratorium. Also, with our public housing program managed by a
third-party property manager, we did not have control in areas of the PHAS that would position us for success. So, in 2023, we
brought the property management of our entire public housing portfolio in-house. This has allowed us to change the trajectory
of our MASS projections for future years.

. Enhance customer satisfaction

Customer service has been a focus of our new administration. In 2022 we implemented an annual customer service survey and
invited our residents and landlords to participate. The survey responses have helped us identify areas for improvement. In
response to the survey data, our entire staff has participated in customer service training to improve customer relations. We
have also made changes to the phone tree and caseworker workflows to allow for better customer service.

. The demolition and/or disposition of obsolete housing when appropriate

There was no demolition or disposition of any obsolete housing within the City of Olivette; however, demolition and disposition
activities occurred in the surrounding area. The 201 obsolete housing units from the former Wellston Housing Authority were
disposed of through the Wellington Family Homes LIHTC project, which closed in March 2023. Of the original 201 units, 186 are
to be fully rehabbed with the tax credit funds invested, and the remaining 15 are slated to be demolished per the HUD-approved
plans.

. Increased landlord participation in the Housing Choice Voucher (I-ICY) program through active outreach -counsel
voucher clients to expand housing choice

While the Olivette Housing Authority does not have a Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program, many HCV residents choose to
live in the Olivette community. We have a designated team of Landlord Liaisons who help support our HCV landlords. To
increase landlord participation, our Landlord Liaisons meet one-on-one with new landlords to explain the HCV process and give
the landlords an opportunity to ask questions to ensure they understand how the program works. We have also increased our
payment standards in the past two years to be able to compete with the market on rental amounts.

Page 4 of 8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)




. I-ICY Family Self Sufficiency Program provides employment & life skills training in an effort to expand the number of
working families

During this five-year period, County Housing provided financial literacy, credit building, and interview books for clients who
needed additional support. We also share vocational training program information with clients on an as-needed basis to
support our goal of increasing the number of working families.

. Offer a wide range of social services

While County Housing does not offer social services directly, we do make referrals to our partnering agencies as needed.
Currently, we have partnerships with a variety of area nonprofits to support residents with domestic violence situations,
counseling, transitional housing, case management, rent, utilities, employment services, education/GED, childcare, financial
literacy, homeownership preparation, and weatherization.

. Promote affirmative Fair Housing and ensure equal access to housing resources
We promote Fair Housing and tenant and landlord rights on our website and offer reasonable accommodations where
applicable. In 2024, we initiated annual Fair Housing training for all staff. We also have staff participate in HUD-sponsored Fair
Housing training when available.

. Broad cooperation and coordination of services with other agencies and not-for-profits
We have placed an emphasis on cultivating community partnerships with other agencies and non-profit organizations to
support the needs of our residents. Currently, we have partnerships with a variety of area nonprofits to support residents with
domestic violence situations, counseling, transitional housing, case management, rent, utilities, employment services,
education/GED, childcare, financial literacy, homeownership preparation, and weatherization.

. Enforce non-smoking policy and establish or coordinate with community programs for smoking cessation.
Public Housing staff have been enforcing our no-smoking policies at our public housing properties. We are also working on
cultivating partnerships with area agencies that can support our residents with community programs for smoking cessation
when necessary.

. Implement Public Housing online bill pay and paperless online annual reviews

We now have online bill pay options for our public housing residents through Rent Café. Our staff is still working towards a
completely paperless process for annual renewals, which we hope to complete within the next 12 months.

B.4

Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Goals. Provide a statement of the PHA’s goals, activities, objectives, policies, or programs that will
enable the PHA to serve the needs of child and adult victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

County Housing has recently updated its VAWA policy with its Administrative Plan and Admissions and Continued Occupancy
Policy to ensure compliance with the regulation. We train our staff on how to handle VAWA situations to protect our residents
and their children, and we make referrals to our partnering supportive service agencies when applicable. We also instituted a
preference for VAWA victims in our Public Housing and HCV programs.

Other Document and/or Certification Requirements.

C.1

Significant Amendment or Modification. Provide a statement on the criteria used for determining a significant amendment or modification to the
5-Year Plan.

The Authority will consider the following to be significant amendments or modifications:

. Changes to rent or admissions policies or organization of the waiting list.

. Additions of non-emergency work items (items not included in the current Annual Statement or Five-Year Action Plan) or
change in the use of replacement reserve funds under the Capital Fund.

. Any change regarding demolition or disposition, designation, homeownership programs, or conversion activities.

An exception to this definition will be made for any of the above that are adopted to reflect changes in HUD regulatory requirements; such
changes will not be considered significant amendments.

Page 5 of 8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)




C.2

Resident Advisory Board (RAB) Comments.

(a) Did the RAB(s) have comments to the 5-Year PHA Plan?
Y N
oo

(b) If yes, comments must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the 5-Year PHA Plan. PHAs must also include a narrative describing their
analysis of the RAB recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations.

C3

Certification by State or Local Officials.

Form HUD-50077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated Plan, must be submitted by the
PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan.

C4

Required Submission for HUD FO Review.
(a) Did the public challenge any elements of the Plan?
Y N
oo

(b) Ifyes, include Challenged Elements.

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH).

Page 6 of 8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)



http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/forms/files/50077sl.doc

D.1

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. (Non-qualified PHAs are only required to complete this section on the Annual PHA Plan. All
qualified PHAs must complete this section.)

Provide a statement of the PHA’s strategies and actions to achieve fair housing goals outlined in an accepted Assessment of Fair Housing
(AFH) consistent with 24 CFR § 5.154(d)(5). Use the chart provided below. (PHAs should add as many goals as necessary to overcome fair
housing issues and contributing factors.) Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA is not obligated to complete
this chart. The PHA will fulfill, nevertheless, the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(0) enacted prior to August 17, 2015. See Instructions for
further detail on completing this item.

Fair Housing Goal:

Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal

Fair Housing Goal:

Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal

Fair Housing Goal:

Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal

Page 7 of 8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)




Instructions for Preparation of Form HUD-50075-5Y - 5-Year PHA Plan for All PHAs

A. PHA Information. All PHAs must complete this section. (24 CFR § 903.4)

A.1 Include the full PHA Name, PHA Code, PHA Fiscal Year Beginning (MM/YYY'Y), Five-Year Period that the Plan covers, i.e.
2019-2023, PHA Plan Submission Type, and the Availability of Information, specific location(s) of all information relevant to the
hearing and proposed PHA Plan.

PHA Consortia: Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete the table.
B. Plan Elements.

B.1 Mission. State the PHA’s mission for serving the needs of low- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families in the
PHA’s jurisdiction for the next five years. (24 CFR § 903.6(a)(1))

B.2 Goals and Objectives. Identify the PHA’s quantifiable goals and objectives that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low-
income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families for the next five years. (24 CFR § 903.6(b)(1))

B.3 Progress Report. Include a report on the progress the PHA has made in meeting the goals and objectives described in the previous 5-
Year Plan. (24 CFR § 903.6(b)(2))

B.4 Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Goals. Provide a statement of the PHA’s goals, activities objectives, policies, or programs
that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of child and adult victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
(24 CFR § 903.6(a)(3)).

C. Other Document and/or Certification Requirements.

C.1 Significant Amendment or Modification. Provide a statement on the criteria used for determining a significant amendment or
modification to the 5-Year Plan. For modifications resulting from the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program, refer to the
‘Sample PHA Plan Amendment’ found in Notice PIH-2012-32, REV 2.

C.2 Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments.

(a) Did the public or RAB have comments?
(b) Ifyes, submit comments as an attachment to the Plan and describe the analysis of the comments and the PHA’s decision made on
these recommendations. (24 CFR § 903.17(b), 24 CER § 903.19)
C.3 Certification by State or Local Officials.
Form HUD-50077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated Plan, must be
submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan.
C.4 Required Submission for HUD FO Review.
Challenged Elements.
(a) Did the public challenge any elements of the Plan?
(b) Ifyes, include such information as an attachment to the Annual PHA Plan or 5-Year PHA Plan with a description of any
challenges to Plan elements, the source of the challenge, and the PHA’s response to the public.

D. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing.
(Non-qualified PHAs are only required to complete this section on the Annual PHA Plan. All qualified PHAs must complete this
section.)

D.1 Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. The PHA will use the answer blocks in item D.1 to provide a statement of its strategies and
actions to implement each fair housing goal outlined in its accepted Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) consistent with 24 CFR § 5.154(d)(5)
that states, in relevant part: “To implement goals and priorities in an AFH, strategies and actions shall be included in program participants' ...
PHA Plans (including any plans incorporated therein) .... Strategies and actions must affirmatively further fair housing ....” Use the chart
provided to specify each fair housing goal from the PHA’s AFH for which the PHA is the responsible program participant — whether the
AFH was prepared solely by the PHA, jointly with one or more other PHAs, or in collaboration with a state or local jurisdiction — and specify
the fair housing strategies and actions to be implemented by the PHA during the period covered by this PHA Plan. If there are more than
three fair housing goals, add answer blocks as necessary.

Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA will not have to complete section D.; nevertheless, the PHA will address
its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing in part by fulfilling the requirements at 24 CFR 903.7(0)(3) enacted prior to August 17,
2015, which means that it examines its own programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those
programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works with local jurisdictions to
implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that require the PHA’s involvement; and maintain records
reflecting these analyses and actions. Furthermore, under Section SA(d)(15) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended, a PHA must
submit a civil rights certification with its Annual PHA Plan, which is described at 24 CFR 903.7(0)(1) except for qualified PHAs who submit
the Form HUD-50077-CR as a standalone document.

This information collection is authorized by Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act, which added a new section 5A to the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended,
which introduced the 5-Year PHA Plan. The 5-Year PHA Plan provides the PHA’s mission, goals and objectives for serving the needs of low- income, very low- income, and extremely low-
income families and the progress made in meeting the goals and objectives described in the previous 5-Year Plan.

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 1.64 hours per year per response or 8.2 hours per response every five years, including the time for
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not collect this
information, and respondents are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

Privacy Act Notice. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. Code,

Section 1701 et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations. Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to
retain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.

Page 8 of 8 form HUD-50075-5Y (03/31/2024)


http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.4
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.4
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.4
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.4
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=f41eb312b1425d2a95a2478fde61e11f&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.12
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/forms/files/50077sl.doc

Status: Created

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Civil Rights Certification

(Quallfled PHAS) Office of Public and Indian Housing
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226

Expires 03/31/2024

Civil Rights Certification

Annual Certification and Board Resolution

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its
Chairperson or other authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, | approve the
submission of the 5-Year PHA Plan , hereinafter referred to as” the Plan’, of which this document is a part,
and make the following certification and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) for the fiscal year beginning 01/2025 in which the PHA receives assistance under 42
U.S.C. 1437f and/or 1437g in connection with the mission, goals, and objectives of the public housing
agency and implementation thereof:

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d—4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19),
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.), and other applicable civil rights requirements and that it will affirmatively
further fair housing in the administration of the program. In addition, if it administers a Housing Choice
Voucher Program, the PHA certifies that it will administer the program in conformity with the Fair
Housing Act, title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, title Il
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and other applicable civil rights requirements, and that it will
affirmatively further fair housing in the administration of the program. The PHA will affirmatively further
fair housing, which means that it will take meaningful actions to further the goals identified in the
Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR § 5.150
through 5.180, that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to affirmatively
further fair housing, and that it will address fair housing issues and contributing factors in its programs,
in accordance with 24 CFR § 903.7(0)(3). The PHA will fulfill the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(0) and 24
CFR § 903.15(d). Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA will fulfill the
requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) promulgated prior to August 17, 2015, which means that it examines
its programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those
programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works
with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair
housing that require the PHA’s involvement; and maintains records reflecting these analyses and actions.

Housing Authority of the City of Olivette MO132

PHA Name PHA Number/PHA Code

| hereby certify that all the statement above, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims
and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)



Name of Executive Director: MRS Shannon Koenig Name of Board Chairperson: Nikeyia Ingram

Signature:  Date: Signature:  Date:

Executive Director Signature: Board Chairperson Signature:

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to collect the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. Code, Section 1701 et seq., and
regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations. Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit. The
information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality. The information is collected to ensure that PHAs carry out applicable civil rights requirements.

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 0.16 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources,
gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not collect this information, and respondents are not required to
complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

Form identification: MO132-Housing Authority of the City of Olivette form HUD-50077-CR (Form ID -
1309) for CY 2025 printed by Emily Smith in HUD Secure Systems/Public Housing Portal at 08/15/2024
09:20AM EST



MEMORANDUM

HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E] COUNTY HOUSING

To:
Through:
From:
Date:

Subject:

Olivette Housing Authority Board of Commissioners
Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO

Emily Smith, Director of Program Compliance & Training
August 27,2024

2025 Annual PHA Plan and Certification of Compliance

This memo provides an overview of Olivette Housing Authority’s annual plan requirements.

Recommendation

Staff recommend that the Board review the Housing Authority of St. Louis County’s
(County Housing) 2025 Annual PHA Plan and authorize the Board Chairman to sign the
Certification of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations.

Overview

The Annual PHA Plan is a HUD-required document that details a housing authority’s
policies, programs, and strategies for meeting local housing needs and goals. County
Housing’s 2025 Annual PHA Plan describes the updates made to the organization’s
policies and planned activities for the upcoming fiscal year.

HUD requires most public housing authorities (PHAs) to submit a comprehensive
Annual PHA Plan each year. Exemptions to this requirement are made for qualified
PHAs, which do not have a combined public housing unit total of 550 or more and are
not designated troubled by HUD. Olivette Housing Authority is considered a qualified
PHA.

As a qualified PHA, Olivette Housing Authority is not required to submit its own Annual
PHA Plan but must still submit a Certification of Compliance with PHA Plans and
Related Regulations and hold an annual public hearing to address changes to its goals,
objectives, and policies. County Housing’s Annual PHA Plan is used as the template for
describing these changes to the public. The certification attests that the Olivette
Housing Authority is abiding by the rules, regulations, and statutes in County Housing’s
Annual PHA Plan.

Attachments
A. County Housing’s 2025 Annual PHA Plan
B. Certification of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations



Annual PHA Plan U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development OMB No. 2577-0226

(Standard PHAs and
Troubled PHASs)

Office of Public and Indian Housing Expires: 03/31/2024

Purpose. The 5-Year and Annual PHA Plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic PHA policies, rules, and requirements concerning the
PHA'’s operations, programs, and services, including changes to these policies, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the public of
the PHA’s mission, goals and objectives for serving the needs of low- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families.

Applicability. The Form HUD-50075-ST is to be completed annually by STANDARD PHAs or TROUBLED PHAs. PHAs that meet the
definition of a High Performer PHA, Small PHA, HCV-Only PHA or Qualified PHA do not need to submit this form.

Definitions.

(l) High-Performer PHA — A PHA that owns or manages more than 550 combined public housing units and housing choice vouchers, and was designated as

a high performer on both the most recent Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) and Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP)
assessments if administering both programs, or PHAS if only administering public housing.

(2) Small PHA - A PHA that is not designated as PHAS or SEMAP troubled, that owns or manages less than 250 public housing units and any number of

3)
(4)

vouchers where the total combined units exceed 550.

Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Only PHA - A PHA that administers more than 550 HCVs, was not designated as troubled in its most recent SEMAP
assessment and does not own or manage public housing.

Standard PHA - A PHA that owns or manages 250 or more public housing units and any number of vouchers where the total combined units exceed 550,

and that was designated as a standard performer in the most recent PHAS or SEMAP assessments.

(5) Troubled PHA - A PHA that achieves an overall PHAS or SEMAP score of less than 60 percent.
(6) Qualified PHA - A PHA with 550 or fewer public housing dwelling units and/or housing choice vouchers combined and is not PHAS or SEMAP

troubled.
A. | PHA Information.
Al PHA Name: Housing Authority of St. Louis County PHA Code: MO-004

PHA Type: Standard PHA [] Troubled PHA

PHA Plan for Fiscal Year Beginning: MM/YYYY): 01/2025

PHA Inventory (Based on Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) units at time of FY beginning, above)

Number of Public Housing (PH) Units 309 Number of Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs) __ 7,439  Total Combined
Units/Vouchers _ 7,748

PHA Plan Submission Type: Annual Submission [JRevised Annual Submission

Availability of Information. PHAs must have the elements listed below readily available to the public. A PHA must identify the specific
location(s) where the proposed PHA Plan, PHA Plan Elements, and all information relevant to the public hearing and proposed PHA Plan are
available for inspection by the public. Ata minimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans, including updates, at each Asset Management Project (AMP)
and main office or central office of the PHA. PHAs are strongly encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on their official website. PHAs are also
encouraged to provide each resident council a copy of their PHA Plans.

The Draft 2024 PHA Annual Plan is available for viewing at the following locations:

PHA Main Administrative Office PHA Site Management Office Arbor Hill PHA Site Management Office Highview
8865 Natural Bridge Road 133 Grape Avenue 2876 West Pasture
St. Louis, MO 63121 Maryland Heights, MO 63043 St. Louis, MO 63114

Housing Authority of St. Louis County
Website at www.countyhousing.org

[J PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete table below)

Program(s) not in the No. of Units in Each Program

Participating PHAs PHA Code Program(s) in the Consortia C "
onsortia PH HCV

Lead PHA:

Page 1 of 12 form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)


http://www.countyhousing.org/

Plan Elements

B.1

Revision of Existing PHA Plan Elements.

—_
©
Na2

Have the following PHA Plan elements been revised by the PHA?

Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs
Deconcentration and Other Policies that Govern Eligibility, Selection, and Admissions.
Financial Resources.

Rent Determination.

Operation and Management.

Grievance Procedures.

Homeownership Programs.

Community Service and Self-Sufficiency Programs.

Safety and Crime Prevention.

Pet Policy.

Asset Management.

[X] Substantial Deviation.

Significant Amendment/Modification

OOO0OROROMERNDORN <
HEHNONOROCOOXOZ

~
o
=

If the PHA answered yes for any element, describe the revisions for each revised element(s):

STATEMENT OF HOUSING NEEDS AND STRATEGY FOR ADDRESSING HOUSING NEEDS

Where an individual lives affects nearly every aspect of life, from the quality of education they receive to their physical health and well-
being. Simply being housed is not enough to determine future success; in St. Louis County, where one lives also matters. Access to jobs,
transit, quality schools, and healthcare all shape a person’s future.

The mission of the Housing Authority of St. Louis County (County Housing) is to provide housing options and support at multiple stages of
an individual’s housing journey. This begins with placing a client in decent, safe, and affordable housing and ensuring their right to equal
housing opportunities, and extends to specialized programming and partnerships to promote self-sufficiency. Ultimately, the goal of
County Housing is to improve the quality of life for low- and moderate-income families and individuals.

Families in search of affordable housing in St. Louis County face considerable challenges. These challenges are more acute for extremely
low-income families, elderly and disabled individuals, and households of certain races and ethnicities. The U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) has identified four major housing problems affecting low- and moderate-income households:

. substandard housing (i.e., housing lacking complete plumbing or kitchen facilities),

. overcrowding (i.e., more than one person per room),

. cost burden (i.e., spending more than 30% of income on housing costs), and

. severe cost burden (i.e., spending greater than 50% of income on housing costs).

Below are the specific needs of families with incomes below 30% of the Area Median Income (AMI), elderly families, households with
individuals with disabilities, and households of certain races and ethnic groups.

Housing Needs for Extremely Low-income Families (30% AMI)

Across Missouri and St. Louis County, there is a shortage of affordable rental homes available to families whose household incomes are at
or below the poverty guideline. Many of these households are severely cost-burdened, spending more than half of theirincome on
housing. According to Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data from 2020, of the 409,660 households in St. Louis
County, there are 28,995 renter households and 46,455 total households with a household income below 30% AMI. Severely cost-
burdened households, with a household income below 30% AMI, are more likely than other renters to sacrifice health care and food costs
in order to pay rent. According to the National Low Income Housing Coalition, these households are also much more likely to experience
unstable housing situations like evictions and homelessness.

Extremely low-income households face a severe shortage of housing supply. According to the Affordable STL’s Affordable Housing Report
Card (2021), which assessed affordable housing needs in St. Louis City and County, renters with budgets of $2,000 per month for rent have
the choice of ten times as many units as renters with rental budgets of $550 per month.

According to St. Louis County’s 2021-2025 Affordable Housing and Homeless Services Investment Strategic Plan, there are approximately
442,243 housing units for 998,684 people in the county. Low-income families are forced to compete for these available units with those
who have the income to afford more expensive places to live. Only about one in four households in the lowest income bracket have access
to income-restricted subsidized housing. The greatest need in the St. Louis region is for one-, two-, and three-bedroom affordable units.

In terms of housing quality, maintenance and accessibility are often an issue for extremely low-income families. According to the St. Louis
HOME Consortium’s Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (2021), the lack of availability of accessible housing is one of the
eight main impediments to housing choice in the St. Louis area. While older homes are less expensive to purchase, the cost of maintaining
them can create a significant financial challenge for low- to moderate-income households. According to St. Louis County’s Consolidated

Page 2 of 12 form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)




Plan (2021) data, in St. Louis County, 745 extremely low-income rental households are faced with substandard housing, lacking complete
plumbing or kitchen facilities. Overcrowding and severe overcrowding (homes with greater than 1.01-1.5 people per room and homes with
greater than 1.51 people per room, respectively) affect 797 extremely low-income rental households.

Affordable housing in the County tends to be concentrated in areas of low opportunity that lack the resources of areas of high opportunity.
These conditions make it more likely that families in poverty remain in poverty.

The Affordable Housing Report Card (2021) states that 42% of Housing Choice vouchers are used in five municipalities in North St. Louis
County: Florissant, Ferguson, Spanish Lake, Jennings, and Bellefontaine Neighbors, while the largest and wealthiest municipalities in the
County (Wildwood, Clayton, Town and Country, Ladue, and Brentwood) have no voucher households at all. New construction exacerbates
this place-based problem, as more new development primarily occurs in the central, west, and south subareas of the County. Multifamily
housing, however, is concentrated in the northern regions of the County.

Elderly Families

The elderly population in St. Louis County is increasing and will continue increasing as baby boomers age. According to 2022 ACS data,
about 19.3% of St. Louis County's total population is 65 years old or older. Of all adults over the age of 65 in the County, about 8.6% live
below the federal poverty level, and according to the Affordable Housing and Homeless Services Investment Strategic Plan (2021), seniors
living in North St. Louis County are among the most likely to be cost-burdened.

Issues of quality and accessibility disproportionately affect elderly households, as household income typically decreases post-working
years, and retrofits are often needed to allow adults to age in place. Harvard University’s Joint Center for Housing Studies’ State of the
Nation’s Housing Report (2023) states that most U.S. homes across the country lack basic accessibility features, such as no-step
entryways and grab-bars in bathrooms that would allow older adults to remain in their homes as they age.

The county's housing stock is also aging, making it more likely that homeowners, elderly or not, will need to make improvements to their
homes to maintain livability. The majority of St. Louis County’s single-family housing stock was built prior to 1970, and most single-family
homes were built in the 1950s and 1960s. The oldest homes are clustered in North St. Louis County, bordering St. Louis City.

Households with Individuals with Disabilities

According to 2018-2022 ACS data, 8% of the County’s population under age 65 has a disability. The lack of accessible housing in St. Louis
County and the concentration of affordable housing in low-opportunity areas with fewer resources make it difficult for families with
disabilities to find housing. The short supply of affordable housing is compounded when an individual in a household is disabled and
needs a home with accessibility modifications. As discussed above, many of the affordable housing units in the County are aging and are
less likely to be accessible. With many protected classes having lower-than-average incomes, housing affordability becomes a critical
aspect of fair access to housing.

Disability is cited in the Consolidated Plan as one of the main risk factors for individuals and families to be evicted and become unhoused.
Local zoning restrictions make it difficult for residents with disabilities to locate housing in certain St. Louis County neighborhoods or
modify housing to make it more accessible. Additionally, administrative and citing constraints for group homes for persons with
disabilities create further barriers to safe, accessible housing.

Households of Various Races and Ethnic Groups

Race has shaped the social fabric and physical infrastructure of St. Louis County. An assessment of affordable housing in the County
cannot be discussed without an examination of the role race plays in where resources are allocated. The legacy of racially motivated
housing policies in the County and the nation means that people of color are more likely to live in poverty and be disproportionally affected
by the lack of affordable housing. According to 2022 ACS data, out of 100,946 total County residents living in poverty, 48,205 are Black or
African American. Low- and extremely low-income Black or African American families are more likely to be housing cost-burdened and
severely housing-cost-burdened, and evictions and foreclosures are concentrated in majority-Black or African American areas of both St.
Louis City and County.

In North St. Louis County, the majority of low- and extremely low-income Black or African American renters experience a housing cost
burden. According to the Affordable Housing Report Card (2021), in some census tracts in North St. Louis County, half of the renters are
paying 30% or more of their monthly income on housing costs, and the population of those census tracts is nearly entirely Black or African
American.

HUD defines a group as having disproportionate need if its members experience housing needs at a rate that is 10% or greater than those
of white households. While 23% of White St. Louis County households have housing problems, these problems disproportionately affect
33% of Native American and other non-Hispanic households, 35% of Hispanic households, and 42% of Black or African American
households.

Economic mobility, the likelihood that a family will progress up the income ladder over generations, is much less likely for Black or African
American families in St. Louis County compared with the White population. Disproportionate rates of Black and White homeownership
mean that Black or African American households are less likely to build wealth through homeownership. In the United States, 45% of Black
or African American households are homeowners compared with 73.8% of White American households, according to 2022 ACS data.

Page 3 of 12 form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)



For those Black or African Americans who do own homes in the County, funding the upkeep is more difficult. The Affordable Housing
Report Card (2021) found that Black or African American applicants were more than twice as likely to be denied a home improvement loan
than White applicants in 2020. Changes in the housing market that allowed existing homeowners to build equity during the COVID-19
pandemic further exacerbated inequities between those who can afford to own a home and those who cannot.

Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs

County Housing developed internal and external strategies and is taking a data-driven approach to addressing clients’ housing needs.
County Housing adopted the following core objectives and key results to measure its progress:

Objective 1: Deliver services safely, effectively, and efficiently.

The first objective speaks to establishing excellence in the County Housing’s basic operations. Streamlined processes and procedures
and an emphasis on quality control ensure that residents' housing needs are met. Findings on the finance/single audit, along with earned
PHAS, SEMAP, and MHDC scores, indicate how well those processes and procedures work.

Objective 2: Foster a customer-centered culture.

Every client or employee at County Housing deserves to be treated with respect and empathy. Staff is working to increase customer
service quality so that it is easy to do business with County Housing and simple to find the information that residents need. At County
Housing all employees are expected to be helpful and caring, and to treat everyone fairly.

Objective 3: Help our residents and families gain self-sufficiency through partnerships with other organizations in the community.
County Housing completed a partnership plan to establish which organizations in the community can aid in providing supportive services
to residents. These partnerships are prioritized based on the services they offer and their capacity to serve County Housing residents.
There are plans for putting more formal relationships in place in order to increase housing stability and self-sufficiency for residents.

Objective 4: Expand access to desirable and affordable housing.
County Housing’s strategy for expanding access will be targeted at:
a. Primarily extremely low-income (30% AMI), elderly, and disabled households; using an equity lens, to:
i Increase production of rental units
ii.  Preserve existing units
iii. Improve quality and eliminate substandard housing
iv. Improve housing stability
New production for lower income levels, including workforce and mixed-income housing.
Increasing homeownership opportunities.
d. Increasing mobility.

oo

Objective 5: Position County Housing as a partner and advocate in the region.
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Annual Contribution by Program - 2025

Housing Choice Voucher 62,669,850
Mainstream Voucher 2,322,502
Emergency Housing Voucher 162,743
Family Self-Sufficiency 189,000
Operating Subsidy 918,943
Capital Funds 1,768,734

68,031,772

RENT DETERMINATION
County Housing has updated its Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) and Administrative Plan. Please see Chapter 6, Part
IV of the attached ACOP chapters and Chapter 6, Part IV of the attached Administrative Plan chapters for updates to Rent Determination.

OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT
County Housing has updated its ACOP and Administrative Plan. Please see Chapter 8 of the attached ACOP chapters and Chapter 8, Part |
and Part Il of the attached Administrative Plan chapters for updates to Operation and Management.

HOMEOWNERSHIP PROGRAM
County Housing has updated its Administrative Plan. Please see Chapter 15, Part VIl of the attached Administrative Plan chapters for
updates to the Homeownership Program.

SAFETY AND CRIME PREVENTION

County Housing is developing Workplace Safety and Firearms and Weapons policies that will inform the ACOP and Administrative Plan.
The policies aim to create a safer environment for County Housing staff, HCV program participants, and public housing program
participants.

Page 4 of 12 form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)



(c) The PHA must submit its De-concentration Policy for Field Office review.

DE-CONCENTRATION POLICY

County Housing will use greater flexibility to attract households with broader ranges of income. To potentially attract higher-income
families, County Housing will continue to reassess flat rental amounts annually in public housing developments and will continue to offer
the choice of flat rent orincome-based rent to residents. Other avenues to attract higher-income families being considered by County
Housing are changes in waitlist admission preferences, more aggressive marketing of developments, ongoing evaluation of public housing
inventory for capital improvements, and support from Landlord Liaisons.

The Landlord Liaisons' goal is to connect with current and prospective property owners and landlords for the Housing Choice Voucher
(HCV) program. They will attempt to make these connections and refer HCV participants to property owners in high-opportunity areas.
They also continue to facilitate educational landlord meetings to attract and inform prospective landlords about the HCV program and its
benefits.

County Housing continues to enforce the Community Service and Self-Sufficiency Requirements (CSSR) and Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS)
program. The CSSR offers guidance and structure for public housing residents who are required to complete community service or self-
sufficiency hours. Continued administration of the FSS program will allow County Housing to offer more direct support to program
participants. Both the CSSR and FSS program encourage and support participants in building wealth and gaining a better understanding of
how to maintain self-sufficiency.

County Housing has also successfully begun establishing partnerships with other service agencies to offer more supportive services and
resources to all of its service population. These updates, new partnerships, and continued administration of the Family Self-Sufficiency
will benefit participants and help deconcentrate poverty.

B.2

New Activities.

(a) Does the PHA intend to undertake any new activities related to the following in the PHA’s current Fiscal Year?

Hope VI or Choice Neighborhoods.

Mixed Finance Modernization or Development.

Demolition and/or Disposition.

Designated Housing for Elderly and/or Disabled Families.

Conversion of Public Housing to Tenant-Based Assistance.

Conversion of Public Housing to Project-Based Rental Assistance or Project-Based Vouchers under RAD.
Occupancy by Over-Income Families.

Occupancy by Police Officers.

Non-Smoking Policies.

Project-Based Vouchers.

Units with Approved Vacancies for Modernization.

Other Capital Grant Programs (i.e., Capital Fund Community Facilities Grants or Emergency Safety and Security Grants).

ONEOO0OROOORO~<
HOONNNOMNEON =

(b) If any of these activities are planned for the current Fiscal Year, describe the activities. For new demolition activities, describe any public
housing development or portion thereof, owned by the PHA for which the PHA has applied or will apply for demolition and/or disposition approval
under section 18 of the 1937 Act under the separate demolition/disposition approval process. If using Project-Based Vouchers (PBVs), provide the
projected number of project-based units and general locations, and describe how project basing would be consistent with the PHA Plan.

MIXED FINANCE MODERNIZATION OR DEVELOPMENT

County Housing has received low-income housing tax credits (LIHTC) for Arbor Hill Apartments as part of its activity for encouraging
private equity investment in the development of affordable rental housing for low-income households. County Housing will build 68 new
income-restricted housing units.

County Housing is also partnering with Peace United Church of Christ to develop affordable senior housing units in Webster Groves. This
project will be funded in part with equity from LIHTC, and County Housing is examining the possibility of providing project-based vouchers.
This development will further the availability of affordable housing in opportunity areas.

County Housing will apply for LIHTC to build transitional housing on the same site as St. Louis County’s emergency domestic violence
shelter. The proposalis to build 51 units and include project-based vouchers for the development. This will provide immediate and stable
housing for up to two years for women and children exiting the emergency shelter.

CONVERSION OF PUBLIC HOUSING TO PROJECT-BASED RENTAL ASSISTANCE OR PROJECT-BASED VOUCHERS UNDER RAD
County Housing is in the process of converting the Arbor Hill Apartments to private ownership under HUD’s RAD program, using low-
income housing tax credits.

Staff are also considering development partnerships that would facilitate the conversation of public housing to project-based rental
assistance.

Page S of 12 form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)




PROJECT-BASED VOUCHERS
County Housing will allocate 186 project-based vouchers to the new development, Wellington Family Homes. County Housing will
continue to maintain and manage the waiting list for project-based vouchers at Wellington Family Homes.

County Housing is also examining the possibility of providing project-based vouchers for the Webster Groves project with Peace United
Church of Christ. The project will develop 52 affordable senior housing units in Webster Groves.

County Housing also plans to supply project-based vouchers for 90% of the units in Weinman Transitional Housing, a transitional housing
facility on the same site as St. Louis County’s emergency domestic violence shelter. Many of the women and children exiting the Weinman
shelter after the 90-day maximum stay do not have sufficient resources to get safely and stably rehoused. The vouchers would guarantee

that even the lowest income families have an opportunity to get stably housed after a domestic violence disruption.

County Housing plans to issue a project-based voucher Request for Proposal (RFP) to begin allocating more project-based vouchers to

incentivize an increase in affordable housing in our community.

Additionally, the development staff issued a request for proposals for project-based vouchers in new and existing developments. County
Housing tentatively awarded seven project-based vouchers for a proposed development in Jennings and nine vouchers for a proposed

transit-oriented development near the North Hanley metro station.

UNITS WITH APPROVED VACANCIES FOR MODERNIZATION
County Housing may take units offline when they are in need of capital fund improvements or general modernization.

B.3

Progress Report.

Provide a description of the PHA’s progress in meeting its Mission and Goals described in the PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan.

Mission

The Housing Authority of St. Louis County provides decent, safe, and affordable housing, ensures equal housing opportunity, promotes
self-sufficiency, and improves the quality of life and economic vitality for low—and moderate-income families. County Housing pursues
these goals by using existing federal programs to the maximum feasible extent, linking with other service providers, and creating new

opportunities of its own design.

Objectives and Key Results

In executing its mission, County Housing adopted four guiding objectives. The key results communicate to our employees, board

members, and external stakeholders how well the agency is performing:

Objective 1: Deliver services safely, effectively, and efficiently.

Key Result

Goal

FY24 Actual

Annual Finance/Single Audit Findings

No findings

4 findings

PHAS Score

High Performer

Standard Performer

SEMAP Score

High Performer

Standard Performer

Objective 2: Foster a customer-centered culture.

Key Result

Goal

FY24 Actual

Customer service improvements

Implement

Implemented

Customer satisfaction survey scores

Improve scores

Scores decreased

Objective 3: Help our residents and fam

ilies gain self-sufficiency through partnerships with other organizations in the community.

Key Result

Goal

FY24 Actual

Partnership process improvements

Implement

Implemented

Formally establish new partnerships

3+ partnerships

3+ new partnerships

Objective 4: Expand access to desirable and affordable housing.

Key Result

Goal

FY24 Actual

Wellington Family Homes

Close financing

Closed financing

Project-based voucher RFP

Issue and select

Issued and selected

Arbor Hill financing

Close financing

In progress

Thus far in 2024, County Housing staff have made progress on several key results. After bringing the property management function of
several sites in-house, the public housing staff continues to develop new ways to ensure quality control in its programming. Staff have
completed extensive training regarding updates to the ACOP and HOTMA requirements. County Housing staff has also procured the
development of a verification review sheet (VRS) and is in the process of hiring a Quality Control Specialist to improve quality control

efforts within the public housing and HCV

At the end of 2023, a customer satisfaction survey was deployed to HCV and public housing residents and landlords to measure customer
service, as well as a post-visit customer service survey for visitors to County Housing's lobby. Data collected in the surveys continues to

programs.

Page 6 of 12

form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)



guide County Housing in its efforts to improve customer service. Staff has also undergone communications training and has streamlined
internal processes through the establishment of new customer service positions. County Housing’s implementation of a new brand and
user-friendly website has improved the way staff does business with residents, landlords, and partner organizations.

In a step towards expanding safe and affordable housing access in the county, the team finalized the closing of a $44 million low-income
housing tax credit project to rehabilitate 186 affordable housing units in the City of Wellston in March of 2023. The 186-unit Wellington
Family Homes LIHTC project is underway. Former Wellston Housing Authority residents will return to the homes starting in Quarter 2 of
2024 and throughout the development period. County Housing staff is also working on closing a 4% tax credit deal to redevelop its Arbor
Hill public housing to meet the changing needs of residents. Additionally, the development staff issued a request for proposals for project-
based vouchers in new and existing developments.

B.4 | Capital Improvements. Include a reference here to the most recent HUD-approved 5-Year Action Plan in EPIC and the date that it was approved.
See 2022-2026 Capital Fund 5-Year Action Plan in EPIC approved by HUD on 12/21/2021.
B.5 | Most Recent Fiscal Year Audit.
(a) Were there any findings in the most recent FY Audit?
Y N
O
(b) Ifyes, please describe:
County Housing received findings related to HCV program eligibility, Housing Quality Standards (HQS) inspections, and declarations of
trust requirements. County Housing has responded to these findings and continues to make adjustments to address the issues. Staff is
working diligently to mitigate previous errors and to create quality control structures that will prevent future findings.
C. | Other Document and/or Certification Requirements.
C.1 | Resident Advisory Board (RAB) Comments.
(a) Did the RAB(s) have comments to the PHA Plan?
Y N
oo
(b) Ifyes, comments must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA Plan. PHAs must also include a narrative describing their
analysis of the RAB recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations.
C.2 | Certification by State or Local Officials.
Form HUD 50077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated Plan, must be submitted by the
PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan.
C.3 | Civil Rights Certification/ Certification Listing Policies and Programs that the PHA has Revised since Submission of its Last Annual Plan.
Form HUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP, PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations
Including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed, must be submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan.
C.4 | Challenged Elements. If any element of the PHA Plan is challenged, a PHA must include such information as an attachment with a description of

any challenges to Plan elements, the source of the challenge, and the PHA’s response to the public.

(a) Did the public challenge any elements of the Plan?
Y N
oo

If yes, include Challenged Elements.

Page 7 of 12 form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)



http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/forms/files/50077sl.doc

C5

Troubled PHA.
(a) Does the PHA have any current Memorandum of Agreement, Performance Improvement Plan, or Recovery Plan in place?
Y N NA

[ E

(b) Ifyes, please describe:

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH).

D.1

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH).

Provide a statement of the PHA’s strategies and actions to achieve fair housing goals outlined in an accepted Assessment of Fair Housing
(AFH) consistent with 24 CFR § 5.154(d)(5). Use the chart provided below. (PHAs should add as many goals as necessary to overcome fair
housing issues and contributing factors.) Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA is not obligated to complete
this chart. The PHA will fulfill, nevertheless, the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(0) enacted prior to August 17, 2015. See Instructions for
further detail on completing this item.

Fair Housing Goal:
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal

Fair Housing Goal:
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal

Fair Housing Goal:
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal

Page 8 of 12 form HUD-50075-ST (03/31/2024)



ACOP: Chapter 6
Chapter 6

INCOME AND RENT DETERMINATIONS
[24 CFR Part 5, Subparts E and F; 24 CFR 960, Subpart C]

INTRODUCTION

A family’s annualincome is used to determine their income eligibility for the public housing
program and is also used to calculate the amount of the family’s rent payment. County Housing
will use the policies and methods described in this chapter to ensure that only income-eligible
families receive assistance and that no family pays more or less rent than is required under the
regulations. This chapter describes HUD regulations and County Housing policies related to these
topics in three parts as follows:

Part I: Annual Income. HUD regulations specify the sources of income that are excluded
from the family’s annual income. These requirements and County Housing policies for
calculating annual income are found in Part .

Part II: Adjusted Assets. HUD regulations specify the types of assets that are excluded from
a family’s annualincome. These requirements and County Housing policies for calculating
income from assets are found in Part Il.

Part lll: Adjusted Income. Once annual income has been established, HUD regulations
require County Housing to subtract from annual income any of five mandatory deductions
for which a family qualifies. HUD allows PHAs to adopt additional permissive deductions.
These requirements and County Housing policies for calculating adjusted income are
found in Part lll.

Part IV: Calculating Rent. This part describes the statutory formula for calculating total
tenant payment (TTP), the use of utility allowances, and the methodology for determining
family rent payments. Also included here are flat rents and the family’s choice of rent.




ACOP: Chapter 6
PART I: ANNUAL INCOME

6-1.A. OVERVIEW [24 CFR 5.609]
Annualincome includes:
e Allamounts not specifically excluded in 24 CFR 5.609(b);

e Allamounts received from all sources by each member of the family who is 18 years of age
or older oris the head of household or spouse;

e Unearned income by or on behalf of each dependent who is under 18 years of age; and

e |mputed returns of an asset based on the current passbook savings rate, as determined by
HUD, when the value of net family assets exceeds $50,000 (HUD will adjust the amount
annually) and the actual returns from a given asset cannot be calculated.

In addition to this general definition, the regulations at 24 CFR 5.609(b) provide a comprehensive
listing of all sources of income that are excluded from annual income. Note, unlike in previous
versions of the regulations, the current regulations governing annual income do not list sources of
income that are to be included. Instead, HUD relies on the definition of excluded income under 24
CFR 5.609(b) to provide the scope of what is included. To that end, generally, allincome is included
unless it is specifically excluded by regulations.

Annualincome includes “all amounts received,” not the amount that a family may be legally
entitled to receive but did not receive. For example, a family’s child support or alimony income
must be based on payments received, not the amounts to which the family is entitled by court or
agency orders [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Annualincome also includes all actual anticipated income from assets (provided the income is not
otherwise excluded), even if the asset itself is excluded from net family assets [Notice PIH 2023-
27]. 24 CFR 5.603(b)(1) describes HUD regulations for treating specific types of assets.

The full texts of those portions of the regulations are provided in exhibits at the end of this chapter
as follows:

e Annuallncome Full Definition (Exhibit 6-1)
e Treatment of Family Assets (Exhibit 6-2)
e The Effect of Welfare Benefit Reduction (Exhibit 6-3)

Sections 6-1.B and 6-1.C discuss general requirements and methods for calculating annual income.
The rest of this section describes how each source of income is treated for the purposes of
determining annualincome. Verification requirements for annual income are discussed in Chapter
7.

6-1.B. HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION AND INCOME
Overview

Income received by all family members must be counted unless specifically excluded by the
regulations. Itis the responsibility of the head of household to report changes in family
composition in accordance with HUD regulations and County Housing policies in Chapter 9. The
rules on which sources of income are counted vary somewhat by family member. The chart below
summarizes how family composition affects income determinations.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Summary of Income Included and Excluded by Person

Live-in aides

Income from all sources (both earned and unearned) is
excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(8)].

Foster child or foster adult

Income from all sources (both earned and unearned) is
excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(8)].

Head, spouse, or cohead
Other adult family members

All sources of income not specifically excluded by the
regulations are included [24 CFR 5.609(a)].

Minors

Earned income of children under 18 years of age is excluded
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(3)].

All other sources of unearned income, except those
specifically excluded by the regulations, are included.

Full-time students 18 years of
age or older (not head, spouse,
or cohead)

Earned income in excess of the dependent deduction is
excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(14)].

All other sources of unearned income, except those
specifically excluded by the regulations, are included.

Temporarily Absent Family Members

The current regulations governing annual income do not specifically address temporarily absent
family members. The regulations also do not define “temporarily” or “permanently” absent or
specify a timeframe associated with a temporary versus a permanent absence.

County Housing Policy

Unless specifically excluded by the regulations, the income of all family members approved

to live in the unit will be counted, even if the family member is temporarily absent from the

unit.

Generally, an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the assisted unit for 180
consecutive days or less is considered temporarily absent and continues to be considered
a family member. Generally, an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the

assisted unit for more than 180 consecutive days is considered permanently absent and no

longer a family member. Exceptions to this general policy are discussed below.

Absent Students

County Housing Policy

When someone who has been considered a family member attends school away from
home, the person will continue to be considered a family member unless information
becomes available to County Housing indicating that the student has established a
separate household or the family declares that the student has established a separate

household.

Absences Due to Placement in Foster Care

Children temporarily absent from the home as a result of placement in foster care (as confirmed by

the state child welfare agency) are considered members of the family [24 CFR 5.403].




ACOP: Chapter 6
County Housing Policy

If a child has been placed in foster care, County Housing will verify with the appropriate
agency whether and when the child is expected to be returned to the home. Unless the
agency confirms that the child has been permanently removed from the home, the child will
continue to be counted as a family member.

Absent Head, Spouse, or Co-head

County Housing Policy

An employed head, spouse, or co-head absent from the unit for more than 180 consecutive
days due to employment will continue to be considered a family member.

Family Members Confined for Medical Reasons

County Housing Policy

County Housing will request verification from a responsible medical professional and will
use this determination. If the responsible medical professional cannot provide a
determination, the person will generally be considered temporarily absent. The family may
present evidence that the family member is confined on a permanent basis and request
that the person not be considered a family member.

When an individual who has been counted as a family member is determined permanently
absent, the family is eligible for the medical expense deduction only if the remaining head,
spouse, or cohead qualifies as an elderly person or a person with disabilities.

Joint Custody of Children

County Housing Policy

Dependents that are subject to a joint custody arrangement will be considered a member of
the family if they live with the applicant or resident family 50 percent or more of the time.

When more than one applicant or assisted family (regardless of program) is claiming the
same dependents as family members, the family with primary custody at the time of the
initial examination or reexamination will be able to claim the dependents. If there is a
dispute about which family should claim them, County Housing will make the
determination based on available documents such as court orders, an IRS income tax
return showing which family has claimed the child for income tax purposes, school
records, or other credible documentation.

Caretakers for a Child

County Housing Policy

The approval of a caretaker is at County Housing’s discretion and subject to County
Housing’s screening criteria. If neither a parent nor a designated guardian remains in a
household, County Housing will take the following actions.

If aresponsible agency has determined that another adult is to be brought into the
unit to care for a child for an indefinite period, the designated caretaker will not be
considered a family member until a determination of custody or legal guardianship
is made.



ACOP: Chapter 6
If a caretaker has assumed responsibility for a child without the involvement of a
responsible agency or formal assignment of custody or legal guardianship, the
caretaker will be treated as a visitor for 90 days. After 90 days have elapsed, the
caretaker will be considered a family member unless information is provided that
would confirm that the caretaker’s role is temporary. In such cases County Housing
will extend the caretaker’s status as an eligible visitor.

At any time that custody or guardianship legally has been awarded to a caretaker,
the lease will be transferred to the caretaker as head of household.

During any period that a caretaker is considered a visitor, the income of the
caretaker is not counted in annualincome, and the caretaker does not qualify the
family for any deductions from income.

6-1.C. CALCULATING ANNUAL INCOME

The methodology used for calculating income differs depending on whetherincome is being
calculated at initial occupancy, interim reexamination, or annual reexamination. However, income
from assets is always anticipated regardless of certification type.

Anticipating Annual Income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(1)]

At initial occupancy and for an interim reexamination of family income, County Housing is required
to use anticipated income (currentincome) for the upcoming 12-month period following the new
admission or interim reexamination effective date. Policies related to verifying income are found in
Chapter 7.

County Housing Policy

When County Housing cannot readily anticipate income based on current circumstances
(e.g., inthe case of temporary, sporadic, or variable employment, seasonal employment,
unstable working hours, or suspected fraud), the PHA will review and analyze historical
data for patterns of employment, paid benefits, and receipt of other income and use the
results of this analysis to establish annual income.

Any time current circumstances are not used to project annual income, a clear rationale for
the decision will be documented in the file. In all such cases, the family may present
information and documentation to County Housing to show why the historic pattern does
not represent the family’s anticipated income.

In all cases, the family file will be documented with a clear record of the reason for the
decision, and a clear audit trail will be left as to how County Housing annualized projected
income.

Known Changes in Income

If County Housing verifies an upcoming increase or decrease in income, annual income will
be projected by applying each income amount to the appropriate part of the 12-month
period.

Example: An employer reports that a full-time employee who has been receiving $8/hour
will begin to receive $8.25/hour in the eighth week after the effective date of the new
admission or interim reexamination. In such a case, County Housing would calculate
annual income as follows: ($8/hour x 40 hours x 7 weeks) + ($8.25 x 40 hours x 45 weeks).




ACOP: Chapter 6
The family may present information that demonstrates that implementing a change before
its effective date would create a hardship for the family. In such cases County Housing will
calculate annual income using current circumstances and then, should the change in
income require County Housing to conduct an interim reexamination, conduct an interim
reexamination in accordance with policies in Chapter 9.

Calculating Annual Income at Annual Reexamination [24 CFR.609(c)(2); Notice PIH 2023-27]

At annual reexamination, PHAs must first determine the family’s income for the previous 12-month
period and use this amount as the family income for annual reexaminations; however, adjustments
to reflect current income must be made. Any change of income since the family’s last annual
reexamination, including those that did not meet the threshold to process an interim reexamination
of family income in accordance with County Housing policies in Chapter 9 and HUD regulations,
must be considered. If, however, there have been no changes to income, then the amount of
income calculated for the previous 12-month period is the amount that will be used to determine
the family’s rent. Policies related to conducting annual reexaminations are located in Chapter 9.

6-1.D. EARNED INCOME
Wages and Related Compensation [24 CFR 5.609(a); Notice PIH 2023-27]

The earned income of each member of the family who is 18 years of age or older or who is the head
of household or spouse/cohead, regardless of age, is included in annual income. Income received
as a day laborer or seasonal worker is also included in annualincome, even if the source, date, or
amount of the income varies [24 CFR 5.609 (b)(24)].

Earned income means income or earnings from wages, tips, salaries, other employee
compensation, and net income from self-employment. Earned income does not include any
pension or annuity, transfer payments (meaning payments made or income received in which no
goods or services are being paid for, such as welfare, social security, and governmental subsidies
for certain benefits), or any cash or in-kind benefits [24 CFR 5.100].

A day laborer is defined as an individual hired and paid one day at a time without an agreement that
the individual will be hired or work again in the future [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

A seasonal worker is defined as an individual who is hired into a short-term position ( e.g., for which
the customary employment period for the position is six months or fewer), and the employment
begins about the same time each year (such as summer or winter). Typically, the individual is hired
to address seasonal demands that arise for the particular employer or industry [24 CFR 5.603(b)].
Some examples of seasonal work include employment limited to holidays or agricultural seasons.
Seasonal work may include but is not limited to employment as a lifeguard, ballpark vendor, or
snowplow driver [Notice PIH 2023-27].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will include in annual income the gross amount, before any payroll
deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, fees, tips and bonuses,
and other compensation.

For persons who regularly receive bonuses or commissions, County Housing will verify and
then average amounts received for the two years preceding admission or interim
reexamination. If only a one-year history is available, County Housing will use the prior year
amounts. In either case, the family may provide, and County Housing will consider, a
credible justification for not using this history to anticipate future bonuses or commissions.



ACOP: Chapter 6
If a new employee has not yet received any bonuses or commissions, County Housing will
count only the amount estimated by the employer. The file will be documented
appropriately.

Military Pay

All regular pay, special pay, and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces are counted except
for the special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile fire
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(11)].

Earnings of a Minor [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3)]

A minor is a member of the family, other than the head of household or spouse, who is under 18
years of age. Employment income earned by minors is not included in annualincome. All other
sources of unearned income, except those specifically excluded by the regulations, are included.

Earned Income of Full-Time Students [24 CFR 5.609(b)(14)]

The earned income of a dependent full-time student in excess of the amount of the dependent
deduction is excluded from annual income. All sources of unearned income, except those
specifically excluded by the regulations, are included.

A family member other than the head of household or spouse/cohead is considered a full-time
student if they are attending school or vocational training on a full-time basis [24 CFR 5.603(b)].
Full-time status is defined by the educational or vocational institution the student is attending
[New PH OCC GB, Lease Requirements, p. 5].

6-1.E. EARNED INCOME DISALLOWANCE [24 CFR 960.255; Streamlining Final Rule (SFR)
Federal Register 3/8/16; Notice PIH 2023-27]

HOTMA removed the statutory authority for the Earned Income Disallowance (EID). The EID is
available only to families that are eligible for and participating in the program as of December 31,
2023, or before; no new families may be added on or after January 1, 2024. If a family is receiving
the EID prior to or on the effective date of December 31, 2023, they are entitled to the full amount of
the benefit for a full 24-month period. The policies below are applicable only to such families. No
family will still be receiving the EID after December 31, 2025. The EID will sunset on January 1,
2026, and the County Housing policies below will no longer be applicable as of that date or when
the last qualifying family exhausts their exclusion period, whichever is sooner.

Calculation of the Disallowance

Calculation of the EID for an eligible member of a qualified family begins with a comparison of the
member’s current income with his or her “baseline income.” The family member’s baseline income
is his or her income immediately prior to qualifying for the EID. The family member’s baseline
income remains constant throughout the period that he or she is participating in the EID.

Calculation Method
Initial 12-Month Exclusion

During the initial exclusion period of 12 consecutive months, the full amount (100 percent) of any
increase in income attributable to new employment or increased earnings is excluded.



ACOP: Chapter 6
County Housing Policy

The initial EID exclusion period will begin on the first of the month following the date an
eligible member of a qualified family is first employed or first experiences an increase in
earnings.

Second 12-Month Exclusion

During the second exclusion period of 12 consecutive months, County Housing must exclude at
least 50 percent of any increase in income attributable to employment or increased earnings.

County Housing Policy

During the second 12-month exclusion period, County Housing will exclude 50 percent of
any increase in income attributable to new employment or increased earnings.

Lifetime Limitation

The EID has a two-year (24-month) lifetime maximum. The two-year eligibility period begins at the
same time that the initial exclusion period begins and ends 24 months later. During the 24-month
period, an individual remains eligible for EID even if they receive assistance from a different
housing agency, move between public housing and Section 8 assistance, or have breaks in
assistance. The EID will sunset on January 1, 2026. In no circumstances will a family member’s
exclusion period continue past January 1, 2026.

Individual Savings Accounts [24 CFR 960.255(d)]

County Housing Policy

County Housing chooses not to establish a system of individual savings accounts (ISAs) for
families who qualify for the EID.

6-1.F. BUSINESS AND SLEF-EMPLOYMENT INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)(28); Notice PIH 2023-27]

Annualincome includes “netincome from the operation of a business or profession. Netincome is
gross income minus business expenses that allow the business to operate. Gross income is all
income amounts received into the business prior to the deduction of business expenses.

Expenditures for business expansion or amortization of capital indebtedness may not be used as
deductions in determining net income. An allowance for depreciation of assets used in a business
or profession may be deducted based on straight-line depreciation, as provided in Internal
Revenue Service regulations. Any withdrawal of cash or assets from the operation of a business or
profession will be included in income, except to the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of
cash or assets invested in the operation by the family.”

County Housing Policy

To determine business expenses that may be deducted from gross income, County
Housing will use current applicable Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules for determining
allowable business expenses [see IRS Publication 535] unless a topic is addressed by HUD
regulations or guidance as described herein.

Independent Contractors

Income received as an independent contractor is included in annual income, even if the source,
date, or amount of the income varies [24 CFR 2.609 (b)(24)].



ACOP: Chapter 6

An independent contractor is defined as an individual who qualifies as an independent contractor
instead of an employee in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Federal income tax
requirements and whose earnings are consequently subject to the Self-Employment Tax. In
general, an individual is an independent contractor if the payer has the right to control or direct only
the result of the work and not what will be done and how it will be done [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

Business Expansion

HUD regulations do not permit County Housing to deduct from gross income expenses for
business expansion.

County Housing Policy

Business expansion is defined as any capital expenditure made to add new business
activities, to expand current facilities, or to operate the business in additional locations. For
example, purchase of a street sweeper by a construction business for the purpose of
adding street cleaning to the services offered by the business would be considered a
business expansion. Similarly, the purchase of a property by a hair care business to open at
a second location would be considered a business expansion.

Capital Indebtedness

HUD regulations do not permit County Housing to deduct from gross income the amortization of
capitalindebtedness.

County Housing Policy

Capitalindebtedness is defined as the principal portion of the payment on a capital asset
such as land, buildings, and machinery. This means County Housing will allow as a
business expense interest, but not principal, paid on capital indebtedness.

Negative Business Income

If the netincome from a business is negative, no business income will be included in the annual
income; a negative amount will not be used to offset other family income.

Withdrawal of Cash or Assets from a Business

HUD regulations require County Housing to include in annual income the withdrawal of cash or
assets from the operation of a business or profession unless the withdrawal reimburses a family
member for cash or assets invested in the business by the family.

County Housing Policy

Acceptable investments in a business include cash loans and contributions of assets or
equipment. For example, if a member of a tenant family provided an up-front loan of $2,000
to help a business get started, County Housing will not count as income any withdrawals
from the business up to the amount of this loan until the loan has been repaid. Investments
do not include the value of labor contributed to the business without compensation.

Assets Owned by a Business Entity

If a business entity (e.g., limited liability company or limited partnership) owns the asset, then the
family’s asset is their ownership stake in the business, not some portion of the business’s assets.
However, if the family holds the assets in their own name (e.g., they own one-third of a restaurant)
rather than in the name of a business entity, then the percentage value of the asset owned by the



ACOP: Chapter 6

family is what is counted toward net family assets (e.g., one-third of the value of the restaurant)
[Notice PIH 2023-27].

6-1.G. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)]

The regulations distinguish between two categories of student financial assistance paid to both
full-time and part-time students.

Types of Assistance

Any assistance to students under section 479B of the Higher Education Act of 1965 (Tile IV of the
HEA) must be excluded from the family’s annual income [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)(i)].

Examples of assistance under title IV of the HEA include:
e Federal Pell Grants;
e Teach Grants;
e Federal Work Study Programs;
e Federal Perkins Loans;

e Income earned in employment and training programs under section 134 of the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA); or

e Bureau of Indian Affairs/Education student assistance programs
- The Higher Education Tribal Grant
- The Tribally Controlled Colleges or Universities Grant Program

Any other grant-in-aid, scholarship, or other assistance amounts an individual receives for the
actual covered costs charged by the institute of higher education not otherwise excluded by the
Federally mandated income exclusions are excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)(ii)]. Actual covered costs
are defined as the actual costs of:

e Tuition, books, and supplies;

- Including supplies and equipment to support students with learning disabilities or
other disabilities

e Room and board; and
e Other feesrequired and charged to a student by the education institution.

For a student who is not the head of household or spouse/cohead, actual covered costs also
include the reasonable and actual costs of housing while attending the institution of higher
education and not residing in an assisted unit.

Further, to qualify, other student financial assistance must be expressly:

e Fortuition, book, supplies, room and board, or other fees required and charged to the
student by the education institution;

e To assist a student with the costs of higher education; or

e To assist a student who is not the head of household or spouse with the reasonable and
actual costs of housing while attending the educational institution and not residing in an
assisted unit.



ACOP: Chapter 6

The student financial assistance may be paid directly to the student or to the educational
institution on the student’s behalf. However, any student financial assistance paid to the student
must be verified by County Housing.

The financial assistance must be a grant or scholarship received from:
e The Federal government;
e Astate, tribal, or local government;
e Aprivate foundation registered as a nonprofit;

e Abusiness entity (such as a corporation, general partnership, limited liability company,
limited partnership, joint venture, business trust, public benefit corporation, or nonprofit
entity); or

e Aninstitution of higher education.
Student financial assistance does not include:

e Financial support provided to the student in the form of a fee for services performed (e.g., a
work-study or teaching fellowship that is not excluded under section 479B of the Higher
Education Act HEA);

e Gifts, including gifts from family or friends; or

e Anyamount of the scholarship or grant that, either by itself or in combination with
assistance excluded under the HEA, exceeds the actual covered costs of the student.

Calculating Income from Student Financial Assistance [HOTMA Student Financial Assistance
Resource Sheet; Notice PIH 2023-27]

The formula for calculating the amount of other student financial assistance that is excluded from
income always begins with deducting the assistance received under 479B of the HEA from the total
actual covered costs because the 479B assistance is intended to pay the student’s actual covered
costs. When a student receives assistance from both Title IV of the HEA and from other sources,
the assistance received under Title IV of the HEA must be applied to the student’s actual covered
costs first, and then other student financial assistance is applied to any remaining actual covered
costs. Once actual costs are covered, any remaining student financial assistance is considered
income.

County Housing Policy

If a student only receives financial assistance under Title IV of the HEA and does not receive
any other student financial assistance, County Housing will exclude the full amount of the
assistance received under Title IV from the family’s annualincome. County Housing will not
calculate actual covered costs in this case.

If the student does not receive any assistance under Title IV of the HEA but does receive
assistance from another source, County Housing will first calculate the actual covered
costs to the student in accordance with 24 CFR 5.609(b)(ii). County Housing will then
subtract the total amount of the student’s financial assistance from the student’s actual
covered costs. County Housing will include any amount of financial assistance in excess of
the student’s actual covered costs in the family’s annual income.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Example 1
e Actual covered costs: $20,000
e Other student financial assistance: $25,000

e Excluded income: $20,000 ($25,000 in financial
assistance -
$20,000 in actual covered costs)

e Included income: $5,000

When a student receives assistance from both Title IV of the HEA and from other sources,
County Housing will first calculate the actual covered costs to the student in accordance
with 24 CFR 5.609(b)(ii). The assistance received under Title IV of the HEA will be applied to
the student’s actual covered costs first, and then the other student financial assistance will
be applied to any remaining actual covered costs.

If the amount of assistance excluded under Title IV of the HEA equals or exceeds the actual
covered costs, the full amount of the other financial assistance will be included in the
family’s annual income.

Example 2
e Actual covered costs: $25,000
e Title IVHEA assistance: $26,000

e Title IV HEA assistance covers the students entire
actual covered costs.

e Other Student Financial Assistance: $5,000

e Excluded income: The entire Title IV HEA assistance of
$26,000

e |ncludedincome: All other financial assistance of
$5,000

If the amount of assistance excluded under Title IV of the HEA is less than the actual
covered costs, County Housing will exclude the amount of other student financial
assistance up to the amount of the remaining actual covered costs.

Example 3
e Actual covered costs: $22,000
e Title IVHEA assistance: $15,000

e The remaining amount not covered by Title IV HEA
assistance is $7,000 ($22,000 in actual covered costs -
$15,000 in Title IV HEA assistance).

e Other Student Financial Assistance: $5,000

e $7,000 in remaining actual covered costs - $5,000 in




ACOP: Chapter 6

other financial assistance

e Excluded income: $15,000 entire amount of the Title IV
HEA Assistance + $5,000 in other financial assistance

e Included income: $0

Example 4
e Actual covered costs: $18,000
e Title IV HEA Assistance: $15,000

e The remaining amount not covered by Title IV HEA
assistance is $3,000 ($18,000 in actual covered costs -
$15,000 in Title IV HEA Assistance)

e Other student Financial Assistance: $5,000

e When other student financial assistance is applied,
financial assistance exceeds actual covered costs by
$2,000 ($3,000 in actual covered costs - $5,000 in other
financial assistance).

e Included income: $2,000 (the amount by which the
financial aid exceeds the student's actual covered
costs.

6-1.H. PERIODIC PAYMENTS [Notice PIH 2023-27]

Periodic payments are forms of income received on a regular basis. HUD regulations specify
periodic payments that are not included in annual income. Regulations do not specify which types
of periodic payments are included in annual income.

Income that has a discrete end date and will not be repeated beyond the coming year is excluded
from a family’s annual income because it is nonrecurring income. However, this does not include
unemployment income and other types of periodic payments that are received at regular intervals
(such as weekly, monthly, or yearly) for a period of greater than one year that can be extended. For
example, a family receives income from a guaranteed income program in their city that has a
discrete beginning and end date. While the guaranteed income will be repeated in the coming year,
it will end before the family’s next annual reexamination. This income is fully excluded from annual
income.

Insurance payments and settlements for personal or property losses, including but not limited to
payments under health insurance, motor vehicle insurance, and workers’ compensation, are
excluded from annual income. However, periodic payments paid at regular intervals (such as
weekly, monthly, or yearly) for a period of greater than one year that are received in lieu of wages for
workers’ compensation are included in annual income. Payments received in lieu of wages for
worker’s compensation are excluded, even if paid in periodic payments, if the income will last for a
period of less than one year.



ACOP: Chapter 6
Lump-Sum Payments for the Delayed Start of a Periodic Payment [24 CFR 5.609(b)(16)]

Deferred periodic amounts from Supplemental Security Income (SSI) and Social Security benefits
that are received in a lump sum amount or in prospective monthly amounts, or any deferred
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) disability benefits that are received in a lump sum amount or in
prospective monthly amounts are excluded from annual income.

County Housing Policy

County Housing willinclude in annual income lump sums received as a result of delays in
processing periodic payments (other than those specifically excluded by the regulations),
such as unemployment or welfare assistance.

When a delayed-start payment is received thatis to be included, and the family reports this
during the period in which County Housing is processing an annual reexamination, County
Housing will adjust the family’s rent retroactively for the period the payment was intended
to cover.

If the delayed-start payment is received outside of the time County Housing is processing
an annual reexamination, then County Housing will consider whether the amount meets
the threshold to conduct an interim reexamination. If so, County Housing will conduct an
interim in accordance with policies in Chapter 9. If not, County Housing will consider the
amount when processing the family’s next annual recertification.

Retirement Accounts [24 CFR 5.609(b)(26); Notice PIH 2023-27]

Income received from any account under a retirement plan recognized as such by the IRS,
including individual retirement arrangements (IRAs), employer retirement plans, and retirement
plans for self-employed individuals, is not considered actual income from assets.

However, any distribution of periodic payments from such accounts is included in annualincome
at the time they are received by the family.

An asset moved to a retirement account held by a member of the family is not considered to be an
asset disposed of for less than fair market value.

Social Security Benefits [Notice PIH 2023-27]

County Housing is required to use the gross benefit amount to calculate annualincome from
Social Security benefits.

Annually in October, the Social Security Administration (SSA) announces the cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA) by which federal Social Security and SSI benefits are adjusted to reflect the
increase, if any, in the cost of living. The federal COLA does not apply to state-paid disability
benefits. Effective the day after the SSA has announced the COLA, PHAs are required to factor in
the COLA when determining Social Security and SSI annual income for all annual reexaminations
and interim reexaminations of family income that have not yet been completed and will be effective
January 1 or later of the upcoming year [Notice PIH 2023-27]. When a family member’s benefits are
garnished, levied, or withheld to pay restitution, child support, tax debt, student loan debt, or other
debts, County Housing must use the gross amount of the income prior to the reduction to
determine a family’s annualincome.

County Housing Policy




ACOP: Chapter 6
Annual income includes “all amounts received,” not the amount that a family may be
legally entitled to receive but which they do not receive. When the SSA overpays an
individual, resulting in a withholding or deduction from their benefit amount until the
overpayment is paid in full, the PHA will use the reduced benefit amount after deducting
only the amount of the overpayment withholding from the gross benefit amount.

Alimony and Child Support

Annualincome includes “all amounts received,” not the amount that a family may be legally
entitled to receive but which they do not receive. For example, a family’s child support or alimony
income must be based on payments received, not the amounts to which the family is entitled by
court or agency orders [Notice PIH 2023-27].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will count all regular payments of alimony or child support awarded as part
of a divorce or separation agreement.

County Housing will count court-awarded amounts for alimony and child support unless
the family certifies and County Housing verifies that the payments are not being made.

In order to verify that payments are not being made, County Housing will review child
support payments over the last three months.

If payments are being made regularly, County Housing will use the amount received
during the last 12 months (excluding any lump sums received). If payments have
been made for a period of less than 12 months, County Housing will average all
payments that have been made.

At new admission or interim recertification, if any lump sum payments were made
in the past 12 months, County Housing will determine the likelihood of the family
receiving another similar payment(s) within the next 12 months before deciding
whether or not this amount will be included in the calculation of annual income.

If County Housing determines and can appropriately verify that the family, in
all likelihood, will not receive a similar payment, then the amount will not be
considered when projecting annual income.

If County Housing determines that it is likely that the family will receive a
similar payment and can appropriately verify it, the amount will be included
when projecting annual income.

If no payments have been made in the past three months and there are no lump sums,
County Housing will not include alimony or child support in annual income.

6-1.1. NONRECURRING INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24); Notice PIH 2023-27]

Nonrecurring income, which is income that will not be repeated beyond the coming year (e.g.,

12 months following the effective date of the certification) based on information provided by the
family, is excluded from annual income. County Housing may accept a self-certification from the
family stating that the income will not be repeated in the coming year. See Chapter 7 for policies
related to verification of nonrecurring income.

Income received as an independent contractor, day laborer, or seasonal worker is not excluded
from income as nonrecurring income, even if the source, date, or amount of the income varies.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Income that has a discrete end date and will not be repeated beyond the coming year during the
family’s upcoming annual reexamination period will be excluded from a family’s annualincome as
nonrecurring income. This exclusion does not include unemployment income and other types of
periodic payments that are received at regular intervals (such as weekly, monthly, or yearly) for a
period of greater than one year that can be extended.

Income amounts excluded under this category may include, but are not limited to:

e Nonrecurring payments made to the family or to a third party on behalf of the family to
assist with utilities;

e Payments for eviction prevention;

e Security deposits to secure housing;

e Payments for participation in research studies (depending on the duration); and

e General one-time payments received by or on behalf of the family.
Nonrecurring income that is excluded under the regulations includes:

e Payments from the U.S. Census Bureau for employment (relating to decennial census or
the American Community Survey) lasting no longer than 180 days and not culminating in
permanent employment [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(i)].

o Direct federal or state payments intended for economic stimulus or recovery [24 CFR
5.609(b)(24)(ii)].

e Amounts directly received by the family as a result of state refundable tax credits or state or
federal tax refunds at the time they are received [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(iii) and (iv)].

e Gifts for holidays, birthdays, or other significant life events or milestones (e.g., wedding
gifts, baby showers, anniversaries) [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(v)].

e Non-monetary, in-kind donations, such as food, clothing, or toiletries, received from a food
bank or similar organization [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(vi)]. When calculating annual income,
PHAs are prohibited from assigning monetary value to non-monetary in-kind donations
received by the family [Notice PIH 2023-27]. Non-recurring, hon-monetary in-kind
donations from friends and family are excluded as non-recurring income.

e Lump-sum additions to net family assets, including but not limited to lottery or other
contest winnings [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(vii)].
6-1.J. WELFARE ASSISTANCE
Overview

Welfare assistance is counted in annual income. Welfare assistance includes Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and any payments to individuals or families based on need
that are made under programs funded separately or jointly by federal, state, or local governments.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Sanctions Resulting in the Reduction of Welfare Benefits [24 CFR 5.615]

County Housing must make a special calculation of annual income when the welfare agency
imposes certain sanctions on certain families. The full text of the regulation at 24 CFR 5.615is
provided as Exhibit 6-3. The requirements are summarized below. This rule applies only if a family
was a public housing resident at the time the sanction was imposed.

Covered Families

The families covered by 24 CFR 5.615 are those “who receive welfare assistance or other public
assistance benefits (‘welfare benefits’) from a state or other public agency (‘welfare agency’) under
a program for which federal, state, or local law requires that a member of the family must
participate in an economic self-sufficiency program as a condition for such assistance” [24 CFR
5.615(b)]

Imputed Income

When a welfare agency imposes a sanction that reduces a family’s welfare income because the
family commits fraud or fails to comply with the agency’s economic self-sufficiency program or
work activities requirement, County Housing must include in annual income “imputed” welfare
income. County Housing must request that the welfare agency provide the reason for the reduction
of benefits and the amount of the reduction of benefits. The imputed welfare income is the amount
that the benefits were reduced as a result of the sanction.

This requirement does not apply to reductions in welfare benefits: (1) at the expiration of the
lifetime or other time limit on the payment of welfare benefits, (2) if a family member is unable to
find employment even though the family member has complied with the welfare agency economic
self-sufficiency or work activities requirements, or (3) because a family member has not complied
with other welfare agency requirements [24 CFR 5.615(b)(2)].

Offsets

The amount of the imputed welfare income is offset by the amount of additional income the family
begins to receive after the sanction is imposed. When the additional income equals or exceeds the
imputed welfare income, the imputed income is reduced to zero [24 CFR 5.615(c)(4)].

6-1.K. STATE PAYMENTS TO ALLOW INDIVIDUAL WITH DISABILITIES TO LIVE AT HOME [24 CFR
5.609(b)(19)]

Payments made by or authorized by a state Medicaid agency (including through a managed care
entity) or other state or federal agency to an assisted family to enable a member of the assisted
family who has a disability to reside in the family’s assisted unit are excluded.

Authorized payments may include payments to a member of the assisted family through state
Medicaid-managed care systems, other state agencies, federal agencies or other authorized
entities.

The payments must be received for caregiving services a family member provides to enable
another member of the assisted family who has a disability to reside in the family’s assisted unit.
Payments to a family member for caregiving services for someone who is not a member of the
assisted family (such as for a relative that resides elsewhere) are not excluded from income.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Furthermore, if the agency is making payments for caregiving services to the family member for an
assisted family member and for a person outside of the assisted family, only the payments
attributable to the caregiving services for the caregiver’s assisted family member would be
excluded from income.

6-1.L. CIVIL RIGHTS SETTLEMENTS [24 CFR 5.609(b)(25); FR Notice 2/14/23]

Regardless of how the settlement or judgment is structured, civil rights settlements or judgments,
including settlements or judgments for back pay, are excluded from annual income. This may
include amounts received because of litigation or other actions, such as conciliation agreements,
voluntary compliance agreements, consent orders, other forms of settlement agreements, or
administrative or judicial orders under the Fair Housing Act, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act (Section 504), the Americans with Disabilities Act, or any other civil
rights or fair housing statute or requirement.

While these civil rights settlement or judgment amounts are excluded from income, the settlement
or judgment amounts will generally be counted toward the family’s net family assets (e.g., if the
funds are deposited into the family’s savings account or a revocable trust under the control of the
family or some other asset that is not excluded from the definition of net family assets). Income
generated on the settlement or judgment amount after it has become a net family asset is not
excluded from income. For example, if the family received a settlement or back pay and deposited
the money in an interest-bearing savings account, the interest from that account would be income
at the time the interest is received.

Furthermore, if a civil rights settlement or judgment increases the family’s net family assets such
that they exceed $50,000 (as annually adjusted by an inflationary factor), then income will be
imputed on the net family assets pursuant to 24 CFR 5.609(a)(2). If the imputed income, which
HUD considers unearned income, increases the family’s annual adjusted income by 10 percent or
more, then an interim reexamination of income will be required unless the addition to the family’s
net family assets occurs within the last three months of the family’s income certification period
and the PHA or owner chooses not to conduct the examination.

6-1.M. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS FROM ANNUAL INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)]

Other exclusions contained in 24 CFR 5.609(b) that have not been discussed earlier in this chapter
include the following:

e Payments received for the care of foster children or foster adults or state or tribal kinship or
guardianship care payments [24 CFR 5.609(b)(4)].

e |nsurance payments and settlements for personal or property losses, including but not limited
to payments through health insurance, motor vehicle insurance, and workers’ compensation
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(5)]. However, periodic payments paid at regular intervals (such as weekly,
monthly, or yearly) for a period of greater than one year that are received in lieu of wages for
workers’ compensation are included in annual income [Notie PIH 2023-17].

e Amounts received by the family that are specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the cost of
health and medical care expenses for any family member [24 CFR 5.609(b)(6)].

e Anyamounts recovered in any civil action or settlement based on a claim of malpractice,
negligence, or other breach of duty owed to a family member arising out of law, that resulted in
a member of the family becoming disabled [24 CFR 5.609(b)(7)].



ACOP: Chapter 6

Income and distributions from any Coverdell education savings account under Section 530 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or any qualified tuition program under Section 529 of such
Code [24 CFR 5.609(b)(10)].

Income earned by government contributions to, and distributions from, “baby bond” accounts
created, authorized, or funded by federal, state, or local government [24 CFR 5.609(b)(10)].

The special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile fire
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(11)].

Payments related to aid and attendance under 38 U.S.C. 1521 to veterans in need of regular aid
and attendance [24 CFR 5.609(b)(17)]. This income exclusion applies only to veterans in need
of regular aid and attendance and not to other beneficiaries of the payments, such as a
surviving spouse [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Loan proceeds (the net amount disbursed by a lender to or on behalf of a borrower, under the
terms of a loan agreement) received by the family or a third party (e.g., proceeds received by
the family from a private loan to enable attendance at an educational institution or to finance
the purchase of a car) [24 CFR 5.609(b)(20)]. The loan borrower or co-borrower must be a
member of the family for this income exclusion to be applicable [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Payments received by tribal members as a result of claims relating to the mismanagement of
assets held in trust by the United States, to the extent such payments are also excluded from
gross income under the Internal Revenue Code or other federal law [24 CFR 5.609(b)(21)].
Generally, payments received by tribal members in excess of the first $2,000 of per capita
shares are included in a family’s annual income for purposes of determining eligibility.
However, as explained in Notice PIH 2023-27, payments made under the Cobell Settlement,
and certain per capita payments under the recent Tribal Trust Settlements, must be excluded
from annual income in HUD programs that adopt the definitions of annualincome in

24 CFR 5.609, the Census Long Form, and the IRS Form 1040, including the programs affected
by Notice PIH 2023-27.

Replacement housing “gap” payments made in accordance with 49 CFR Part 24 that offset
increased out of pocket costs of displaced persons that move from one federally subsidized
housing unit to another federally subsidized housing unit. Such replacement housing “gap”
payments are not excluded from annual income if the increased cost of rent and utilities is
subsequently reduced or eliminated, and the displaced person retains or continues to receive
the replacement housing “gap” payments [24 CFR 5.609(b)(23)].

Income earned on amounts placed in a family’s Family Self-Sufficiency account
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(27)].

Amounts received by participants in other publicly assisted programs which are specifically for
or in reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred (e.g., special equipment, clothing,
transportation, childcare, etc.) and which are made solely to allow participation in a specific
program [24 CFR 5.609(c)(12)(iii)].

Amounts received by a person with a disability that are disregarded for a limited time for
purposes of Supplemental Security Income eligibility and benefits because they are set aside
for use under a Plan to Attain Self-Sufficiency (PASS) [(24 CFR 5.609(b)(12)(ii)].

Amounts received under a resident service stipend not to exceed $200 per month. A resident
service stipend is a modest amount received by a resident for performing a service for the PHA



ACOP: Chapter 6
or owner, on a part-time basis, that enhances the quality of life in the development [24 CFR
5.600(b)(12)(iii)].

o Incremental earnings and benefits to any family member resulting from participationin a
qualifying training program funded by HUD or in qualifying federal, state, tribal, or local
employment training programs (including training programs not affiliated with a local
government) and training of a family member as resident management staff are excluded from
annualincome. Amounts excluded by this provision must be received under employment
training programs with clearly defined goals and objectives and are excluded only for the period
during which the family member participates in the training program unless those amounts are
excluded under 24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)(i) [24 CFR 5.609(b)(12)(iv)].

County Housing Policy

County Housing defines training program as “a learning process with goals and
objectives, generally having a variety of components, and taking place in a series of
sessions over a period of time. It is designed to lead to a higher level of proficiency, and
it enhances the individual’s ability to obtain employment. It may have performance
standards to measure proficiency. Training may include but is not limited to: (1)
classroom training in a specific occupational skill, (2) on-the-job training with wages
subsidized by the program, or (3) basic education” [expired Notice PIH 98-2, p. 3].

County Housing defines incremental earnings and benefits as the difference between
(1) the total amount of welfare assistance and earnings of a family member prior to
enrollment in a training program and (2) the total amount of welfare assistance and
earnings of the family member after enrollment in the program [expired Notice PIH 98-2,
pp. 3-4].

In calculating the incremental difference, County Housing will use as the pre-
enrollment income the total annualized amount of the family member’s welfare
assistance and earnings reported on the family’s most recently completed HUD-50058.

End of participation in a training program must be reported in accordance with County
Housing’s interim reporting requirements (see Chapter 11).

e Reparation payments paid by a foreign government pursuant to claims filed under the laws of
that government by persons who were persecuted during the Nazi era [24 CFR 5.609(b)(13)].

e Adoption assistance payments for a child in excess of the amount of the dependent deduction
per adopted child [24 CFR 5.609(b)(15)].

e Refunds orrebates on property taxes paid on the dwelling unit [24 CFR 5.609(b)(20)]

e Amounts that HUD is required by federal statue to exclude from consideration as income for
purposes of determining eligibility or benefits under a category of assistance programs that
includes assistance under any program to which the exclusions set forth in 24 CFR 5.609(b)
apply. HUD will publish a notice in the Federal Register to identify the benefits that qualify for
this exclusion. Updates will be published when necessary [24 CFR 5.609(b)(22)].

e HUD publishes an updated list of these exclusions periodically. The most recent list of
exclusions was published in the Federal Register on May 20, 2014. It includes:

(a) The value of the allotment provided to an eligible household under the Food Stamp Act of
1977 (7 U.S.C. 2017 (b))



ACOP: Chapter 6

(b)

Benefits under Section 1780 of the School Lunch Act and Child Nutrition Act of 1966,
including WIC

Payments to volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer Services Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C.
5044(g), 5058)

Payments received under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (43 U.S.C. 1626(c))

Income derived from certain submarginal land of the United States that is held in trust for
certain Indian tribes (25 U.S.C. 459¢)

Payments or allowances made under the Department of Health and Human Services’ Low-
Income Home Energy Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 8624(f))

Payments received under programs funded in whole or in part under the Workforce
Investment Act of 1998 (29 U.S.C. 2931)

Deferred disability benefits from the Department of Veterans Affairs, whether received as a
lump sum or in monthly prospective amounts

Income derived from the disposition of funds to the Grand River Band of Ottawa Indians
(Pub. L. 94-540, 90 Stat. 2503-04)

Payments, funds, or distributions authorized, established, or directed by the Seneca
Nation Settlement Act of 1990 (25 U.S.C. 1774f(b))

A lump sum or periodic payment received by an individual Indian pursuant to the Class
Action Settlement Agreement in the United States District Court case entitled Elouise
Cobelletal. v. Ken Salazar et al., for a period of one year from the time of receipt of that
payment as provided in the Claims Resolution Act of 2010

The first $2,000 of per capita shares received from judgment funds awarded by the Indian
Claims Commission or the U. S. Claims Court, the interests of individual Indians in trust or
restricted lands, including the first $2,000 per year of income received by individual
Indians from funds derived from interests held in such trust or restricted lands (25 U.S.C.
1407-1408)

Benefits under the Indian Veterans Housing Opportunity Act of 2010 (only applies to Native
American housing programs)

Payments received from programs funded under Title V of the Older Americans Act of 1985
(42 U.S.C. 3056(f))

Payments received on or after January 1, 1989, from the Agent Orange Settlement Fund or
any other fund established pursuant to the settlement in /n Re Agent Orange product
liability litigation, M.D.L. No. 381 (E.D.N.Y.)

Payments received under 38 U.S.C. 1833(c) to children of Vietnam veterans born with
spinal bifida, children of women Vietnam veterans born with certain birth defects, and
children of certain Korean service veterans born with spinal bifida

Payments received under the Maine Indian Claims Settlement Act of 1980 (25 U.S.C. 1721)

The value of any childcare provided or arranged (or any amount received as payment for
such care or reimbursement for costs incurred for such care) under the Child Care and
Development Block Grant Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 9858q)



ACOP: Chapter 6

(s)

(t)

(v)

(w)

Earned income tax credit (EITC) refund payments received on or after January 1, 1991 (26
U.S.C. 32(j))

Payments by the Indian Claims Commission to the Confederated Tribes and Bands of
Yakima Indian Nation or the Apache Tribe of Mescalero Reservation (Pub. L. 95-433)

Amounts of scholarships funded under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965,
including awards under federal work-study programs or under the Bureau of Indian Affairs
student assistance programs (20 U.S.C. 1087uu). For Section 8 programs, the exception
found in 8 237 of Public Law 109-249 applies and requires that the amount of financial
assistance in excess of tuition shall be considered income in accordance with the
provisions codified at 24 CFR 5.609(b)(9), except for those persons with disabilities as
defined by 42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E) (Pub. L. 109-249)

Allowances, earnings, and payments to AmeriCorps participants under the National and
Community Service Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12637(d))

Any amount of crime victim compensation (under the Victims of Crime Act) received
through crime victim assistance (or payment or reimbursement of the cost of such
assistance) as determined under the Victims of Crime Act because of the commission of a
crime against the applicant under the Victims of Crime Act (42 U.S.C. 10602)

Any amounts in an "individual development account" as provided by the Assets for
Independence Act, as amended in 2002

Payments made from the proceeds of Indian tribal trust cases as described in Notice PIH
2013-30, "Exclusion from Income of Payments under Recent Tribal Trust Settlements" (25
U.S.C. 117b(a))

Major disaster and emergency assistance received under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster
Relief and Emergency Assistance Act and comparable disaster assistance provided by
states, local governments, and disaster assistance organizations

(aa) Distributions from an Achieving a Better Life Experience (ABLE) account, and actual or

imputed interest on the ABLE account balance [See also Notice PIH 2019-09



ACOP: Chapter 6
PART Il: ASSETS
6-11.A. OVERVIEW

Annualincome includes all actual anticipated income from assets (unless otherwise excluded by
the regulation), even if the asset itself is excluded from net family assets [Notice PIH 2023-27].

The regulation at 24 CFR 5.603(b)(3) provides a list of items that are excluded from the calculation
of net family assets. Note that unlike previous versions of the regulations, the current regulations
do not list types of assets that are included in annual income. Instead, HUD relies on the definition
of items excluded from assets to provide the scope of what is included. Exhibit 6-2 provides the
regulatory definition of net family assets.

Optional policies for family self-certification of assets are found in Chapter 7. Policies related to
the asset limitation may be found in Chapter 3.

Income from assets is always anticipated, irrespective of the income examination type.

County Housing Policy

County Housing generally will use current circumstances to determine both the value of an
asset and the anticipated income from the asset. County Housing will use other than
current circumstances to anticipate income when (1) an imminent change in
circumstances is expected, (2) it is not feasible to anticipate a level of income over 12
months, or (3) County Housing believes that pastincome is the best indicator of anticipated
income. For example, if a family member owns real property that typically receives rental
income, but the property is currently vacant, County Housing can take into consideration
past rental income along with the prospects of obtaining a new tenant.

Any time current circumstances are not used to determine assetincome, a clear rationale
for the decision will be documented in the file. In such cases, the family may present
information and documentation to County Housing to show why the assetincome
determination does not represent the family’s anticipated assetincome.

6-11.B. ASSETS DISPOSED OF FOR LESS THAN FAIR MARKET VALUE [24 CFR 5.603(b)(2)]

PHAs must include the value of any business or family assets disposed of by an applicant or
participant for less than fair market value (including a disposition in trust but not in a foreclosure or
bankruptcy sale) during the two years preceding the date of the application or reexamination, as
applicable, in excess of the consideration received for the asset.

An asset moved to a retirement account held by a member of the family is not considered to be an
asset disposed of for less than fair market value [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Minimum Threshold

HUD does not specify a minimum threshold for counting assets disposed of for less than fair
market value. A PHA may establish a policy to ignore small amounts such as charitable
contributions [New PH OCC GB, Income Determinations, p. 24].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will not include the value of assets disposed of for less than fair market
value unless the cumulative fair market value of all assets disposed of during the past two
years exceeds the gross amount received for the assets by more than $5,000.



ACOP: Chapter 6
Separation or Divorce

The regulation also specifies that assets are not considered disposed of for less than fair market
value if they are disposed of as part of a separation or divorce settlement and the applicant or
tenant receives important consideration not measurable in dollar terms.

County Housing Policy

All assets disposed of as part of a separation or divorce settlement will be considered
assets for which important consideration not measurable in monetary terms has been
received. In order to qualify for this exemption, a family member must be subject to a
formal separation or divorce settlement agreement established through arbitration,
mediation, or court order.

Foreclosure or Bankruptcy

Assets are not considered disposed of for less than fair market value when the disposition is the
result of a foreclosure or bankruptcy sale. Negative equity in real property or other investments
does not prohibit the owner from selling the property or other investments, so negative equity alone
would not justify excluding the property or other investments from family assets.

Asset Owned by a Business Entity

If a business entity (e.g., limited liability company or limited partnership) owns the asset, then the
family’s asset is their ownership stake in the business, not some portion of the business’s assets.
However, if the family holds the assets in their own name (e.g., they own one third of a restaurant)
rather than in the name of a business entity, then the percentage value of the asset owned by the
family is what is counted toward net family assets (e.g., one-third of the value of the restaurant)
[Notice PIH 2023-27].

Family Declaration

County Housing Policy

Families must sign a declaration form at initial certification and each annual recertification
identifying all assets that have been disposed of for less than fair market value or declaring
that no assets have been disposed of for less than fair market value. County Housing may
verify the value of the assets disposed of if other information available to County Housing
does not appear to agree with the information reported by the family.

6-11.C. ASSET INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS
Checking and Savings Accounts [Notice PIH 2023-27]

HUD considers bank accounts as non-necessary items of personal property. Whether or not non-

necessary personal property is counted toward net family assets depends on the combined value
of all of the family’s assets.

e When the combined value of net family assets is greater than $50,000, as adjusted by
inflation, checking and/or savings accounts would be counted toward net family assets.

e When the combined value of all non-necessary personal property does not exceed $50,000,
as adjusted by inflation, all non-necessary personal property is excluded from net family
assets. In this case, the value of the family’s checking and/or savings accounts would not
be considered when calculating net family assets.



ACOP: Chapter 6

However, actual income from checking and savings accounts is always included in a family’s
annualincome, regardless of the total value of net family assets or whether the asset itself is
included or excluded from net family assets unless that income is specifically excluded.

ABLE Accounts [24 CFR 5.609(b)(10); Notice PIH 2019-09]

An Achieving a Better Life Experience (ABLE) account is a type of tax-advantaged savings account
that an eligible individual can use to pay for qualified disability expenses. Section 103 of the ABLE
Act mandates that an individual’s ABLE account (specifically, its account balance, contributions to
the account, and distributions from the account) is excluded when determining the designated
beneficiary’s eligibility and continued occupancy under certain federal means-tested programs.
County Housing must exclude the entire value of the individual’s ABLE account from the
household’s assets. Distributions from the ABLE account are also not considered income.
However, all wage income received, regardless of which account the money is paid to, is included
as income.

Investment Accounts Such as Stocks, Bonds, Saving Certificates, and Money Market Funds
[24 CFR 5.603(b)(1)]

HUD considers financial investments such as stocks and bonds as non-necessary items of
personal property. Whether non-necessary personal property is counted toward net family assets
depends on the combined value of all of the family’s assets.

e When the combined value of net family assets is greater than $50,000, as adjusted by
inflation, financial investments such as stocks and bonds are considered part of net family
assets. In this case, the value of the family’s financial investments, such as stocks and
bonds, would be counted toward net family assets.

e When the combined value of all non-necessary personal property does not exceed $50,000,
as adjusted by inflation, all non-necessary personal property is excluded from net family
assets. In this case, the value of the family’s financial investments, such as stocks and
bonds, would not be considered when calculating net family assets.

However, actual income from financial accounts is always included in a family’s annual income,
regardless of the total value of net family assets or whether the asset itself is included or excluded
from net family assets unless that income is specifically excluded. When a stock issues dividends
in some years but not others (e.g., due to market performance), the dividend is counted as the
actual return when it is issued, but when no dividend is issued, the actual return is $0. When the
stock never issues dividends, the actual return is $0.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will include interest or dividends earned by investment accounts as actual
income from assets even when the earnings are reinvested.

The cash value of such an asset is determined by deducting from the market value any
broker fees, penalties for early withdrawal, or other costs of converting the asset to cash.

In determining the market value of an investment account, County Housing will use the
value of the account in the most recent investment report.

Necessary and Non-Necessary Personal Property [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(i)]

All assets are categorized as either real property (e.g., land, a home) or personal property.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Personal property includes tangible items, like boats, as well as intangible items, like bank

accounts.

The value of necessary items of personal property is excluded from the calculation of net family
assets. Necessary items of personal property include a car used for commuting or medical

devices.

HUD defines necessary personal property as items essential to the family for the maintenance,
use, and occupancy of the premises as a home, or they are necessary for employment, education,
or health and wellness. Necessary personal property includes more than merely items that are
indispensable to the bare existence of the family. It may include personal effects (such as items
that are ordinarily worn or utilized by the individual), items that are convenient or usefulto a
reasonable existence, and items that support and facilitate daily life within the family’s home.
Necessary personal property also includes items that assist a household member with a disability,
including any items related to disability-related needs or that may be required for a reasonable
accommodation for a person with a disability. Necessary personal property does not include bank
accounts, other financial investments, or luxury items. Items of personal property that do not
qualify as necessary personal property are classified as non-necessary personal property.

The combined value of all non-necessary items of personal property is only included in annual
income when the combined total value exceeds $50,000 (adjusted annually). When the combined
value of all non-necessary personal property does not exceed $50,000, as adjusted by inflation, all
non-necessary personal property is excluded from net family assets.

While not an exhaustive list, the following table from Notice PIH 2023-27 provides examples of

necessary and non-necessary personal property.

Necessary Personal Property

Non-Necessary Personal Property

Car(s)/vehicle(s) that a family relies on for
transportation for personal or business use
(e.g., bike, motorcycle, skateboard, scooter)

Furniture, carpets, linens, kitchenware
Common appliances

Common electronics (e.g., radio, television,
DVD player, gaming system)

Clothing

Personal effects that are not luxury items (e.g.,
toys, books)

Wedding and engagement rings

Jewelry used in religious/cultural celebrations
and ceremonies

Religious and cultural items
Medical equipment and supplies
Health care-related supplies

Musical instruments used by the family

Recreational car/vehicle not needed for day-to-
day transportation for personal or business use
(campers, motorhomes, traveling trailers, all-
terrain vehicles (ATVs))

Bank accounts or other financial investments
(e.g., checking account, savings account,
stocks/bonds)

Recreational boat/watercraft

Expensive jewelry without religious or cultural
value, or which does not hold family
significance

Collectibles (e.g., coins/stamps)

Equipment/machinery that is not used to
generate income for a business

Items such as gems/precious metals, antique
cars, artwork, etc.




ACOP: Chapter 6

Personal computers, phones, tablets, and
related equipment

Professional tools of trade of the family, for
example professional books

Educational materials and equipment used by
the family, including equipment to
accommodate persons with disabilities

Equipment used for exercising (e.g., treadmill,
stationary bike, kayak, paddleboard, ski
equipment)

County Housing Policy

In determining the value of non-necessary personal property, County Housing will use the
family’s estimate of the value. County Housing may obtain an appraisal if there is reason to
believe that the family’s estimated value is off by $100 or more. The family must cooperate
with the appraiser but cannot be charged any costs related to the appraisal.

Lump-Sum Additions to Net Family Assets [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24(viii); Notice PIH 2023-27]

The regulations exclude income from lump-sum additions to family assets, including lottery or
other contest winnings as a type of nonrecurring income.

In addition, lump sums from insurance payments, settlements for personal or property losses, and
recoveries from civil actions or settlements based on claims of malpractice, negligence, or other
breach of duty owed to a family member arising out of law that resulted in a member of the family
becoming a family member with a disability are excluded from income.

Further, deferred periodic amounts from Supplemental Security Income (SSI) and Social Security
benefits that are received in a lump sum amount or in prospective monthly amounts, or any
deferred Department of Veterans Affairs disability benefits that are received in a lump sum amount
or in prospective monthly amounts are also excluded from income.

However, these amounts may count toward net family assets. County Housing must consider any
actual or imputed returns from assets as income at the next applicable income examination. In the
case where the lump sum addition to assets would lead to imputed income, which is unearned
income, that increases the family’s annual adjusted income by 10 percent or more, then the
addition of the lump sum to the family’s assets will trigger an immediate interim reexamination of
income in accordance with Chapter 9. This reexamination of income must take place as soon as
the lump sum is added to the family’s net family assets unless the addition takes place in the last
three months of family’s income certification period and County Housing chooses not to conduct
the examination.

For a discussion of lump-sum payments that represent the delayed start of a periodic payment,
most of which are counted as income, see sections 6-1.H and 6-I.1.

County Housing Policy

Any lump-sum receipts are only counted as assets if they are retained by a family in a form
recognizable as an asset [RHIIP FAQs]. For example, if the family receives a $1,000 lump




ACOP: Chapter 6
sum for lottery winnings, and the family immediately spends the entire amount, the lump
sum will not be counted toward net family assets.

Jointly Owned Assets [Notice PIH 2023-27]

For assets owned jointly by the family and one or more individuals outside of the assisted family,
County Housing must include the total value of the asset in the calculation of net family assets
unless:

e The assetis otherwise excluded;
e The family can demonstrate that the asset is inaccessible to them; or

e The family cannot dispose of any portion of the asset without the consent of another owner
who refuses to comply.

If the family demonstrates that they can only access a portion of an asset, then only that portion’s
value is included in the calculation of net family assets for the family.

Any income from a jointly owned asset must be included in annual income, unless:
e Theincome is specifically excluded;
e The family demonstrates that they do not have access to the income from that asset; or
e The family only has access to a portion of the income from that asset.

If an individual is a beneficiary who is entitled to access the account’s funds only upon the death of
the account’s owner, and may not otherwise withdraw funds from an account, then the account is
not an asset to the assisted family, and the family should provide proper documentation
demonstrating that they are only a beneficiary on the account.

Trusts [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2) and 5.603(b)(4)]

A trustis a legal arrangement generally regulated by state law in which one party (the creator or
grantor) transfers property to a second party (the trustee) who holds the property for the benefit of
one or more third parties (the beneficiaries).

The following types of trust distributions are excluded from annual income:
e Distributions of the principal or corpus of the trust; and

e Distributions of income from the trust when the distributions are used to pay the costs of
health and medical care expenses for a minor.

The basis for determining how to treat trusts relies on information about who has access to either
the principal in the account or the income from the account. There are two types of trusts,
revocable and irrevocable.

When the creator sets up an irrevocable trust, the creator has no access to the funds in the
account. Irrevocable trusts not under the control of any member of the family or household are not
assets. Typically, special needs trusts are considered irrevocable. The value of the trust is not
included in net family assets so long as the fund continues to be held in a trust that is not revocable
by, or under the control of, any member of the family or household [24 CFR 5.603(b)(4)]. Where an
irrevocable trust is excluded from net family assets, County Housing must not consider actual
income earned by the trust (e.g., interest earned, rental income if the property is held in the trust)



ACOP: Chapter 6
for so long as the income from the trust is not distributed. If the value of the trust is not considered
part of the family’s net assets, then distributions from the trust are treated as follows:

e Alldistributions from the trust’s principal are excluded from income.

e Distributions of income earned by the trust (i.e., interest, dividends, realized gains, or other
earnings on the trust’s principal) are included as income unless the distribution is used to
pay for the health and medical expenses of a minor.

A revocable trustis a trust that the creator of the trust may amend or end (revoke). When there is a
revocable trust, the creator has access to the funds in the trust account.

The value of revocable trusts that are not under the control of the family are excluded from net
family assets. This happens when a member of the assisted family is the beneficiary of a revocable
trust, but the grantor is not a member of the assisted family. In this case, the beneficiary does not
“own” the revocable trust, and the value of the trust is excluded from net family assets. For the
revocable trust to be considered excluded from net family assets, no family or household member
may be the account’s trustee. If this is the case, then distributions from the trust are treated as
follows:

e Alldistributions from the trust’s principal are excluded from income.

e Distributions of income earned by the trust (i.e., interest, dividends, realized gains, or other
earnings on the trust’s principal), are included as income unless the distribution is used to
pay for the health and medical expenses for a minor.

Revocable trusts under the control of the family or household (e.g., the grantor is a member of the
assisted family or household) are considered assets and must be included in net family assets.

If the value of the trust is considered part of the family’s net assets, then distributions from the
trust are not considered income to the family. County Housing must count all actual returns (e.g.,
interest earned) from the trust as income or, if the trust has no actual returns (e.g., if the trust is
comprised of farmland that is not in use) and the total value of the combined net family assets
exceeds $50,000 (as that amount is updated for inflation), as imputed returns, as applicable.

Life Insurance [FR Notice 2/14/23 and Notice PIH 2023-27]

Net family assets do not include the value of term life insurance, which has no cash value to the
individual before death.

The cash value of a life insurance policy available to a family member before death, such as a
whole life or universal life policy, is included in the calculation of the value of the family’s assets.
The cash value is the surrender value. While the cash value of an insurance policy is considered an
asset, the face value of any policy is not. If such a policy earns dividends or interest that the family
could elect to receive, the amount of dividends or interest is counted as income from the asset
whether or not the family actually receives it.

Tax Refunds [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(xi) and Notice PIH 2023-27]

All amounts received by a family in the form of federal tax refunds or refundable tax credits are
excluded from a family’s net family assets for a period of 12 months after receipt by the family.

At the time of an annual or interim reexamination of income, if the federal tax refund was received
during the 12 months preceding the effective date of the reexamination, then the amount of the
refund that was received by the family is subtracted from the total value of the account in which the



ACOP: Chapter 6
federal tax refund or refundable tax credits were deposited. When the subtraction results in a
negative number, then the balance of the asset is considered $0.

If the tax refund or refundable tax credit is deposited into another excluded asset, such as a
retirement account or a Coverdell Education Savings Account, then the deposit will have no effect
on the balance of the asset (i.e., there is no need for County Housing to subtract the amount of the
deposit from the value of the excluded asset).

Asset Exclusions [24 CFR 5.603(b)]

The following are excluded from the calculations of net family assets:

The value of any account under a retirement plan recognized as such by the IRS, including
individual retirement arrangements (IRAs), employer retirement plans, and retirement plans
for self-employed individuals [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(iii)].

The value of real property that the family does not have the effective legal authority to sell in
the jurisdiction in which the property is located [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(iv)].

- Realproperty, as used in this part, has the same meaning as that provided under
the law of the state in which the property is located [24 CFR 5.100].

- Examples of this include but are not limited to co-ownership situations (including
situations where one owner is a victim of domestic violence), where one party
cannot unilaterally sell the real property; property that is tied up in litigation; and
inherited property in dispute [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Any amounts recovered in any civil action or settlement based on a claim of malpractice,
negligence, or other breach of duty owed to a family member arising out of law, that
resulted in a family member being a person with a disability [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(v)];

The value of any Coverdell education savings account under section 530 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(vi)];

The value of any qualified tuition program under Section 529 of such Code [24 CFR
5.603(b)(3)(vi)];

The value of any “baby bond” account created, authorized, or funded by federal, state, or
local government [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(vi)];

Interests in Indian trust land [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(vii)];

Equity in a manufactured home where the family receives assistance under 24 CFR part 982
[24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(viii)];

Equity in property under the Homeownership Option for which a family receives assistance
under 24 CFR part 982 [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(ix)];

Family Self-Sufficiency accounts [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(x)];

Federal tax refunds or refundable tax credits for a period of 12 months after receipt by the
family [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(xi)].

The fullamount of assets held in an irrevocable trust [Notice PIH 2023-27]; and



ACOP: Chapter 6
e The fullamount of assets held in a revocable trust where a member of the family is the
beneficiary, but the grantor/owner and trustee of the trust is not a member of the
participant family or household [Notice PIH 2023-27].

6-11.D. DETERMINING INCOME FROM ASSETS

In some cases, amounts that are excluded from net family assets may be included as annual
income when disbursements are made to a family from an asset. In other cases, amounts are
excluded from annualincome as a lump-sum addition to net family assets, but those funds are
then considered a net family asset if held in an account or other investment that is considered part
of net family assets [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Net Family Assets

Net family assets are defined as the net cash value of all assets owned by the family, after
deducting reasonable costs that would be incurred in disposing real property, savings, stocks,
bonds, and other forms of capital investment.

County Housing Policy

Reasonable costs that would be incurred when disposing of an asset include but are not
limited to penalties for premature withdrawal, broker and legal fees, and settlement costs
incurred in real estate transactions such as settlement costs and transfer taxes [New PH
OCC GB, Income Determinations, p. 24].

The calculation of asset income sometimes requires County Housing to make a distinction
between an asset’s market value and its cash value.

e The market value of an asset is its worth in the market (e.g., the amount a buyer would pay for
real estate or the total value of an investment account).

e The cashvalue of an asset is its market value less all reasonable amounts that would be
incurred when converting the asset to cash.

The cash value of real property or other assets with negative equity would be considered $0 for the
purposes of calculating net family assets. Negative equity in real property or other investments
does not prohibit the family from selling the property or other investments, so negative equity alone
would not justify excluding the property or other investments from family assets [Notice PIH 2023-
27].

Actual Income from Assets

Income from assets must be included on the Form HUD-50058 regardless of the amount

of income. Actualincome from assets is always included in a family’s annual income, regardless of
the total value of net family assets or whether the asset itself is included or excluded from net
family assets, unless thatincome is specifically excluded by 24 CFR 5.609(b).

Income or returns from assets are generally considered to be interest, dividend payments, and
other actualincome earned on the asset, and not the increase in market value of the asset. The
increase in market value is relevant to the cash value of the asset for the purpose of determining
total net family assets and imputing income.

County Housing may determine the net assets of a family based on a self-certification by the family
that the net family assets do not exceed $50,000 (adjusted annually by HUD), without taking



ACOP: Chapter 6
additional steps to verify the accuracy of the declaration [24 CFR 5.618(b)]. Policies related to the
verification of assets are found in Chapter 7 of this policy.

County Housing may not calculate or include any imputed income from assets when net family
assets total $50,000 or less [24 CFR 5.609(b)(1)]. The actual income from assets must be included
on the Form HUD-50058.

Imputed Income from Assets

When net family assets exceed $50,000 (adjusted annually by HUD), County Housing may not rely
on self-certification. If actual returns can be calculated, County Housing must include actual
income from the asset on the Form HUD-50058 (for example, a savings account or CD where the
rate of return is known). If actual returns cannot be calculated, County Housing must calculate
imputed returns using the HUD-determined passbook rate (for example, real property or a non-
necessary item of personal property such as a recreational boat). If County Housing can compute
actual income from some but not all assets, County Housing must compute actual returns where
possible and use the HUD-determined passbook rate for assets where actual income cannot be
calculated [24 CFR 5.609(a)(2)].

An asset with an actual return of $0 (such as a non-interest-bearing checking account) is not the
same as an asset for which an actual return cannot be computed (such as non-necessary personal
property). If the asset is a financial asset and there is no income generated (for example, a bank
account with a zero percent interest rate or a stock that does not issue cash dividends), then the
asset generates zero actual asset income, and imputed income is not calculated. When a stock
issues dividends in some years but not others (e.g., due to market performance), the dividend is
counted as the actual return when it is issued, and when no dividend is issued, the actual return is
$0. When the stock never issues dividends, the actual return is consistently $0.



ACOP: Chapter 6
PART lll: ADJUSTED INCOME

6-111.A. INTRODUCTION
Overview

HUD regulations require PHAs to deduct from annual income any of five mandatory deductions for
which a family qualifies and allows PHAs to deduct other permissive deductions in accordance
with PHA policies. The resulting amount is the family’s adjusted income. Mandatory deductions are
found in 24 CFR 5.611.

5.611 Adjusted income means annual income (as determined under CFR 24 5.609) of the members
of the family residing or intending to reside in the dwelling unit after making the following
deductions:

(a) Mandatory deductions

(1) $480 for each dependent (adjusted annually by HUD, rounded to the next lowest multiple of
$25);

(2) $525 for any elderly family or disabled family (adjusted annually by HUD, rounded to the next
lowest multiple of $25);

(3) The sum of the following, to the extent the sum exceeds ten percent of annualincome:
(i) Unreimbursed health and medical care expenses of any elderly family or disabled family;

(ii) Unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus expenses for each member of
the family who is a person with disabilities, to the extent necessary to enable any member of the
family (including the member who is a person with disabilities) to be employed; and

(4) Any reasonable child care expenses necessary to enable a member of the family to be
employed or to further his or her education.

This part covers policies related to these mandatory deductions. Verification requirements related
to these deductions are found in Chapter 7.

Anticipating Expenses

County Housing Policy

Generally, County Housing will use current circumstances to anticipate expenses. When
possible, for costs that are expected to fluctuate during the year (e.g., childcare during
school and non-school periods and cyclical medical expenses), County Housing will
estimate costs based on historical data and known future costs.

If afamily has an accumulated debt for medical or disability assistance expenses, County
Housing will include as an eligible expense the portion of the debt that the family expects to
pay during the period for which the income determination is being made. However,
amounts previously deducted will not be allowed even if the amounts were not paid as
expected in a preceding period. County Housing may require the family to provide
documentation of payments made in the preceding year.

When calculating health and medical care expenses, County Housing will include those
expenses anticipated to be incurred during the 12 months following the certification date
that are not covered by an outside source, such as insurance. The allowance is not




ACOP: Chapter 6
intended to give a family an allowance equal to last year’s expenses but to anticipate
regular ongoing and anticipated expenses during the coming year. Since these expenses
are anticipated, the PH Occupancy Guidebook states “itis likely that actual expenses will
not match what was anticipated. Typically, this would not be considered an underpayment
as long as at the time of the annual re-examination, the expenses were calculated based on
the appropriate verification” [New PH OCC GB, Income Determinations, p. 30]. For annual
reexaminations, County Housing will use information for the previous 12-month period.

6-111.B. DEPENDENT DEDUCTION

An allowance of $480 is deducted from annual income for each dependent (which amount will be
adjusted by HUD annually in accordance with the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners
and Clerical Workers, rounded to the next lowest multiple of $25) [24 CFR 5.611(a)(1)].

Dependent is defined as any family member other than the head, spouse, or co-head who is under
the age of 18 or who is 18 or older and is a person with disabilities or a full-time student. Foster
children, foster adults, and live-in aides are never considered dependents [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

6-111.C. ELDERLY OR DISABLED FAMILY DEDUCTION

A single deduction of $525 is taken for any elderly or disabled family (which amount will be
adjusted by HUD annually in accordance with the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners
and Clerical Workers, rounded to the next lowest multiple of $25) [24 CFR 5.611(a)(2)].

An elderly family is a family whose head, spouse, cohead, or sole member is 62 years of age or
older, and a disabled family is a family whose head, spouse, cohead, or sole member is a person
with disabilities [24 CFR 5.403].

6-111.D. HEALTH AND MEDICAL CARE EXPENSES DEDUCTION [24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(i)]

Unreimbursed health and medical care expenses may be deducted to the extent that, in
combination with any disability assistance expenses, they exceed ten percent of annualincome.

This deduction is permitted only for families in which the head, spouse, or co-head is at least 62 or
is a person with disabilities. If a family is eligible for a medical expense deduction, the medical
expenses of all family members are counted.

Definition of Medical Expenses

HUD regulations define health and medical care expenses at 24 CFR 5.603(b) to mean “any costs
incurred in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease or payments for
treatments affecting any structure or function of the body. Health and medical care expenses
include medical insurance premiums and long-term care premiums that are paid or anticipated
during the period for which annualincome is computed.”

Medical insurance premiums continue to be eligible health and medical care expenses. Health and
medical care expenses may be deducted from annual income only if they are eligible and not
otherwise reimbursed and may only be deducted for elderly or disabled families.

Although HUD revised the definition of health and medical care expenses to reflect the Internal
Revenue Service's (IRS) general definition of medical expenses, HUD is not permitting PHAs to
specifically align their policies with IRS Publication 502 for determining which expenses are
included in HUD’s mandatory deduction for health and medical care expenses. PHAs must review
each expense to determine whether it is eligible in accordance with HUD’s definition of health and
medical care expenses.



ACOP: Chapter 6
Families That Qualify for Both Health and Medical and Disability Assistance Expenses

County Housing Policy

This policy applies only to families in which the head, spouse, or co-head is 62 or older or is
a person with disabilities.

When expenses anticipated by a family could be defined as either a health and medical
care or disability assistance expenses, County Housing will consider them health and
medical care expenses unless it is clear that the expenses are incurred exclusively to
enable a person with disabilities to work.

6-111.E. DISABILITY ASSISTANCE EXPENSES DEDUCTION [24 CFR 5.603(b) and
24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(ii)]

Unreimbursed reasonable expenses for attendant care and auxiliary apparatus for each member of
the family who is a person with disabilities may be deducted if they: (1) are necessary to enable a
family member 18 years or older to work, (2) are not paid to a family member or reimbursed by an
outside source, (3) in combination with any medical expenses, exceed ten percent of annual
income, and (4) do not exceed the earned income received by the family member who is enabled to
work.

Earned Income Limit on the Disability Assistance Expense Deduction

A family can qualify for the disability assistance expense deduction only if at least one family
member (who may be the person with disabilities) is enabled to work [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

The disability expense deduction is capped by the amount of “earned income received by family
members who are 18 years of age or older and who are able to work” because of the expense [24
CFR 5.611(a)(3)(ii)]. The earned income used for this purpose is the amount verified before any
earned income disallowances or income exclusions are applied.

County Housing Policy

The family must identify the family members enabled to work as a result of the disability
assistance expenses. In evaluating the family’s request, County Housing will consider
factors such as how the work schedule of the relevant family members relates to the hours
of care provided, the time required for transportation, the relationship of the family
members to the person with disabilities, and any special needs of the person with
disabilities that might determine which family members are enabled to work.

When County Housing determines that the disability assistance expenses enable more
than one family member to work, the expenses will be capped by the sum of the family
members’ incomes [New PH Occ GB, Income Determinations, p. 28].

Eligible Auxiliary Apparatus [Notice PIH 2023-27]

Auxiliary apparatus items may include expenses for wheelchairs, ramps, adaptations to vehicles,
guide dogs, assistance animals, or special equipment to enable a person who is blind or has low
vision to read or type, or special equipment to assist a person who is deaf or hard of hearing.

Eligible Attendant Care [Notice PIH 2023-27]

Examples of attendant care expenses can include teaching a person with disabilities how to
perform day-to-day tasks independently like cleaning, bathing, doing laundry, and cooking.



ACOP: Chapter 6
Attendant care can be 24-hour care or care during sporadic periods throughout the day. The family
determines the type of attendant care that is appropriate for the person with disabilities.

County Housing Policy

Attendant care expenses will be included for the period that the person enabled to work is
employed, plus reasonable transportation time. The cost of general housekeeping and
personal services is not an eligible attendant care expense. However, if the person enabled
to work is the person with disabilities, personal services necessary to enable the person
with disabilities to work are eligible.

If the care attendant also provides other services to the family, County Housing will prorate
the cost and allow only that portion of the expenses attributable to attendant care that
enables a family member to work. For example, if the care provider also cares for a child
who is not the person with disabilities, the cost of care must be prorated. Unless otherwise
specified by the care provider, the calculation will be based on the number of hours spent
on each activity and/or the number of persons under care.

Payments to Family Members

No disability expenses may be deducted for payments to a member of a tenant family [23 CFR
5.603(b)]. However, expenses paid to a relative who is not a member of the tenant family may be
deducted if they are not reimbursed by an outside source.

Necessary and Reasonable Expenses

The family determines the type of care or auxiliary apparatus to be provided and must describe how
the expenses enable a family member to work. The family must certify that the disability assistance
expenses are necessary and are not paid or reimbursed by any other source.

County Housing Policy

County Housing determines the reasonableness of the expenses based on typical costs of
care or apparatus in the locality. To establish typical costs, County Housing will collect
information from organizations that provide services and support to persons with
disabilities. A family may present, and County Housing will consider, the family’s
justification for costs that exceed typical costs in the area.

Families That Qualify for Both Health and Medical and Disability Assistance Expenses

County Housing Policy

This policy applies only to families in which the head, spouse, or co-head is 62 or older or is
a person with disabilities.

When expenses anticipated by a family could be defined as either health and medical care
or disability assistance expenses, County Housing will consider them health and medical
care expenses unless it is clear that the expenses are incurred exclusively to enable a
person with disabilities to work.

6-111.F. CHILDCARE EXPENSE DEDUCTION

HUD defines child care expenses at 24 CFR 5.603(b) as “amounts anticipated to be paid by the
family for the care of children under 13 years of age (including foster children) during the period for
which annual income is computed, but only where such care is necessary to enable a family
member to actively seek employment, be gainfully employed, or to further his or her education and



ACOP: Chapter 6

only to the extent such amounts are not reimbursed. The amount deducted shall reflect reasonable
charges for childcare. In the case of childcare necessary to permit employment, the amount
deducted shall not exceed the amount of employment income that is included in annualincome.”

Clarifying the Meaning of Child for this Deduction

Child care expenses do not include child support payments made to another on behalf of a minor
who is not living in an assisted family’s household [VG, p. 26]. However, child care expenses for
foster children who are living in the assisted family’s household are included when determining the
family’s child care expenses [HCV GB, p. 5-29].

Qualifying for the Deduction
Determining Who Is Enabled to Pursue an Eligible Activity

County Housing Policy

The family must identify the family member(s) enabled to pursue an eligible activity. The
term eligible activity in this section means any of the activities that may make the family
eligible for a childcare deduction (seeking work, pursuing an education, or being gainfully
employed).

In evaluating the family’s request, County Housing will consider factors such as how the
schedule for the claimed activity relates to the hours of care provided, the time required for
transportation, the relationship of the family member(s) to the child, and any special needs
of the child that might help determine which family member is enabled to pursue an eligible
activity.

Seeking Work

County Housing Policy

If the childcare expense being claimed is to enable a family member to seek employment,
the family must provide evidence of the family member’s efforts to obtain employment at

each re-examination. The deduction may be reduced or denied if the family member’s job
search efforts are not commensurate with the childcare expense being allowed by County
Housing.

Furthering Education

County Housing Policy

If the childcare expense being claimed is to enable a family member to further his or her
education, the member must be enrolled in school (academic or vocational) or
participating in a formal training program. The family member is not required to be a full-
time student, but the time spent in educational activities must be commensurate with the
childcare claimed.

Being Gainfully Employed

County Housing Policy

If the childcare expense being claimed is to enable a family member to be gainfully
employed, the family must provide evidence of the family member’s employment during
the time that childcare is being provided. Gainful employment is any legal work activity (full-
or part-time) for which a family member is compensated.



ACOP: Chapter 6
Earned Income Limit on Child Care Expense Deduction

When a family member looks for work or furthers his or her education, there is no cap on the
amount that may be deducted for childcare — although the care must still be necessary and
reasonable. However, when childcare enables a family member to work, the deduction is capped
by “the amount of employment income that is included in annual income” [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

The earned income used for this purpose is the amount of earned income verified after any earned
income disallowances orincome exclusions are applied.

When the person who is enabled to work is a person who receives the earned income disallowance
(EID) or a full-time student whose earned income above the dependent allowance is excluded,
childcare costs related to enabling a family member to work may not exceed the portion of the
person’s earned income that actually is included in annual income. For example, if a family
member who qualifies for the EID makes $15,000, but because of the EID, only $5,000 is included
in annual income, childcare expenses are limited to $5,000.

County Housing must not limit the deduction to the least expensive type of childcare. If the care
allows the family to pursue more than one eligible activity, including work, the cap is calculated in
proportion to the amount of time spent working [HCV GB, p. 5-30].

County Housing Policy

When the childcare expense being claimed is to enable a family member to work, only one
family member’s income will be considered for a given period of time. When more than one
family member works during a given period, County Housing generally will limit allowable
childcare expenses to the earned income of the lowest-paid member. The family may
provide information that supports a request to designate another family member as the
person enabled to work.

Eligible Child Care Expenses

The type of care to be provided is determined by the tenant family. County Housing may not refuse
to give a family the childcare expense deduction because there is an adult family member in the
household who may be available to provide childcare [VG, p. 26].

Allowable Child Care Activities

County Housing Policy

For school-age children, costs attributable to public or private school activities during
standard school hours are not considered. Expenses incurred for supervised activities after
school or during school holidays (e.g., summer day camp, after-school sports league) are
allowable forms of childcare.

The costs of general housekeeping and personal services are not eligible. Likewise,
childcare expenses paid to a family member who lives in the family’s unit are not eligible;
however, payments for childcare to relatives who do not live in the unit are eligible.

If a childcare provider also renders other services to a family or childcare is used to enable
a family member to conduct activities that are not eligible for consideration, County
Housing will prorate the costs and allow only that portion of the expenses that is
attributable to childcare for eligible activities. For example, if the care provider also cares
for a child with disabilities who is 13 or older, the cost of care will be prorated. Unless



ACOP: Chapter 6
otherwise specified by the childcare provider, the calculation will be based upon the
number of hours spent on each activity and/or the number of persons under care.

Necessary and Reasonable Costs

Childcare expenses will be considered necessary if: (1) a family adequately explains how the care
enables a family member to work, actively seek employment, or further his or her education, and
(2) the family certifies, and the childcare provider verifies, that the expenses are not paid or
reimbursed by any other source.

County Housing Policy

Childcare expenses will be considered for the time required for the eligible activity plus
reasonable transportation time. For childcare that enables a family member to go to
school, the time allowed may include not more than one study hour for each hour spentin
class.

To establish the reasonableness of childcare costs, County Housing will use the schedule
of childcare costs from the local welfare agency. Families may present, and County
Housing will consider justification for costs that exceed typical costs in the area.

6-111.G. HARDSHIP EXEMPTIONS [24 CFR. 5.611(c), (d), (e)]

Health and Medical Care and Disability Assistance Expenses [24 CFR 5.611(c); Notice PIH
2023-27]

The regulations provide for two types of hardship exemption categories for families that qualify for
unreimbursed health and medical care expenses and /or disability assistance expenses. A family
will benefit from this hardship exemption only if the family has eligible expenses that can be
deducted in excess of five percent of annualincome. In order to claim unreimbursed health and
medical care expenses, the family must have a head, cohead, or spouse who is elderly or a person
with a disability. In order to claim unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus
expenses, the family must include a person with a disability, and the expenses must enable any
member of the family (including the member who is a person with a disability) to be employed.

Families may be eligible for relief under one of two categories; phased-in relief or general relief, as
defined below.

Phased-In Relief

The first category is applicable to all families who received a deduction for unreimbursed health
and medical care and/or reasonable attendant care or auxiliary apparatus expenses based on their
most recent income review. The family must receive phased-in relief if they are determined to be
eligible. These families will begin receiving a 24-month phased-in relief at their next annual or
interim reexamination, whichever occurs first.

For these families, the threshold amount is phased in as follows:

e The family is eligible for a deduction totaling the sum of expenses that exceeds 5
percent of annual income for the first 12 months.

e Atthe conclusion of 12 months, the family is eligible for a deduction totaling the sum of
their expenses that exceed 7.5 percent of annual income for another 12 months.

e Atthe conclusion of 24 months, the standard threshold amount of 10 percent would be
used, unless the family qualifies for relief under the general hardship relief category.



ACOP: Chapter 6
- When an eligible family’s phased-in relief begins at an interim reexamination, the
PHA will need to process another transaction one year later to move the family
along to the next phase. The transaction can be either an interim reexamination if
triggered, or a non-interim reexamination transaction.

Prior to the end of the 24-month period, the family may request a hardship exemption under the
second category as described below. If the family is found eligible under the second category, the
hardship exemption under the first category ends, and the family’s hardship is administered in
accordance with the requirements listed below. Once a family requests general relief, the family
may no longer receive phased-in relief.

PHAs must track the 24-month phase-period for each eligible family, even if a family’s expenses go
below the appropriate phase-in percentage, during the first or second 12-month phase-in period.
The phase-in must continue for families who move to another public housing unit at the same PHA.
When the family is treated as a new admission under a different property/program (e.g., the family
moves from public housing to the HCV program), unless the PHA has a written policy to continue
the phased-in relief upon admission, the family’s expense deduction will be calculated using the
10-percent threshold unless request for general relief is approved by the PHA.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will not continue the phased-in relief for families who move from the HCV
program to public housing. These families will be treated as new admissions, and the sum
of expenses that exceeds 10 percent of annual income will be used to calculate their
adjusted income.

General Relief
The second category is for families that can demonstrate:

e Their health and medical and/or disability assistance expenses increased (other than
the transition to the higher threshold); or

e The family’s financial hardship is a result of a change in circumstances (as defined in
County Housing policy) that would not otherwise trigger an interim reexamination.

The family may request a hardship exemption under the second category regardless of whether the
family previously received the health and medical and/or disability assistance deductions or are
currently or were previously receiving relief under the phased-in relief category above. HUD
requires that PHAs develop policies defining what constitutes a hardship for purposes of this
exemption.

PHAs must obtain third-party verification of the hardship or must document in the file the reason
third-party verification was not available. PHAs must attempt to obtain third-party verification prior
to the end of the 90-day hardship exemption period.

County Housing Policy

To qualify for a hardship exemption, a family must submit a request in writing. The request
must show that the family’s health and medical and/or disability assistance expenses have
increased (other than the transition to the higher threshold) or that the family’s financial
hardship is a result of a change in circumstances. County Housing defines a change in
circumstances as a decrease in income or increase in other expenses that has resulted in



ACOP: Chapter 6

the family’s financial hardship but does not, on its own, trigger an interim reexam in
accordance with County Housing policies.

Examples of circumstances constituting a financial hardship may include the following
situations:

The family is awaiting an eligibility determination for a federal, state, or local
assistance program, such as a determination for unemployment compensation or
disability benefits;

The family’s income decreased because of a loss of employment, death of a family
member, or due to a natural or federal/state declared disaster; or

Other circumstances as determined by County Housing.

The family must provide third-party verification of the hardship with the request. If third-
party verification is not available, County Housing will document the file with the reason
and will attempt to obtain third-party verification prior to the end of the 90-day hardship
exemption period.

County Housing must promptly notify the family in writing of the change in the determination of
adjusted income and the family’s rent resulting from hardship exemptions. The notice must inform
the family of when the hardship exemption will begin and expire [24 CFR 5.611(e)(2)].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will make a determination of whether the family qualifies within 30

calendar days and will notify the family in writing of the result within 10 business days of the
determination.

If County Housing denies the hardship exemption request, the notice will also state
that if the family does not agree with the determination, the family may request a
hearing.

If the family qualifies for an exemption, County Housing will include the date the
hardship exemption will begin and the date it will expire, as well as information on
how to request a 90-day extension based on family circumstances.

If the family qualifies, the family will receive a deduction for the sum of eligible expenses that
exceed five percent of annualincome.

The family’s hardship relief ends when the circumstances that made the family eligible for the relief
are no longer applicable or after 90 days, whichever is earlier. However, County Housing may, at its
discretion, extend the relief for one or more additional 90-day periods while the family’s hardship
condition continues. PHAs are not limited to a maximum number of 90-day extensions. PHAs are
not limited to a maximum number of 90-day extensions. PHAs must establish written policies
regarding the types of circumstances that will allow a family to qualify for financial hardship and
when such deductions may be eligible for additional 90-day extensions. PHAs must develop
policies requiring families to report if the circumstances that made the family eligible for the
hardship exemption are no longer applicable.

County Housing Policy

The family may request an extension either orally or in writing prior to the end of the
hardship exemption period. County Housing will extend relief for an additional 90-days if



ACOP: Chapter 6
the family demonstrates to its satisfaction that the family continues to qualify for the
hardship exemption based on circumstances described above. County Housing will require
updated verification based on the family’s current circumstances. Additional extension(s)
may be granted on a case-by-case basis, provided the family continues to request
extensions prior to the end of each hardship exemption period. Families must report if the
circumstances that made the family eligible for the hardship exemption are no longer
applicable. At any time, County Housing may terminate the hardship exemption if it
determines that the family no longer qualifies for the exemption.

Child Care Expense Hardship Exemption [24 CFR 5.611(d) and Notice PIH 2023-27]

A family whose eligibility for the child care expense deduction is ending may request a financial
hardship exemption to continue receiving the deduction. If the family demonstrates to County
Housing’s satisfaction that they are unable to pay their rent because of the loss of the child care
expense deduction, and that the child care expense is still necessary even though the family
member is not working, looking for work, or seeking to further their education, County Housing
must recalculate the family’s adjusted income and continue the child care deduction.

County Housing must develop a policy to define what constitutes a hardship, which includes the
family’s inability to pay rent. County Housing must obtain third-party verification of the hardship or
must document in the file the reason third-party verification was not available. PHAs must attempt
to obtain third-party verification prior to the end of the 90-day hardship exemption period.

County Housing Policy

For a family to qualify, they must demonstrate that their inability to pay rent would be as a
result of the loss of this deduction. County Housing defines this hardship as a potential
decrease in income or increase in other expenses that would result from the loss of the
child care expense and such loss would impact the family’s ability to pay their rent.

Some factors to consider when determining if the family is unable to pay rent may include
determining that the rent, utility payment, and applicable expenses (child care expenses or
health and medical expenses) are more than 40 percent of the family’s adjusted income, or
verifying whether the family has experienced unanticipated expenses, such as large
medical bills, that have affected their ability to pay their rent.

The family must also demonstrate that the child care expense is still necessary even though
the family member is no longer employed or furthering their education. County Housing will
consider qualification under this criterion on a case-by-case basis (for example, if the
family member who was employed has left their job in order to provide uncompensated
care to an elderly friend or family member who is severely ill and lives across town).

The family must provide third-party verification of the hardship with the request. If third-
party verification is not available, County Housing will document the file with the reason
and will attempt to obtain third-party verification prior to the end of the 90-day hardship
exemption period.

County Housing must promptly notify the family in writing of the change in the determination of
adjusted income and the family’s rent resulting from hardship exemptions.

If County Housing denies the request, the notice must specifically state the reason for the denial.
PHAs must provide families with 30 days’ notice of any increase in rent.



ACOP: Chapter 6

If County Housing approves the request, the notice must inform the family of when the hardship
exemption will begin and expire [24 CFR 5.611(e)(2)]. The notice must also state the requirement
for the family to report to County Housing if the circumstances that made the family eligible for
relief are no longer applicable and that the family’s adjusted income and tenant rent will be
recalculated upon expiration of the hardship exemption [Notice PIH 2023-27].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will make a determination of whether the family qualifies within 30
calendar days and will notify the family in writing of the result within 10 business days of the
determination.

If County Housing denies the hardship exemption request, the notice will also state
that if the family does not agree with the determination, the family may request a
grievance hearing.

If the family qualifies for an exemption, County Housing will include all required
information listed above as well as information on how to request a 90-day
extension based on family circumstances.

If the family qualifies, the hardship exemption and the resulting alternative adjusted income
calculation must remain in place for a period of up to 90 days.

County Housing may, at its discretion, extend the hardship exemptions for additional 90-day
periods based on family circumstances and as stated in its policies. PHAs are not limited to a
maximum number of 90-day extensions. PHAs must develop policies requiring families to report if
the circumstances that made the family eligible for the hardship exemption are no longer
applicable.

PHAs must promptly notify families in writing if they are denied either an initial hardship exemption
or an additional 90-day extension of the exemption. If the PHA denies the request, the notice must
specifically state the reason for the denial.

PHAs must notify the family if the hardship exemption is no longer necessary and the hardship
exemption will be terminated because the circumstances that made the family eligible for the

exemption are no longer applicable. The notice must state the termination date and provide 30
days’ notice of rent increase, if applicable.

County Housing Policy

The family may request an extension either orally or in writing prior to the end of the
hardship exemption period. County Housing will extend relief for an additional 90 days if the
family demonstrates to County Housing’s satisfaction that the family continues to qualify
for the hardship exemption. County Housing will require updated verification based on the
family’s current circumstances. Additional extensions may be granted on a case-by-case
basis provided the family continues to request extensions prior to the end of each hardship
exemption period. Families must report if the circumstances that made the family eligible
for the hardship exemption are no longer applicable. At any time, County Housing may
terminate the hardship exemption if it determines that the family no longer qualifies for the
exemption.

6-111.H. PERMISSIVE DEDUCTIONS [24 CFR 5.611(b)(1)(i)]



ACOP: Chapter 6

PHAs may adopt additional permissive deductions from annual income if they establish a policy in
the ACOP. Permissive deductions are additional, optional deductions that may be applied to
annualincome. As with mandatory deductions, permissive deductions must be based on need or
family circumstance and deductions must be designed to encourage self-sufficiency or other
economic purposes. If County Housing offers permissive deductions, they must be granted to all
families that qualify for them and should complement existing income exclusions and deductions
[PH Occ GB, p. 128]. Permissive deductions may be used to incentivize or encourage self-
sufficiency and economic mobility.

If a PHA chooses to adopt permissive deductions, it is not eligible for an increase in Capital Fund
and Operating Fund formula grants based on the application of those deductions. The PHA must
establish a written policy for such deductions.

The Form HUD-50058 Instruction Booklet states that the maximum allowable amount for total
permissive deductions is less than $90,000 per year.

County Housing Policy

County Housing has opted not to use permissive deductions.



ACOP: Chapter 6
PART IV: CALCULATING RENT

6-1IV.A. OVERVIEW OF INCOME-BASED RENT CALCULATIONS

The first step in calculating income-based rent is to determine each family’s total tenant payment
(TTP). Then, if the family is occupying a unit that has tenant-paid utilities, the utility allowance is
subtracted from the TTP. The result of this calculation, if a positive number, is the tenant rent. If the
TTP is less than the utility allowance, the result of this calculation is a negative number and is
called the utility reimbursement, which may be paid to the family or directly to the utility company
by County Housing.

TTP Formula [24 CFR 5.628]

HUD regulations specify the formula for calculating the total tenant payment (TTP) for a tenant
family. TTP is the highest of the following amounts, rounded to the nearest dollar:

e 30 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income (adjusted income is defined in Part )

e 10 percent of the family’s monthly gross income (annual income, as defined in Part |, divided by
12)

e The welfare rent (in as-paid states only)
e A minimum rent between $0 and $50 that is established by County Housing
e The alternative non-public housing rent, as determined in accordance with 24 CFR 960.102

County Housing has authority to suspend and exempt families from minimum rent when a financial
hardship exists, as defined in section 6-1V.B.

Welfare Rent [24 CFR 5.628]

County Housing Policy

Welfare rent does not apply in this locality.
Minimum Rent [24 CFR 5.630]

County Housing Policy

The minimum rent is $50.
Utility Reimbursement [24 CFR 960.253(c)(4)]

Utility reimbursement occurs when any applicable utility allowance for tenant-paid utilities
exceeds the TTP. HUD permits PHAs to pay the reimbursement to the family or directly to the utility
provider.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will make utility reimbursements to the family. County Housing will issue
all utility reimbursements monthly.



ACOP: Chapter 6
6-1V.B. FINANCIAL HARDSHIPS AFFECTING MINIMUM RENT [24 CFR 5.630]

Overview

County Housing must grant an exemption from the minimum rent if a family is unable to pay the
minimum rent because of financial hardship.

The financial hardship exemption applies only to families required to pay the minimum rent. If a
family’s TTP is higher than the minimum rent, the family is not eligible for a hardship exemption. If
County Housing determines that a hardship exists, the TTP is the highest of the remaining
components of the family’s calculated TTP.

HUD-Defined Financial Hardship
Financial hardship includes the following situations:

(1) The family has lost eligibility for or is awaiting an eligibility determination for a federal, state, or
local assistance program. This includes a family member who is a non-citizen lawfully admitted
for permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality Act who would be entitled to
public benefits but for Title IV of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996.

County Housing Policy

A hardship will be considered to exist only if the loss of eligibility has an impact on the
family’s ability to pay the minimum rent.

For a family waiting for a determination of eligibility, the hardship period will end as of the
first of the month following (1) implementation of assistance, if approved, or (2) the
decision to deny assistance. A family whose request for assistance is denied may request a
hardship exemption based upon one of the other allowable hardship circumstances.

(2) The family would be evicted because it is unable to pay the minimum rent.

County Housing Policy

For a family to qualify under this provision, the cause of the potential eviction must be the
family’s failure to pay rent or tenant-paid utilities.

(3) Family income has decreased because of changed family circumstances, including the loss of
employment.

(4) A death has occurred in the family.

County Housing Policy

To qualify under this provision, a family must describe how the death has created a
financial hardship (e.g., because of funeral-related expenses or the loss of the family
member’s income).

(5) The family has experienced other circumstances determined by County Housing.

County Housing Policy

County Housing has not established any additional hardship criteria.



ACOP: Chapter 6
Implementation of Hardship Exemption

Determination of Hardship

When a family requests a financial hardship exemption, County Housing must suspend the
minimum rent requirement beginning the first of the month following the family’s request.

County Housing then determines whether the financial hardship exists and whether the hardship is
temporary or long-term.

County Housing Policy

County Housing defines temporary hardship as a hardship expected to last 90 days or less.
Long-term hardship is defined as a hardship expected to last more than 90 days.

County Housing may not evict the family for non-payment of minimum rent during the 90-day
period beginning the month following the family’s request for a hardship exemption.

When the minimum rent is suspended, the TTP reverts to the highest of the remaining components
of the calculated TTP. The example below demonstrates the effect of the minimum rent exemption.

Example: Impact of Minimum Rent Exemption
Assume County Housing has established a minimum rent of $35.
TTP - No Hardship TTP - With Hardship
$0 30% of monthly adjusted income $0 30% of monthly adjusted income
$15 10% of monthly gross income $15 10% of monthly gross income
N/A  Welfare rent N/A  Welfare rent
$35 Minimum rent $35 Minimum rent
Minimum rent applies. Hardship exemption granted.
TTP = $35 TTP=$15

County Housing Policy

To qualify for a hardship exemption, a family must submit a request for a hardship
exemption in writing. The request must explain the nature of the hardship and how the
hardship has affected the family’s ability to pay the minimum rent.

County Housing will make the determination of hardship within 30 calendar days.
No Financial Hardship

If County Housing determines there is no financial hardship, it will reinstate the minimum rent and
require the family to repay the amounts suspended.

For procedures pertaining to grievance hearing requests based upon County Housing’s denial of a
hardship exemption, see Chapter 14, Grievances and Appeals.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will require the family to repay the suspended amount within 30 calendar
days of the notice that a hardship exemption has not been granted.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Temporary Hardship

If County Housing determines that a qualifying financial hardship is temporary, County Housing
must suspend the minimum rent for the 90-day period beginning the first of the month following the
date of the family’s request for a hardship exemption.

At the end of the 90-day suspension period, the family must resume payment of the minimum rent
and must repay County Housing the amounts suspended. HUD requires County Housing to offer a
reasonable repayment agreement, on terms and conditions established by County Housing.
County Housing also may determine that circumstances have changed, and the hardship is now a
long-term hardship.

For procedures pertaining to grievance hearing requests based upon County Housing’s denial of a
hardship exemption, see Chapter 14, Grievances and Appeals.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will enter into a repayment agreement in accordance with the repayment
agreement policies found in Chapter 16 of this ACOP.

Long-Term Hardship

If County Housing determines that the financial hardship is long-term, it must exempt the family
from the minimum rent requirement for so long as the hardship continues. The exemption will
apply from the first of the month following the family’s request until the end of the qualifying
hardship. When the financial hardship has been determined to be long-term, the family is not
required to repay the minimum rent.

County Housing Policy

The hardship period ends when any of the following circumstances apply:
(1) Atannualreexamination, the family’s calculated TTP is greater than the minimum rent.

(2) For hardship conditions based on loss of income, the hardship condition will continue
to be recognized until new sources of income are received that are at least equal to the
amount lost. For example, if a hardship is approved because a family no longer receives
a $60/month child support payment, the hardship will continue to exist until the family
receives at least $60/month in income from another source or once again begins to
receive the child support.

(38) For hardship conditions based upon hardship-related expenses, the minimum rent
exemption will continue to be recognized until the cumulative amount exempted is
equal to the expense incurred at the time of the annual reexamination.

6-1V.C. UTILITY ALLOWANCES [24 CFR 965, Subpart E]
Overview

Utility allowances are provided to families paying income-based rents when the cost of utilities is
notincluded in the rent. When determining a family’s income-based rent, County Housing must
use the utility allowance applicable to the type of dwelling unit leased by the family.

For policies on establishing and updating utility allowances, see Chapter 16.



ACOP: Chapter 6

Reasonable Accommodation and Individual Relief [24 CFR 8]

On request from a family, PHAs must approve a utility allowance that is higher than the applicable
amount for the dwelling unit if a higher utility allowance is needed as a reasonable accommodation
to make the program accessible to and usable by the family with a disability [PH Occ GB, p. 172].

Residents with disabilities may not be charged for the use of certain resident-supplied appliances if
there is a verified need for special equipment because of the disability [PH Occ GB, p. 172].

See Chapter 2 for policies related to reasonable accommodations.

Further, County Housing may grant requests for relief from charges in excess of the utility
allowance on reasonable grounds, such as special needs of the elderly, ill, or residents with
disabilities, or special factors not within control of the resident, as County Housing deems
appropriate. The family must request the higher allowance and provide County Housing with an
explanation about the additional allowance required.

PHAs should develop criteria for granting individual relief, notify residents about the availability of
individual relief, and notify participants about the availability of individual relief programs
(sometimes referred to as “Medical Baseline discounts”) offered by the local utility company
[Utility Allowance GB, p. 19; 24 CFR 965.508].

County Housing Policy

The family must request the higher allowance and provide County Housing with information
about the amount of additional allowance required.

County Housing will consider the following criteria as valid reasons for granting individual
relief:

The family’s consumption was mistakenly portrayed as excessive due to defects in
the meter or errors in the meter reading.

The excessive consumption is caused by a characteristic of the unit County
Housing-supplied equipment that is beyond the family’s control, such as a
particularly inefficient refrigerator or inadequate insulation. The allowance should
be adjusted to reflect the higher consumption needs associated with the unit until
the situation is remedied. The resident should be granted individual relief until the
allowance is adjusted.

The excessive consumption is due to special needs of the family that are beyond
their control, such as the need for specialized equipment in the case of a family
member who is ill, elderly, or who has a disability.

In determining the amount of the reasonable accommodation or individual relief, County
Housing will allow a reasonable measure of additional usage as necessary. To arrive at the
amount of additional utility cost of specific equipment, the family may provide information
from the manufacturer of the equipment. The family or County Housing may also conduct
an internet search for an estimate of usage or additional monthly cost.

Information on reasonable accommodation and individual relief for charges in excess of
the utility allowance will be provided to all residents at move-in and with any notice of
proposed allowances, schedule surcharges, and revisions. County Housing will also



ACOP: Chapter 6
provide information on utility relief programs or medical discounts (sometimes referred to
as “Medical Baseline discounts”) that may be available through local utility providers.

The family must request the higher allowance and provide County Housing with information
about the amount of additional allowance required.

At its discretion, County Housing may reevaluate the need for the increased utility
allowance as a reasonable accommodation at any regular reexamination.

If the excessive consumption is caused by a characteristic of the unit or County Housing-
supplied equipment that is beyond the family’s control, such as a particularly inefficient
refrigerator or inadequate insulation, the individual relief to the resident will cease when the
situation is remedied.

Utility Allowance Revisions [24 CFR 965.507]

County Housing must review its schedule of utility allowances each year. Between annual reviews,
County Housing must revise the utility allowance schedule if there is a rate change that by itself or
together with prior rate changes not adjusted for, results in a change of 10 percent or more from the
rate on which such allowances were based. Adjustments to resident payments as a result of such
changes must be retroactive to the first day of the month following the month in which the last rate
change taken into account in such revision became effective [PH Occ GB, p. 171].

The tenant rent calculations must reflect any changes in County Housing’s utility allowance
schedule [24 CFR 960.253(c)(3)].

County Housing Policy

Unless County Housing is required to revise utility allowances retroactively, revised utility
allowances will be applied to a family’s rent calculations at the first annual reexamination
after the allowance is adopted.

6-1V.D. PRORATED RENT FOR MIXED FAMILIES [24 CFR 5.520]

HUD regulations prohibit assistance to ineligible family members. A mixed family is one that
includes at least one U.S. citizen or eligible immigrant and any number of ineligible family
members. Except for non-public housing over-income families, County Housing must prorate the
assistance provided to a mixed family. County Housing will first determine TTP as if all family
members were eligible and then prorate the rent based upon the number of family members that
actually are eligible. To do this, County Housing must:

(1) Subtractthe TTP from the flat rent applicable to the unit. The result is the maximum subsidy for
which the family could qualify if all members were eligible.

(2) Divide the family maximum subsidy by the number of persons in the family to determine the
maximum subsidy per each family member who is eligible (member maximum subsidy).

©

Multiply the member maximum subsidy by the number of eligible family members.

c

Subtract the subsidy calculated in the last step from the flat rent. This is the prorated TTP.

(5) Subtract the utility allowance for the unit from the prorated TTP. This is the prorated rent for the
mixed family.

County Housing Policy




ACOP: Chapter 6
Revised public housing flat rents will be applied to a mixed family’s rent calculation at the
first annual reexamination after the revision is adopted.

(6) When the mixed family’s TTP is greater than the applicable flat rent, use the TTP as the prorated
TTP. The prorated TTP minus the utility allowance is the prorated rent for the mixed family.

6-1V.E. FLAT RENTS AND FAMILY CHOICE IN RENTS [24 CFR 960.253]
Flat Rents [24 CFR 960.253(b)]

The flat rent is designed to encourage self-sufficiency and to avoid creating disincentives for
continued residency by families who are attempting to become economically self-sufficient.

Changes in family income, expenses, or composition will not affect the flat rent amount because it
is outside the income-based formula.

Policies related to the re-examination of families paying flat rent are contained in Chapter 9, and
policies related to the establishment and review of flat rents are contained in Chapter 16.

Family Choice in Rents [24 CFR 960.253(a) and (e)]

With the exception of non-public housing over-income families, once each year, County Housing
must offer families the choice between a flat rent and an income-based rent. The family may not
be offered this choice more than once a year. County Housing must document that flat rents were
offered to families under the methods used to determine flat rents for County Housing.

County Housing Policy

The annual County Housing offer to a family of the choice between flat and income-based
rent will be conducted upon admission and upon each subsequent annual reexamination.

County Housing will require families to submit their choice of flat or income-based rentin
writing and will maintain such requests in the tenant file as part of the admission or annual
reexamination process.

County Housing must provide sufficient information for families to make an informed choice. This
information must include County Housing’s policy on switching from flat rent to income-based
rent due to financial hardship and the dollar amount of the rent under each option. However, if the
family chose the flat rent for the previous year, County Housing is required to provide an income-
based rent amount only in the year that a reexamination of income is conducted or if the family
specifically requests it and submits updated income information.

Switching from Flat Rent to Income-Based Rent Due to Hardship [24 CFR 960.253(f)]

With the exception of non-public housing over-income families, a family can opt to switch from flat
rent to income-based rent at any time if they are unable to pay the flat rent due to financial
hardship. If County Housing determines that a financial hardship exists, it must immediately allow
the family to switch from flat rent to income-based rent.

County Housing Policy

Upon determination by County Housing that a financial hardship exists, County Housing
will allow a family to switch from flat rent to income-based rent effective the first of the
month following the family’s request.

Reasons for financial hardship include:



ACOP: Chapter 6

e The family has experienced a decrease in income because of changed circumstances,
including loss or reduction of employment, death in the family, or reduction in or loss of
earnings or other assistance

e The family has experienced an increase in expenses, because of changed circumstances, for
medical costs, childcare, transportation, education, or similar items

e Such other situations determined by County Housing to be appropriate

County Housing Policy

County Housing considers payment of flat rent to be a financial hardship whenever the
switch to income-based rent would be lower than the flat rent [PH Occ GB, p. 137].

Flat Rents and Earned Income Disallowance [A&O FAQs]

Because the EID is a function of income-based rents, a family paying flat rent cannot qualify for the
EID even if a family member experiences an event that would qualify the family for the EID. If the
family later chooses to pay income-based rent, they would only qualify for the EID if a new
qualifying event occurred.

Under the EID original calculation method, a family currently paying flat rent that previously
qualified for the EID while paying income-based rent and is currently within their exclusion period
would have the exclusion period continue while paying flat rent as long as the employment that is
the subject of the exclusion continues. A family paying flat rent could therefore see a family
member’s exclusion period expire while the family is paying flat rent.

Under the EID revised calculation method, a family currently paying flat rent that previously
qualified for the EID while paying income-based rent and is currently within their exclusion period
would have the exclusion period continue while paying flat rent regardless of whether the
employment that is the subject of the exclusion continues. A family paying flat rent could therefore
see a family member’s exclusion period expire while the family is paying flat rent.



ACOP: Chapter 6

EXHIBIT 6-1: ANNUAL INCOME FULL DEFINITION

24 CFR 5.609

(a) Annualincome includes, with respect to the
family:

(1) Allamounts, not specifically excluded in
paragraph (b) of this section, received from all
sources by each member of the family who is 18
years of age or older or is the head of household
or spouse of the head of household, plus
unearned income by or on behalf of each
dependent who is under 18 years of age, and

(2) When the value of net family assets exceeds
$50,000 (which amount HUD will adjust
annually in accordance with the Consumer
Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical
Workers) and the actual returns from a given
asset cannot be calculated, imputed returns on
the asset based on the current passbook
savings rate, as determined by HUD.

(b)Annual income does not include the
following:

(1) Any imputed return on an asset when net
family assets total $50,000 or less (which
amount HUD will adjust annually in accordance
with the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage
Earners and Clerical Workers) and no actual
income from the net family assets can be
determined.

(2) The following types of trust distributions:

(i) For anirrevocable trust or a revocable trust
outside the control of the family or household
excluded from the definition of net family
assets under 8 5.603(b):

(A) Distributions of the principal or corpus of the
trust; and

(B) Distributions of income from the trust when
the distributions are used to pay the costs of
health and medical care expenses for a minor.

(ii) For a revocable trust under the control of the
family or household, any distributions from the
trust; except that any actual income earned by
the trust, regardless of whether it is distributed,
shall be considered income to the family at the
time it is received by the trust.

(3) Earned income of children under the 18
years of age.

(4) Payments received for the care of foster
children or foster adults, or State or Tribal
kinship or guardianship care payments.

(5) Insurance payments and settlements for
personal or property losses, including but not
limited to payments through health insurance,
motor vehicle insurance, and workers’
compensation.

(6) Amounts received by the family that are
specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the cost
of health and medical care expenses for any
family member.

(7) Any amounts recovered in any civil action or
settlement based on a claim of malpractice,
negligence, or other breach of duty owed to a
family member arising out of law, that resulted
in a member of the family becoming disabled.

(8) Income of a live-in aide, foster child, or
foster adult as defined in 88 5.403 and 5.603,
respectively.

(9)

(i) Any assistance that section 479B of the
Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (20
U.S.C. 1087uu), requires be excluded from a
family’s income; and



ACOP: Chapter 6

(ii) Student financial assistance for tuition,
books, and supplies (including supplies and
equipment to support students with learning
disabilities or other disabilities), room and
board, and other fees required and charged to a
student by an institution of higher education (as
defined under Section 102 of the Higher
Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1002)) and, for
a student who is not the head of household or
spouse, the reasonable and actual costs of
housing while attending the institution of higher
education and not residing in an assisted unit.

(A) Student financial assistance, for purposes of
this paragraph (9)(ii), means a grant or
scholarship received from— (

1) The Federal government;
(2) A State, Tribe, or local government;

(3) A private foundation registered as a
nonprofit under 26 U.S.C. 501(c)(3);

(4) A business entity (such as corporation,
general partnership, limited liability company,
limited partnership, joint venture, business
trust, public benefit corporation, or nonprofit
entity); or

(5) An institution of higher education.

(B) Student financial assistance, for purposes
of this paragraph (9)(ii), does not include—

(1) Any assistance that is excluded pursuant to
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section;

(2) Financial support provided to the studentin
the form of a fee for services performed (e.g., a
work study or teaching fellowship that is not
excluded pursuant to paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this
section); (

3) Gifts, including gifts from family or friends; or

(4) Any amount of the scholarship or grant that,
either by itself or in combination with
assistance excluded under this paragraph or
paragraph (b)(9)(i), exceeds the actual covered
costs of the student. The actual covered costs
of the student are the actual costs of tuition,
books and supplies (including supplies and
equipment to support students with learning
disabilities or other disabilities), room and
board, or other fees required and charged to a
student by the education institution, and, for a
student who is not the head of household or
spouse, the reasonable and actual costs of
housing while attending the institution of higher
education and not residing in an assisted unit.
This calculation is described further in
paragraph (b)(9)(ii)€ of this section.

(C) Student financial assistance, for purposes
of this paragraph (b)(9)(ii) must be:

(1) Expressly for tuition, books, room and board,
or other fees required and charged to a student
by the education institution;

(2) Expressly to assist a student with the costs
of higher education; or

(8) Expressly to assist a student who is not the
head of household or spouse with the
reasonable and actual costs of housing while
attending the education institution and not
residing in an assisted unit.

(D) Student financial assistance, for purposes
of this paragraph (b)(9)(ii), may be paid directly
to the student or to the educational institution
on the student’s behalf. Student financial
assistance paid to the student must be verified
by the responsible entity as student financial
assistance consistent with this paragraph

(b)(9)(ii).

(E) When the student is also receiving
assistance excluded under paragraph (b)(9)(i) of
this section, the amount of student financial
assistance under this paragraph (b)(9)(ii) is
determined as follows:

Page 6-54



ACOP: Chapter 6

(1) If the amount of assistance excluded under
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section is equal to or
exceeds the actual covered costs under
paragraph (b)(9)(ii)(B)(4) of this section, none of
the assistance described in this paragraph
(b)(9)(ii) of this section is considered student
financial assistance excluded from income
under this paragraph (b)(9)(ii)(E).

(2) If the amount of assistance excluded under
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section is less than
the actual covered costs under paragraph
(b)(9)(ii)(B)(4) of this section, the amount of
assistance described in paragraph (b)(9)(ii) of
this section that is considered student financial
assistance excluded under this paragraph is the
lower of:

(i) the total amount of student financial
assistance received under this paragraph
(b)(9)(ii) of this section, or

(ii) the amount by which the actual covered
costs under paragraph (b)(9)(ii)(B)(4) of this
section exceeds the assistance excluded under
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section.

(10) Income and distributions from any
Coverdell education savings account under
section 530 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 or any qualified tuition program under
section 529 of such Code; and income earned
by government contributions to, and
distributions from, “baby bond” accounts
created, authorized, or funded by Federal,
State, or local government.

(11) The special pay to a family member serving
in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile
fire.

(12)

(i) Amounts received by a person with a
disability that are disregarded for a limited time
for purposes of Supplemental Security Income
eligibility and benefits because they are set
aside for use under a Plan to Attain Self-
Sufficiency (PASS);

(i) Amounts received by a participant in other
publicly assisted programs which are
specifically for or in reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses incurred (e.g., special
equipment, clothing, transportation, child care,
etc.) and which are made solely to allow
participation in a specific program;

(iif) Amounts received under a resident service
stipend not to exceed $200 per month. A
resident service stipend is a modest amount
received by a resident for performing a service
for the PHA or owner, on a part-time basis, that
enhances the quality of life in the development.

(iv) Incremental earnings and benefits resulting
to any family member from participation in
training programs funded by HUD or in
qualifying Federal, State, Tribal, or local
employment training programs (including
training programs not affiliated with a local
government) and training of a family member as
resident management staff. Amounts excluded
by this provision must be received under
employment training programs with clearly
defined goals and objectives and are excluded
only for the period during which the family
member participates in the employment
training program unless those amounts are
excluded under paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this
section.

(13) Reparation payments paid by a foreign
government pursuant to claims filed under the
laws of that government by persons who were
persecuted during the Nazi era.

(14) Earned income of dependent fulltime
students in excess of the amount of the
deduction for a dependentin 8 5.611.

(15) Adoption assistance payments for a child in
excess of the amount of the deduction for a
dependentin §5.611.

Page 6-55



ACOP: Chapter 6

(16) Deferred periodic amounts from
Supplemental Security Income and Social
Security benefits that are received in a lump
sum amount or in prospective monthly
amounts, or any deferred Department of
Veterans Affairs disability benefits that are
received in a lump sum amountorin
prospective monthly amounts.

(17) Payments related to aid and attendance
under 38 U.S.C. 1521 to veterans in need of
regular aid and attendance.

(18) Amounts received by the family in the form
of refunds or rebates under State or local law
for property taxes paid on the dwelling unit.

(19) Payments made by or authorized by a State
Medicaid agency (including through a managed
care entity) or other State or Federal agency to a
family to enable a family member who has a
disability to reside in the family’s assisted unit.
Authorized payments may include payments to
a member of the assisted family through the
State Medicaid agency (including through a
managed care entity) or other State or Federal
agency for caregiving services the family
member provides to enable a family member
who has a disability to reside in the family’s
assisted unit.

(20) Loan proceeds (the net amount disbursed
by a lender to or on behalf of a borrower, under
the terms of a loan agreement) received by the
family or a third party (e.g., proceeds received
by the family from a private loan to enable
attendance at an educational institution or to
finance the purchase of a car).

(21) Payments received by Tribal members as a
result of claims relating to the mismanagement
of assets held in trust by the United States, to
the extent such payments are also excluded
from gross income under the Internal Revenue
Code or other Federal law.

(22) Amounts that HUD is required by Federal
statute to exclude from consideration as
income for purposes of determining eligibility or
benefits under a category of assistance
programs that includes assistance under any
program to which the exclusions set forth in
paragraph (b) of this section apply. HUD will
publish a notice in the Federal Register to
identify the benefits that qualify for this
exclusion. Updates will be published when
necessary.

(23) Replacement housing “gap” payments
made in accordance with 49 CFR part 24 that
offset increased out of pocket costs of
displaced persons that move from one federally
subsidized housing unit to another Federally
subsidized housing unit. Such replacement
housing “gap” payments are not excluded from
annualincome if the increased cost of rent and
utilities is subsequently reduced or eliminated,
and the displaced person retains or continues
to receive the replacement housing “gap”
payments.

(24) Nonrecurring income, which is income that
will not be repeated in the coming year based
on information provided by the family. Income
received as an independent contractor, day
laborer, or seasonal worker is not excluded
from income under this paragraph, even if the
source, date, or amount of the income varies.
Nonrecurring income includes:

(i) Payments from the U.S. Census Bureau for
employment (relating to decennial census or
the American Community Survey) lasting no
longer than 180 days and not culminating in
permanent employment.

(ii) Direct Federal or State payments intended
for economic stimulus or recovery.

(iii) Amounts directly received by the family as a
result of State refundable tax credits or State
tax refunds at the time they are received.

Page 6-56



ACOP: Chapter 6

(iv) Amounts directly received by the family as a
result of Federal refundable tax credits and
Federal tax refunds at the time they are
received.

(v) Gifts for holidays, birthdays, or other
significant life events or milestones (e.g.,
wedding gifts, baby showers, anniversaries).

(vi) Non-monetary, in-kind donations, such as
food, clothing, or toiletries, received from a
food bank or similar organization.

(vii) Lump-sum additions to net family assets,
including but not limited to lottery or other
contest winnings.

(25) Civil rights settlements or judgments,
including settlements or judgments for back

pay.

(26) Income received from any account under a
retirement plan recognized as such by the
Internal Revenue Service, including individual
retirement arrangements (IRAs), employer
retirement plans, and retirement plans for self-
employed individuals; except that any
distribution of periodic payments from such

accounts shall be income at the time they are
received by the family.

(27) Income earned on amounts placed in a
family’s Family Self Sufficiency Account.

(28) Gross income a family member receives
through self-employment or operation of a
business; except that the following shall be
considered income to a family member:

(i) Netincome from the operation of a business
or profession. Expenditures for business
expansion or amortization of capital
indebtedness shall not be used as deductions
in determining netincome. An allowance for
depreciation of assets used in a business or
profession may be deducted, based on straight
line depreciation, as provided in Internal
Revenue Service regulations; and

(if) Any withdrawal of cash or assets from the
operation of a business or profession will be
included in income, except to the extent the
withdrawal is reimbursement of cash or assets
invested in the operation by the family.

Page 6-57



ACOP: Chapter 6

EXHIBIT 6-2: TREATMENT OF FAMILY ASSETS

24 CFR 5.603(b) Net Family Assets

(1) Net family assets is the net cash value of
all assets owned by the family, after
deducting reasonable costs that would be
incurred in disposing real property, savings,
stocks, bonds, and other forms of capital
investment.

(2) In determining net family assets, PHAs or
owners, as applicable, must include the
value of any business or family assets
disposed of by an applicant or tenant for less
than fair market value (including a disposition
in trust, but not in a foreclosure or
bankruptcy sale) during the two years
preceding the date of application for the
program or reexamination, as applicable, in
excess of the consideration received
therefor. In the case of a disposition as part
of a separation or divorce settlement, the
disposition will not be considered to be for
less than fair market value if the applicant or
tenant receives consideration not
measurable in dollar terms. Negative equity
in real property or other investments does not
prohibit the owner from selling the property
or other investments, so negative equity
alone would not justify excluding the property
or other investments from family assets.

(3) Excluded from the calculation of net
family assets are: (i) The value of necessary
items of personal property; (ii) The combined
value of all nonnecessary items of personal
property if the combined total value does not
exceed $50,000 (which amount will be
adjusted by HUD in accordance with the
Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage
Earners and Clerical Workers); (iii) The value
of any account under a retirement plan
recognized as such by the Internal Revenue
Service, including individual retirement
arrangements (IRAs), employer retirement
plans, and retirement plans for self-
employed individuals; (iv) The value of real
property that the family does not have the

effective legal authority to sell in the
jurisdiction in which the property is located;
(v) Any amounts recovered in any civil action
or settlement based on a claim of
malpractice, negligence, or other breach of
duty owed to a family member arising out of
law, that resulted in a family member being a
person with a disability; (vi) The value of any
Coverdell education savings account under
section 530 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, the value of any qualified tuition
program under section 529 of such Code, the
value of any Achieving a Better Life
Experience (ABLE) account authorized under
Section 529A of such Code, and the value of
any “baby bond” account created,
authorized, or funded by Federal, State, or
local government. (vii) Interests in Indian trust
land; (viii) Equity in a manufactured home
where the family receives assistance under
24 CFR part 982; (ix) Equity in property under
the Homeownership Option for which a
family receives assistance under 24 CFR part
982; (x) Family Self-Sufficiency Accounts; and
(xi) Federal tax refunds or refundable tax
credits for a period of 12 months after receipt
by the family.

(4) In cases where a trust fund has been
established and the trustis not revocable by,
or under the control of, any member of the
family or household, the trust fund is not a
family asset and the value of the trustis not
included in the calculation of net family
assets, so long as the fund continues to be
held in a trust that is not revocable by, or
under the control of, any member of the
family or household.

Page 6-58



ACOP: Chapter 6

EXHIBIT 6-3: THE EFFECT OF WELFARE BENEFIT REDUCTION

24 CFR 5.615

Public housing program and Section 8 tenant-based assistance program: How welfare benefit

reduction affects family income.

(a) Applicability. This section applies to covered
families who reside in public housing (part 960
of this title) or receive Section 8 tenant-based
assistance (part 982 of this title).

(b) Definitions. The following definitions apply
for purposes of this section:

Covered families. Families who receive welfare
assistance or other public assistance benefits
(“welfare benefits”) from a State or other public
agency (“welfare agency”) under a program for
which Federal, State, or local law requires that
a member of the family must participate in an
economic self-sufficiency program as a
condition for such assistance.

Economic self-sufficiency program. See
definition at Sec. 5.603.

Imputed welfare income. The amount of annual
income not actually received by a family, as a
result of a specified welfare benefit reduction,
that is nonetheless included in the family's
annual income for purposes of determining
rent.

Specified welfare benefit reduction.

(1) Areduction of welfare benefits by the
welfare agency, in whole or in part, for a family
member, as determined by the welfare agency,
because of fraud by a family member in
connection with the welfare program; or
because of welfare agency sanction against a
family member for noncompliance with a
welfare agency requirement to participate in an
economic self-sufficiency program.

(2) “Specified welfare benefit reduction” does
notinclude a reduction or termination of
welfare benefits by the welfare agency:

(i) at expiration of a lifetime or other time limit
on the payment of welfare benefits;

(ii) because a family member is not able to
obtain employment, even though the family
member has complied with welfare agency
economic self-sufficiency or work activities
requirements; or

(iii) because a family member has not complied
with other welfare agency requirements.

(c) Imputed welfare income.

(1) A family's annualincome includes the
amount of imputed welfare income (because of
a specified welfare benefits reduction, as
specified in notice to the PHA by the welfare
agency), plus the total amount of other annual
income as determined in accordance with Sec.
5.609.

(2) At the request of the PHA, the welfare
agency will inform the PHA in writing of the
amount and term of any specified welfare
benefit reduction for a family member, and the
reason for such reduction, and will also inform
the PHA of any subsequent changes in the term
or amount of such specified welfare benefit
reduction. The PHA will use this information to
determine the amount of imputed welfare
income for a family.

(3) A family’s annual income includes imputed
welfare income in family annualincome, as
determined at the PHA's interim or regular
reexamination of family income and
composition, during the term of the welfare
benefits reduction (as specified in information
provided to the PHA by the welfare agency).

Page 6-59



ACOP: Chapter 6

(4) The amount of the imputed welfare income
is offset by the amount of additionalincome a
family receives that commences after the time
the sanction was imposed. When such
additionalincome from other sources is at least
equal to the imputed

(5) The PHA may not include imputed welfare
income in annual income if the family was not
an assisted resident at the time of sanction.

(d) Review of PHA decision.

(1) Public housing. If a public housing tenant
claims that the PHA has not correctly
calculated the amount of imputed welfare
income in accordance with HUD requirements,
and if the PHA denies the family's request to
modify such amount, the PHA shall give the
tenant written notice of such denial, with a brief
explanation of the basis for the PHA
determination of the amount of imputed
welfare income. The PHA notice shall also state
that if the tenant does not agree with the PHA
determination, the tenant may request a
grievance hearing in accordance with part 966,
subpart B of this title to review the PHA
determination. The tenant is not required to pay
an escrow deposit pursuant to Sec. 966.55(e)
for the portion of tenant rent attributable to the
imputed welfare income in order to obtain a
grievance hearing on the PHA determination.

(2) Section 8 participant. A participant in the
Section 8 tenant-based assistance program
may request an informal hearing, in accordance
with Sec. 982.555 of this title, to review the PHA
determination of the amount of imputed
welfare income that must be included in the
family's annual income in accordance with this
section. If the family claims that such amount is
not correctly calculated in accordance with
HUD requirements, and if the PHA denies the
family's request to modify such amount, the
PHA shall give the family written notice of such
denial, with a brief explanation of the basis for
the PHA determination of the amount of
imputed welfare income. Such notice shall also
state that if the family does not agree with the
PHA determination, the family may request an

informal hearing on the determination under the
PHA hearing procedure.

(e) PHA relation with welfare agency.

(1) The PHA must ask welfare agencies to
inform the PHA of any specified welfare benefits
reduction for a family member, the reason for
such reduction, the term of any such reduction,
and any subsequent welfare agency
determination affecting the amount or term of a
specified welfare benefits reduction. If the
welfare agency determines a specified welfare
benefits reduction for a family member, and
gives the PHA written notice of such reduction,
the family's annual incomes shall include the
imputed welfare income because of the
specified welfare benefits reduction.

(2) The PHA is responsible for determining the
amount of imputed welfare income thatis
included in the family's annualincome as a
result of a specified welfare benefits reduction
as determined by the welfare agency, and
specified in the notice by the welfare agency to
the PHA. However, the PHA is not responsible
for determining whether a reduction of welfare
benefits by the welfare agency was correctly
determined by the welfare agency in
accordance with welfare program requirements
and procedures, nor for providing the
opportunity for review or hearing on such
welfare agency determinations.

(3) Such welfare agency determinations are the
responsibility of the welfare agency, and the
family may seek appeal of such determinations
through the welfare agency's normal due
process procedures. The PHA shall be entitled
to rely on the welfare agency notice to the PHA
of the welfare agency's determination of a
specified welfare benefits reduction.

Page 6-60



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Chapter 6

INCOME AND SUBSIDY DETERMINATIONS
[24 CFR Part 5, Subparts E and F; 24 CFR 982]

INTRODUCTION

A family’s income determines eligibility for assistance and is also used to calculate the family’s
payment and the PHA’s subsidy. County Housing will use the policies and methods described in
this chapter to ensure that only eligible families receive assistance and that no family pays more or
less than its obligation under the regulations. This chapter describes HUD regulations and County
Housing policies related to these topics in three parts as follows:

Part I: Annual Income. HUD regulations specify the sources of income that are excluded
from the family’s annual income. These requirements and County Housing policies for
calculating annual income are found in Part .

Part Il: Assets. HUD regulations specify the types of assets that are excluded from a
family’s annual income. These requirements and County Housing policies for calculating
income from assets are found in Part Il.

Part lll: Adjusted Income. Once annual income has been established, HUD regulations
require the PHA to subtract from annual income any of five mandatory deductions for which
a family qualifies and allow the PHA to adopt additional permissive deductions. These
requirements and County Housing policies for calculating adjusted income are found in
Part Ill.

Part IV: Calculating Family Share and PHA Subsidy. This part describes the statutory
formula for calculating total tenant payment (TTP), the use of utility allowances, and the
methodology for determining the subsidy and required family payment.

Page 6-1



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
PART I: ANNUAL INCOME

6-1.A. OVERVIEW [24 CFR 5.609]
Annualincome includes:
e Allamounts not specifically excluded in 24 CFR 5.609(b);

e Allamounts received from all sources by each member of the family who is 18 years of age or
older or is the head of household or spouse;

e Unearned income by or on behalf of each dependent who is under 18 years of age; and

e Imputed returns of an asset based on the current passbook savings rate, as determined by
HUD, when the value of net family assets exceeds $50,000 (which amount HUD will adjust
annually) and the actual returns from a given asset cannot be calculated.

In addition to this general definition, the regulations at 24 CFR 5.609(b) provide a comprehensive
listing of all sources of income that are excluded from annual income. Note, unlike in previous
versions of the regulations, the current regulations governing annualincome do not list sources of
income that are to be included. Instead, HUD relies on the definition of excluded income under 24
CFR 5.609(b) to provide the scope of what is included. To that end, generally, allincome is included
unless it is specifically excluded by regulation.

Annualincome includes “all amounts received,” not the amount that a family may be legally
entitled to receive but did not receive. For example, a family’s child support or alimony income
must be based on payments received, not the amounts to which the family is entitled by court or
agency orders [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Annualincome also includes all actual anticipated income from assets (provided the income is not
otherwise excluded), even if the asset itself is excluded from net family assets [Notice PIH 2023-
27]. 24 CFR 5.603(b)(1) describes HUD regulations for treating specific types of income and assets.
The full texts of those portions of the regulations are provided in exhibits at the end of this chapter
as follows:

e Annuallncome Full Definition (Exhibit 6-1)
e Treatment of Family Assets (Exhibit 6-2)
e The Effect of Welfare Benefit Reduction (Exhibit 6-3)

Sections 6-1.B and 6-1.C discuss general requirements and methods for calculating annual income.
The rest of this section describes how each source of income is treated for the purposes of
determining annualincome. Verification requirements for annual income are discussed in Chapter
7.

6-1.B. HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION AND INCOME
Overview

Income received by all family members must be counted unless specifically excluded by the
regulations. Itis the responsibility of the head of household to report changes in family
composition in accordance with HUD regulations and County Housing policies in Chapter 11. The
rules on which sources of income are counted vary somewhat by family member. The chart below
summarizes how family composition affects income determinations.

Page 6-2



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

Summary of Income Included and Excluded by Person

Live-in aides

Income from all sources (both earned and unearned) is
excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(8)].

Foster child or foster adult

Income from all sources (both earned and unearned) is
excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(8)].

Head, spouse, or cohead
Other adult family members

All sources of income not specifically excluded by the
regulations are included [24 CFR 5.609(a)].

Minors

Earned income of children under 18 years of age is excluded
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(3)].

All sources of unearned income, except those specifically
excluded by the regulations, are included [24 CFR 5.609(a)].

Full-time students 18 years of
age or older (not head, spouse,
or cohead)

Earned income in excess of the dependent deduction is
excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(14)].

All sources of unearned income, except those specifically
excluded by the regulations, are included.

Temporarily Absent Family Members

The current regulations governing annual income do not specifically address temporarily absent
family members. The regulations also do not define “temporarily” or “permanently” absent or
specify a timeframe associated with a temporary versus a permanent absence.

County Housing Policy

Unless specifically excluded by the regulations, the income of all family members approved

to live in the unit will be counted, even if the family member is temporarily absent from the

unit.

Generally, an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the assisted unit for 180
consecutive days or less is considered temporarily absent and continues to be considered
a family member. Generally, an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the

assisted unit for more than 180 consecutive days is considered permanently absent and no

longer a family member. Exceptions to this general policy are discussed below.

Absent Students

County Housing Policy

When someone who has been considered a family member attends school away from
home, the person will continue to be considered a family member unless information
becomes available to County Housing indicating that the student has established a
separate household, or the family declares that the student has established a separate

household.

Page 6-3




Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Absences Due to Placement in Foster Care

Children temporarily absent from the home as a result of placement in foster care (as confirmed by
the state child welfare agency) are considered members of the family [24 CFR 5.403].

County Housing Policy

If a child has been placed in foster care, County Housing will verify with the appropriate
agency whether and when the child is expected to be returned to the home. Unless the
agency confirms that the child has been permanently removed from the home, the child will
continue to be counted as a family member.

Absent Head, Spouse, or Cohead

County Housing Policy

An employed head, spouse, or cohead absent from the unit for more than 180 consecutive
days due to employment will continue to be considered a family member.

Family Members Permanently Confined for Medical Reasons

If a family member is confined to a nursing home or hospital on a permanent basis, that person is
no longer considered a family member and the income of that person is not counted [HCV GB, p. 5-

22].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will request verification from a responsible medical professional and will
use this determination. If the responsible medical professional cannot provide a
determination, the person generally will be considered temporarily absent. The family may
present evidence that the family member is confined on a permanent basis and request
that the person not be considered a family member.

When an individual who has been counted as a family member is determined permanently
absent, the family is eligible for the medical expense deduction only if the remaining head,
spouse, or cohead qualifies as an elderly person or a person with disabilities.

Joint Custody of Dependents

County Housing Policy

Dependents subject to a joint custody arrangement will be considered a member of the
family if they live with the applicant or participant family 50 percent or more of the time.

When more than one applicant or participant family is claiming the same dependents as
family members, the family with primary custody at the time of the initial examination or
reexamination will be able to claim the dependents. If there is a dispute about which family
should claim them, County Housing will make the determination based on available
documents such as court orders, school records, or an IRS return showing which family has
claimed the child for income tax purposes.

Caretakers for a Child

County Housing Policy

The approval of a caretaker is at the owner’s and County Housing’s discretion and subject
to the owner and County Housing’s screening criteria. If neither a parent nor a designated

Page 6-4



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
guardian remains in a household receiving HCV assistance, County Housing will take the
following actions.

(1) If aresponsible agency has determined that another adult is to be brought into the
assisted unit to care for a child for an indefinite period, the designated caretaker will not
be considered a family member until a determination of custody or legal guardianship is
made.

(2) If a caretaker has assumed responsibility for a child without the involvement of a
responsible agency or formal assignment of custody or legal guardianship, the
caretaker will be treated as a visitor for 90 days. After the 90 days has elapsed, the
caretaker will be considered a family member unless information is provided that would
confirm that the caretaker’s role is temporary. In such cases the PHA will extend the
caretaker’s status as an eligible visitor.

(3) At anytime that custody or guardianship legally has been awarded to a caretaker, the
housing choice voucher will be transferred to the caretaker.

(4) During any period that a caretaker is considered a visitor, the income of the caretaker is
not counted in annual income and the caretaker does not qualify the family for any
deductions from income.

6-1.C. CALCULATING ANNUAL INCOME

The methodology used for calculating income differs depending on whetherincome is being
calculated at initial occupancy, interim reexamination, or annual reexamination. However, income
from assets is always anticipated regardless of certification type.

Anticipating Annual Income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(1)]

Atinitial occupancy and for an interim reexamination of family income, County Housing is required
to use anticipated income (current income) for the upcoming 12-month period following the new
admission or interim reexamination effective date. Policies related to verifying income are found in
Chapter 7.

County Housing Policy

When County Housing cannot readily anticipate income based on current circumstances
(e.g., inthe case of temporary, sporadic, or variable employment, seasonal employment,
unstable working hours, or suspected fraud), it will review and analyze historical data for
patterns of employment, paid benefits, and receipt of other income and use the results of
this analysis to establish annual income.

Anytime current circumstances are not used to project annual income, a clear rationale for
the decision will be documented in the file. In all such cases, the family may present
information and documentation to County Housing to show why the historic pattern does
not represent the family’s anticipated income.

In all cases, the family file will be documented with a clear record of the reason for the
decision, and a clear audit trail will be left as to how County Housing annualized projected
income.

Page 6-5



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Known Changes in Income

If County Housing verifies an upcoming increase or decrease in income, annual income will be
projected by applying each income amount to the appropriate part of the 12-month period.

Example: An employer reports that a full-time employee who has been receiving $8/hour will begin
to receive $8.25/hour in the eighth week after the effective date of the new admission or interim
reexamination. In such a case the PHA would calculate annual income as follows: ($8/hour x 40
hours x 7 weeks) + ($8.25 x 40 hours x 45 weeks).

The family may present information that demonstrates that implementing a change before its
effective date would create a hardship for the family. In such cases, County Housing will calculate
annual income using current circumstances and then, should the change in income require County
Housing to conduct an interim reexamination, conduct an interim reexamination in accordance
with its policy in Chapter 11.

Calculating Annual Income at Annual Reexamination [24 CFR.609(c)(2); Notice PIH 2023-27]

At annual reexamination, PHAs must first determine the family’s income for the previous 12-month
period and use this amount as the family income for annual reexaminations; however, adjustments
to reflect current income must be made. Any change of income since the family’s last annual
reexamination, including those that did not meet the threshold to process an interim reexamination
of family income in accordance with policies in Chapter 11 and HUD regulations, must be
considered. If, however, there have been no changes to income, then the amount of income
calculated for the previous 12-month period is the amount that will be used to determine the
family’s rental assistance. Income from assets is always anticipated, irrespective of the income
examination type. Policies related to conducting annual reexaminations are located in Chapter 11.

6-1.D. EARNED INCOME

Wages and Related Compensation [24 CFR 5.609(a); Notice PIH 2023-27]

The earned income of each member of the family who is 18 years of age or older, or who is the head
of household or spouse/cohead regardless of age, is included in annual income. Income received
as a day laborer or seasonal worker is also included in annual income, even if the source, date, or
amount of the income varies [24 CFR 5.609 (b)(24)].

Earned income means income or earnings from wages, tips, salaries, other employee
compensation, and net income from self-employment. Earned income does not include any
pension or annuity, transfer payments (meaning payments made or income received in which no
goods or services are being paid for, such as welfare, social security, and governmental subsidies
for certain benefits), or any cash or in-kind benefits [24 CFR 5.100].

A day laborer is defined as an individual hired and paid one day at a time without an agreement that
the individual will be hired or work again in the future [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

A seasonal worker is defined as an individual who is hired into a short-term position( e.g., for which
the customary employment period for the position is six months or fewer) and the employment
begins about the same time each year (such as summer or winter). Typically, the individual is hired
to address seasonal demands that arise for the particular employer or industry [24 CFR 5.603(b)].
Some examples of seasonal work include employment limited to holidays or agricultural seasons.
Seasonal work may include but is not limited to employment as a lifeguard, ballpark vendor, or
snowplow driver [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Page 6-6




Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
County Housing Policy

County Housing will include in annual income the full amount, before any payroll
deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, fees, tips and bonuses,
and other compensation.

For persons who regularly receive bonuses or commissions, County Housing will verify and
then average amounts received for the two years preceding admission or interim
reexamination. If only a one-year history is available, County Housing will use the prior year
amounts. In either case the family may provide, and County Housing will consider, a
credible justification for not using this history to anticipate future bonuses or commissions.
If a new employee has not yet received any bonuses or commissions, County Housing will
count only the amount estimated by the employer. The file will be documented
appropriately.

Military Pay

All regular pay, special pay, and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces are counted except
for the special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile fire
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(11)].

Earnings of a Minor [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3)]

A minor is a member of the family, other than the head of household or spouse, who is under 18
years of age. Employment income earned by minors is not included in annualincome. All other
sources of unearned income, except those specifically excluded by the regulations, are included.

Earned Income of Full-Time Students [24 CFR 5.609(b)(14)]

The earned income of a dependent full-time student in excess of the amount of the dependent
deduction is excluded from annual income. All sources of unearned income, except those
specifically excluded by the regulations, are included.

A family member other than the head of household or spouse/cohead is considered a full-time
student if they are attending school or vocational training on a full-time basis [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. To
be considered “full-time,” a student must be considered “full-time” by an educational institution
with a degree or certificate program [HCV GB, p. 5-29].

6-1.E. EARNED INCOME DISALLOWANCE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 5.617;
Streamlining Final Rule (SFR) Federal Register 3/8/16; Notice PIH 2023-27]

HOTMA removed the statutory authority for the Earned Income Disallowance (EID). The EID is
available only to families that are eligible for and participating in the program as of December 31,
2023, or before; no new families may be added on or after January 1, 2024. If a family is receiving
the EID prior to or on the effective date of December 31, 2023, they are entitled to the full amount of
the benefit for a full 24-month period. The policies below are applicable only to such families. No
family will still be receiving the EID after December 31, 2025. The EID will sunset on January 1,
2026, and the policies below will no longer be applicable as of that date or when the last qualifying
family exhausts their exclusion period, whichever is sooner.

Calculation of the Disallowance

Calculation of the earned income disallowance for an eligible member of a qualified family begins
with a comparison of the member’s current income with their “baseline income.” The family
member’s baseline income is their income immediately prior to qualifying for the EID. The family

Page 6-7



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
member’s baseline income remains constant throughout the period that they are participating in
the EID.

Calculation Method
Initial 12-Month Exclusion

During the initial exclusion period of 12 consecutive months, the full amount (100 percent) of any
increase in income attributable to new employment or increased earnings is excluded.

County Housing Policy

The initial EID exclusion period will begin on the first of the month following the date an
eligible member of a qualified family is first employed or first experiences an increase in
earnings.

Second 12-Month Exclusion

County Housing Policy

During the second 12-month exclusion period, County Housing will exclude 50 percent of
any increase in income attributable to new employment or increased earnings.

Lifetime Limitation

The EID has a two-year (24-month) lifetime maximum. The two-year eligibility period begins at the
same time that the initial exclusion period begins and ends 24 months later. During the 24-month
period, an individual remains eligible for EID even if they begin to receive assistance from a
different housing agency, move between public housing and Section 8 assistance, or have breaks
in assistance. The EID will sunset on January 1, 2026. In no circumstances will a family member’s
exclusion period continue past January 1, 2026.

6-1.F. BUSINESS AND SELF-EMPLOYMENT INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)(28); Notice PIH 2023-27]

Annual income includes “net income from the operation of a business or profession. Net income is
gross income minus business expenses that allows the business to operate. Gross income is all
income amounts received into the business, prior to the deduction of business expenses.

Expenditures for business expansion or amortization of capital indebtedness may not be used as
deductions in determining net income. An allowance for depreciation of assets used in a business
or profession may be deducted, based on straight line depreciation, as provided in Internal
Revenue Service regulations. Any withdrawal of cash or assets from the operation of a business or
profession will be included in income, except to the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of
cash or assets invested in the operation by the family.”

County Housing Policy

To determine business expenses that may be deducted from gross income, County
Housing will use current applicable Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules for determining
allowable business expenses [see IRS Publication 535], unless a topic is addressed by HUD
regulations or guidance as described herein.

Independent Contractors

Income received as an independent contractor is included in annual income, even if the source,
date, or amount of the income varies [24 CFR 5.609 (b)(24)].

Page 6-8



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

An independent contractor is defined as an individual who qualifies as an independent contractor
instead of an employee in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Federal income tax
requirements and whose earnings are consequently subject to the Self-Employment Tax. In
general, an individual is an independent contractor if the payer has the right to control or direct only
the result of the work and not what will be done and how it will be done [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

Business Expansion

HUD regulations do not permit County Housing to deduct from gross income expenses for
business expansion.

County Housing Policy

Business expansion is defined as any capital expenditures made to add new business
activities, to expand current facilities, or to operate the business in additional locations. For
example, purchase of a street sweeper by a construction business for the purpose of
adding street cleaning to the services offered by the business would be considered a
business expansion. Similarly, the purchase of a property by a hair care business to open at
a second location would be considered a business expansion.

Capital Indebtedness

HUD regulations do not permit County Housing to deduct from gross income the amortization of
capitalindebtedness.

County Housing Policy

Capitalindebtedness is defined as the principal portion of the payment on a capital asset
such as land, buildings, and machinery. This means County Housing will allow as a
business expense interest, but not principal, paid on capital indebtedness.

Negative Business Income

If the netincome from a business is negative, no business income will be included in annual
income; a negative amount will not be used to offset other family income.

Withdrawal of Cash or Assets from a Business

HUD regulations require County Housing to include in annual income the withdrawal of cash or
assets from the operation of a business or profession unless the withdrawal reimburses a family
member for cash or assets invested in the business by the family.

County Housing Policy

Acceptable investments in a business include cash loans and contributions of assets or
equipment. For example, if a member of an assisted family provided an up-front loan of
$2,000 to help a business get started, County Housing will not count as income any
withdrawals from the business up to the amount of this loan until the loan has been repaid.
Investments do not include the value of labor contributed to the business without
compensation.

Assets Owned by a Business Entity

If a business entity (e.g., limited liability company or limited partnership) owns the asset, then the
family’s asset is their ownership stake in the business, not some portion of the business’s assets.
However, if the family holds the assets in their own name (e.g., they own one-third of a restaurant)
rather than in the name of a business entity, then the percentage value of the asset owned by the

Page 6-9



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
family is what is counted toward net family assets (e.g., one-third of the value of the restaurant)
[Notice PIH 2023-27].

6-1.G. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE [FR Notice 2/14/23 and Notice PIH 2023-27]
Introduction

Section 479B of the HEA requires that all assistance under Title IV of the HEA and Bureau of Indian
Affairs student financial assistance, even assistance provided to students in excess of tuition and
required fees or charges, be excluded from HUD income calculations.

For Section 8 programs only, however, for over 10 years through FY 2022, HUD appropriations have
included a provision that for certain students receiving Section 8 assistance, any amounts received
in excess of tuition and any other required fees and charges are considered income (with the
exception of students who lived with their parents or who were over the age of 23 with a dependent
child).

While the language in various consolidated appropriations acts is limited to federal fiscal year
covered by the act, this does not rule out the possibility that similar language will be included in
future years’ appropriations bills.

e For anyfunds from a year where HUD’s appropriations acts include this limitation, it will apply
with respect to Section 8 participants. County Housing will follow the pre-HOTMA Section 8
student financial assistance limitation described below.

e Duringyears in which an appropriations act does not contain this Section 8 student financial
assistance limitation (or any other such limitation), then the determination of student financial
assistance as included/excluded income for all Section 8 students defaults to the methodology
described for the public housing program and listed below.

Pre-HOTMA Section 8 Student Financial Assistance Limitation [FR 4/10/06; Notice PIH 2015-
21]

In 2005, Congress passed a law (for Section 8 programs only) requiring that certain student
financial assistance be included in annual income. Prior to that, the full amount of student
financial assistance was excluded. For some students, the full exclusion still applies.

The regulation requiring the inclusion of certain student financial assistance applies only to
students who satisfy all of the following conditions:

e They are enrolled in an institution of higher education, as defined under the Higher Education
Act (HEA) of 1965.

e They are seeking or receiving Section 8 assistance on their own—that is, apart from their
parents—through the HCV program, the project-based voucher program, or the moderate
rehabilitation program.

e Theyare under 24 years of age OR they have no dependent children.

For students who satisfy these three conditions, any financial assistance in excess of tuition and
any other required fees and charges received: (1) under the 1965 HEA, (2) from a private source, or
(3) from an institution of higher education, as defined under the 1965 HEA, must be included in
annualincome.

Page 6-10



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

To determine annual income in accordance with the above requirements, County Housing will use
the definitions of dependent child, institution of higher education, and parents in Chapter 3, along
with the following definitions [FR 4/10/06, pp. 18148-18150]:

e Assistance under the Higher Education Act of 1965 includes Pell Grants, Federal Supplement
Educational Opportunity Grants, Academic Achievement Incentive Scholarships, State
Assistance under the Leveraging Educational Assistance Partnership Program, the Robert G.
Byrd Honors Scholarship Program, and Federal Work Study programs.

e Assistance from private sources means assistance from nongovernmental sources, including
parents, guardians, and other persons not residing with the student in an HCV-assisted unit.

e Tuition and fees are defined in the same manner in which the Department of Education defines
tuition and fees [Notice PIH 2015-21].

- Thisisthe amount of tuition and required fees covering a full academic year most
frequently charged to students.

- The amount represents what a typical student would be charged and may not be the same
for all students at an institution.

- Iftuition is charged on a per-credit-hour basis, the average full-time credit hour load for an
academic year is used to estimate average tuition.

- Required fees include all fixed-sum charges that are required of a large proportion of all
students. Examples include, but are not limited to, writing and science lab fees and fees
specific to the student’s major or program (i.e., nursing program).

- Expenses related to attending an institution of higher education must not be included as
tuition. Examples include, but are not limited to, room and board, books, supplies, meal
plans, transportation and parking, student health insurance plans, and other non-fixed-
sum charges.

Any student financial assistance not subject to inclusion under the regulations is fully excluded
from annual income, whether it is paid directly to the student or to the educational institution the
student is attending. This includes any financial assistance received by:

e Students residing with parents who are seeking or receiving Section 8 assistance

e Students who are enrolled in an educational institution that does not meet the 1965 HEA
definition of institution of higher education

e Students who are over 23 AND have at least one dependent child, as defined in section 3-Il.E

e Students who are receiving financial assistance through a governmental program not
authorized under the 1965 HEA.

HOTMA Student Financial Assistance Requirements [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)]

The regulations under HOTMA distinguish between two categories of student financial assistance
paid to both full-time and part-time students.

Page 6-11



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Types of Assistance

Any assistance to students under section 479B of the Higher Education Act of 1965 (Title IV of the
HEA) must be excluded from the family’s annual income [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)(i)].

Examples of assistance under title IV of the HEA include:
e Federal Pell Grants;

e Teach Grants;

e Federal Work Study Programs;

e Federal Perkins Loans;

e Income earned in employment and training programs under section 134 of the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA); or

e Bureau of Indian Affairs/Education student assistance programs
- The Higher Education Tribal Grant
- TheTribally Controlled Colleges or Universities Grant Program

Any other grant-in-aid, scholarship, or other assistance amounts an individual receives for the
actual covered costs charged by the institute of higher education not otherwise excluded by the
Federally mandated income exclusions are excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)(ii)]. Actual covered costs
are defined as the actual costs of:

e Tuition, books, and supplies;
- Including supplies and equipment to support students with learning disabilities or other
disabilities
e Room and board; and
e Otherfeesrequired and charged to a student by the education institution.

For a student who is not the head of household or spouse/cohead, actual covered costs also
include the reasonable and actual costs of housing while attending the institution of higher
education and not residing in an assisted unit.

Further, to qualify, other student financial assistance must be expressly:

e Fortuition, book, supplies, room and board, or other fees required and charged to the student
by the educational institution;

e To assist a student with the costs of higher education; or

e To assist a student who is not the head of household or spouse with the reasonable and actual
costs of housing while attending the educational institution and not residing in an assisted unit.

The student's financial assistance may be paid directly to the student or to the educational
institution on the student’s behalf. However, any student financial assistance paid to the student
must be verified by County Housing.

The financial assistance must be a grant or scholarship received from:

e The Federal government;

Page 6-12



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
e Astate, tribal, or local government ;

e Aprivate foundation registered as a nonprofit;

e Abusiness entity (such as corporation, general partnership, limited liability company, limited
partnership, joint venture, business trust, public benefit corporation, or nonprofit entity); or

e Aninstitution of higher education.
Student financial assistance, does not include:

e Financial support provided to the student in the form of a fee for services performed; (e.g., a
work study or teaching fellowship that is not excluded under section 479B of the Higher
Education Act HEA);

e Gifts, including gifts from family or friends; or

e Any amount of the scholarship or grant that, either by itself or in combination with assistance
excluded under the HEA, exceeds the actual covered costs of the student.

Calculating Income from Student Financial Assistance [HOTMA Student Financial Assistance
Resource Sheet; Notice PIH 2023-27]

The formula for calculating the amount of other student financial assistance that is excluded from
income always begins with deducting the assistance received under 479B of the HEA from the total
actual covered costs because the 479B assistance is intended to pay the student’s actual covered
costs. When a student receives assistance from both Title IV of the HEA and from other sources,
the assistance received under Title IV of the HEA must be applied to the student’s actual covered
costs first, and then other student financial assistance is applied to any remaining actual covered
costs. Once actual costs are covered, any remaining student financial assistance is considered
income.

County Housing Policy

If a student only receives financial assistance under Title IV of the HEA and does not receive
any other student financial assistance, County Housing will exclude the full amount of the
assistance received under Title IV from the family’s annual income. County Housing will not
calculate actual covered costs in this case.

If the student does not receive any assistance under Title IV of the HEA but does receive
assistance from another source, County Housing will first calculate the actual covered
costs to the student in accordance with 24 CFR 5.609(b)(ii). County Housing will then
subtract the total amount of the student’s financial assistance from the student’s actual
covered costs. Any amount of financial assistance in excess of the student’s actual
covered costs will be included in the family’s annual income.

Page 6-13



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

Example 1
e Actual covered costs: $20,000
e Other student financial assistance: $25,000

e Excluded income: $20,000 ($25,000 in financial assistance -
$20,000 in actual covered costs)

e Included income: $5,000

When a student receives assistance from both Title IV of the HEA and from other sources,
County Housing will first calculate the actual covered costs to the student in accordance
with 24 CFR 5.609(b)(ii). The assistance received under Title IV of the HEA will be applied to
the student’s actual covered costs first, and then the other student financial assistance will
be applied to any remaining actual covered costs.

If the amount of assistance excluded under Title IV of the HEA equals or exceeds the actual
covered costs, none of the assistance included under other student financial assistance
would be excluded from income.

Example 2
e Actual covered costs: $25,000
e Title IV HEA assistance: $26,000

e Title IV HEA assistance covers the students entire actual
covered costs.

e Other Student Financial Assistance: $5,000
e Excluded income: The entire Title IV HEA assistance of $26,000

e Included income: All other financial assistance of $5,000

If the amount of assistance excluded under Title IV of the HEA is less than the actual
covered costs, County Housing will exclude the amount of other student financial
assistance up to the amount of the remaining actual covered costs.

Page 6-14



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

Example 3
e Actual covered costs: $22,000
e Title IVHEA assistance: $15,000

e The remaining amount not covered by Title IV HEA assistance is $7,000
($22,000 in actual covered costs - $15,000 in Title IV HEA assistance).

e Other Student Financial Assistance: $5,000

e $7,000in remaining actual covered costs - $5,000 in other
financial assistance

e Excluded income: $15,000 entire amount of the Title IV HEA Assistance
+ $5,000 in other financial assistance

e Includedincome: $0

Example 4
e Actual covered costs: $18,000
e Title IVHEA Assistance: $15,000

e The remaining amount not covered by Title IV HEA assistance is $3,000
($18,000 in actual covered costs - $15,000 in Title IV HEA Assistance)

e Other student Financial Assistance: $5,000

o When other student financial assistance is applied, financial
assistance exceeds actual covered costs by $2,000 ($3,000 in actual
covered costs - $5,000 in other financial assistance).

e Included income: $2,000 (the amount by which the financial aid
exceeds the student's actual covered costs).

6-1.H. PERIODIC PAYMENTS

Periodic payments are forms of income received on a regular basis. HUD regulations specify
periodic payments that are not included in annual income. Regulations do not specify which types
of periodic payments are included in annual income.

Income that has a discrete end date and will not be repeated beyond the coming year is excluded
from a family’s annual income because it is nonrecurring income. However, this does notinclude
unemployment income and other types of periodic payments that are received at regular intervals
(such as weekly, monthly, or yearly) for a period of greater than one year that can be extended. For
example, a family receives income from a guaranteed income program in their city that has a
discrete beginning and end date. While the guaranteed income will be repeated in the coming year,
it will end before the family’s next annual reexamination. This income is fully excluded from annual
income.

Page 6-15



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

Insurance payments and settlements for personal or property losses, including but not limited to
payments under health insurance, motor vehicle insurance, and workers’ compensation, are
excluded from annual income. However, periodic payments paid at regular intervals (such as
weekly, monthly, or yearly) for a period of greater than one year that are received in lieu of wages for
workers’ compensation are included in annual income. Payments received in lieu of wages for
worker’s compensation are excluded, even if paid in periodic payments, if the income will last for a
period of less than one year.

Lump-Sum Payments for the Delayed Start of a Periodic Payment [24 CFR 5.609(b)(16)]

Deferred periodic amounts from Supplemental Security Income (SSI) and Social Security benefits
that are received in a lump sum amount or in prospective monthly amounts, or any deferred
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) disability benefits that are received in a lump sum amount orin
prospective monthly amounts are excluded from annualincome.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will include in annual income, lump sums received as a result of delays in
processing periodic payments (other than those specifically excluded by the regulation),
such as unemployment or welfare assistance.

When a delayed-start payment is received that is to be included, and the family reports this
during the period in which County Housing is processing an annual reexamination, County
Housing will adjust the family’s rent retroactively for the period the payment was intended
to cover.

If the delayed-start payment is received outside of the time County Housing is processing
an annual reexamination, then it will consider whether the amount meets the threshold to
conduct an interim reexamination. If so, County Housing will conduct an interim in
accordance with policies in Chapter 11. If not, County Housing will consider the amount
when processing the family’s next annual recertification.

Retirement Accounts [24 CFR 5.609(b)(26); Notice PIH 2023-27]

Income received from any account under a retirement plan recognized as such by the IRS,
including individual retirement arrangements (IRAs), employer retirement plans, and retirement
plans for self-employed individuals, is not considered actual income from assets.

However, any distribution of periodic payments from such accounts is included in annual income
at the time they are received by the family.

An asset moved to a retirement account held by a member of the family is not considered to be an
asset disposed of for less than fair market value.

Social Security Benefits [Notice PIH 2018-24]

County Housing is required to use the gross benefit amount to calculate annual income from
Social Security benefits.

Annually in October, the Social Security Administration (SSA) announces the cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA) by which federal Social Security and SSI benefits are adjusted to reflect the
increase, if any, in the cost of living. The federal COLA does not apply to state-paid disability
benefits. Effective the day after the SSA has announced the COLA, PHAs are required to factor in
the COLA when determining Social Security and SSI annual income for all annual reexaminations
and interim reexaminations of family income that have not yet been completed and will be effective

Page 6-16



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

January 1 or later of the upcoming year [Notice PIH 2023-27]. When a family member’s benefits are
garnished, levied, or withheld to pay restitution, child support, tax debt, student loan debt, or other
debts, County Housing must use the gross amount of the income, prior to the reduction, to
determine a family’s annualincome.

County Housing Policy

Annualincome includes “all amounts received,” not the amount that a family may be
legally entitled to receive but which they do not receive. When the SSA overpays an
individual, resulting in a withholding or deduction from their benefit amount until the
overpayment is paid in full, County Housing will use the reduced benefit amount after
deducting only the amount of the overpayment withholding from the gross benefit amount.

Alimony and Child Support

County Housing Policy

County Housing will count all regular payments of alimony or child support awarded as part
of a divorce or separation agreement.

County Housing will count court-awarded amounts for alimony and child support unless
the family certifies, and County Housing verifies that the payments are not being made.

To verify that payments are not being made, County Housing will review child support
payments over the last two months.

If payments are being made regularly, County Housing will use the amount received
during the last 12 months (excluding any lump sums received). If payments have
been made for a period of less than 12 months, County Housing will average all
payments that have been made.

At new admission or interim recertification, if any lump sum payments were made
in the past 12 months, County Housing will determine the likelihood of the family
receiving another similar payment within the next 12 months before deciding
whether or not this amount will be included in the calculation of annual income.

If County Housing determines and can appropriately verify that the family, in
all likelihood, will not receive a similar payment, then the amount will not be
considered when projecting annual income.

If County Housing determines that the family will likely receive a similar
payment and can appropriately verify it, the amount will be included when
projecting annualincome.

If no payments have been made in the past two months and there are no lump
sums, County Housing will not include alimony or child support in annual income.

6-1.1. NONRECURRING INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24) and Notice PIH 2023-27]

Income received as an independent contractor, day laborer, or seasonal worker is not excluded
from income as nonrecurring income, even if the source, date, or amount of the income varies.

Income that has a discrete end date and will not be repeated beyond the coming year during the
family’s upcoming annual reexamination period will be excluded from a family’s annualincome as
nonrecurring income. This exclusion does not include unemployment income and other types of

Page 6-17



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
periodic payments that are received at regular intervals (such as weekly, monthly, or yearly) for a
period of greater than one year that can be extended.

Income amounts excluded under this category may include, but are not limited to:

e Nonrecurring payments made to the family or to a third party on behalf of the family to assist
with utilities;

e Payments for eviction prevention;

e Security deposits to secure housing;

e Payments for participation in research studies (depending on the duration); and
e General one-time payments received by or on behalf of the family.
Nonrecurring income that is excluded under the regulations includes:

e Payments from the U.S. Census Bureau for employment (relating to decennial census or the
American Community Survey) lasting no longer than 180 days and not culminating in
permanent employment [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(i)].

e Direct federal or state payments intended for economic stimulus or recovery [24 CFR
5.609(b)(24)(ii)].

e Amounts directly received by the family as a result of state refundable tax credits or state or
federal tax refunds at the time they are received [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(iii) and (iv)].

e Gifts for holidays, birthdays, or other significant life events or milestones (e.g., wedding gifts,
baby showers, anniversaries) [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(v)].

e Non-monetary, in-kind donations, such as food, clothing, or toiletries, received from a food
bank or similar organization [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(vi)]. When calculating annual income, PHAs
are prohibited from assigning monetary value to non-monetary in-kind donations received by
the family [Notice PIH 2023-27]. Non-recurring, non-monetary in-kind donations from friends
and family are excluded as non-recurring income.

e Lump-sum additions to net family assets, including but not limited to lottery or other contest
winnings [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24)(vii)].

6-1.J. WELFARE ASSISTANCE

Overview

Welfare assistance is counted in annual income. Welfare assistance includes Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and any payments to individuals or families based on need
that are made under programs funded separately or jointly by federal, state, or local governments.

Sanctions Resulting in the Reduction of Welfare Benefits [24 CFR 5.615]

County Housing must make a special calculation of annualincome when the welfare agency
imposes certain sanctions on certain families. The full text of the regulation at 24 CFR 5.615is
provided as Exhibit 6-3. The requirements are summarized below. This rule applies only if a family
was receiving HCV assistance at the time the sanction was imposed.

Page 6-18



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Covered Families

The families covered by 24 CFR 5.615 are those “who receive welfare assistance or other public
assistance benefits (‘welfare benefits’) from a State or other public agency ('welfare agency’) under
a program for which Federal, State or local law requires that a member of the family must
participate in an economic self-sufficiency program as a condition for such assistance” [24 CFR
5.615(b)]

Imputed Income

When a welfare agency imposes a sanction that reduces a family’s welfare income because the
family commits fraud or fails to comply with the agency’s economic self-sufficiency program or
work activities requirement, County Housing must include in annual income “imputed” welfare
income. County Housing must request that the welfare agency provide the reason for the reduction
of benefits and the amount of the reduction of benefits. The imputed welfare income is the amount
that the benefits were reduced as a result of the sanction.

This requirement does not apply to reductions in welfare benefits: (1) at the expiration of the
lifetime or other time limit on the payment of welfare benefits, (2) if a family member is unable to
find employment even though the family member has complied with the welfare agency economic
self-sufficiency or work activities requirements, or (3) because a family member has not complied
with other welfare agency requirements [24 CFR 5.615(b)(2)].

Offsets

The amount of the imputed welfare income is offset by the amount of additional income the family
begins to receive after the sanction is imposed. When the additional income equals or exceeds the
imputed welfare income, the imputed income is reduced to zero [24 CFR 5.615(c)(4)].

6-1.K. STATE PAYMENTS TO ALLOW INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES TO LIVE AT HOME [24 CFR
5.609(b)(19)]

Payments made by or authorized by a state Medicaid agency (including through a managed care
entity) or other state or federal agency to an assisted family to enable a member of the assisted
family who has a disability to reside in the family’s assisted unit are excluded.

Authorized payments may include payments to a member of the assisted family through state
Medicaid-managed care systems, other state agencies, federal agencies or other authorized
entities.

The payments must be received for caregiving services a family member provides to enable
another member of the assisted family who has a disability to reside in the family’s assisted unit.
Payments to a family member for caregiving services for someone who is not a member of the
assisted family (such as for a relative that resides elsewhere) are not excluded from income.

Furthermore, if the agency is making payments for caregiving services to the family member for an
assisted family member and for a person outside of the assisted family, only the payments
attributable to the caregiving services for the caregiver’s assisted family member would be
excluded from income.

6-1.L. CIVIL RIGHTS SETTLEMENTS [24 CFR 5.609(b)(25); FR Notice 2/14/23]

Regardless of how the settlement or judgment is structured, civil rights settlements or judgments,
including settlements or judgments for back pay, are excluded from annualincome. This may
include amounts received because of litigation or other actions, such as conciliation agreements,

Page 6-19



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

voluntary compliance agreements, consent orders, other forms of settlement agreements, or
administrative or judicial orders under the Fair Housing Act, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act (Section 504), the Americans with Disabilities Act, or any other civil
rights or fair housing statute or requirement.

While these civil rights settlement or judgment amounts are excluded from income, the settlement
or judgment amounts will generally be counted toward the family’s net family assets (e.g., if the
funds are deposited into the family’s savings account or a revocable trust under the control of the
family or some other asset that is not excluded from the definition of net family assets). Income
generated on the settlement or judgment amount after it has become a net family asset is not
excluded from income. For example, if the family received a settlement or back pay and deposited
the money in an interest-bearing savings account, the interest from that account would be income
at the time the interest is received.

Furthermore, if a civil rights settlement or judgment increases the family’s net family assets such
that they exceed $50,000 (as annually adjusted by an inflationary factor), then income will be
imputed on the net family assets pursuant to 24 CFR 5.609(a)(2). If the imputed income, which
HUD considers unearned income, increases the family’s annual adjusted income by 10 percent or
more, then an interim reexamination of income will be required unless the addition to the family’s
net family assets occurs within the last three months of the family’s income certification period
and County Housing chooses not to conduct the examination.

6-1.M. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS FROM ANNUAL INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)]

Other exclusions contained in 24 CFR 5.609(b) that have not been discussed earlier in this chapter
include the following:

e Payments received for the care of foster children or foster adults or state or tribal kinship or
guardianship care payments [24 CFR 5.609(b)(4)].

e |nsurance payments and settlements for personal or property losses, including but not limited
to payments through health insurance, motor vehicle insurance, and workers’ compensation
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(5)]. However, periodic payments paid at regular intervals (such as weekly,
monthly, or yearly) for a period of greater than one year that are received in lieu of wages for
workers’ compensation are included in annual income [Notice PIH 2023-27].

e Amounts received by the family that are specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the cost of
health and medical care expenses for any family member [24 CFR 5.609(b)(6)].

e Anyamounts recovered in any civil action or settlement based on a claim of malpractice,
negligence, or other breach of duty owed to a family member arising out of law, that resulted in
a member of the family becoming disabled [24 CFR 5.609(b)(7)].

e Income and distributions from any Coverdell education savings account under Section 530 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or any qualified tuition program under Section 529 of such
Code [24 CFR 5.609(b)(10)].

e Income earned by government contributions to, and distributions from, “baby bond” accounts
created, authorized, or funded by federal, state, or local government [24 CFR 5.609(b)(10)].

e The special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile fire
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(11)].

Page 6-20



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

Payments related to aid and attendance under 38 U.S.C. 1521 to veterans in need of regular aid
and attendance [24 CFR 5.609(b)(17)]. This income exclusion applies only to veterans in need
of regular aid and attendance and not to other beneficiaries of the payments, such as a
surviving spouse [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Loan proceeds (the net amount disbursed by a lender to or on behalf of a borrower, under the
terms of a loan agreement) received by the family or a third party (e.g., proceeds received by
the family from a private loan to enable attendance at an educational institution or to finance
the purchase of a car) [24 CFR 5.609(b)(20)]. The loan borrower or co-borrower must be a
member of the family for this income exclusion to be applicable [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Payments received by tribal members as a result of claims relating to the mismanagement of
assets held in trust by the United States, to the extent such payments are also excluded from
gross income under the Internal Revenue Code or other federal law [24 CFR 5.609(b)(21)].
Generally, payments received by tribal members in excess of the first $2,000 of per capita
shares are included in a family’s annual income for purposes of determining eligibility.
However, as explained in Notice PIH 2023-27, payments made under the Cobell Settlement,
and certain per capita payments under the recent Tribal Trust Settlements, must be excluded
from annual income in HUD programs that adopt the definitions of annualincome in 24 CFR
5.609, the Census Long Form, and the IRS Form 1040, including the programs affected by
Notice PIH 2023-27.

Replacement housing “gap” payments made in accordance with 49 CFR Part 24 that offset
increased out of pocket costs of displaced persons that move from one federally subsidized
housing unit to another federally subsidized housing unit. Such replacement housing “gap”
payments are not excluded from annual income if the increased cost of rent and utilities is
subsequently reduced or eliminated, and the displaced person retains or continues to receive
the replacement housing “gap” payments [24 CFR 5.609(b)(23)].

Income earned on amounts placed in a family’s Family Self-Sufficiency account [24 CFR
5.609(b)(27)].

Amounts received by participants in other publicly assisted programs which are specifically for
or in reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred e.g., special equipment, clothing,
transportation, child care, etc.) and which are made solely to allow participation in a specific
program [24 CFR 5.609(i)(12)(ii)].

Amounts received by a person with a disability that are disregarded for a limited time for
purposes of Supplemental Security Income eligibility and benefits because they are set aside
for use under a Plan to Attain Self-Sufficiency (PASS) [(24 CFR 5.609(b)(12)(i)].

Amounts received under a resident service stipend not to exceed $200 per month. A resident
service stipend is a modest amount received by a resident for performing a service for the PHA
or owner, on a part-time basis, that enhances the quality of life in the development [24 CFR
5.609 1(12)(ii)].

Incremental earnings and benefits to any family member resulting from participation in a qualifying
training program funded by HUD or in qualifying federal, state, tribal, or local employment training
programs (including training programs not affiliated with a local government) and training of a
family member as resident management staff are excluded from annual income. Amounts
excluded by this provision must be received under employment training programs with clearly
defined goals and objectives and are excluded only for the period during which the family member

Page 6-21


https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/38/1521

Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
participates in the training program unless those amounts are excluded under 24 CFR 5.609(b)(9)(i)
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(12)(iv)].

County Housing Policy

County Housing defines training program as “a learning process with goals and
objectives, generally having a variety of components, and taking place in a series of
sessions over a period of time. It is designed to lead to a higher level of proficiency, and
it enhances the individual’s ability to obtain employment. It may have performance
standards to measure proficiency. Training may include but is not limited to: (1)
classroom training in a specific occupational skill, (2) on-the-job training with wages
subsidized by the program, or (3) basic education” [expired Notice PIH 98-2, p. 3].

County Housing defines incremental earnings and benefits as the difference between
(1) the total amount of welfare assistance and earnings of a family member prior to
enrollment in a training program and (2) the total amount of welfare assistance

and earnings of the family member after enrollment in the program [expired

Notice PIH 98-2, pp. 3-4].

In calculating the incremental difference, County Housing will use as the pre-
enrollment income the total annualized amount of the family member’s welfare
assistance and earnings reported on the family’s most recently completed HUD-50058.

End of participation in a training program must be reported in accordance with the
County Housing’s interim reporting requirements (see Chapter 11).

e Reparation payments paid by a foreign government pursuant to claims filed under the laws of
that government by persons who were persecuted during the Nazi era [24 CFR 5.609(b)(13)].

e Adoption assistance payments for a child in excess of the amount of the dependent deduction
per adopted child [24 CFR 5.609(b)(15)].

e Refunds or rebates on property taxes paid on the dwelling unit [24 CFR 5.609(b)(20)].

e Amounts that HUD is required by federal statute to exclude from consideration as income for
purposes of determining eligibility or benefits under a category of assistance programs that
includes assistance under any program to which the exclusions set forth in 24 CFR 5.609(b)
apply. HUD will publish a notice in the Federal Register to identify the benefits that qualify for
this exclusion. Updates will be published when necessary.

HUD publishes an updated list of these exclusions periodically. The most recent list of exclusions
was published in the Federal Register on May 20, 2014. It includes:

(a) The value of the allotment provided to an eligible household under the Food Stamp Act of
1977 (7 U.S.C. 2017 (b))

(b) Benefits under Section 1780 of the School Lunch Act and Child Nutrition Act of 1966,
including WIC

(c) Payments to volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer Services Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C.
5044(g), 5058)

(d) Payments received under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (43 U.S.C. 1626(c))

(e) Income derived from certain submarginal land of the United States that is held in trust for
certain Indian tribes (25 U.S.C. 459¢)

Page 6-22



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

(f)

Payments or allowances made under the Department of Health and Human Services’ Low-
Income Home Energy Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 8624(f))

Payments received under programs funded in whole or in part under the Workforce
Investment Act of 1998 (29 U.S.C. 2931)

Deferred disability benefits from the Department of Veterans Affairs, whether received as a
lump sum or in monthly prospective amounts

Income derived from the disposition of funds to the Grand River Band of Ottawa Indians
(Pub. L. 94-540, 90 Stat. 2503-04)

Payments, funds, or distributions authorized, established, or directed by the Seneca
Nation Settlement Act of 1990 (25 U.S.C. 1774f(b))

A lump sum or periodic payment received by an individual Indian pursuant to the Class
Action Settlement Agreement in the United States District Court case entitled Elouise
Cobelletal. v. Ken Salazar et al., for a period of one year from the time of receipt of that
payment as provided in the Claims Resolution Act of 2010

The first $2,000 of per capita shares received from judgment funds awarded by the Indian
Claims Commission or the U. S. Claims Court, the interests of individual Indians in trust or
restricted lands, including the first $2,000 per year of income received by individual
Indians from funds derived from interests held in such trust or restricted lands (25 U.S.C.
1407-1408)

Benefits under the Indian Veterans Housing Opportunity Act of 2010 (only applies to Native
American housing programs)

Payments received from programs funded under Title V of the Older Americans Act of 1985
(42 U.S.C. 3056(f))

Payments received on or after January 1, 1989, from the Agent Orange Settlement Fund or
any other fund established pursuant to the settlement in /n Re Agent Orange product
liability litigation, M.D.L. No. 381 (E.D.N.Y.)

Payments received under 38 U.S.C. 1833(c) to children of Vietnam veterans born with
spinal bifida, children of women Vietnam veterans born with certain birth defects, and
children of certain Korean service veterans born with spinal bifida

Payments received under the Maine Indian Claims Settlement Act of 1980 (25 U.S.C. 1721)

The value of any child care provided or arranged (or any amount received as payment for
such care or reimbursement for costs incurred for such care) under the Child Care and
Development Block Grant Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 9858q)

Earned income tax credit (EITC) refund payments received on or after January 1, 1991 (26
U.S.C. 32(j))

Payments by the Indian Claims Commission to the Confederated Tribes and Bands of
Yakima Indian Nation or the Apache Tribe of Mescalero Reservation (Pub. L. 95-433)

Amounts of scholarships funded under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965j,
including awards under federal work-study programs or under the Bureau of Indian Affairs
student assistance programs (20 U.S.C. 1087uu). For Section 8 programs, the exception
found in 8 237 of Public Law 109-249 applies and requires that the amount of financial

Page 6-23



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

(aa)

assistance in excess of tuition and mandatory fees shall be considered income in
accordance with the provisions codified at 24 CFR 5.609(b)(9), except for those persons
with disabilities as defined by 42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E) (Pub. L. 109-249) (See Section 6-I.L.
for exceptions.)

Allowances, earnings and payments to AmeriCorps participants under the National and
Community Service Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12637(d))

Any amount of crime victim compensation (under the Victims of Crime Act) received
through crime victim assistance (or payment or reimbursement of the cost of such
assistance) as determined under the Victims of Crime Act because of the commission of a
crime against the applicant under the Victims of Crime Act (42 U.S.C. 10602)

Any amounts in an "individual development account" as provided by the Assets for
Independence Act, as amended in 2002

Payments made from the proceeds of Indian tribal trust cases as described in Notice PIH
2013-30, "Exclusion from Income of Payments under Recent Tribal Trust Settlements" (25
U.S.C. 117b(a))

Major disaster and emergency assistance received under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster
Relief and Emergency Assistance Act and comparable disaster assistance provided by
states, local governments, and disaster assistance organizations

Distributions from an ABLE account, and actual or imputed interest on the ABLE account
balance [See also Notice PIH 2019-09]

Page 6-24



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
PART Il: ASSETS

6-11.A. OVERVIEW

Annualincome includes all actual anticipated income from assets (unless otherwise excluded by
the regulations) even if the asset itself is excluded from net family assets [Notice PIH 2023-27].

The regulation at 24 CFR 5.603(b)(3) provides a list of items that are excluded from the calculation
of net family assets. Note, unlike previous versions of the regulations, the current regulations do
not list types of assets that are included in annual income. Instead, HUD relies on the definition of
items excluded from assets to provide the scope of what is included. Exhibit 6-2 provides the
regulatory definition of net family assets.

Optional policies for family self-certification of assets are found in Chapter 7. Policies related to
the asset limitation may be found in Chapter 3.

Income from assets is always anticipated, irrespective of the income examination type.

County Housing Policy

County Housing generally will use current circumstances to determine both the value of an
asset and the anticipated income from the asset. County Housing will use other than
current circumstances to anticipate income when (1) an imminent change in
circumstances is expected, (2) it is not feasible to anticipate a level of income over 12
months, or (3) it believes that pastincome is the best indicator of anticipated income. For
example, if a family member owns real property that typically receives rental income, but
the property is currently vacant, County Housing can take into consideration past rental
income along with the prospects of obtaining a new tenant.

Anytime current circumstances are not used to determine asset income, a clear rationale
for the decision will be documented in the file. In such cases, the family may present
information and documentation to County Housing to show why the assetincome
determination does not represent the family’s anticipated assetincome.

6-11.B. ASSETS DISPOSED OF FOR LESS THAN FAIR MARKET VALUE [24 CFR 5.603(b)(2)]

PHAs must include the value of any business or family assets disposed of by an applicant or
participant for less than fair market value (including a disposition in trust but not in a foreclosure or
bankruptcy sale) during the two years preceding the date of application or reexamination, as
applicable, in excess of the consideration received for the asset. An asset moved to a retirement
account held by a member of the family is not considered to be an asset disposed of for less than
fair market value. [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Minimum Threshold

County Housing Policy

County Housing will not include the value of assets disposed of for less than fair market
value unless the cumulative fair market value of all assets disposed of during the past two
years exceeds the gross amount received for the assets by more than $5,000.

Page 6-25



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Separation or Divorce

The regulation also specifies that assets are not considered disposed of for less than fair market
value if they are disposed of as part of a separation or divorce settlement and the applicant or
tenant receives important consideration not measurable in dollar terms.

County Housing Policy

All assets disposed of as part of a separation or divorce settlement will be considered
assets for which important consideration not measurable in monetary terms has been
received. In order to qualify for this exemption, a family member must be subject to a
formal separation or divorce settlement agreement established through arbitration,
mediation, or court order.

Foreclosure or Bankruptcy

Assets are not considered disposed of for less than fair market value when the disposition is the
result of a foreclosure or bankruptcy sale. Negative equity in real property or other investments
does not prohibit the owner from selling the property or other investments, so negative equity alone
would not justify excluding the property or other investments from family assets.

Asset Owned by a Business Entity

If a business entity (e.g., limited liability company or limited partnership) owns the asset, then the
family’s asset is their ownership stake in the business, not some portion of the business’s assets.
However, if the family holds the assets in their own name (e.g., they own one third of a restaurant)
rather than in the name of a business entity, then the percentage value of the asset owned by the
family is what is counted toward net family assets (e.g., one-third of the value of the restaurant)
[Notice PIH 2023-27].

Family Declaration

PHA Policy

Families must sign a declaration form at initial certification and each annual recertification
identifying all assets that have been disposed of for less than fair market value or declaring
that no assets have been disposed of for less than fair market value. County Housing may
verify the value of the assets disposed of if other information available to County Housing
does not appear to agree with the information reported by the family.

6-11.C. ASSET INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS
Checking and Savings Accounts [Notice PIH 2023-27]

HUD considers bank accounts as non-necessary items of personal property. Whether or not
non-necessary personal property is counted toward net family assets depends on the combined
value of all of the family’s assets.

e When the combined value of net family assets is greater than $50,000, as adjusted by inflation,
checking and/or savings accounts would be counted toward net family assets.

e When the combined value of all non-necessary personal property does not exceed $50,000, as
adjusted by inflation, all non-necessary personal property is excluded from net family assets. In
this case, the value of the family’s checking and/or savings accounts would not be considered
when calculating net family assets.

Page 6-26



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

However, actual income from checking and savings accounts is always included in a family’s
annualincome, regardless of the total value of net family assets or whether the asset itself is
included or excluded from net family assets, unless that income is specifically excluded.

ABLE Accounts [24 CFR 5.609(b)(10); Notice PIH 2019-09]

An Achieving a Better Life Experience (ABLE) account is a type of tax-advantaged savings account
that an eligible individual can use to pay for qualified disability expenses. Section 103 of the ABLE
Act mandates that an individual’s ABLE account (specifically, its account balance, contributions to
the account, and distributions from the account) is excluded when determining the designated
beneficiary’s eligibility and continued occupancy under certain federal means-tested programs.
The PHA must exclude the entire value of the individual’s ABLE account from the household’s
assets. Distributions from the ABLE account are also not considered income. However, all wage
income received, regardless of which account the money is paid to, is included as income.

Investment Accounts Such as Stocks, Bonds, Saving Certificates, and Money Market Funds
[24 CFR 5.603(b)(1)]

HUD considers financial investments such as stocks and bonds non-necessary items of personal
property. Whether non-necessary personal property is counted toward net family assets depends
on the combined value of all of the family’s assets.

e When the combined value of net family assets is greater than $50,000, as adjusted by inflation,
financial investments such as stocks and bonds are considered part of net family assets. In this
case, the value of the family’s checking and/or savings accounts would be counted toward net
family assets.

e When the combined value of all non-necessary personal property does not exceed $50,000, as
adjusted by inflation, all non-necessary personal property is excluded from net family assets. In
this case, the value of the family’s financial investments such as stocks and bonds would not
be considered when calculating net family assets.

However, actual income from financial accounts is always included in a family’s annualincome,
regardless of the total value of net family assets or whether the asset itself is included or excluded
from net family assets, unless that income is specifically excluded. When a stock issues dividends
in some years but not others (e.g., due to market performance), the dividend is counted as the
actual return when it is issued, but when no dividend is issued, the actual return is $0. When the
stock never issues dividends, the actual return is $0.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will include interest or dividends earned by investment accounts as actual
income from assets even when the earnings are reinvested.

The cash value of such an asset is determined by deducting from the market value any
broker fees, penalties for early withdrawal, or other costs of converting the asset to cash.

In determining the market value of an investment account, County Housing will use the
value of the account on the most recent investment report.

Necessary and Non-Necessary Personal Property [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(i)]

All assets are categorized as either real property (e.g., land, a home) or personal property.

Page 6-27



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Personal property includes tangible items, like boats, as well as intangible items, like bank
accounts.

The value of necessary items of personal property is excluded from the calculation of net family
assets. Necessary items of personal property include a car used for commuting or medical
devices.

HUD defines necessary personal property as items essential to the family for the maintenance,
use, and occupancy of the premises as a home; or they are necessary for employment, education,
or health and wellness. Necessary personal property includes more than merely items that are
indispensable to the bare existence of the family. It may include personal effects (such as items
that are ordinarily worn or utilized by the individual), items that are convenient or usefulto a
reasonable existence, and items that support and facilitate daily life within the family’s home.
Necessary personal property also includes items that assist a household member with a disability,
including any items related to disability-related needs, or that may be required for a reasonable
accommodation for a person with a disability. Necessary personal property does not include bank
accounts, other financial investments, or luxury items. Items of personal property that do not
qualify as necessary personal property are classified as non-necessary personal property.

The combined value of all non-necessary items of personal property is only included in annual
income when the combined total value exceeds $50,000 (adjusted annually by HUD). When the
combined value of all non-necessary personal property does not exceed $50,000, as adjusted by
inflation, all non-necessary personal property is excluded from net family assets.

While not an exhaustive list, the following table from Notice PIH 2023-27 provides examples of
necessary and non-necessary personal property.

Page 6-28



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

Necessary Personal Property

Non-Necessary Personal Property

Car(s)/vehicle(s) that a family relies on for
transportation for personal or business use
(e.g., bike, motorcycle, skateboard, scooter)

Furniture, carpets, linens, kitchenware
Common appliances

Common electronics (e.g., radio, television,
DVD player, gaming system)

Clothing

Personal effects that are not luxury items
(e.g., toys, books)

Wedding and engagement rings

Jewelry used in religious/cultural celebrations
and ceremonies

Religious and cultural items

Medical equipment and supplies
Health care-related supplies

Musical instruments used by the family

Personal computers, phones, tablets, and
related equipment

Professional tools of trade of the family, for
example professional books

Educational materials and equipment used by
the family, including equipment to
accommodate persons with disabilities

Equipment used for exercising (e.g., treadmill,
stationary bike, kayak, paddleboard, ski
equipment)

Recreational car/vehicle not needed for day-to-
day transportation for personal or business use
(campers, motorhomes, traveling trailers, all-
terrain vehicles (ATVs))

Bank accounts or other financial investments
(e.g., checking account, savings account,
stocks/bonds)

Recreational boat/watercraft

Expensive jewelry without religious or cultural
value, or which does not hold family
significance

Collectibles (e.g., coins/stamps)

Equipment/machinery that is not used to
generate income for a business

Items such as gems/precious metals, antique
cars, artwork, etc.

County Housing Policy

In determining the value of non-necessary personal property, County Housing will use the
family’s estimate of the value. County Housing may obtain an appraisal if there is reason to
believe that the family’s estimated value is off by $100 or more. The family must cooperate
with the appraiser but cannot be charged any costs related to the appraisal.

Lump-Sum Additions to Net Family Assets [24 CFR 5.609(b)(24(viii); Notice PIH 2023-27]

The regulations exclude income from lump-sum additions to family assets, including lottery or
other contest winnings as a type of nonrecurring income.

Page 6-29




Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

In addition, lump sums from insurance payments, settlements for personal or property losses, and
recoveries from civil actions or settlements based on claims of malpractice, negligence, or other
breach of duty owed to a family member arising out of law that resulted in a member of the family
becoming a family member with a disability are excluded from income.

Further, deferred periodic amounts from Supplemental Security Income (SSI) and Social Security
benefits that are received in a lump sum amount or in prospective monthly amounts, or any
deferred Department of Veterans Affairs disability benefits that are received in a lump sum amount
or in prospective monthly amounts are also excluded from income.

However, these amounts may count toward net family assets. County Housing must consider any
actual orimputed returns from assets as income at the next applicable income examination. In the
case where the lump sum addition to assets would lead to imputed income, which is unearned
income, that increases the family’s annual adjusted income by 10 percent or more, then the
addition of the lump sum to the family’s assets will trigger an immediate interim reexamination of
income in accordance with Chapter 11. This reexamination of income must take place as soon as
the lump sum is added to the family’s net family assets unless the addition takes place in the last
three months of the family’s income certification period and County Housing chooses not to
conduct the examination.

For a discussion of lump-sum payments that represent the delayed start of a periodic payment,
most of which are counted as income, see sections 6-1.H and 6-I.1.

County Housing Policy

Any lump-sum receipts are only counted as assets if they are retained by a family in a form
recognizable as an asset. [RHIIP FAQs]. For example, if the family receives a $1,000 lump
sum for lottery winnings, and the family immediately spends the entire amount, the lump
sum will not be counted toward net family assets.

Jointly Owned Assets [Notice PIH 2023-27]

For assets owned jointly by the family and one or more individuals outside of the assisted family,
County Housing must include the total value of the asset in the calculation of net family assets,
unless:

e The assetis otherwise excluded;
e The family can demonstrate that the assetis inaccessible to them; or

e The family cannot dispose of any portion of the asset without the consent of another owner
who refuses to comply.

If the family demonstrates that they can only access a portion of an asset, then only that portion’s
value is included in the calculation of net family assets for the family.

Any income from a jointly owned asset must be included in annual income, unless:

e Theincome is specifically excluded;

e The family demonstrates that they do not have access to the income from that asset; or
e The family only has access to a portion of the income from that asset.

If the family demonstrates that they can only access a portion of the income from an asset, then
only that portion’s value is included in the calculation of income from assets.

Page 6-30



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

If an individual is a beneficiary who is entitled to access the account’s funds only upon the death of
the account’s owner, and may not otherwise withdraw funds from an account, then the account is
not an asset to the assisted family, and the family should provide proper documentation
demonstrating that they are only a beneficiary on the account.

Trusts [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2) and 5.603(b)(4)]

A trustis a legal arrangement generally regulated by state law in which one party (the creator or
grantor) transfers property to a second party (the trustee) who holds the property for the benefit of
one or more third parties (the beneficiaries).

The following types of trust distributions are excluded from annualincome:
e Distributions of the principal or corpus of the trust; and

e Distributions of income from the trust when the distributions are used to pay the costs of
health and medical care expenses for a minor.

The basis for determining how to treat trusts relies on information about who has access to either
the principalin the account or the income from the account. There are two types of trusts,
revocable and irrevocable.

When the creator sets up anirrevocable trust, the creator has no access to the funds in the
account. Irrevocable trusts not under the control of any member of the family or household are not
assets. Typically, special needs trusts are considered irrevocable. The value of the trust is not
included in net family assets so long as the fund continues to be held in a trust that is not revocable
by, or under the control of, any member of the family or household [24 CFR 5.603(b)(4)]. Where an
irrevocable trust is excluded from net family assets, County Housing must not consider actual
income earned by the trust (e.g., interest earned, rental income if property is held in the trust) for so
long as the income from the trust is not distributed. If the value of the trustis not considered part of
the family’s net assets, then distributions from the trust are treated as follows:

e Alldistributions from the trust’s principal are excluded from income.

e Distributions of income earned by the trust (i.e., interest, dividends, realized gains, or other
earnings on the trust’s principal), are included as income unless the distribution is used to pay
for the health and medical expenses for a minor.

A revocable trustis a trust that the creator of the trust may amend or end (revoke). When there is a
revocable trust, the creator has access to the funds in the trust account.

The value of revocable trusts that are not under the control of the family are excluded from net
family assets. This happens when a member of the assisted family is the beneficiary of a revocable
trust, but the grantor is not a member of the assisted family. In this case the beneficiary does not
“own” the revocable trust, and the value of the trust is excluded from net family assets. For the
revocable trust to be considered excluded from net family assets, no family or household member
may be the account’s trustee. If this is the case, then distributions from the trust are treated as
follows:

e Alldistributions from the trust’s principal are excluded from income.

e Distributions of income earned by the trust (i.e., interest, dividends, realized gains, or other
earnings on the trust’s principal), are included as income unless the distribution is used to pay
for the health and medical expenses for a minor.

Page 6-31



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Revocable trusts under the control of the family or household (e.g., the grantor is a member of the
assisted family or household) are considered assets and must be included in net family assets.

If the value of the trust is considered part of the family’s net assets, then distributions from the
trust are not considered income to the family. County Housing must count all actual returns (e.g.,
interest earned) from the trust as income or, if the trust has no actual returns (e.g., if the trust is
comprised of farmland that is not in use) and the total value of the combined net family assets
exceeds $50,000 (as that amount is updated for inflation), as imputed returns, as applicable.

Life Insurance [FR Notice 2/14/23 and Notice PIH 2023-27]

Net family assets do not include the value of term life insurance, which has no cash value to the
individual before death.

The cash value of a life insurance policy available to a family member before death, such as a
whole life or universal life policy, is included in the calculation of the value of the family’s assets.
The cash value is the surrender value. While the cash value of an insurance policy is considered an
asset, the face value of any policy is not. If such a policy earns dividends or interest that the family
could elect to receive, the amount of dividends or interest is counted as income from the asset
whether or not the family actually receives it.

Tax Refunds [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(xi) and Notice PIH 2023-27]

All amounts received by a family in the form of federal tax refunds or refundable tax credits are
excluded from a family’s net family assets for a period of 12 months after receipt by the family.

At the time of an annual or interim reexamination of income, if the federal tax refund was received
during the 12 months preceding the effective date of the reexamination, then the amount of the
refund that was received by the family is subtracted from the total value of the account in which the
federal tax refund or refundable tax credits were deposited. When the subtraction results in a
negative number, then the balance of the asset is considered $0.

If the tax refund or refundable tax credit is deposited into another excluded asset, such as a
retirement account or a Coverdell Education Savings Account, then the deposit will have no effect
on the balance of the asset (i.e., there is no need for County Housing to subtract the amount of the
deposit from the value of the excluded asset).

Asset Exclusions [24 CFR 5.603(b)]
The following are excluded from the calculations of net family assets:

e Thevalue of any account under a retirement plan recognized as such by the IRS, including
individual retirement arrangements (IRAs), employer retirement plans, and retirement plans for
self-employed individuals [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(iii)]-

e Thevalue of real property that the family does not have the effective legal authority to sellin the
jurisdiction in which the property is located [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(iv)].

- Real property as used in this part has the same meaning as that provided under the law of
the state in which the property is located [24 CFR 5.100].

- Examples of this include but are not limited to co-ownership situations (including situations
where one owner is a victim of domestic violence), where one party cannot unilaterally sell
the real property; property thatis tied up in litigation; and inherited property in dispute
[Notice PIH 2023-27].

Page 6-32



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

e Any amounts recovered in any civil action or settlement based on a claim of malpractice,
negligence, or other breach of duty owed to a family member arising out of law, that resulted in
a family member being a person with a disability [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(v)];

e Thevalue of any Coverdell education savings account under section 530 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(vi)];

e The value of any qualified tuition program under Section 529 of such Code [24 CFR
5.603(b)(3)(vi)];

e Thevalue of any “baby bond” account created, authorized, or funded by federal, state, or local
government [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(vi)];

e Interestsin Indian trust land [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(vii)];

e Equity in a manufactured home where the family receives assistance under 24 CFR part 982 [24
CFR 5.603(b)(3)(viii)];

e Equity in property under the Homeownership Option for which a family receives assistance
under 24 CFR part 982 [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(ix)];

e Family Self-Sufficiency accounts [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(x)];

e Federal tax refunds or refundable tax credits for a period of 12 months after receipt by the
family [24 CFR 5.603(b)(3)(xi)].

e The fullamount of assets held in an irrevocable trust [Notice PIH 2023-27]; and

e The fullamount of assets held in a revocable trust where a member of the family is the
beneficiary, but the grantor/owner and trustee of the trust is not a member of the participant
family or household [Notice PIH 2023-27].

6-11.D. DETERMINING INCOME FROM ASSETS

In some cases, amounts that are excluded from net family assets may be included as annual
income when disbursements are made to a family from an asset. In other cases, amounts are
excluded from annualincome as a lump-sum addition to net family assets, but those funds are
then considered a net family asset if held in an account or other investment that is considered part
of net family assets [Notice PIH 2023-27].

Net Family Assets

Net family assets are defined as the net cash value of all assets owned by the family after
deducting reasonable costs that would be incurred in disposing real property, savings, stocks,
bonds, and other forms of capital investment.

County Housing Policy

Reasonable costs that would be incurred when disposing of an asset include but are not
limited to penalties for premature withdrawal, broker and legal fees, and settlement costs
incurred in real estate transactions such as settlement costs and transfer taxes [New PH
OCC GB, Income Determinations, p. 24].

The calculation of asset income sometimes requires County Housing to make a distinction
between an asset’s market value and its cash value.

Page 6-33



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
e The market value of an asset is its worth in the market (e.g., the amount a buyer would pay for
real estate or the total value of an investment account).

e The cashvalue of an asset is its market value less all reasonable amounts that would be
incurred when converting the asset to cash.

The cash value of real property or other assets with negative equity would be considered $0 for the
purposes of calculating net family assets. Negative equity in real property or other investments
does not prohibit the family from selling the property or other investments, so negative equity alone
would not justify excluding the property or other investments from family assets [Notice PIH 2023-
27].

Actual Income from Assets

Income from assets must be included on the Form HUD-50058 regardless of the amount

of income. Actualincome from assets is always included in a family’s annual income, regardless of
the total value of net family assets or whether the asset itself is included or excluded from net
family assets, unless thatincome is specifically excluded by 24 CFR 5.609(b).

Income or returns from assets are generally considered to be interest, dividend payments, and
other actual income earned on the asset, and not the increase in market value of the asset. The
increase in market value is relevant to the cash value of the asset for the purpose of determining
total net family assets and imputing income.

County Housing may determine the net assets of a family based on a self-certification by the family
that the net family assets do not exceed $50,000 (adjusted annually by HUD), without taking
additional steps to verify the accuracy of the declaration [24 CFR 5.618(b)]. Policies related to
verification of assets are found in Chapter 7 of this policy.

County Housing may not calculate or include any imputed income from assets when net family
assets total $50,000 or less [24 CFR 5.609(b)(1)]. The actual income from assets must be included
on the Form HUD-50058.

Imputed Income from Assets

When net family assets exceed $50,000 (adjusted annually by HUD), County Housing may not rely
on self-certification. If actual returns can be calculated, County Housing must include actual
income from the asset on the Form HUD-50058 (for example, a savings account or CD where the
rate of return is known). If actual returns cannot be calculated, County Housing must calculate
imputed returns using the HUD-determined passbook rate (for example, real property or a non-
necessary item of personal property such as a recreational boat). If County Housing can compute
actual income from some but not all assets, it must compute actual returns where possible and
use the HUD-determined passbook rate for assets where actual income cannot be calculated

[24 CFR 5.609(a)(2)].

An asset with an actual return of $0 (such as a non-interest-bearing checking account), is not the
same as an asset for which an actual return cannot be computed (such as non-necessary personal
property). If the asset is a financial asset and there is no income generated (for example, a bank
account with a zero percent interest rate or a stock that does not issue cash dividends), then the
asset generates zero actual asset income, and imputed income is not calculated. When a stock
issues dividends in some years but not others (e.g., due to market performance), the dividend is
counted as the actual return when itis issued, and when no dividend is issued, the actual return is
$0. When the stock never issues dividends, the actual return is consistently $0.

Page 6-34



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
PART Ill: ADJUSTED INCOME

6-111.A. INTRODUCTION

Overview

HUD regulations require PHAs to deduct from annual income any of five mandatory deductions for
which a family qualifies and allow the PHA to deduct other permissive deductions in accordance
with PHA policy. The resulting amount is the family’s adjusted income. Mandatory deductions are
foundin 24 CFR5.611.

5.611 Adjusted income means annual income (as determined under § 5.609) of the members of the
family residing or intending to reside in the dwelling unit, after making the following deductions:

(a) Mandatory deductions

(1) $480 for each dependent (adjusted annually by HUD, rounded to the next lowest multiple of
$25);

(2) $525 for any elderly family or disabled family (adjusted annually by HUD, rounded to the next
lowest multiple of $25);

(3) The sum of the following, to the extent the sum exceeds ten percent of annual income:
(i) Unreimbursed health and medical care expenses of any elderly family or disabled family;

(ii) Unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus expenses for each member of
the family who is a person with disabilities, to the extent necessary to enable any member of the
family (including the member who is a person with disabilities) to be employed; and

(4) Any reasonable child care expenses necessary to enable a member of the family to be
employed or to further his or her education.

This part covers policies related to these mandatory deductions. Verification requirements related
to these deductions are found in Chapter 7.

Anticipating Expenses

County Housing Policy

Generally, County Housing will use current circumstances to anticipate expenses. When
possible, for costs that are expected to fluctuate during the year (e.g., child care during
school and non-school periods and cyclical medical expenses), County Housing will
estimate costs based on historical data and known future costs.

If afamily has accumulated debt for medical or disability assistance expenses, County
Housing will include as an eligible expense the portion of the debt that the family expects to
pay during the period for which the income determination is being made. However,
amounts previously deducted will not be allowed even if the amounts were not paid as
expected in a preceding period. County Housing may require the family to provide
documentation of payments made in the preceding year.

When calculating health and medical care expenses, County Housing will include those
expenses anticipated to be incurred during the 12 months following the certification date
which are not covered by an outside source, such as insurance. The allowance is not
intended to give a family an allowance equal to last year’s expenses, but to anticipate

Page 6-35




Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
regular ongoing and anticipated expenses during the coming year. Since these expenses
are anticipated, the PH Occupancy Guidebook states “itis likely that actual expenses will
not match what was anticipated. Typically, this would not be considered an underpayment
as long as at the time of the annual reexamination, the expenses were calculated based on
the appropriate verification” [New PH OCC GB, Income Determinations, p. 30]. For annual
reexaminations, County Housing will use information for the previous 12-month period.

6-111.B. DEPENDENT DEDUCTION

An allowance of $480 is deducted from annual income for each dependent (which amount will be
adjusted by HUD annually in accordance with the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners
and Clerical Workers, rounded to the next lowest multiple of $25) [24 CFR 5.611(a)(1)]. Dependent
is defined as any family member other than the head, spouse, or cohead who is under the age of 18
orwho is 18 or older and is a person with disabilities or a full-time student. Foster children, foster
adults, and live-in aides are never considered dependents [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

6-111.C. ELDERLY OR DISABLED FAMILY DEDUCTION

A single deduction of $525 is taken for any elderly or disabled family (which amount will be
adjusted by HUD annually in accordance with the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners
and Clerical Workers, rounded to the next lowest multiple of $25) [24 CFR 5.611(a)(2)].

An elderly family is a family whose head, spouse, cohead, or sole member is 62 years of age or
older, and a disabled family is a family whose head, spouse, cohead, or sole member is a person
with disabilities [24 CFR 5.403].

6-111.D. HEALTH AND MEDICAL CARE EXPENSES DEDUCTION [24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(i) and
5.603(b)]

Unreimbursed health and medical care expenses may be deducted to the extent that, in
combination with any disability assistance expenses, they exceed ten percent of annualincome.

This deduction is permitted only for families in which the head, spouse, or cohead is at least 62 or
is a person with disabilities. If a family is eligible for a medical expense deduction, the medical
expenses of all family members are counted.

Definition of Medical Expenses

HUD regulations define health and medical care expenses at 24 CFR 5.603(b) to mean “any costs
incurred in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease or payments for
treatments affecting any structure or function of the body. Health and medical care expenses
include medical insurance premiums and long-term care premiums that are paid or anticipated
during the period for which annualincome is computed.” Medical insurance premiums continue to
be eligible health and medical care expenses. Health and medical care expenses may be deducted
from annualincome only if they are eligible and not otherwise reimbursed and may only be
deducted for elderly or disabled families.

Although HUD revised the definition of health and medical care expenses to reflect the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) general definition of medical expenses, HUD is not permitting PHAs to
specifically align their policies with IRS Publication 502 for determining which expenses are
included in HUD’s mandatory deduction for health and medical care expenses. PHAs must review
each expense to determine whether it is eligible in accordance with HUD’s definition of health and
medical care expenses.

Page 6-36



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Families That Qualify for Both Health and Medical and Disability Assistance Expenses

County Housing Policy

This policy applies only to families in which the head, spouse, or cohead is 62 or older or is
a person with disabilities.

When expenses anticipated by a family could be defined as either a health and medical
care or disability assistance expenses, County Housing will consider them health and
medical care expenses unless it is clear that the expenses are incurred exclusively to
enable a person with disabilities to work.

6-111.E. DISABILITY ASSISTANCE EXPENSES DEDUCTION [24 CFR 5.603(b) and
24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(ii)]

Unreimbursed reasonable expenses for attendant care and auxiliary apparatus for each member of
the family who is a person with disabilities may be deducted if they: (1) are necessary to enable a
family member 18 years or older to work, (2) are not paid to a family member or reimbursed by an
outside source, (3) in combination with any medical expenses, exceed ten percent of annual
income, and (4) do not exceed the earned income received by the family member who is enabled to
work.

Earned Income Limit on the Disability Assistance Expense Deduction

A family can qualify for the disability assistance expense deduction only if at least one family
member (who may be the person with disabilities) is enabled to work [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

The disability expense deduction is capped by the amount of “earned income received by family
members who are 18 years of age or older and who are able to work” because of the expense [24
CFR 5.611(a)(3)(ii)]. The earned income used for this purpose is the amount verified before any
earned income disallowances or income exclusions are applied.

County Housing Policy

The family must identify the family members enabled to work as a result of the disability
assistance expenses. In evaluating the family’s request, County Housing will consider
factors such as how the work schedule of the relevant family members relates to the hours
of care provided, the time required for transportation, the relationship of the family
members to the person with disabilities, and any special needs of the person with
disabilities that might determine which family members are enabled to work.

When County Housing determines that the disability assistance expenses enable more
than one family member to work, the expenses will be capped by the sum of the family
members’ incomes.

Eligible Auxiliary Apparatus [Notice PIH 2023-27]

Auxiliary apparatus items may include expenses for wheelchairs, ramps, adaptations to vehicles,
guide dogs, assistance animals, or special equipment to enable a person who is blind or has low
vision to read or type or special equipment to assist a person who is deaf or hard of hearing.

Page 6-37



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Eligible Attendant Care [Notice PIH 2023-27]

Examples of attendant care expenses can include teaching a person with disabilities how to
perform day-to-day tasks independently like cleaning, bathing, doing laundry, and cooking.
Attendant care can be 24-hour care, or care during sporadic periods throughout the day. The family
determines the type of attendant care that is appropriate for the person with disabilities.

County Housing Policy

Attendant care expenses will be included for the period that the person enabled to work is
employed, plus reasonable transportation time. The cost of general housekeeping and
personal services is not an eligible attendant care expense. However, if the person enabled
to work is the person with disabilities, personal services necessary to enable the person
with disabilities to work are eligible.

If the care attendant also provides other services to the family, County Housing will prorate
the cost and allow only that portion of the expenses attributable to attendant care that
enables a family member to work. For example, if the care provider also cares for a child
who is not the person with disabilities, the cost of care must be prorated. Unless otherwise
specified by the care provider, the calculation will be based upon the number of hours
spent in each activity and/or the number of persons under care.

Payments to Family Members

No disability assistance expenses may be deducted for payments to a member of an assisted
family [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. However, expenses paid to a relative who is not a member of the assisted
family may be deducted if they are not reimbursed by an outside source.

Necessary and Reasonable Expenses

The family determines the type of care or auxiliary apparatus to be provided and must describe how
the expenses enable a family member to work. The family must certify that the disability assistance
expenses are necessary and are not paid or reimbursed by any other source.

County Housing Policy

County Housing determines the reasonableness of the expenses based on typical costs of
care or apparatus in the locality. To establish typical costs, County Housing will collect
information from organizations that provide services and support to persons with
disabilities. A family may present, and County Housing will consider, the family’s
justification for costs that exceed typical costs in the area.

Families That Qualify for Both Health and Medical and Disability Assistance Expenses

County Housing Policy

This policy applies only to families in which the head or spouse is 62 or older or is a person
with disabilities.

When expenses anticipated by a family could be defined as either health and medical care
or disability assistance expenses, County Housing will consider them health and medical
care expenses unless it is clear that the expenses are incurred exclusively to enable a
person with disabilities to work.

Page 6-38



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

6-111.F. CHILD CARE EXPENSE DEDUCTION

HUD defines child care expenses at 24 CFR 5.603(b) as “amounts anticipated to be paid by the
family for the care of children under 13 years of age (including foster children) during the period for
which annualincome is computed, but only where such care is necessary to enable a family
member to actively seek employment, be gainfully employed, or to further his or her education and
only to the extent such amounts are not reimbursed. The amount deducted shall reflect reasonable
charges for child care. In the case of child care necessary to permit employment, the amount
deducted shall not exceed the amount of employment income that is included in annualincome.”

Clarifying the Meaning of Child for This Deduction

Child care expenses do not include child support payments made to another on behalf of a minor
who is not living in an assisted family’s household [VG, p. 26]. However, child care expenses for
foster children that are living in the assisted family’s household are included when determining the
family’s child care expenses [HCV GB, p. 5-29].

Qualifying for the Deduction
Determining Who Is Enabled to Pursue an Eligible Activity

County Housing Policy

The family must identify the family member(s) enabled to pursue an eligible activity. The
term eligible activity in this section means any of the activities that may make the family
eligible for a child care deduction (seeking work, pursuing an education, or being gainfully
employed).

In evaluating the family’s request, County Housing will consider factors such as how the
schedule for the claimed activity relates to the hours of care provided, the time required for
transportation, the relationship of the family member(s) to the child, and any special needs
of the child that might help determine which family member is enabled to pursue an eligible
activity.

Seeking Work

County Housing Policy

If the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to seek employment,
the family must provide evidence of the family member’s efforts to obtain employment at
each reexamination. The deduction may be reduced or denied if the family member’s job
search efforts are not commensurate with the child care expense being allowed by County
Housing.

Furthering Education

County Housing Policy

If the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to further their
education, the member must be enrolled in school (academic or vocational) or
participating in a formal training program. The family member is not required to be a full-
time student, but the time spent in educational activities must be commensurate with the
child care claimed.

Page 6-39



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Being Gainfully Employed

County Housing Policy

If the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to be gainfully
employed, the family must provide evidence of the family member’s employment during
the time that child care is being provided. Gainful employment is any legal work activity
(full- or part-time) for which a family member is compensated.

Earned Income Limit on Child Care Expense Deduction

When a family member looks for work or furthers their education, there is no cap on the amount
that may be deducted for child care — although the care must still be necessary and reasonable.
However, when child care enables a family member to work, the deduction is capped by “the
amount of employment income that is included in annualincome” [24 CFR 5.603(b)].

The earned income used for this purpose is the amount of earned income verified after any earned
income disallowances orincome exclusions are applied.

When the person who is enabled to work is a person with disabilities who receives the earned
income disallowance (EID) or a full-time student whose earned income above $480 is excluded,
child care costs related to enabling a family member to work may not exceed the portion of the
person’s earned income that actually is included in annual income. For example, if a family
member who qualifies for the EID makes $15,000, but because of the EID, only $5,000 is included
in annualincome, child care expenses are limited to $5,000.

County Housing must not limit the deduction to the least expensive type of child care. If the care
allows the family to pursue more than one eligible activity, including work, the cap is calculated in
proportion to the amount of time spent working [HCV GB, p. 5-30].

County Housing Policy

When the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to work, only one
family member’s income will be considered for a given period of time. When more than one
family member works during a given period, County Housing generally will limit allowable
child care expenses to the earned income of the lowest-paid member. The family may
provide information that supports a request to designate another family member as the
person enabled to work.

Eligible Child Care Expenses

The type of care to be provided is determined by the assisted family. County Housing may not
refuse to give a family the child care expense deduction because there is an adult family member in
the household that may be available to provide child care [VG, p. 26].

Allowable Child Care Activities

County Housing Policy

For school-age children, costs attributable to public or private school activities during
standard school hours are not considered. Expenses incurred for supervised activities after
school or during school holidays (e.g., summer day camp, after-school sports league) are
allowable forms of child care.

Page 6-40



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
The costs of general housekeeping and personal services are not eligible. Likewise, child
care expenses paid to a family member who lives in the family’s unit are not eligible;
however, payments for child care to relatives who do not live in the unit are eligible.

If a child care provider also renders other services to a family or child care is used to enable
a family member to conduct activities that are not eligible for consideration, County
Housing will prorate the costs and allow only that portion of the expenses that is
attributable to child care for eligible activities. For example, if the care provider also cares
for a child with disabilities who is 13 or older, the cost of care will be prorated. Unless
otherwise specified by the child care provider, the calculation will be based upon the
number of hours spent in each activity and/or the number of persons under care.

Necessary and Reasonable Costs

Child care expenses will be considered necessary if: (1) a family adequately explains how the care
enables a family member to work, actively seek employment, or further their education, and (2) the
family certifies, and the child care provider verifies, that the expenses are not paid or reimbursed
by any other source.

County Housing Policy

Child care expenses will be considered for the time required for the eligible activity plus
reasonable transportation time. For child care that enables a family member to go to
school, the time allowed may include not more than one study hour for each hour spentin
class.

To establish the reasonableness of child care costs, County Housing will use the schedule
of child care costs from a qualified local entity that either subsidizes child care costs or
licenses child care providers. Families may present, and County Housing will consider,
justification for costs that exceed typical costs in the area.

6-111.G. HARDSHIP EXEMPTIONS [24 CFR 5.611(c), (d), and (e)]

Health and Medical Care and Disability Assistance Expenses [24 CFR 5.611(c);
Notice PIH 2023-27]

The regulations provide for two types of hardship exemption categories for families that qualify for
unreimbursed health and medical care expenses and/or disability assistance expenses. A family
will benefit from this hardship exemption only if the family has eligible expenses that can be
deducted in excess of five percent of annualincome. In order to claim unreimbursed health and
medical care expenses, the family must have a head, cohead, or spouse that is elderly or a person
with a disability. In order to claim unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus
expenses, the family must include a person with a disability, and the expenses must enable any
member of the family (including the member who is a person with a disability) to be employed.

Families may be eligible for relief under one of two categories; phased-in relief or general relief, as
defined below.

Phased-In Relief

The first category is applicable to all families who received a deduction for unreimbursed health
and medical care and/or reasonable attendant care or auxiliary apparatus expenses based on their
most recent income review. The family must receive phased-in relief if they are determined to be

Page 6-41



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
eligible. These families will begin receiving a 24-month phased-in relief at their next annual or
interim reexamination, whichever occurs first.

For these families, the threshold amount is phased-in as follows:

e Thefamily is eligible for a deduction totaling the sum of expenses that exceeds 5 percent of
annual income for the first 12 months.

e Atthe conclusion of 12 months, the family is eligible for a deduction totaling the sum of their
expenses that exceed 7.5 percent of annual income for another 12 months.

e Atthe conclusion of 24 months, the standard threshold amount of 10 percent would be used,
unless the family qualifies for relief under the general hardship relief category.

- When an eligible family’s phased-in relief begins at an interim reexamination, County
Housing will need to process another transaction one year later to move the family along to
the next phase. The transaction can be either an interim reexamination if triggered, or a
non-interim reexamination transaction.

Prior to the end of the 24-month period, the family may request a hardship exemption under the
second category as described below. If the family is found eligible under the second category, the
hardship exemption under the first category ends, and the family’s hardship is administered in
accordance with the requirements listed below. Once a family requests general relief, the family
may no longer receive phased-in relief.

PHAs must track the 24-month phase-period for each eligible family, even if a family’s expenses go
below the appropriate phase-in percentage, during the first or second 12-month phase-in period.
When the family is treated as a new admission under a different property/program (e.g., the family
moves from public housing to the HCV program), unless the PHA has a written policy to continue
the phased-in relief upon admission, the family’s expense deduction will be calculated using the
10-percent threshold unless request for general relief is approved by the PHA. When a family
moves with continued assistance or ports to a new PHA, the family must continue to receive the
phased-in relief. The family must receive the remaining calendar months of the percentage phase-
in. The PHA must use the existing phase-in documentation to determine the remaining calendar
months and the percentage phase-in.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will not continue the phased-in relief for families who move from public
housing to HCV. These families will be treated as new admissions and the sum of expenses
that exceeds 10 percent of annualincome will be used to calculate their adjusted income.

General Relief
The second category is for families that can demonstrate:

e Their health and medical and/or disability assistance expenses increased (other than the
transition to the higher threshold); or

e The family’s financial hardship is a result of a change in circumstances (as defined in County
Housing policy) that would not otherwise trigger an interim reexamination.

The family may request a hardship exemption under the second category regardless of whether the
family previously received the health and medical and/or disability assistance deductions or are
currently or were previously receiving relief under the phased-in relief category above. HUD

Page 6-42



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
requires that PHAs develop policies defining what constitutes a hardship for purposes of this
exemption.

County Housing must obtain third-party verification of the hardship or must document in the file
the reason third-party verification was not available. PHAs must attempt to obtain third-party
verification prior to the end of the 90-day hardship exemption period.

County Housing Policy

To qualify for a hardship exemption, a family must submit a request in writing. The request
must show that the family’s health and medical and/or disability assistance expenses have
increased (other than the transition to the higher threshold) and that the family’s financial
hardship is a result of a change in circumstances. County Housing defines a change in
circumstances as a decrease in income or increase in other expenses that has resulted in
the family’s financial hardship but does not, on its own, trigger an interim reexam in
accordance with County Housing policies.

Examples of circumstances constituting a financial hardship may include the following
situations:

The family is awaiting an eligibility determination for a federal, state, or local
assistance program, such as a determination for unemployment compensation or
disability benefits;

The family’s income decreased because of a loss of employment, death of a family
member, or due to a natural or federal/state declared disaster; or

Other circumstances as determined by County Housing.

The family must provide third-party verification of the hardship with the request. If third-
party verification is not available, County Housing will document the file with the reason
and will attempt to obtain third-party verification prior to the end of the 90-day hardship
exemption period.

County Housing must promptly notify the family in writing of the change in the determination of
adjusted income and the family’s rent resulting from hardship exemptions. The notice must inform
the family of when the hardship exemption will begin and expire [24 CFR 5.611(e)(2)].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will make a determination of whether the family qualifies within 30
calendar days and will notify the family in writing of the result within 10 business days of the
determination.

If County Housing denies the hardship exemption request, the notice will also state
that if the family does not agree with the determination, the family may request a
hearing.

If the family qualifies for an exemption, County Housing will include the date the
hardship exemption will begin and the date it will expire as well as information on
how to request a 90-day extension based on family circumstances.

If the family qualifies, the family will receive a deduction for the sum of eligible expenses that
exceed five percent of annual income.

Page 6-43



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

The family’s hardship relief ends when the circumstances that made the family eligible for the relief
are no longer applicable or after 90 days, whichever is earlier. However, County Housing may, at its
discretion, extend the relief for one or more additional 90-day periods while the family’s hardship
condition continues. PHAs are not limited to a maximum number of 90-day extensions.

PHAs must establish written policies regarding the types of circumstances that will allow a family
to qualify for a financial hardship and when such deductions may be eligible for additional 90-day
extensions. PHAs must develop policies requiring families to report if the circumstances that made
the family eligible for the hardship exemption are no longer applicable.

County Housing Policy

The family may request an extension either orally or in writing prior to the end of the
hardship exemption period. County Housing will extend relief for an additional 90 days if the
family demonstrates to its satisfaction that the family continues to qualify for the hardship
exemption based on the circumstances described above. County Housing will require
updated verification based on the family’s current circumstances. Additional extension(s)
may be granted on a case-by-case basis, provided the family continues to request
extensions prior to the end of each hardship exemption period. Families must report if the
circumstances that made the family eligible for the hardship exemption are no longer
applicable. At any time, County Housing may terminate the hardship exemption if it
determines that the family no longer qualifies for the exemption.

Child Care Expense Hardship Exemption [24 CFR 5.611(d) and Notice PIH 2023-27]

A family whose eligibility for the child care expense deduction is ending may request a financial
hardship exemption to continue receiving the deduction. If the family demonstrates to County
Housing’s satisfaction that the family is unable to pay their rent because of the loss of the child
care expense deduction, and that the child care expense is still necessary even though the family
member is not working, looking for work, or seeking to further their education, County Housing
must recalculate the family’s adjusted income and continue the child care deduction.

County Housing must develop a policy to define what constitutes a hardship, which includes the
family’s inability to pay rent. County Housing must obtain third-party verification of the hardship or
must document in the file the reason third-party verification was not available. PHAs must attempt
to obtain third-party verification prior to the end of the 90-day hardship exemption period.

County Housing Policy

For a family to qualify, they must demonstrate that their inability to pay rent would be a
result of the loss of this deduction. County Housing defines this hardship as a potential
decrease in income or increase in other expenses that would result from the loss of the
child care expense, and such loss would impact the family’s ability to pay their rent.

Some factors to consider when determining if the family is unable to pay rent may include
determining that the rent, utility payment, and applicable expenses (child care expenses or
health and medical expenses) are more than 40 percent of the family’s adjusted income, or
verifying whether the family has experienced unanticipated expenses, such as large
medical bills, that have affected their ability to pay their rent.

The family must also demonstrate that the child care expense is still necessary even though
the family member is no longer employed or furthering their education. County Housing will
consider qualification under this criterion on a case-by case basis (for example, if the family

Page 6-44



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
member who was employed has left their job in order to provide uncompensated care to an
elderly friend or family member who is severely ill and lives across town).

The family must provide third-party verification of the hardship with the request. If third-
party verification is not available, County Housing will document the file with the reason
and will attempt to obtain third-party verification prior to the end of the 90-day hardship
exemption period.

County Housing must promptly notify the family in writing of the change in the determination of
adjusted income and the family’s rent resulting from hardship exemptions.

If County Housing denies the request, the notice must specifically state the reason for the denial.
PHAs must provide families with 30 days’ notice of any increase in rent.

If County Housing approves the request, the notice must inform the family of when the hardship
exemption will begin and expire [24 CFR 5.611(e)(2)]. The notice must also state the requirement
for the family to report to County Housing if the circumstances that made the family eligible for
relief are no longer applicable and that the family’s adjusted income and tenant rent will be
recalculated upon expiration of the hardship exemption [Notice PIH 2023-27].

County Housing Policy

County Housing will make a determination of whether the family qualifies within 30
calendar days and will notify the family in writing of the result within 10 business days of the
determination.

If County Housing denies the hardship exemption request, the notice will also state
that if the family does not agree with the determination, the family may request an
informal grievance hearing.

If the family qualifies for an exemption, County Housing will include all required
information listed above as well as information on how to request a 90-day
extension based on family circumstances.

If the family qualifies, the hardship exemption and the resulting alternative adjusted income
calculation must remain in place for a period of up to 90 days.

County Housing may, at its discretion, extend the hardship exemptions for additional 90-day
periods based on family circumstances and as stated in its policies. PHAs are not limited to a
maximum number of 90-day extensions. PHAs must develop policies requiring families to report if
the circumstances that made the family eligible for the hardship exemption are no longer
applicable.

PHAs must promptly notify families in writing if they are denied either an initial hardship exemption
or an additional 90-day extension of the exemption. If the PHA denies the request, the notice must
specifically state the reason for the denial.

PHAs must notify the family if the hardship exemption is no longer necessary and the hardship
exemption will be terminated because the circumstances that made the family eligible for the

exemption are no longer applicable. The notice must state the termination date and provide 30
days’ notice of rent increase, if applicable.

Page 6-45



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
County Housing Policy

The family may request an extension either orally or in writing prior to the end of the
hardship exemption period. County Housing will extend relief for an additional 90-days if
the family demonstrates to the County Housing’s satisfaction that the family continues to
qualify for the hardship exemption. County Housing will require updated verification based
on the family’s current circumstances. Additional extensions may be granted on a case-by-
case basis, provided the family continues to request extensions prior to the end of each
hardship exemption period. Families must report if the circumstances that made the family
eligible for the hardship exemption are no longer applicable. At any time, County Housing
may terminate the hardship exemption if it determines that the family no longer qualifies for
the exemption.

6-111.H. PERMISSIVE DEDUCTIONS [24 CFR 5.611(b)(1)(ii)]

PHAs may adopt additional permissive deductions from annual income if they establish a policy in
the administrative plan. Permissive deductions are additional, optional deductions that may be
applied to annual income. As with mandatory deductions, permissive deductions must be based
on need or family circumstance, and deductions must be designed to encourage self-sufficiency or
other economic purpose. If the County Housing offers permissive deductions, they must be
granted to all families that qualify for them and should complement existing income exclusions and
deductions [PH Occ GB, p. 128]. Permissive deductions may be used to incentivize or encourage
self-sufficiency and economic mobility.

A PHA that adopts such deductions must have sufficient funding to cover the increased housing
assistance payment cost of the deductions. A PHA will not be eligible for an increase in HCV
renewal funding for subsidy costs resulting from such deductions.

County Housing Policy

County Housing has opted not to use permissive deductions.

Page 6-46



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
PART IV: CALCULATING FAMILY SHARE AND PHA SUBSIDY

6-IV.A. OVERVIEW OF RENT AND SUBSIDY CALCULATIONS
TTP Formula [24 CFR 5.628]

HUD regulations specify the formula for calculating the total tenant payment (TTP) for an assisted
family. TTP is the highest of the following amounts, rounded to the nearest dollar:

e 30 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income (adjusted income is defined in Part )

e 10 percent of the family’s monthly gross income (annual income, as defined in Part |, divided by
12)

e The welfare rent (in as-paid states only)
e A minimum rent between $0 and $50 that is established by the PHA

County Housing has the authority to suspend and exempt families from minimum rent when a
financial hardship exists, as defined in section 6-1V.B.

The amount that a family pays for rent and utilities (the family share) will never be less than the
family’s TTP but may be greater than the TTP depending on the rent charged for the unit the family
selects.

Welfare Rent [24 CFR 5.628]

County Housing Policy

Welfare rent does not apply in this locality.
Minimum Rent [24 CFR 5.630]

County Housing Policy

The minimum rent for this locality is $50.
Family Share [24 CFR 982.305(a)(5)]

If a family chooses a unit with a gross rent (rent to owner plus an allowance for tenant-paid utilities)
that exceeds County Housing’s applicable payment standard: (1) the family will pay more than the
TTP, and (2) at initial occupancy County Housing may not approve the tenancy if it would require
the family share to exceed 40 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income. The income used
for this determination must have been verified no earlier than 60 days before the family’s voucher
was issued. (For a discussion of the application of payment standards, see section 6-IV.C.)

PHA Subsidy [24 CFR 982.505(b)]

County Housing will pay a monthly housing assistance payment (HAP) for a family that is equal to
the lower of (1) the applicable payment standard for the family minus the family’s TTP or (2) the
gross rent for the family’s unit minus the TTP. (For a discussion of the application of payment
standards, see section 6-1V.C.)

Utility Reimbursement [24 CFR 982.514(b); 982.514(c)]

When County Housing’s subsidy for a family exceeds the rent to the owner, the family is due a
utility reimbursement. HUD permits County Housing to pay the reimbursement to the family or
directly to the utility provider.

Page 6-47



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
County Housing Policy

County Housing will make utility reimbursements to the family.

County Housing may make all utility reimbursement payments to qualifying families on a monthly
basis or may make quarterly payments when the monthly reimbursement amount is $15.00 or less.
Reimbursements must be made once per calendar year quarter and must be prorated if the family
leaves the program in advance of its next quarterly reimbursement.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will issue all utility reimbursements monthly.
6-1V.B. FINANCIAL HARDSHIPS AFFECTING MINIMUM RENT [24 CFR 5.630]

Overview

County Housing must grant an exemption from the minimum rent if a family is unable to pay the
minimum rent because of financial hardship.

The financial hardship exemption applies only to families required to pay the minimum rent. If a
family’s TTP is higher than the minimum rent, the family is not eligible for a hardship exemption. If
County Housing determines that a hardship exists, the family share is the highest of the remaining
components of the family’s calculated TTP.

HUD-Defined Financial Hardship
Financial hardship includes the following situations:

(1) The family has lost eligibility for or is awaiting an eligibility determination for a federal, state, or
local assistance program. This includes a family member who is a noncitizen lawfully admitted
for permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality Act who would be entitled to
public benefits but for Title IV of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996.

County Housing Policy

A hardship will be considered to exist only if the loss of eligibility has an impact on the
family’s ability to pay the minimum rent.

For a family waiting for a determination of eligibility, the hardship period will end as of the
first of the month following: (1) implementation of assistance, if approved, or (2) the
decision to deny assistance. A family whose request for assistance is denied may request a
hardship exemption based on one of the other allowable hardship circumstances.

(2) The family would be evicted because it is unable to pay the minimum rent.

County Housing Policy

For a family to qualify under this provision, the cause of the potential eviction must be the
family’s failure to pay rent to the owner or tenant-paid utilities.

(38) Family income has decreased because of changed family circumstances, including the loss of
employment.

(4) Adeath has occurred in the family.

Page 6-48



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
County Housing Policy

In order to qualify under this provision, a family must describe how the death has created a
financial hardship (e.g., because of funeral-related expenses or the loss of the family
member’s income).

(5) The family has experienced other circumstances determined by the PHA.

County Housing Policy

County Housing has not established any additional hardship criteria.
Implementation of Hardship Exemption
Determination of Hardship

When a family requests a financial hardship exemption, County Housing must suspend the
minimum rent requirement beginning the first of the month following the family’s request.

County Housing then determines whether the financial hardship exists and whether the hardship is
temporary or long-term.

County Housing Policy

County Housing defines temporary hardship as a hardship expected to last 90 days or less.
Long-term hardship is defined as a hardship expected to last more than 90 days.

When the minimum rent is suspended, the family share reverts to the highest of the remaining
components of the calculated TTP. The example below demonstrates the effect of the minimum
rent exemption.

Example: Impact of Minimum Rent Exemption
Assume the PHA has established a minimum rent of $50.
Family Share - No Hardship Family Share — With Hardship
$0 30% of monthly adjusted income $0 30% of monthly adjusted income
$15 10% of monthly gross income $15 10% of monthly gross income
N/A  Welfare rent N/A  Welfare rent
$50 Minimum rent $50 Minimum rent
Minimum rent applies. Hardship exemption granted.
TTP = $50 TTP=$15

County Housing Policy

To qualify for a hardship exemption, a family must submit a request for a hardship
exemption in writing. The request must explain the nature of the hardship and how it has
affected the family’s ability to pay the minimum rent.

County Housing will make the determination of hardship within 30 calendar days.

Page 6-49



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
No Financial Hardship

If County Housing determines there is no financial hardship, it will reinstate the minimum rent and
require the family to repay the amounts suspended.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will require the family to repay the suspended amount within 30 calendar
days of the notice that a hardship exemption has not been granted.

Temporary Hardship

If County Housing determines that a qualifying financial hardship is temporary, it must suspend the
minimum rent for the 90-day period beginning the first of the month following the date of the
family’s request for a hardship exemption.

At the end of the 90-day suspension period, the family must resume payment of the minimum rent
and must repay County Housing the amounts suspended. HUD requires County Housing to offer a
reasonable repayment agreement on terms and conditions established by County Housing. County
Housing also may determine that circumstances have changed, and the hardship is now a long-
term hardship.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will enter into a repayment agreement in accordance with the procedures
found in Chapter 16 of this plan.

Long-Term Hardship

If County Housing determines that the financial hardship is long-term, it must exempt the family
from the minimum rent requirement for so long as the hardship continues. The exemption will
apply from the first of the month following the family’s request until the end of the qualifying
hardship. When the financial hardship has been determined to be long-term, the family is not
required to repay the minimum rent.

County Housing Policy

The hardship period ends when any of the following circumstances apply:

(1) Ataninterim or annual reexamination, the family’s calculated TTP is greater than the
minimum rent.

(2) For hardship conditions based on loss of income, the hardship condition will continue
to be recognized until new sources of income are received that are at least equal to the
amount lost. For example, if a hardship is approved because a family no longer receives
a $60/month child support payment, the hardship will continue to exist until the family
receives at least $60/month in income from another source or once again begins to
receive the child support.

(3) For hardship conditions based upon hardship-related expenses, the minimum rent
exemption will continue to be recognized until the cumulative amount exempted is
equal to the expense incurred.

Page 6-50



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

6-1V.C. APPLYING PAYMENT STANDARDS [24 CFR 982.505; 982.503(b)]
Overview

County Housing’s schedule of payment standards is used to calculate housing assistance
payments for HCV families. This section covers the application of the County Housing’s payment
standards. The establishment and revision of the payment standard schedule are covered in
Chapter 16.

Payment standard is defined as “the maximum monthly assistance payment for a family assisted in
the voucher program (before deducting the total tenant payment by the family)” [24 CFR 982.4(b)].

The payment standard for a family is the lower of (1) the payment standard for the family unit size,
which is defined as the appropriate number of bedrooms for the family under the PHA’s subsidy
standards [24 CFR 982.4(b)], or (2) the payment standard for the size of the dwelling unit rented by
the family.

Where County Housing has established an exception payment standard for a designated part of a
zip code area or FMR area and a family’s unit is located in the exception area, County Housing must
use the appropriate payment standard for the exception area.

County Housing is required to pay a monthly housing assistance payment (HAP) for a family that is
the lower of (1) the payment standard for the family minus the family’s TTP or (2) the gross rent for
the family’s unit minus the TTP.

If during the term of the HAP contract for a family’s unit, the owner lowers the rent, County Housing
will recalculate the HAP using the lower of the initial payment standard or the gross rent for the unit
[HCV GB, p. 7-8].

Changes in Payment Standards

When County Housing revises its payment standards during the term of the HAP contract for a
family’s unit, it will apply the new payment standards in accordance with HUD regulations.

Decreases

If County Housing changes its payment standard schedule, resulting in a lower payment standard

amount, during the term of a HAP contract, it is not required to reduce the payment standard used
to calculate subsidy for families under a HAP contract as long as the contract remains in effect [FR
Notice 11/16/16].

However, if County Housing does choose to reduce the payment standard for families currently
under HAP contract, the initial reduction to the payment standard may not be applied any earlier
than the effective date of the family’s second regular reexamination following the effective date of
the decrease in the payment standard amount. At that point, County Housing may either reduce
the payment standard to the current amount in effect on its payment standard schedule or may
reduce the payment standard to another amount that is higher than the normally applicable
amount on the schedule. County Housing may also establish different policies for designated
areas within their jurisdiction (e.g., different zip code areas).

County Housing Policy

If County Housing changes its payment standard schedule, resulting in a lower payment
standard amount during the term of a HAP contract, County Housing will not reduce the

Page 6-51



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
payment standard used to calculate subsidy for families under HAP contract as long as the
HAP contract remains in effect.

County Housing will not establish different policies for decreases in the payment standard
for designated areas within their jurisdiction.

Increases

If the payment standard is increased during the term of the HAP contract, the increased payment
standard will be used to calculate the monthly housing assistance payment for the family
beginning on the effective date of the family’s first regular reexamination on or after the effective
date of the increase in the payment standard.

Families requiring or requesting interim reexaminations will not have their HAP payments
calculated using the higher payment standard until their next annual reexamination [HCV GB, p. 7-
8].

Changes in Family Unit Size (Voucher Size)

Irrespective of any increase or decrease in the payment standard, if the family unit size increases or
decreases during the HAP contract term, the new family unit size must be used to determine the
payment standard for the family beginning at the family’s first regular reexamination following the
change in family unit size.

Reasonable Accommodation

If a family requires a higher payment standard as a reasonable accommodation for a family
member who is a person with disabilities, the PHA is allowed to establish a higher payment
standard for the family of not more than 120 percent of the published FMR.

6-1V.D. APPLYING UTILITY ALLOWANCES [24 CFR 982.517]
Overview

A County Housing-established utility allowance schedule is used in determining family share and
County Housing subsidy. A family's utility allowance is determined by the size of the dwelling unit
leased by a family or the voucher unit size for which the family qualifies using County Housing’s
subsidy standards, whichever is the lowest of the two. See Chapter 5 for information on County
Housing’s subsidy standards.

For policies on establishing and updating utility allowances, see Chapter 16.
Reasonable Accommodation

On request from a family that includes a person with disabilities, County Housing must approve a
utility allowance that is higher than the applicable amount on the utility allowance schedule if a
higher utility allowance is needed as a reasonable accommodation to make the program
accessible and usable by the family member with a disability [24 CFR 982.517(e)]. (See Chapter 2
for policies regarding the request and approval of reasonable accommodations.)

County Housing Policy

The family must request a higher utility allowance and provide County Housing with
information about the amount of additional allowance required.

County Housing will consider the following criteria as valid reasons for granting the
reasonable accommodation:

Page 6-52



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6
Excessive consumption due to special needs of the family that are beyond their
control, such as the need for specialized equipment in the case of a family member
who is ill, elderly, or who has a disability.

In determining the amount of reasonable accommodation, County Housing will allow a
reasonable measure of additional usage as necessary. To arrive at the amount of additional
utility cost of specific equipment, the family may provide information from the
manufacturer of the equipment, or the family County Housing may conduct an internet
search for an estimate of usage or additional monthly cost.

At its discretion, County Housing may reevaluate the need for the increased utility
allowance at any regular reexamination.

Utility Allowance Revisions

At reexamination, County Housing must use the current utility allowance schedule [HCV GB, p. 18-
8].

County Housing Policy

Revised utility allowances will be applied to a family’s rent and subsidy calculations at the
first annual reexamination that is effective after the allowance is adopted.

6-IV.E. PRORATED ASSISTANCE FOR MIXED FAMILIES [24 CFR 5.520]

HUD regulations prohibit assistance to ineligible family members. A mixed family is one that
includes at least one U.S. citizen or eligible immigrant and any number of ineligible family
members. County Housing must prorate the assistance provided to a mixed family. County
Housing will first determine assistance as if all family members were eligible and then prorate the
assistance based upon the percentage of family members that actually are eligible. For example, if
County Housing’s subsidy for a family is calculated at $500 and two of four family members are
ineligible, County Housing’s subsidy would be reduced to $250.

Page 6-53



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

EXHIBIT 6-1: ANNUAL INCOME FULL DEFINITION

24 CFR 5.609

(a) Annualincome includes, with respect to the
family:

(1) Allamounts, not specifically excluded in
paragraph (b) of this section, received from all
sources by each member of the family who is 18
years of age or older or is the head of household
or spouse of the head of household, plus
unearned income by or on behalf of each
dependent who is under 18 years of age, and

(2) When the value of net family assets exceeds
$50,000 (which amount HUD will adjust
annually in accordance with the Consumer
Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical
Workers) and the actual returns from a given
asset cannot be calculated, imputed returns on
the asset based on the current passbook
savings rate, as determined by HUD.

(b)Annual income does not include the
following:

(1) Any imputed return on an asset when net
family assets total $50,000 or less (which
amount HUD will adjust annually in accordance
with the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage
Earners and Clerical Workers) and no actual
income from the net family assets can be
determined.

(2) The following types of trust distributions:

(i) For anirrevocable trust or a revocable trust
outside the control of the family or household
excluded from the definition of net family
assets under 8 5.603(b):

(A) Distributions of the principal or corpus of the
trust; and

(B) Distributions of income from the trust when
the distributions are used to pay the costs of
health and medical care expenses for a minor.

(ii) For a revocable trust under the control of the
family or household, any distributions from the
trust; except that any actual income earned by
the trust, regardless of whether it is distributed,
shall be considered income to the family at the
time it is received by the trust.

(3) Earned income of children under the 18
years of age.

(4) Payments received for the care of foster
children or foster adults, or State or Tribal
kinship or guardianship care payments.

(5) Insurance payments and settlements for
personal or property losses, including but not
limited to payments through health insurance,
motor vehicle insurance, and workers’
compensation.

(6) Amounts received by the family that are
specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the cost
of health and medical care expenses for any
family member.

(7) Any amounts recovered in any civil action or
settlement based on a claim of malpractice,
negligence, or other breach of duty owed to a
family member arising out of law, that resulted
in a member of the family becoming disabled.

(8) Income of a live-in aide, foster child, or
foster adult as defined in 88 5.403 and 5.603,
respectively.

(9)

(i) Any assistance that section 479B of the
Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (20
U.S.C. 1087uu), requires be excluded from a
family’s income; and

Page 6-54



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

(ii) Student financial assistance for tuition,
books, and supplies (including supplies and
equipment to support students with learning
disabilities or other disabilities), room and
board, and other fees required and charged to a
student by an institution of higher education (as
defined under Section 102 of the Higher
Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1002)) and, for
a student who is not the head of household or
spouse, the reasonable and actual costs of
housing while attending the institution of higher
education and not residing in an assisted unit.

(A) Student financial assistance, for purposes of
this paragraph (9)(ii), means a grant or
scholarship received from— (

1) The Federal government;
(2) A State, Tribe, or local government;

(3) A private foundation registered as a
nonprofit under 26 U.S.C. 501(c)(3);

(4) A business entity (such as corporation,
general partnership, limited liability company,
limited partnership, joint venture, business
trust, public benefit corporation, or nonprofit
entity); or

(5) An institution of higher education.

(B) Student financial assistance, for purposes
of this paragraph (9)(ii), does not include—

(1) Any assistance that is excluded pursuant to
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section;

(2) Financial support provided to the studentin
the form of a fee for services performed (e.g., a
work study or teaching fellowship that is not
excluded pursuant to paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this
section); (

3) Gifts, including gifts from family or friends; or

(4) Any amount of the scholarship or grant that,
either by itself or in combination with
assistance excluded under this paragraph or
paragraph (b)(9)(i), exceeds the actual covered
costs of the student. The actual covered costs
of the student are the actual costs of tuition,
books and supplies (including supplies and
equipment to support students with learning
disabilities or other disabilities), room and
board, or other fees required and charged to a
student by the education institution, and, for a
student who is not the head of household or
spouse, the reasonable and actual costs of
housing while attending the institution of higher
education and not residing in an assisted unit.
This calculation is described further in
paragraph (b)(9)(ii)€ of this section.

(C) Student financial assistance, for purposes
of this paragraph (b)(9)(ii) must be:

(1) Expressly for tuition, books, room and board,
or other fees required and charged to a student
by the education institution;

(2) Expressly to assist a student with the costs
of higher education; or

(8) Expressly to assist a student who is not the
head of household or spouse with the
reasonable and actual costs of housing while
attending the education institution and not
residing in an assisted unit.

(D) Student financial assistance, for purposes
of this paragraph (b)(9)(ii), may be paid directly
to the student or to the educational institution
on the student’s behalf. Student financial
assistance paid to the student must be verified
by the responsible entity as student financial
assistance consistent with this paragraph

(b)(9)(ii).

(E) When the student is also receiving
assistance excluded under paragraph (b)(9)(i) of
this section, the amount of student financial
assistance under this paragraph (b)(9)(ii) is
determined as follows:

Page 6-55



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

(1) If the amount of assistance excluded under
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section is equal to or
exceeds the actual covered costs under
paragraph (b)(9)(ii)(B)(4) of this section, none of
the assistance described in this paragraph
(b)(9)(ii) of this section is considered student
financial assistance excluded from income
under this paragraph (b)(9)(ii)(E).

(2) If the amount of assistance excluded under
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section is less than
the actual covered costs under paragraph
(b)(9)(ii)(B)(4) of this section, the amount of
assistance described in paragraph (b)(9)(ii) of
this section that is considered student financial
assistance excluded under this paragraph is the
lower of:

(i) the total amount of student financial
assistance received under this paragraph
(b)(9)(ii) of this section, or

(ii) the amount by which the actual covered
costs under paragraph (b)(9)(ii)(B)(4) of this
section exceeds the assistance excluded under
paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this section.

(10) Income and distributions from any
Coverdell education savings account under
section 530 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 or any qualified tuition program under
section 529 of such Code; and income earned
by government contributions to, and
distributions from, “baby bond” accounts
created, authorized, or funded by Federal,
State, or local government.

(11) The special pay to a family member serving
in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile
fire.

(12)

(i) Amounts received by a person with a
disability that are disregarded for a limited time
for purposes of Supplemental Security Income
eligibility and benefits because they are set
aside for use under a Plan to Attain Self-
Sufficiency (PASS);

(i) Amounts received by a participant in other
publicly assisted programs which are
specifically for or in reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses incurred (e.g., special
equipment, clothing, transportation, child care,
etc.) and which are made solely to allow
participation in a specific program;

(iif) Amounts received under a resident service
stipend not to exceed $200 per month. A
resident service stipend is a modest amount
received by a resident for performing a service
for the PHA or owner, on a part-time basis, that
enhances the quality of life in the development.

(iv) Incremental earnings and benefits resulting
to any family member from participation in
training programs funded by HUD or in
qualifying Federal, State, Tribal, or local
employment training programs (including
training programs not affiliated with a local
government) and training of a family member as
resident management staff. Amounts excluded
by this provision must be received under
employment training programs with clearly
defined goals and objectives and are excluded
only for the period during which the family
member participates in the employment
training program unless those amounts are
excluded under paragraph (b)(9)(i) of this
section.

(13) Reparation payments paid by a foreign
government pursuant to claims filed under the
laws of that government by persons who were
persecuted during the Nazi era.

(14) Earned income of dependent fulltime
students in excess of the amount of the
deduction for a dependentin 8§ 5.611.

(15) Adoption assistance payments for a child in
excess of the amount of the deduction for a
dependentin §5.611.

Page 6-56



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

(16) Deferred periodic amounts from
Supplemental Security Income and Social
Security benefits that are received in a lump
sum amount or in prospective monthly
amounts, or any deferred Department of
Veterans Affairs disability benefits that are
received in a lump sum amountorin
prospective monthly amounts.

(17) Payments related to aid and attendance
under 38 U.S.C. 1521 to veterans in need of
regular aid and attendance.

(18) Amounts received by the family in the form
of refunds or rebates under State or local law
for property taxes paid on the dwelling unit.

(19) Payments made by or authorized by a State
Medicaid agency (including through a managed
care entity) or other State or Federal agency to a
family to enable a family member who has a
disability to reside in the family’s assisted unit.
Authorized payments may include payments to
a member of the assisted family through the
State Medicaid agency (including through a
managed care entity) or other State or Federal
agency for caregiving services the family
member provides to enable a family member
who has a disability to reside in the family’s
assisted unit.

(20) Loan proceeds (the net amount disbursed
by a lender to or on behalf of a borrower, under
the terms of a loan agreement) received by the
family or a third party (e.g., proceeds received
by the family from a private loan to enable
attendance at an educational institution or to
finance the purchase of a car).

(21) Payments received by Tribal members as a
result of claims relating to the mismanagement
of assets held in trust by the United States, to
the extent such payments are also excluded
from gross income under the Internal Revenue
Code or other Federal law.

(22) Amounts that HUD is required by Federal
statute to exclude from consideration as
income for purposes of determining eligibility or
benefits under a category of assistance
programs that includes assistance under any
program to which the exclusions set forth in
paragraph (b) of this section apply. HUD will
publish a notice in the Federal Register to
identify the benefits that qualify for this
exclusion. Updates will be published when
necessary.

(23) Replacement housing “gap” payments
made in accordance with 49 CFR part 24 that
offset increased out of pocket costs of
displaced persons that move from one federally
subsidized housing unit to another Federally
subsidized housing unit. Such replacement
housing “gap” payments are not excluded from
annualincome if the increased cost of rent and
utilities is subsequently reduced or eliminated,
and the displaced person retains or continues
to receive the replacement housing “gap”
payments.

(24) Nonrecurring income, which is income that
will not be repeated in the coming year based
on information provided by the family. Income
received as an independent contractor, day
laborer, or seasonal worker is not excluded
from income under this paragraph, even if the
source, date, or amount of the income varies.
Nonrecurring income includes:

(i) Payments from the U.S. Census Bureau for
employment (relating to decennial census or
the American Community Survey) lasting no
longer than 180 days and not culminating in
permanent employment.

(ii) Direct Federal or State payments intended
for economic stimulus or recovery.

(iii) Amounts directly received by the family as a
result of State refundable tax credits or State
tax refunds at the time they are received.

Page 6-57



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

(iv) Amounts directly received by the family as a
result of Federal refundable tax credits and
Federal tax refunds at the time they are
received.

(v) Gifts for holidays, birthdays, or other
significant life events or milestones (e.g.,
wedding gifts, baby showers, anniversaries).

(vi) Non-monetary, in-kind donations, such as
food, clothing, or toiletries, received from a
food bank or similar organization.

(vii) Lump-sum additions to net family assets,
including but not limited to lottery or other
contest winnings.

(25) Civil rights settlements or judgments,
including settlements or judgments for back

pay.

(26) Income received from any account under a
retirement plan recognized as such by the
Internal Revenue Service, including individual
retirement arrangements (IRAs), employer
retirement plans, and retirement plans for self-
employed individuals; except that any
distribution of periodic payments from such

accounts shall be income at the time they are
received by the family.

(27) Income earned on amounts placed in a
family’s Family Self Sufficiency Account.

(28) Gross income a family member receives
through self-employment or operation of a
business; except that the following shall be
considered income to a family member:

(i) Netincome from the operation of a business
or profession. Expenditures for business
expansion or amortization of capital
indebtedness shall not be used as deductions
in determining netincome. An allowance for
depreciation of assets used in a business or
profession may be deducted, based on straight
line depreciation, as provided in Internal
Revenue Service regulations; and

(if) Any withdrawal of cash or assets from the
operation of a business or profession will be
included in income, except to the extent the
withdrawal is reimbursement of cash or assets
invested in the operation by the family.

Page 6-58



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

EXHIBIT 6-2: TREATMENT OF FAMILY ASSETS

24 CFR 5.603(b) Net Family Assets

(1) Net family assets is the net cash value of
all assets owned by the family, after
deducting reasonable costs that would be
incurred in disposing real property, savings,
stocks, bonds, and other forms of capital
investment.

(2) In determining net family assets, PHAs or
owners, as applicable, must include the
value of any business or family assets
disposed of by an applicant or tenant for less
than fair market value (including a disposition
in trust, but not in a foreclosure or
bankruptcy sale) during the two years
preceding the date of application for the
program or reexamination, as applicable, in
excess of the consideration received
therefor. In the case of a disposition as part
of a separation or divorce settlement, the
disposition will not be considered to be for
less than fair market value if the applicant or
tenant receives consideration not
measurable in dollar terms. Negative equity
in real property or other investments does not
prohibit the owner from selling the property
or other investments, so negative equity
alone would not justify excluding the property
or other investments from family assets.

(3) Excluded from the calculation of net
family assets are: (i) The value of necessary
items of personal property; (ii) The combined
value of all nonnecessary items of personal
property if the combined total value does not
exceed $50,000 (which amount will be
adjusted by HUD in accordance with the
Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage
Earners and Clerical Workers); (iii) The value
of any account under a retirement plan
recognized as such by the Internal Revenue
Service, including individual retirement
arrangements (IRAs), employer retirement

plans, and retirement plans for self-
employed individuals; (iv) The value of real
property that the family does not have the
effective legal authority to sell in the
jurisdiction in which the property is located;
(v) Any amounts recovered in any civil action
or settlement based on a claim of
malpractice, negligence, or other breach of
duty owed to a family member arising out of
law, that resulted in a family member being a
person with a disability; (vi) The value of any
Coverdell education savings account under
section 530 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, the value of any qualified tuition
program under section 529 of such Code, the
value of any Achieving a Better Life
Experience (ABLE) account authorized under
Section 529A of such Code, and the value of
any “baby bond” account created,
authorized, or funded by Federal, State, or
local government. (vii) Interests in Indian trust
land; (viii) Equity in a manufactured home
where the family receives assistance under
24 CFR part 982; (ix) Equity in property under
the Homeownership Option for which a
family receives assistance under 24 CFR part
982; (x) Family Self-Sufficiency Accounts; and
(xi) Federal tax refunds or refundable tax
credits for a period of 12 months after receipt
by the family.

(4) In cases where a trust fund has been
established and the trustis not revocable by,
or under the control of, any member of the
family or household, the trust fund is not a
family asset and the value of the trustis not
included in the calculation of net family
assets, so long as the fund continues to be
held in a trust that is not revocable by, or
under the control of, any member of the
family or household.

Page 6-59



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

EXHIBIT 6-3: THE EFFECT OF WELFARE BENEFIT REDUCTION

24 CFR5.615

Public housing program and Section 8 tenant-based assistance program: How welfare benefit

reduction affects family income.

(a) Applicability. This section applies to covered
families who reside in public housing (part 960
of this title) or receive Section 8 tenant-based
assistance (part 982 of this title).

(b) Definitions. The following definitions apply
for purposes of this section:

Covered families. Families who receive welfare
assistance or other public assistance benefits
(“welfare benefits”) from a State or other public
agency (“welfare agency”) under a program for
which Federal, State, or local law requires that
a member of the family must participate in an
economic self-sufficiency program as a
condition for such assistance.

Economic self-sufficiency program. See
definition at Sec. 5.603.

Imputed welfare income. The amount of annual
income not actually received by a family, as a
result of a specified welfare benefit reduction,
that is nonetheless included in the family's
annualincome for purposes of determining
rent.

Specified welfare benefit reduction.

(1) Areduction of welfare benefits by the
welfare agency, in whole or in part, for a family
member, as determined by the welfare agency,
because of fraud by a family member in
connection with the welfare program; or
because of welfare agency sanction against a
family member for noncompliance with a
welfare agency requirement to participate in an
economic self-sufficiency program.

(2) “Specified welfare benefit reduction” does
notinclude a reduction or termination of
welfare benefits by the welfare agency:

(i) at expiration of a lifetime or other time limit
on the payment of welfare benefits;

(ii) because a family member is not able to
obtain employment, even though the family
member has complied with welfare agency
economic self-sufficiency or work activities
requirements; or

(iii) because a family member has not complied
with other welfare agency requirements.

(c) Imputed welfare income.

(1) A family's annualincome includes the
amount of imputed welfare income (because of
a specified welfare benefits reduction, as
specified in notice to the PHA by the welfare
agency), plus the total amount of other annual
income as determined in accordance with Sec.
5.609.

(2) At the request of the PHA, the welfare
agency will inform the PHA in writing of the
amount and term of any specified welfare
benefit reduction for a family member, and the
reason for such reduction, and will also inform
the PHA of any subsequent changes in the term
or amount of such specified welfare benefit
reduction. The PHA will use this information to
determine the amount of imputed welfare
income for a family.

(8) Afamily’s annual income includes imputed
welfare income in family annualincome, as
determined at the PHA's interim or regular
reexamination of family income and
composition, during the term of the welfare
benefits reduction (as specified in information
provided to the PHA by the welfare agency).

(4) The amount of the imputed welfare income
is offset by the amount of additionalincome a
family receives that commences after the time
the sanction was imposed. When such
additional income from other sources is at least
equal to the imputed

Page 6-60



Administrative Plan: Chapter 6

(5) The PHA may not include imputed welfare
income in annualincome if the family was not
an assisted resident at the time of sanction.

(d) Review of PHA decision.

(1) Public housing. If a public housing tenant
claims that the PHA has not correctly
calculated the amount of imputed welfare
income in accordance with HUD requirements,
and if the PHA denies the family's request to
modify such amount, the PHA shall give the
tenant written notice of such denial, with a brief
explanation of the basis for the PHA
determination of the amount of imputed
welfare income. The PHA notice shall also state
that if the tenant does not agree with the PHA
determination, the tenant may requesta
grievance hearing in accordance with part 966,
subpart B of this title to review the PHA
determination. The tenant is not required to pay
an escrow deposit pursuant to Sec. 966.55(e)
for the portion of tenant rent attributable to the
imputed welfare income in order to obtain a
grievance hearing on the PHA determination.

(2) Section 8 participant. A participant in the
Section 8 tenant-based assistance program
may request an informal hearing, in accordance
with Sec. 982.555 of this title, to review the PHA
determination of the amount of imputed
welfare income that must be included in the
family's annual income in accordance with this
section. If the family claims that such amount is
not correctly calculated in accordance with
HUD requirements, and if the PHA denies the
family's request to modify such amount, the
PHA shall give the family written notice of such
denial, with a brief explanation of the basis for
the PHA determination of the amount of
imputed welfare income. Such notice shall also
state that if the family does not agree with the
PHA determination, the family may request an
informal hearing on the determination under the
PHA hearing procedure.

(e) PHA relation with welfare agency.

(1) The PHA must ask welfare agencies to
inform the PHA of any specified welfare benefits

reduction for a family member, the reason for
such reduction, the term of any such reduction,
and any subsequent welfare agency
determination affecting the amount or term of a
specified welfare benefits reduction. If the
welfare agency determines a specified welfare
benefits reduction for a family member, and
gives the PHA written notice of such reduction,
the family's annual incomes shall include the
imputed welfare income because of the
specified welfare benefits reduction.

(2) The PHA is responsible for determining the
amount of imputed welfare income thatis
included in the family's annualincome as a
result of a specified welfare benefits reduction
as determined by the welfare agency, and
specified in the notice by the welfare agency to
the PHA. However, the PHA is not responsible
for determining whether a reduction of welfare
benefits by the welfare agency was correctly
determined by the welfare agency in
accordance with welfare program requirements
and procedures, nor for providing the
opportunity for review or hearing on such
welfare agency determinations.

(3) Such welfare agency determinations are the
responsibility of the welfare agency, and the
family may seek appeal of such determinations
through the welfare agency's normal due
process procedures. The PHA shall be entitled
to rely on the welfare agency notice to the PHA
of the welfare agency's determination of a
specified welfare benefits reduction.

Page 6-61



ACOP: Chapter 8

Chapter 8

LEASING AND INSPECTIONS
[24 CFR 5, Subpart G; 24 CFR 966, Subpart A]

INTRODUCTION

Public housing leases are the contractual basis of the legal relationship between the PHA and the
tenant. All units must be occupied pursuant to a dwelling lease agreement that complies with HUD
regulations.

HUD regulations require County Housing to inspect each dwelling unit prior to move-in, at move-
out, and annually during the period of occupancy. In addition, County Housing may conduct
additional inspections in accordance with County Housing policy.

This chapter is divided into two parts as follows:

Part I: Leasing. This part describes pre-leasing activities and County Housing’s policies
pertaining to lease execution, lease modification, and payments under the lease.

Part ll: Inspections. This part describes County Housing’s policies for inspecting dwelling
units.

Page 8-1



ACOP: Chapter 8

PART I: LEASING

8-I.A. OVERVIEW

An eligible family may occupy a public housing dwelling unit under the terms of a lease. The lease
must meet all regulatory requirements and must also comply with applicable state and local laws
and codes.

The term of the lease must be for a period of 12 months. The lease must be renewed automatically
for another 12-month term, except that County Housing may not renew the lease if the family has
violated the community service requirement and if the family is determined to be over-income for
24 consecutive months [24 CFR 966.4(a)(2)].

County Housing has adopted smoke-free policies. The policy is attached as Exhibit 8-1.

Part | of this chapter contains regulatory information on leasing, where applicable, as well as the
County Housing’s leasing policies.

For policies on lease requirements for families whose income has exceeded the over-income limit
for 24 consecutive months, see 13-1ll.C., Over-Income Families.

8-1.B. LEASE ORIENTATION

County Housing Policy

After unit acceptance but prior to occupancy, County Housing representative will conduct a
lease orientation with the family. The head of household or spouse is required to attend.

Orientation Agenda

County Housing Policy

When families attend the lease orientation, they will be provided with:
A copy of the lease
A copy of County Housing’s grievance procedure
A copy of the house rules
A copy of County Housing’s schedule of maintenance charges

A copy of “Is Fraud Worth [t?” (Form HUD-1141-0IG), which explains the types of
actions a family must avoid and the penalties for program abuse

A copy of “What You Should Know about EIV,” a guide to the Enterprise Income
Verification (EIV) system published by HUD as an attachment to Notice PIH 2017-12

A copy of the form HUD-5380, VAWA Notice of Occupancy Rights

A copy of form HUD-5382, Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence,
Sexual Assault, or Stalking

A copy of County Housing’s smoke-free policy

A notice that includes the procedures for requesting relief and County Housing’s
criteria for granting requests for relief for excess utility surcharges

Topics to be discussed and explained to all families include:

Page 8-2



ACOP: Chapter 8
Applicable deposits and all other charges
Review and explanation of lease provisions
Unit maintenance requests and work orders
County Housing’s interim reporting requirements
Review and explanation of occupancy forms
Community service requirements
Family choice of rent
VAWA protections
Smoke-free policies

8-1.C. EXECUTION OF LEASE

The lease must be executed by the tenant and County Housing, except for automatic renewals of a
lease [24 CFR 966.4(a)(3)].

A lease is executed at the time of admission for all new residents. A new lease is also executed at
the time of transfer from one County Housing unit to another.

The lease must state the composition of the household as approved by County Housing (family
members and any County Housing-approved live-in aide) [24 CFR 966.4(a)(1)(v)]. See Section 8-I.D.
for policies regarding changes in family composition during the lease term.

County Housing Policy

The head of household, spouse or co-head, and all other adult members of the household
will be required to sign the public housing lease prior to admission. An appointment will be
scheduled for the parties to execute the lease. The head of household will be provided a
copy of the executed lease and County Housing will retain a copy in the resident’s file.

8-1.D. MODIFICATIONS TO THE LEASE

The lease may be modified at any time by written agreement of the tenant and County Housing [24
CFR 966.4(a)(3)].

Modifications to the Lease Form

County Housing may modify its lease from time to time. However, County Housing must give
residents at least 30 days’ advance notice of the proposed changes and an opportunity to
comment on the changes. County Housing must also consider any comments before formally
adopting a new lease [24 CFR 966.3].

After proposed changes have been incorporated into the lease and approved by the Board, each
family must be notified at least 60 days in advance of the effective date of the new lease or lease
revision. Aresident's refusal to accept permissible and reasonable lease modifications that are
made in accordance with HUD requirements, or are required by HUD, is grounds for termination of
tenancy [24 CFR 966.4(1)(2)(iii)(E)].

Page 8-3



ACOP: Chapter 8

County Housing Policy

The family will have 30 days to accept the revised lease. If the family does not accept the
offer of the revised lease within that 30-day timeframe, the family’s tenancy will be
terminated for other good cause in accordance with the policies in Chapter 13.

Schedules of special charges and rules and regulations are subject to modification or revision.
Because these schedules are incorporated into the lease by reference, residents and resident
organizations must be provided at least 30 days written notice of the reason(s) for any proposed
modifications or revisions and must be given an opportunity to present written comments. The
notice must be delivered directly or mailed to each tenant; or posted in at least three conspicuous
places within each structure or building in which the affected dwelling units are located, as well as
in a conspicuous place at the project office, if any, or if none, a similar central business location
within the project. Comments must be taken into consideration before any proposed modifications
or revisions become effective [24 CFR 966.5].

After the proposed revisions become effective, they must be publicly posted in a conspicuous
manner in the project office and must be furnished to applicants and tenants on request [24 CFR
966.5].

County Housing Policy

When County Housing proposes to modify or revise schedules of special charges or rules
and regulations, County Housing will post copies of the notice on their website, in the
central office, in each project office, and in at least three conspicuous places in each
structure that contains dwelling units.

Other Modifications

County Housing Policy

The lease will be amended to reflect all changes in family composition.

If, for any reason, any member of the household ceases to reside in the unit, the lease will
be amended by drawing a line through the person's name. The head of household and
County Housing will be required to initial and date the change.

If a new household member is approved by County Housing to reside in the unit, the
person’s name and birth date will be added to the lease. The head of household and County
Housing will be required to initial and date the change. If the new member of the household
is an adult, s/he will also be required to sign and date the lease.

Policies governing when and how changes in family composition must be reported are
contained in Chapter 9, Reexaminations.

8-1.E. SECURITY DEPOSITS [24 CFR 966.4(b)(5)]

At the option of County Housing, the lease may require security deposits. The amount of the
security deposit cannot exceed one month’s rent or a reasonable fixed amount as determined by
County Housing. County Housing may allow for gradual accumulation of the security deposit by the
family, or the family may be required to pay the security deposit in full prior to occupancy. Subject
to applicable laws, interest earned on security deposits may be refunded to the tenant after
vacating the unit or used for tenant services or activities.

Page 8-4



ACOP: Chapter 8

County Housing Policy

Residents must pay a security deposit to County Housing at the time of admission. The
amount of the security deposit will be equal to the family’s total tenant payment at the time
of move-in and must be paid in full prior to occupancy.

County Housing will hold the security deposit for the period the family occupies the unit.
County Housing will not use the security deposit for rent or other charges while the resident
is living in the unit.

Within 30 days of move-out, County Housing will refund to the resident the amount of the
security deposit (including interest earned on the security deposit), less any amount
needed to pay the cost of unpaid rent, damages listed on the move-out inspection report
that exceed normal wear and tear, and other charges due under the lease.

County Housing will provide the resident with a written list of any charges against the
security deposit within 10 business days of the move-out inspection. If the resident
disagrees with the amount charged, County Housing will hold a meeting to discuss the
charges.

If the resident transfers to another unit, County Housing will transfer the security deposit to
the new unit. The tenant will be billed for any maintenance or other charges due for the
“old” unit.

8-1.F. PAYMENTS UNDER THE LEASE
Rent Payments [24 CFR 966.4(b)(1)]

Families must pay the amount of the monthly tenant rent determined by County Housing in
accordance with HUD regulations and other requirements. The amount of the tenant rent is subject
to change in accordance with HUD requirements.

The lease must specify the initial amount of the tenant rent at the beginning of the initial lease term,
and County Housing must give written notice stating any change in the amount of tenant rent and
when the change is effective.

County Housing Policy

The tenant rent is due and payable at the County Housing-designated location on the first of
every month. If the first falls on a weekend or holiday, the rent is due and payable on the
first business day thereafter.

If afamily’s tenant rent changes, County Housing will notify the family of the new amount
and the effective date by sending a "Notice of Rent Adjustment" which will become an
attachment to the lease.

Late Fees and Nonpayment

At the option of County Housing, the lease may provide for payment of penalties when the family is
late in paying tenant rent [24 CFR 966.4(b)(3)].

The lease must provide that late payment fees are not due and collectible until two weeks after
County Housing gives written notice of the charges. The written notice is considered an adverse
action and must meet the requirements governing a notice of adverse action [24 CFR 966.4(b)(4)].

The notice of proposed adverse action must identify the specific grounds for the action and inform
the family of their right for a hearing under County Housing grievance procedures. County Housing

Page 8-5



ACOP: Chapter 8

must not take the proposed action until the time for the tenant to request a grievance hearing has
expired, or (if a hearing was requested within the required timeframe,) the grievance process has
been completed [24 CFR 966.4(¢e)(8)].

County Housing Policy

If the family fails to pay their rent by the fifth day of the month, and County Housing has not
agreed to accept payment at a later date, a 14-day Notice to Vacate will be issued to the
resident for failure to pay rent, demanding payment in full or the surrender of the premises.

When a check is returned for insufficient funds or is written on a closed account, the rent
will be considered unpaid, and a returned check fee of $25.00 will be charged to the family.
The fee will be due and payable 14 days after billing.

Maintenance and Damage Charges

If County Housing charges the tenant for maintenance and repair beyond normal wear and tear, the
lease must state the basis for the determination of such charges [24 CFR 966.4(b)(2)].

Schedules of special charges for services and repairs which are required to be incorporated in the
lease by reference must be publicly posted in a conspicuous manner in the development office and
must be furnished to applicants and tenants on request [24 CFR 966.5].

The lease must provide that charges for maintenance and repair beyond normal wear and tear are
not due and collectible until two weeks after County Housing gives written notice of the charges.
The written notice is considered an adverse action and must meet the requirements governing a
notice of adverse action [24 CFR 966.4(b)(4)].

The notice of proposed adverse action must identify the specific grounds for the action and inform
the family of their right for a hearing under County Housing’s grievance procedures. County
Housing must not take the proposed action until the time for the tenant to request a grievance
hearing has expired, or (if a hearing was requested within the required timeframe,) the grievance
process has been completed [24 CFR 966.4(¢e)(8)].

County Housing Policy

When applicable, families will be charged for maintenance and/or damages according to
County Housing’s current schedule. Work that is not covered in the schedule will be
charged based on the actual cost of labor and materials to make needed repairs (including
overtime, if applicable).

Notices of maintenance and damage charges will be mailed monthly and will be in
accordance with requirements regarding notices of adverse actions. Charges are due and
payable 14 calendar days after billing. If the family requests a grievance hearing within the
required timeframe, County Housing may not take action for nonpayment of the charges
until the conclusion of the grievance process.

Nonpayment of maintenance and damage charges is a violation of the lease and is grounds
for eviction.

Page 8-6



ACOP: Chapter 8
PART II: INSPECTIONS

8-11.A. OVERVIEW

County Housing is obligated to maintain safe and habitable dwelling units and to make necessary
repairs to dwelling [24 CFR 966.4(e)]. The National Standards for the Inspection Physical Inspection
of Real Estate (NSPIRE) are the standard under which HUD housing units, including those under the
public housing program, are inspected. NSPIRE ensures that residents of public housing live in
safe, habitable dwellings, and the items and components located inside, outside, and within the
units are functionally adequate, operable, and free of health and safety hazards [24 CFR5.703(a)].
Further, units must comply with state and local code requirements (such as fire, mechanical,
plumbing, carbon monoxide, property maintenance, and residential code) [24 CFR 5.703(f)] as well
as with all requirements related to the evaluation and control of lead-based paint hazards [24 CFR
5.703(e)(2)].

Under NSPIRE, public housing units are subject to three types of inspections: annual self-
inspections, NSPIRE inspections (which are used to assess and score County Housing under the
Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS)), and NSPIRE Plus inspections (which are triggered by
poor property conditions). HUD regulations also require County Housing to inspect each public
housing unit prior to move-in and at move-out. County Housing may require additional inspections
in accordance with County Housing policy. This part contains County Housing’s policies governing
inspections, notification of unit entry, and repair timelines. This section also discusses inspections
conducted by County Housing and inspections conducted by HUD’s Real Estate Assessment
Center (REAC).

8-11.B. PHA-CONDUCTED INSPECTIONS

County Housing is obligated to maintain dwelling units and the project in safe and habitable
condition and to make necessary repairs to dwelling units [24 CFR 966.4(e)].

Types of PHA-Conducted Inspections
Move-In Inspections [24 CFR 966.4(i)]

The lease must require County Housing and the family to inspect the dwelling unit prior to
occupancy to determine the condition of the unit and equipment in the unit. A copy of the initial
inspection, signed by County Housing and the tenant, must be provided to the tenant, and retained
in the resident file.

County Housing Policy

Any adult family member may attend the initial inspection and sign the inspection form for
the head of household.

Move-Out Inspections [24 CFR 966.4(i)]

County Housing must inspect the unit at the time the resident vacates the unit and must allow the
resident to participate in the inspection if he or she wishes unless the tenant vacates without
notice to County Housing. County Housing must provide the tenant with a statement of any
charges to be made for maintenance and damage beyond normal wear and tear.

The difference between the condition of the unit at move-in and move-out establishes the basis for
any charges against the security deposit so long as the work needed exceeds that for normal wear
and tear.

Page 8-7



ACOP: Chapter 8

County Housing Policy

When applicable, County Housing will provide the tenant with a statement of charges to be
made for maintenance and damage beyond normal wear and tear, within 10 business days
of conducting the move-out inspection.

Self-Inspections [24 CFR 5.707]

All PHAs are required to self-inspect their properties, including all units, annually to ensure they are
maintained in accordance with NSPIRE standards in 24 CFR 5.703. As part of the self-inspection
process, PHAs must ensure that deficiencies previously cited and repaired as a result of an NSPIRE
inspection have not subsequently failed.

County Housing must maintain the results of self-inspections for three years and must provide the
results to HUD upon request.

Quality Control Inspections

The purpose of quality control inspections is to ensure that all defects were identified in the original
inspection and that repairs were completed within an acceptable time frame.

County Housing Policy

Supervisory quality control inspections will be conducted in accordance with the County
Housing’s maintenance plan.

Special Inspections

County Housing Policy

County Housing staff may conduct a special inspection for any of the following reasons:
Housekeeping
Unit condition
Suspected lease violation
Preventive maintenance
Routine maintenance
There is reasonable cause to believe an emergency exists
Other Inspections

County Housing Policy

Building exteriors, grounds, common areas, and systems will be inspected annually.

Notice of Entry
Non-emergency Entries [24 CFR 966.4(j)(1)]

County Housing may enter the unit with reasonable advance notification to perform routine
inspections and maintenance, make improvements and repairs, or show the unit for re-leasing. A
written statement specifying the purpose of County Housing entry delivered to the dwelling unit at
least two days before such entry is considered reasonable advance notification.

Page 8-8



ACOP: Chapter 8

County Housing Policy

County Housing will notify the resident in writing at least 48 hours prior to any non-
emergency inspection.

For regular annual self-inspections, the family will receive at least one week's written notice
of the inspection to allow the family to prepare the unit for it.

Entry for repairs requested by the family will not require prior notice. Resident-requested
repairs presume permission for County Housing to enter the unit.

Except for emergencies, management will not enter the dwelling unit to perform
inspections where a pet resides unless accompanied for the entire duration of the
inspection by the pet owner or a responsible person designated by the pet ownerin
accordance with pet policies in Chapter 10 of this ACOP.

Emergency Entries [24 CFR 966.4(j)(2)]

County Housing may enter the dwelling unit at any time without advance notice when there is
reasonable cause to believe that an emergency exists. If no adult household member is present at
the time of an emergency entry, County Housing must leave a written statement showing the date,
time, and purpose of the entry prior to leaving the dwelling unit.

Scheduling of PHA-Conducted Inspections

County Housing Policy

Inspections will be conducted during business hours. If a family needs to reschedule an
inspection, they must notify County Housing at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled
inspection. County Housing will reschedule the inspection no more than once unless the
resident has a verifiable good cause to delay the inspection. County Housing may request
verification of such cause.

Attendance at Inspections

Residents are required to be present for move-in inspections [24 CFR 966.4(i)]. There is no such
requirement for other types of inspections.

County Housing Policy

While the resident is required to be present for move-in inspections, the resident is not
required to be present for other types of inspections. The resident may attend the
inspection if they wish.

If no one is at home, the inspector will enter the unit, conduct the inspection, and leave a
copy of the inspection report in the unit.

Repairs

Correction timeframes differ depending on whether repairs are considered emergency or non-
emergency repairs.

Emergency Repairs [24 CFR 966.4(h)]

If the unit is damaged to the extent that conditions are created that are hazardous to the life,
health, or safety of the occupants, the tenant must immediately notify County Housing of the
damage, and County Housing must make repairs within a reasonable time frame. Under NSPIRE,
County Housing must correct all life-threatening and severe deficiencies within 24 hours.

Page 8-9



ACOP: Chapter 8

If the damage was caused by a household member or guest, County Housing must charge the
family for the reasonable cost of repairs. County Housing may also take lease enforcement action
against the family.

If County Housing cannot make repairs quickly, it must offer the family standard alternative
accommodations. If County Housing can neither repair the defect within a reasonable time frame
nor offer alternative housing, rent shall be abated in proportion to the seriousness of the damage
and loss in value as a dwelling. Rent shall not be abated if the damage was caused by a household
member or guest or if the resident rejects the alternative accommodations.

Non-emergency Repairs

County Housing Policy

County Housing will correct deficiencies resulting in a non-emergency work order identified
during a County Housing-conducted inspection within 15 business days of the inspection
date. If County Housing is unable to make repairs within that period due to circumstances
beyond County Housing’s control (e.g., required parts or services are not available, weather
conditions, etc.), it will notify the family of an estimated date of completion.

The family must allow County Housing access to the unit to make repairs.

Except for emergencies, management will not enter the dwelling unit to perform repairs
where a pet resides unless accompanied for the entire duration of the repair by the pet
owner or a responsible person designated by the pet owner in accordance with the pet
policies in Chapter 10 of this ACOP.

Resident-Caused Damages

County Housing Policy

Damages to the unit beyond wear and tear will be billed to the tenant in accordance with
the policies in 8-I.F., Maintenance and Damage Charges.

Repeated or excessive damage to the unit beyond normal wear and tear will be considered
a serious or repeated violation of the lease.

Housekeeping

County Housing Policy

Residents whose housekeeping habits pose a non-emergency health or safety risk,
encourage insect or rodent infestation or cause damage to the unit is in violation of the
lease. In these instances, County Housing will provide proper notice of a lease violation.

A reinspection will be conducted within 30 days to confirm that the resident has complied
with the requirement to abate the problem. Failure to abate the problem or allow for a
reinspection is considered a violation of the lease and may result in termination of tenancy
in accordance with Chapter 13.

Notices of lease violation will also be issued to residents who purposely disengage the
unit’s smoke detector and/or carbon monoxide alarm. Only one warning will be given. A
second incidence will result in lease termination.

Page 8-10



ACOP: Chapter 8
8-11.C. NSPIRE INSPECTIONS [24 CFR 5.705(c); Notice PIH 2023-16]

During an NSPIRE inspection, REAC inspectors will inspect areas and associated items or
components that are listed in the regulations as affirmative requirements and those included
within the NSPIRE standards. For most properties, the frequency of NSPIRE inspections is
determined by the date of the prior inspection and the score received.

Notice to Residents [Notice PIH 2023-16]
County Housing must provide notice to all residents as described in 24 CFR 5.711(h) and the lease.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will provide all residents with at least seven days’ notice of an NSPIRE
inspection. Notice will be provided through multiple communication methods, including by
posting a notice on each resident’s door and through email. All materials, notices, and
communications to families regarding the inspection will be clearly communicated and
provided in a manner that is effective for persons with hearing, visual, and other
communication-related disabilities consistent with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
(Section 504) and HUD’s Section 504 regulation, and Titles Il or lll of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) and implementing regulations.

24-Hour Corrections [24 CFR 5.711(c); Notice PIH 2023-16]

At the conclusion of the NSPIRE inspection, or at the end of the day on multi-day inspections, HUD
provides County Housing with a list of life-threatening and severe deficiencies. County Housing
must correct all life-threatening and severe deficiencies within 24 hours, with certification of
correction submitted to HUD within two business days of receipt of notification of the deficiency.

If permanent repair will take longer than the allowable time in the relevant standard for the
deficiency, County Housing must provide HUD with a timeframe for completing permanent repairs
and submit evidence that the repair is in progress. Any extension to the allowable time for rectifying
the deficiency is allowed only upon HUD approval for good cause.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will correct all life-threatening and severe deficiencies within 24 hours.
Correcting the deficiency means County Housing will resolve or sufficiently address the
deficiency in a manner that it no longer poses a severe health or safety risk to residents or
the hazard is blocked until permanent repairs can be completed. A correction could
include controlling or blocking access to the hazard by performing a temporary relocation
of the resident while repairs are made.

While County Housing will complete all repairs expeditiously, if a permanent repair is not
possible within 24 hours, County Housing will correct the deficiency by performing an
interim repair to remove the health and safety hazard. If the correction is temporary or
professional services or materials are unavailable within 24 hours, County Houisng will
provide a target date for permanent correction. Such interim repairs will be fully completed
within a reasonable timeframe approved by HUD.

The family must allow County Housing access to the unit to make repairs.
Non-emergency Repairs

Under NSPIRE, County Housing must correct moderate deficiencies within 30 days and low
deficiencies within 60 days or as otherwise provided in the NSPIRE standards. Repairs should be

Page 8-11



ACOP: Chapter 8

permanent fixes unless otherwise approved by HUD in writing. HUD may also prescribe timelines in
Corrective Action Plans as defined in 24 CFR 902.3 or Corrective Action Agreements as described
in 24 CFR 902.105.

County Housing Policy

If County Housing is unable to make repairs within the periods identified in the NSPIRE
standards due to circumstances beyond County Housing’s control (e.g., required parts or
services are not available, weather conditions, etc.), County Housing will provide HUD with
a timeframe for completing permanent repairs and obtain HUD approval. County Housing
will also notify the family of an estimated date of completion.

The family must allow County Housing access to the unit to make repairs.

Except for emergencies, management will not enter the dwelling unit to perform repairs
where a pet resides unless accompanied for the entire duration of the repair by the pet
owner or a responsible person designated by the pet owner in accordance with the pet
policies in Chapter 10 of this ACOP.

Page 8-12



ACOP: Chapter 8

EXHIBIT 8-1: SMOKE-FREE POLICY

In accordance with HUD regulations, the County Housing has adopted these smoke-free policies.

Due to the increased risk of fire, increased maintenance costs, and the known health effects of
secondhand smoke, smoking is prohibited in all living units and interior areas, including but not
limited to hallways, rental and administrative offices, community centers, daycare centers, laundry
centers, and similar structures. Smoking is also prohibited in outdoor areas within 25 feet of public
housing and administrative office buildings.

This policy applies to all employees, residents, household members, guests, and service persons.
Residents are responsible for ensuring that household members and guests comply with this rule.

The term “smoking” means any inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted cigar, cigarette,
pipe, or other prohibited tobacco or marijuana product in any manner or any form. Prohibited
products include water pipes or hookahs.

Violation of the smoke-free policy constitutes a violation of the terms of the public housing lease.
Consequences of lease violations include termination of tenancy.

COUNTY HOUSING POLICIES

Designated Smoking Areas (DSA)

County Housing has not designated any smoking areas on County Housing property.
Residents may not discard smoking products on the property.

Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems (ENDS)

Electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS) include e-cigarettes, nicotine inhalers, and vaping
devices.

The use of ENDS is not permitted in public housing units, common areas, or outdoor areas
within 25 feet of housing and administrative buildings.

Effective Date
County Housing’s effective date(s) of this smoke-free policy is/are as follows:

The smoke-free policy is effective for all residents, household members, employees,
guests, and service persons as of January 01, 2018.

Enforcement

County Housing must enforce smoke-free policies when a resident violates this policy. When
enforcing the lease, County Housing will provide due process and allow residents to exercise their
right to an informal settlement and formal hearing. County Housing will not evict a resident for a
single incident of smoking in violation of this policy. As such, County Housing willimplement a
graduated enforcement framework that includes escalating warnings. Prior to pursuing eviction for
violation of smoke-free policies, County Housing will take specific, progressive monitoring and
enforcement actions while at the same time educating tenants and providing smoking cessation
information.

Residents found in violation of this policy will be deemed in violation of their lease. The first offense
will be a written warning from County Housing staff. The second offense will consist of a second

Page 8-13



ACOP: Chapter 8

warning and a mandatory staff conference. The third offense will result in a $100 fine. The fourth
offense will result in the resident receiving a Notice to Vacate.

Residents are responsible for assuring all visitors to their residence adhere to this policy. Should
residents fail to ensure visitors refrain from smoking in the units or on the property, corrective
action as indicated above will be enforced by County Housing staff.

The following will constitute a policy violation:

e County Housing staff witnesses a resident or resident’s visitor smoking.

e Alighted productin an ashtray or other receptacle inside a unit or on County Housing
property.

o Damage to the interior or exterior of the property determined to be the result of burns
caused by smoking products.

e Evidence of smoking in the unit including but not limited to, smoking product smells,
smoke film or smoke damage to walls, smoke clogged filters, or evidence of ashes on any
surface within the unit or on the grounds.

e Fire caused by smoking products.

Reasonable Accommodation

While addiction to nicotine or smoking is not a disability, County Housing will provide reasonable
accommodation to persons with disabilities who smoke that are in compliance with the
requirements of this smoke-free policy.

Head of Household Date
Adult Household Member Date
Adult Household Member Date
Adult Household Member Date
Adult Household Member Date
County Housing Staff Date

Page 8-14



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

Chapter 8

NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR THE PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF REAL ESTATE AND RENT
REASONABLENESS DETERMINATIONS
[24 CFR 5 Subpart G and Notice PIH 2023-28]

INTRODUCTION

HUD requires that all units occupied by families receiving Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) and
Project Based Voucher (PBV) assistance meet HUD’s National Standards for the Physical
Inspection of Real Estate (NSPIRE) regulations and standards no later than October 1, 2024. The
inspection performance standards and procedures for conducting NSPIRE inspections must be
included in the administrative plan [Notice PIH 2023-28].

All units must pass an NSPIRE inspection prior to the approval of a lease (with some exceptions)
and at least once every 24 months during the term of the HAP contract, and at other times as
needed, to determine that the unit meets NSPIRE standards. HUD also requires PHAs to determine
that rents for units under the program are reasonable when compared to comparable unassisted
units in the market area.

Provided they meet certain requirements, HUD permits PHAs to establish some additional local
requirements in their administrative plans. The use of the term NSPIRE in this plan refers to the
combination of both HUD and County Housing-established requirements. However, state and local
code compliance is not part of the determination of whether a unit passes the NSPIRE standards.

This chapter explains HUD and County Housing requirements related to physical inspections and
rent reasonableness as follows:

Part I. Physical Standards. This part discusses NSPIRE standards required of units
occupied by HCV and PBV-assisted families. It also identifies affirmative habitability
requirements for all units and life-threatening conditions that must be corrected in 24
hours.

Part Il. The Inspection Process. This part describes the types of inspections County Housing
will make and the steps that will be taken when units do not meet NSPIRE standards.

Part lll. Rent Reasonableness Determinations. This part discusses the policies County
Housing will use to make rent reasonableness determinations.

Special NSPIRE requirements for homeownership, manufactured homes, and other special
housing types are discussed in Chapter 15 to the extent that they apply in this jurisdiction. Special
requirements for the PBV and RAD PBV programs (if applicable) are discussed in Chapters 17 and
18, respectively.

Page 8-1



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

PART I: NSPIRE STANDARDS

NSPIRE standards are published on HUD’s NSPIRE website as well as in the NSPIRE Final Rule [FR
Notice 5/1//2023].

8-1.A. INSPECTABLE AREAS [24 CFR 5.703(a)(1) and 24 CFR 5.705(a)(2)]

NSPIRE defines the inspectable areas for inspection under the standards as inside, outside, and
unit. However, the inspection requirement for the HCV and PBV programs only applies to units
occupied or to be occupied by HCV or PBV participants and common areas and exterior areas that
either service or are associated with such units.

8-1.B. AFFIRMATIVE HABITABILITY REQUIREMENTS [24 CFR 5.703(b), (c), and (d)]

NSPIRE provides minimum or affirmative habitability requirements for each area (unit, inside,
outside). These areas must meet these requirements for habitability, which are listed in Exhibit 8-1.

The inside, outside, and unit must be free of health and safety hazards that pose a danger to
residents. Types of health and safety concerns include, but are not limited to, carbon monoxide,
electrical hazards, extreme temperature, flammable materials or other fire hazards, garbage and
debris, handrail hazards, infestation, lead-based paint, mold, and structural soundness [24 CFR
5.703(e).

The NSPIRE smoke alarm standard does not require that smoke alarms have a sealed battery;
however, upon the effective date of the Public and Federally Assisted Housing Fire Safety Act of
2022 on December 29, 2024, sealed batteries will be required.

8-1.C. MODIFICATIONS TO PROVIDE ACCESSIBILITY [24 CFR 100.203; Notice 2003-31; and
Notice PIH 2014-02]

Under the Fair Housing Act of 1988, an owner must make reasonable accommodations in rules,
policies, practices, or services if necessary for a person with disabilities to use the housing and
must not refuse the request of a family that contains a person with a disability to make necessary
and reasonable modifications to the unit if such modification is necessary to afford the person with
a disability full enjoyment of the premises. Such modifications are at the family’s expense. The
owner may, where it is reasonable to do so, require restoration of the unit to its original condition
(reasonable wear and tear excepted) if the modification would interfere with the owner or the next
occupant's full enjoyment of the premises. The owner may not increase a customarily required
security deposit. However, the landlord may negotiate a restoration agreement that requires the
family to restore the unit and, if necessary to ensure the likelihood of restoration, may require the
tenant to pay a reasonable amount into an interest-bearing escrow account over a reasonable
period of time. The interest in any such account accrues to the benefit of the tenant. The owner
may also require reasonable assurances that the quality of the work will be acceptable and that
any required building permits will be obtained. [24 CFR 100.203; Notice 2003-31].

Modifications to units to provide access for a person with a disability must meet all applicable
NSPIRE requirements and conform to the design, construction, or alteration of facilities contained
in the UFAS and the ADA Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG) [28 CFR 35.151(c) and Notice 2003-31]
See Chapter 2 of this plan for additional information on reasonable accommodations for persons
with disabilities.

Page 8-2



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

8-1.D. ADDITIONAL LOCAL REQUIREMENTS [24 CFR 5.705(a)(3) and Notice PIH 2023-28]

County Housing may impose variations to the NSPIRE standards as long as the additional criteria
are not likely to adversely affect the health or safety of participant families or severely restrict
housing choices for families. HUD approval is required for variations to NSPIRE standards, and
approved variations must be added to the administrative plan.

HUD may approve inspection criteria variations if they apply standards in local housing codes or
other codes adopted by County Housing or because of local climatic or geographic conditions.
Acceptability criteria variations may only be approved by HUD if such variations either meet or
exceed the performance requirements or significantly expand affordable housing opportunities for
families assisted under the program.

County Housing Policy

County Housing has not requested any HUD-approved variations to NSPIRE standards.
8-1.E. LIFE-THREATENING DEFICIENCIES [Notice PIH 2023-28]

HUD previously required PHAs to define life-threatening conditions in the administrative plan. The
NSPIRE standards now describe those conditions which are considered life-threatening and must
be corrected within 24 hours.

The following is a list of life-threatening deficiencies under NSPIRE:

Inspectable Item Deficiency

Call-for-Aid System System is blocked, or pull cord is higher than 6 inches off the floor.

System does not function properly

Carbon Monoxide Alarm Carbon monoxide alarm is missing, not installed, or not installed in
a proper location.

Carbon monoxide alarm is obstructed.

Carbon monoxide alarm does not produce an audio or visual alarm
when tested.

Chimney Avisually accessible chimney, flue, or firebox connected to a
fireplace or wood-burning appliance is incomplete or damaged
such that it may not safely contain fire and convey smoke and
combustion gases to the exterior.

Chimney exhibits signs of structural failure.

Clothes Dryer Exhaust Electric dryer transition duct is detached or missing.

Ventilation Gas dryer transition duct is detached or missing.

Electric dryer exhaust ventilation system has restricted airflow.

Dryer transition duct is constructed of unsuitable material.

Gas dryer exhaust ventilation system has restricted airflow.

Dorr - Entry Entry door is missing.

Page 8-3



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

Inspectable Item

Deficiency

Door - Fire Labeled

Fire labeled door is missing.

Egress

Obstructed means of egress.

Sleeping room is located on the third floor or below and has an
obstructed rescue opening.

Fire escape is obstructed.

Electrical — Conductor,
Outlet, and Switch

Outlet or switch is damaged.

Exposed electrical conductor.

Water is currently in contact with an electrical conductor.

Electrical — Service Panel

The overcurrent protection device is damaged.

Exit Sign Exit sign is damaged, missing, obstructed, or not adequately
illuminated.
Fire Escape Fire extinguisher is damaged or missing.

Fire Extinguisher

Fire extinguisher pressure gauge reads over or under-charged.

Fire extinguisher service tag is missing, illegible, or expired.

Fire extinguisher is damaged or missing.

Flammable and
Combustible Items

Flammable or combustible item is on or within 3 feet of an
appliance that provides heat for thermal comfort or a fuel-burning
water heater; OR

Improperly stored chemicals.

Guardrail

Guardrail is missing or not installed.

Guardrail is not functionally adequate.

Heating, Ventilation, and
Air Conditioning (HVAC)

The inspection date is on or between October 1 and March 31 and
the permanently installed heating source is not working or the
permanently installed heating source is working and the interior
temperature is below 64 degrees Fahrenheit.

Unvented space heater that burns gas, oil, or kerosene is present.

Combustion chamber cover or gas shutoff valve is missing from a
fuel burning heating appliance.

Fuel burning heating system or device exhaust vent is misaligned,
blocked, disconnected, improperly connected, damaged, or
missing.

Leak — Gas or QOil

Natural gas, propane, or oil leak.

Mold-like Substance

Presence of mold-like substance at extremely high levels is
observed visually.

Smoke Alarm

Smoke alarm is not installed where required.

Smoke alarm is obstructed.

Page 8-4




Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

Inspectable Item Deficiency

Smoke alarm does not produce an audio or visual alarm when
tested.

Sprinkler Assembly Sprinkler head assembly is encased or obstructed by an item or
object that is within 18 inches of the sprinkler head.

Sprinkler assembly component is damaged, inoperable, or missing
and itis detrimental to performance.

Sprinkler assembly has evidence of corrosion.

Sprinkler assembly has evidence of foreign material that is
detrimental to performance.

Structural System Structural system exhibits signs of serious failure.
Toilet Only 1 toilet was installed, and it is missing.
Water Heater Chimney or flue piping is blocked, misaligned, or missing.

Gas shutoff valve is damaged, missing, or not installed.

However, PHAs may add additional deficiencies that they consider life-threatening, provided they
are described in the administrative plan.

County Housing Policy

In addition to those listed under the NSPIRE standards, the following are considered life-
threatening conditions:

Any condition which adversely affects the health, welfare, or safety of the tenant.
8-1.F. OWNER AND FAMILY RESPONSIBILITIES [24 CFR 982.404]
Family Responsibilities
The family is responsible for correcting the following deficiencies:
e Tenant-paid utilities not in service
e Failure to provide or maintain appliances owned by the family

o Damage to the unit or premises caused by a household member or guest beyond normal wear
and tear.

If a family fails to correct a family-caused life-threatening condition as required by County Housing,
County Housing will enforce the family obligations. See 8-II.H.

County Housing Policy

Damage beyond ordinary wear and tear will be considered damage which could be assessed
against the security deposit under state law or in court practice.

Owner Responsibilities

The owner must maintain the unit in accordance with NSPIRE regulations and standards.
The owner is not responsible for a breach of the NSPIRE standards that are not caused by

Page 8-5


https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b25dcf8d34b6c6eca045f69c757f8f6f&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:B:Chapter:IX:Part:982:Subpart:I:982.404

Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

the owner and for which the family is responsible (as provided in 24 CFR
982.404(b) and 982.551(c)).

County Housing Policy

The owner is responsible for all NSPIRE violations not listed as a family responsibility
above, even if the violation is caused by the family’s living habits (e.g., vermin infestation).
However, if the family's actions constitute a serious or repeated lease violation, the owner
may take legal action to evict the family.

The owner will be required to repair an inoperable smoke detector unless County Housing
determines that the family has intentionally disconnected it (by removing batteries or other
means). In this case, the family will be required to repair the smoke detector within 24
hours.

If an owner fails to correct life-threatening conditions as required, County Housing will enforce the
NSPIRE standards in accordance with HUD requirements. See 8-1I-G.

8-1.G. LEAD-BASED PAINT

PHAs and owners must comply with the requirements and timelines in 24 CFR Part 35 Subpart M—
Tenant-Based Rental Assistance and Subpart H—Project-Based Assistance. PHAs and owners are
reminded that any deteriorated paint in target housing or other lead-based paint hazard identified
through a lead-based paint risk assessment or lead-based paint inspection is considered a
violation of NSPIRE standards.

For the HCV program, Subpart M applies to units where a child under age six resides or is expected
to reside, common areas that service that unit, and exterior painted surfaces associated with that
unit or common areas. For project-based programs, Subpart H applies to assisted units and
common areas of the property regardless of whether a child under age six resides or is expected to
reside in the unit. NSPIRE does not alter any of the lead-based paint requirements in Part 35 for
these programs.

Special Requirements for Children with Elevated Blood Lead Level [24 CFR 35.1225; FR Notice
1/13/17; Notice PIH 2017-13]

If County Housing is notified by a public health department or other medical health care provider,
or verifies information from a source other than a public health department or medical health care
provider that a child of less than six years of age, living in an HCV-assisted unit has been identified
as having an elevated blood lead level, County Housing must complete an environmental
investigation of the dwelling unit within 15 calendar days after being notified by a public health
department or other medical health care provider. The environmental investigation must be
completed in accordance with program requirements, and the result of the environmental
investigation must be immediately provided to the owner of the dwelling unit. In cases where the
public health department has already completed an evaluation of the unit, this information must
be provided to the owner.

Within 30 days after receiving the environmental investigation report from County Housing, or the
evaluation from the public health department, the owner is required to complete the reduction of
identified lead-based paint hazards in accordance with the lead-based paint regulations [24 CFR

35.1325 and 35.1330; 40 CFR 745.227]. If the owner does not complete the “hazard reduction” as

Page 8-6


https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b25dcf8d34b6c6eca045f69c757f8f6f&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:B:Chapter:IX:Part:982:Subpart:I:982.404
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1f68151e1e7b5576e83fae9fa5092bec&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:B:Chapter:IX:Part:982:Subpart:I:982.404
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/982.404#b
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/982.404#b
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/982.551#c

Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

required, the dwelling unit is in violation of NSPIRE, and County Housing will take action in
accordance with Section 8-I11.G.

County Housing reporting requirements, data collection, and record-keeping responsibilities
related to children with an elevated blood lead level are discussed in Chapter 16.

8-1.H. VIOLATION OF SPACE STANDARDS [24 CFR 5.703(d)(5)]

Units assisted under the HCV or PBV programs must have at least one bedroom or living/sleeping
room for each two persons. A living room may be used as a sleeping (bedroom) space, but no more
than two persons may occupy the space [HCV GB p. 10-6]. Each habitable room must have two
working outlets or one working outlet and a permanent light. HUD defines a habitable room as a
room in a building for living, sleeping, eating, or cooking, excluding bathrooms, toilet rooms,
closets, hallways, storage or utility spaces, and similar areas [FR Notice 5/11/23].

A unitthat does not meet these space standards is defined as overcrowded.

If County Housing determines that a unit is overcrowded because of an increase in family size or a
change in family composition, County Housing must issue the family a new voucher, and the family
and County Housing must try to find an acceptable unit as soon as possible. If an acceptable unitis
available for rental by the family, County Housing must terminate the HAP contract in accordance
with its terms.

Page 8-7



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8
PART Il: THE INSPECTION PROCESS

8-1I.A. OVERVIEW [24 CFR 982.405]
Types of Inspections

County Housing conducts the following types of inspections as needed. Each type of inspection is
discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

e Initial Inspections. County Housing conducts initial inspections in response to a request from
the family to approve a unit for participation in the HCV program.

e Annual/Biennial Inspections. HUD requires County Housing to inspect each unit under lease at
least annually or biennially, depending on County Housing policy, to confirm that the unit still
meets NSPIRE standards.

e Speciallnspections. A special inspection may be requested by the owner, the family, or a third
party as a result of problems identified with a unit between annual inspections.

e Quality Control Inspections. HUD requires that a sample of units be inspected by a supervisor
or other qualified individual to evaluate the work of the inspector(s) and to ensure that
inspections are performed in compliance with the NSPIRE standards.

Inspection of PHA-Owned Units [24 CFR 982.352(b)]

County Housing must obtain the services of an independent entity to perform all NSPIRE
inspections in cases where an HCV family is receiving assistance in a County Housing-owned unit.
A County Housing-owned unit is a unit that is owned by County Housing that administers the
assistance under the consolidated ACC (including a unit owned by an entity substantially
controlled by the County Housing). The independent agency must communicate the results of each
inspection to the family and County Housing. The independent agency must be approved by HUD
and may be the unit of general local government for County Housing’s jurisdiction.

For information on the inspection of County Housing-owned units in the PBV program, see
Chapters 17 and 18.

Inspection Costs [Notice PIH 2016-05; 24 CFR 5.705(d)]

County Housing may not charge the family for unit inspections or reinspections [24 CFR
982.405(e)].

In the case of inspections of County Housing-owned units, County Housing may compensate the
independent agency from ongoing administrative fee for inspections performed. County Housing
and the independent agency may not charge the family any fee or charge for the inspection

[24 CFR.982.352(b)].

County Housing may not charge the owner for the inspection of the unit prior to the initial term of
the lease or for a first inspection during assisted occupancy of the unit. However, County Housing
may charge a reasonable fee to owners for reinspections in two situations: when the owner notifies
County Housing that a repair has been made but the deficiency has not been corrected, and when
the time for repairs has elapsed and the deficiency has not been corrected. Fees may not be
imposed for tenant-caused damages, for cases in which the inspector could not gain access to the
unit, or for new deficiencies discovered during a reinspection.

Page 8-8



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

The owner may not pass the cost of a reinspection fee to the family. Reinspection fees must be
added to County Housing’s administrative fee reserves and may only be used for activities related
to the provision of tenant-based assistance.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will not charge a fee for failed reinspections.
Remote Video Inspections (RVIs) [Notice PIH 2020-31]

As an alternative to some or all on-site inspections, County Housing may, butis not required to,
perform NSPIRE inspections from a remote location using video streaming technology and a proxy
at the inspection site. Since there may be some circumstances in which the application of
technology provides insufficient information or evidence to allow County Housing to make
appropriate determinations about whether a condition violates NSPIRE standards, Notice PIH
2020-31 requires that if a PHA chooses to implement RVIs, the PHA should have policies and
procedures in place to address such limitations.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will not conduct any inspection using RVI.
Notice and Scheduling

The family must allow County Housing to inspect the unit at reasonable times with reasonable
notice [24 CFR 982.551(d)].

County Housing Policy

Both the family and the owner will be given reasonable notice of all inspections. Exceptin
the case of a life-threatening emergency, reasonable notice is considered to be not less
than 48 hours. Inspections may be scheduled between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. Generally,
inspections will be conducted on business days only. In the case of a life-threatening
emergency, County Housing will give as much notice as possible, given the nature of the
emergency.

Owner and Family Inspection Attendance

HUD permits PHAs to set policy regarding family and owner presence at the time of inspection
[HCV GB p. 10-27].

County Housing Policy

When a family occupies the unit at the time of inspection an authorized adult must be
present for the inspection. The presence of the owner or the owner's representative is
encouraged but is not required.

At initial inspection of a vacant unit, County Housing will inspect the unit in the presence of
the owner or owner’s representative. If the owner agrees, County Housing may inspect the
unit without the presence of the owner or owner’s representative if a lockbox code for
access to the unit is provided. The presence of a family representative is permitted but is
not required.

Page 8-9



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8
8-11.B. INITIAL INSPECTION
Approving Units [FR Notice 1/18/17; Notice PIH 2017-20; and 24 CFR 982.406]

HUD regulations require that units assisted under the HCV program be inspected to determine that
the units meet NSPIRE standards before County Housing approves assisted tenancy. However,
while County Housing is required to conduct an inspection prior to approving assisted tenancy,
PHAs have two options for bringing units under HAP contract (or, in the case of PBV, approving
occupancy and the execution of a lease) more quickly. County Housing may, but is not required to
approve assisted tenancy and start HAP if the unit:

o Fails the initial inspection, but only if no life-threatening deficiencies are identified.
e Passed an alternative inspection in the last 24 months.

Otherwise, if neither of the above provisions are adopted, County Housing must determine that the
unit the family selects meets NSPIRE standards prior to approving tenancy.

County Housing Policy

The unit must pass the initial inspection on or before the effective date of the HAP contract.

County Housing will not rely on alternative inspections and will conduct an initial
inspection for each unit prior to executing a HAP contract with the owner.

Timing of Initial Inspections [24 CFR 982.395(b)(2)(i)]

HUD requires PHAs with fewer than 1,250 budgeted units to complete the initial inspection,
determine whether the unit satisfies NSPIRE standards, and notify the owner and the family of the
determination within 15 days of submission of the Request for Tenancy Approval (RFTA). For PHAs
with 1,250 or more budgeted units, to the extent practicable such inspection and determination
must be completed within 15 days. The 15-day period is suspended for any period during which the
unit is not available for inspection.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will complete the initial inspection, determine whether the unit satisfies
NSPIRE standards, and notify the owner and the family of the determination within 15 days
of submission of the RFTA.

Inspection Results and Reinspections

For new units proposed for the HCV program, life-threatening deficiencies must be resolved before
the HAP contract is executed and the family moves into the unit.

County Housing Policy

If any deficiencies are identified, the owner will be notified of the deficiencies and be given
a time frame to correct them. If requested by the owner, the time frame for correcting the
deficiencies may be extended by County Housing for good cause. County Housing will
reinspect the unit within five business days of the date the owner provides notification that
the required corrections have been made.

If any NSPIRE deficiencies are identified, the owner will be notified of the deficiencies.
Owners shall notify County Housing when the deficiencies are corrected, butin no case
longer than 60 days after the notification of the deficiencies. If requested by the owner, the

Page 8-10



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

timeframe for correcting the deficiencies may be extended by County Housing for good
cause. If the owner does not request a reinspection within 60 days, or by the end of any
approved extensions, County Housing will notify the owner and the family that the unit has
been rejected and the family must search for another unit.

Utilities

Generally, at initial lease-up the owner is responsible for demonstrating that all utilities are in

working order including those utilities that the family will be responsible for paying.

County Housing Policy

Utility service must be available for testing at the time of the initial inspection.
Appliances

County Housing Policy

If the family is responsible for supplying the stove and/or refrigerator, County Housing will
allow the stove and refrigerator to be placed in the unit after the unit has met all other
NSPIRE requirements. The required appliances must be in place before the HAP contract is
executed by County Housing. County Housing will execute the HAP contract based upon a
certification from the family that the appliances have been installed and are working. A
confirmatory inspection will be scheduled within 30 days of HAP contract approval.

8-11.C. ANNUAL/BIENNIAL INSPECTIONS [24 CFR 982.405 and 982.406; Notice PIH 2016-05]

HUD requires PHAs to inspect each unit under HAP contract at least biennially to confirm that the
unit still meets NSPIRE standards. The inspection may be conducted in conjunction with the
family's annual reexamination but also may be conducted separately.

County Housing Policy

Each unit under HAP contract must be inspected biennially within 24 months of the last full
inspection. County Housing reserves the right to require annual inspections of any unit or
owner at any time.

County Housing will not rely on alternative inspection standards.
Scheduling the Inspection

County Housing Policy

If an adult cannot be present on the scheduled date, the family should request that County
Housing reschedule the inspection. County Housing and family will agree on a new
inspection date that generally should take place within five business days of the originally
scheduled date. County Housing may schedule an inspection more than five business days
after the original date for good cause.

If the family misses the first scheduled appointment without requesting a new inspection
date, County Housing will automatically schedule a second inspection. If the family misses
two scheduled inspections without County Housing approval, County Housing will consider
the family to have violated its obligation to make the unit available for inspection. This may
result in termination of the family’s assistance in accordance with Chapter 12.

Page 8-11



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8
8-11.D. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS [24 CFR 982.405(g)]

If a participant family or government official reports a life-threatening condition which the owner
would be required to repair within 24 hours, County Housing must inspect the unit within 24 hours
of notification. If the reported condition is not life-threatening, County Housing must inspect the
unit within 15 days of notification.

County Housing Policy

During a special inspection, County Housing generally will inspect only those deficiencies
that were reported. However, the inspector will record any additional deficiencies that are
observed and will require the responsible party to make the necessary repairs.

If the annual/biennial inspection has been scheduled or is due within 90 days of the date
the specialinspection is scheduled, County Housing may elect to conduct a full
annual/biennial inspection.

8-11.E. QUALITY CONTROL INSPECTIONS [24 CFR 982.405(b); 24 CFR 985.3(e); HCV GB, p. 10-
32]

HUD requires a County Housing supervisor or other qualified person to conduct quality control
inspections of a sample of units to ensure that each inspector is conducting accurate and
complete inspections and that there is consistency in the application of the NSPIRE standards.

The unit sample must include only units that have been inspected within the preceding three
months. The selected sample should be drawn to represent a cross-section of neighborhoods and
the work of a cross-section of inspectors.

8-1I.F. INSPECTION RESULTS AND REINSPECTIONS FOR UNITS UNDER HAP CONTRACT

Correction Timeframes

Each deficiency is identified in the NPSIRE standards as either life-threatening, severe, moderate,
or low.

For units under HAP contract, life-threatening deficiencies must be corrected within 24 hours after
notice has been provided. All other non-life-threatening deficiencies (severe and moderate) must
be corrected within 30 days (or a County Housing-approved extension) after notice has been
provided. If low deficiencies are present in a unit, these deficiencies result in a pass and would only
be noted by the inspector for informational purposes.

Notification of Corrective Actions

The owner and the family will be notified in writing of the results of all inspections. When an
inspection identifies deficiencies, County Housing will determine (1) whether or not the failure is a
life-threatening condition and (2) whether the family or owner is responsible.

County Housing Policy

When life-threatening deficiencies are identified, County Housing will immediately notify
both parties by telephone or email. The notice will specify who is responsible for correcting
the violation. The corrective actions must be taken within 24 hours of the County Housing’s
notice.

Page 8-12



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

When failures that are severe or moderate are identified, County Housing will send the
owner and the family a written notification of the inspection results within five business
days of the inspection. The written notice will specify who is responsible for correcting the
violation, and the time frame within which the failure must be corrected. Generally, not
more than 30 days will be allowed for the correction. If low deficiencies are identified, these
deficiencies will only be noted for informational purposes.

The notice of inspection results will inform the owner that if life-threatening conditions are
not corrected within 24 hours and non-life-threatening conditions are not corrected within
the specified time frame (or any County Housing-approved extension), the owner’s HAP
may be abated or terminated in accordance with County Housing policy (see 8-11.G.).

Likewise, in the case of family-caused deficiencies, the notice will inform the family that if
corrections are not made within the specified time frame (or any County Housing-approved
extension, if applicable), the family’s assistance may be terminated in accordance with
County Housing policy (see Chapter 12).

Extensions

For life-threatening deficiencies, County Housing cannot grant an extension to the 24-hour
corrective action period. For conditions that are severe or moderate, County Housing may grant an
exception to the required time frames for correcting the violation, if it determines that an extension
is appropriate.

County Housing Policy

Extensions will be granted in cases where County Housing has determined that the owner
has made a good faith effort to correct the deficiencies and is unable to for reasons beyond
the owner’s control. Reasons may include, but are not limited to:

A repair cannot be completed because required parts or services are not available.
A repair cannot be completed because of weather conditions.

A reasonable accommodation is needed because the family includes a person with

disabilities.

A repair cannot be completed because of the tenant family’s failure to cooperate.
The length of the extension will be determined on a case-by-case basis but will not exceed
60 days, except in the case of delays caused by weather conditions. In the case of weather
conditions, extensions may be continued until the weather has improved sufficiently to

make repairs possible. The necessary repairs must be made within 15 calendar days once
the weather conditions have subsided.

Reinspections

County Housing Policy

County Housing will conduct a reinspection immediately following the end of the corrective
period or any County Housing-approved extension.

The family and owner will be given reasonable notice of the reinspection appointment. If the
deficiencies have not been corrected by the time of the reinspection, County Housing will
send a notice of abatement to the owner or, in the case of family-caused violations, a

Page 8-13



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

notice of termination to the family, in accordance with County Housing policies. If County
Housing is unable to gain entry to the unit in order to conduct the scheduled reinspection,
County Housing will consider the family to have violated its obligation to make the unit
available for inspection. This may result in termination of the family’s assistance in
accordance with Chapter 12.

County Housing may accept self-certification from the owner that deficiencies have been
corrected provided the owner has no history of noncompliance with the program and all
deficiencies are severe or moderate. In deciding whether to allow for this type of
documentation, County Housing will consider the severity of corrections needed and/or its
experience with the owner and property.

Self-certification may include photos or videos, certification from a building maintenance
official that work has been completed, evidence from a utility company that service has
been restored, or other documented proof of repairs that include the date of repair, such as
receipts. All verifications must document the repair was made to the County Housing’s
satisfaction and that a deficiency is no longer present.

County Housing will only allow for self-certification of severe and moderate deficiencies.
County Housing will not accept self-certification of repairs in PBV units, for repairs made
due to deficiencies at initial move-in, for life-threatening deficiencies, or for any life safety
systems such as smoke alarms.

When County Housing permits the use of photos to verify correction, each photo taken
must be clearly labeled so that the relevant content is easily identified. The photo must also
be matched to a specific item on the inspection form, along with any written description of
the deficiency.

County Housing will ensure that any photos or videos remain secure and are used only by
staff or others needing access for purposes of the inspection. Photos or videos will remain
within a secure file as long as a family is receiving assistance in the specific unit.

All evidence of repairs must be submitted to County Housing by the deadline provided to
the owner and family; otherwise, the reinspection date will stand. County Housing will
notify the owner via email or phone of the acceptance or denial of the submitted
documentation. If County Housing does not accept the owner’s self-certification, the
inspection date will stand.

County Housing reserves the right to conduct an in-person inspection to verify corrections
have been made at any time. County Housing may require a reinspection, regardless of
whether the owner submits self-certification documentation, and may deny the option to
submit a self-certification where any question remains regarding the integrity of the
documentation provided, where documentation is lacking (i.e., fail items where no receipts
or other evidence reflect repair), or where an owner has a repeated history of regular or
repeat fails.

Page 8-14



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8
8-11.G. ENFORCING OWNER COMPLIANCE

If the owner fails to maintain the dwelling unit in accordance with NSPIRE standards, County
Housing must take prompt and vigorous action to enforce the owner obligations.

HAP Abatement

If an owner fails to correct deficiencies by the time specified by the County Housing, HUD requires
County Housing to abate housing assistance payments no later than the first of the month
following the specified correction period (including any approved extension) [24 CFR 985.3(f)]. No
retroactive payments will be made to the owner for the period of time the rent was abated. Owner
rents are not abated as a result of deficiencies that are the family's responsibility.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will make all HAP abatements effective the first of the month following the
expiration of the County Housing-specified correction period (including any extension).

County Housing will inspect abated units within five business days of the owner’s
notification that the work has been completed. Payment will resume effective on the day
the unit passes inspection.

During any abatement period, the family continues to be responsible for its share of the rent. The
owner must not seek payment from the family for abated amounts and may not use the abatement
as a cause for eviction.

HAP Contract Termination

County Housing must decide how long any abatement period will continue before the HAP contract
will be terminated. County Housing should not terminate the contract until the family finds another
unit, provided the family does so in a reasonable time [HCV GB p. 10-29], and must give the owner
reasonable notice of the termination. County Housing will issue a voucher to permit the family to
move to another unit as described in Chapter 10.

County Housing Policy

The maximum length of time that HAP may be abated is 90 days. However, if the owner
completes corrections and notifies County Housing before the termination date of the HAP
contract, County Housing may rescind the termination notice if (1) the family still resides in
the unit and wishes to remain in the unit and (2) the unit passes inspection.

Reasonable notice of HAP contract termination by County Housing is 30 days.

8-1I.H. ENFORCING FAMILY COMPLIANCE [24 CFR 982.404(b)]

Families are responsible for correcting any deficiencies listed in paragraph 8-1.D. If the family fails
to correct a violation within the period allowed by County Housing (and any extensions), County
Housing will terminate the family’s assistance, according to the policies described in Chapter 12.

If the owner carries out a repair for which the family is responsible under the lease, the owner may
bill the family for the cost of the repair.

Page 8-15



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

PART Ill: RENT REASONABLENESS [24 CFR 982.507]

8-111.A. OVERVIEW

Except in the case of certain LIHTC- and HOME-assisted units, no HAP contract can be approved
until County Housing has determined that the rent for the unit is reasonable. The purpose of the
rent reasonableness test is to ensure that a fair rent is paid for each unit rented under the HCV
program.

HUD regulations define a reasonable rent as one that does not exceed the rent charged for
comparable, unassisted units in the same market area. HUD also requires that owners not charge
more for assisted units than for comparable units on the premises. This part explains the method
used to determine whether a unit’s rent is reasonable.

PHA-Owned Units [24 CFR 982.352(b)]

In cases where an HCV family is receiving assistance in a County Housing-owned unit, the County
Housing must obtain the services of an independent entity to determine rent reasonableness in
accordance with program requirements and to assist the family in negotiating the contract rent
when the family requests assistance. A County Housing-owned unit is defined as a unit that is
owned by the PHA that administers the assistance under the consolidated ACC (including a unit
owned by an entity substantially controlled by the PHA). The independent agency must
communicate the results of the rent reasonableness determination to the family and County
Housing. The independent agency must be approved by HUD and may be the unit of general local
government for County Housing’s jurisdiction.

8-111.B. WHEN RENT REASONABLENESS DETERMINATIONS ARE REQUIRED
Owner-Initiated Rent Determinations

County Housing must make a rent reasonableness determination at initial occupancy and
whenever the owner requests a rent adjustment.

The owner and family first negotiate the rent for a unit. County Housing will assist the family with
the negotiations upon request. At initial occupancy County Housing must determine whether the
proposed rent is reasonable before a HAP contract is signed. The owner must not change the rent
during the initial lease term. Subsequent requests for rent adjustments must be consistent with the
lease between the owner and the family. Rent increases will not be approved unless any failed
items identified by the most recent inspection have been corrected.

County Housing Policy

After the initial term of the lease, the owner may request a rent adjustment in accordance
with the owner’s lease and County Housing’s policies. For rent increase requests after the
initial lease-up, County Housing may request owners to provide information about the rents
charged for other unassisted units on the premises if the premises include more than 4
units. In evaluating the proposed rents in comparison to other units on the premises,
County Housing will consider unit size and length of tenancy in the other units.

All rent increase requests must be submitted between 60 and 120 days before the HAP
contract’s anniversary date. After receiving the request from the owner, County Housing
will determine whether the requested increase is reasonable and notify the ownerin

Page 8-16



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

writing. All rent adjustments will be effective the first of the month on the HAP contract's
anniversary date. Rent increases will not be approved unless deficiencies identified by the
most recent NSPIRE inspection have been corrected.

PHA and HUD-Initiated Rent Reasonableness Determinations

HUD requires County Housing to make a determination of rent reasonableness (even if the owner
has not requested a change) if there is a 10 percent decrease in the fair market rent that goes into
effect at least 60 days before the contract anniversary date. HUD also may direct County Housing
to make a determination at any other time. County Housing may decide that a new determination
of rent reasonableness is needed at any time.

County Housing Policy

In addition to the instances described above, County Housing will make a determination of
rent reasonableness at any time after the initial occupancy period if: (1) County Housing
determines that the initial rent reasonableness determination was in error or (2) County
Housing determines that the information provided by the owner about the unit or other
units on the same premises was incorrect.

LIHTC and HOME-Assisted Units [24 CFR 982.507(c)]

For units receiving low-income housing tax credits (LIHTCs) or units assisted under HUD’s HOME
Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program, a rent comparison with unassisted units is not required
if the voucher rent does not exceed the rent for other LIHTC- or HOME-assisted units in the project
that are not occupied by families with tenant-based assistance.

For LIHTCs, if the rent requested by the owner exceeds the LIHTC rents for non-voucher families,
County Housing must perform a rent comparability study in accordance with program regulations.
In such cases, the rent shall not exceed the lesser of: (1) the reasonable rent as determined from
the rent comparability study; or (2) the payment standard established by County Housing for the
unit size involved.

8-11l.C. HOW COMPARABILITY IS ESTABLISHED
Factors to Consider

HUD requires PHAs to take into consideration the factors listed below when determining rent
comparability. PHAs may use these factors to make upward or downward adjustments to the rents
of comparison units when the units are not identical to the HCV-assisted unit.

e |ocation and age
e Unit size, including the number of rooms and square footage of rooms

e The type of unit, including construction type (e.g., single family, duplex, garden, low-rise, high-
rise)

e The quality of the units, including the quality of the original construction, maintenance, and
improvements made

e Amenities, services, and utilities included in the rent

Page 8-17



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8
Units that Must Not Be Used as Comparables

Comparable units must represent unrestricted market rents. Therefore, units that receive some
form of federal, state, or local assistance that impose rent restrictions cannot be considered
comparable units. These include units assisted by HUD through any of the following programs:
Section 8 project-based assistance, Section 236 and Section 221(d)(3) Below Market Interest Rate
(BMIR) projects, HOME or Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program-assisted units in
which the rents are subsidized; units subsidized through federal, state, or local tax credits; units
subsidized by the Department of Agriculture rural housing programs, and units that are rent-
controlled by local ordinance [Notice PIH 2002-22, Notice PIH 2005-20, and Notice PIH 2020-19].

Note: Notice PIH 2020-19, issued August 21, 2020, provides further guidance on the issue of what
constitutes an assisted unit.

Rents Charged for Other Units on the Premises

The Request for Tenancy Approval (HUD-52517) requires owners to provide information, on the
form itself, about the rent charged for other unassisted comparable units on the premises if the
premises include more than 4 units.

By accepting County Housing’s payment each month, the owner certifies that the rent is not more
than the rent charged for comparable unassisted units on the premises. If asked to do so, the
owner must give County Housing information regarding rents charged for other units on the
premises.

8-111.D . PHA RENT REASONABLENESS METHODOLOGY
How Market Data Is Collected

County Housing Policy

County Housing will primarily utilize www.AffordableHousing.com, which will collect and
maintain data on market rents in County Housing’s jurisdiction. Information sources
include newspapers, realtors, market surveys, inquiries of owners, and other available
sources. The data will be maintained by bedroom size and market areas. Market areas may
be defined by zip codes.

The data will be updated on an ongoing basis, and rent information that is more than 12
months old will be archived at www.AffordableHousing.com. Market Rent Data greater than
12 months old will not be used for eligibility but may be used for reference.

How Rents Are Determined

County Housing Policy

The rent for a unit proposed for HCV assistance will be compared to the rent charged for
comparable units in the same market area. County Housing will develop a range of prices
for comparable units by bedroom size within defined market areas. Units proposed for HCV
assistance will be compared to the units within this rent range. Because units may be
similar but not exactly like the units proposed for HCV assistance, County Housing may
make adjustments to the range of prices to account for these differences. The adjustment
must reflect the local market. Not all differences in units require adjustments (e.g., the
presence or absence of a garbage disposal may not affect the rent in some market areas).

Page 8-18


http://www.affordablehousing.com/
http://www.affordablehousing.com/

Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

County Housing uses a unit-to-unit comparison, by which the rent for a unit proposed for
HCV assistance is directly compared to the rents for one or more unassisted units selected
as comparables within the same market area. Geocoded maps will be used to identify the
non-assisted units in closest proximity to the subject unit, and unit data information will be
used to select the most similar units.

In comparing rents, County Housing will take into account critical market factors that
impact rent, including the location, quality, size, unit type, and age of the contract unit, as
well as any amenities, housing services, maintenance, and utilities to be provided by the
owner in accordance with the lease.

Where comparable units differ from the units proposed for HCV assistance, County
Housing will determine whether those differences impact rent. Where they do, County
Housing will adjust the rental value of the comparable units, up or down, based on the
market value of these factors. The rent for the unit proposed for HCV assistance will be
compared to the adjusted rents for the comparable units, enabling a fair, accurate, market-
based determination of rent reasonableness.

Adjustments may vary by unit type (e.g., a second bathroom may be more valuable in a
three-bedroom unit than in a two-bedroom). The adjustment must reflect the rental value of
the difference — not its construction costs (e.g., it might cost $20,000 to put on a new roof,
but the new roof might not make any difference in what a tenant would be willing to pay
because rents units are presumed to have functioning roofs). When a comparable project
offers rent concessions (e.g., first month rent-free or reduced rent), reported monthly rents
will be adjusted accordingly. For example, if a comparable project reports rents of
$500/month but new tenants receive the first month rent-free, the actual rent for the unit
would be calculated as follows: $500 x 11 months = 5500/12 months = actual monthly rent
of $488.

County Housing will notify the owner of the rent it can approve based upon its analysis of
rents for comparable units. The owner may submit information about other comparable
units in the market area. County Housing will confirm the accuracy of the information
provided and consider this additional information when making rent determinations. The
owner must submit any additional information within five business days of County
Housing’s request for information or the owner’s request to submit information.

Page 8-19



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

EXHIBIT 8-1: AFFIRMATIVE HABITABILITY REQUIREMENTS

Affirmative Habitability Requirements: Inside

Must include at least 1 battery-operated or hard-wired smoke detector, in proper working
condition, on each level of the property.

Must meet or exceed the carbon monoxide detection standards set by the Secretary through
Federal Register notification.

Any outlet installed within 6 feet of a water source must be GFCI protected.

Must have a guardrail when there is an elevated walking surface with a drop off of 30 inches or
greater measured vertically.

Must have permanently mounted light fixtures in any kitchens and each bathroom.

May not contain unvented space heaters that burn gas, oil or kerosene.

Affirmative Habitability Requirements: Outside

Any outlet installed within 6 feet of a water source must be GFClI-protected.

Must have a guardrail when there is an elevated walking surface with a drop off of 30 inches or
greater measured vertically.

Page 8-20



Administrative Plan: Chapter 8

Affirmative Habitability Requirements: Unit

Must have hot and cold running water in the bathroom and kitchen, including an adequate
source of safe drinking water in the bathroom and kitchen.

Must include its own bathroom or sanitary facility that is in proper operating condition and
usable in privacy. It must contain a sink, a bathtub or shower, and an interior flushable toilet.

Must have at least one battery-operated or hard-wired smoke detector, in proper working
condition, in the following locations:

e On each level of the unit AND
e Inside each bedroom or sleeping area AND
e With 21 feet of any door toa bedroom measured along a path of travel AND

o Where a smoke detector is installed outside a bedroom is separated from an adjacent living
area by a door, a smoke detector must also be installed in the living area side of the door.

If the unit is occupied by a hearing-impaired person, the smoke detectors must have an alarm
system designed for hearing-impaired persons.

Must have a living room and a kitchen area with a sink, cooking appliance, refrigerator, food
preparation area and food storage area.

Must have two working outlets or one working outlet and one permanent light fixture within all
habitable rooms.

Must have a permanently mounted light fixture in each bathroom and in the kitchen.

Outlets within 6 feet of water source must be GFCI-protected.

Must have permanently installed heating source.

No units may contain unvented space heaters that burn gas, oil or kerosene.

Must have a guard rail when there is an elevated walking surface with a drop off of 30 inches or
greater measured vertically.

Must have at least one bedroom or living/sleeping room for each two persons.

Page 8-21



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

Chapter 15

SPECIAL HOUSING TYPES
[24 CFR 982 Subpart M; New HCV GB, Special Housing Types]

INTRODUCTION

County Housing may permit a family to use any of the special housing types discussed in this
chapter. However, County Housing is not required to permit families receiving assistance in its
jurisdiction to use these housing types, except that PHAs must permit the use of any special
housing type if needed as a reasonable accommodation for a person with a disability. County
Housing also may limit the number of families who receive HCV assistance in these housing types
and cannot require families to use a particular housing type. No special funding is provided for
special housing types. Unless specifically modified by the regulations, NSPIRE standards apply to
special housing types (Single Room Occupancy, Congregate Housing, Group Homes, Shared
Housing, Manufactured Homes, and Homeownership units) [Notice PIH 2023-28].

County Housing Policy

Families will be able to utilize the following special housing types:
Shared Housing

Manufactured Homes

Homeownership

Families will be not be permitted to use any other special housing types, unless needed as
a reasonable accommodation to ensure that the program is readily accessible to a person
with disabilities. However, policy language is included in this chapter where relevant in the
event County Housing does grant use as a reasonable accommodation.

Special housing types include single-room occupancy (SRO), congregate housing, group homes,
shared housing, cooperative housing, manufactured homes where the family owns the home and
leases the space, and homeownership [24 CFR 982.601]. A single unit cannot be designated as
more than one type of special housing. County Housing cannot give preference to households that
wish to live in any of these types of housing and cannot require households to select any of these
types of housing [New HCV GB, Special Housing Types, p. 3].

This chapter consists of the following seven parts. Each part contains a description of the housing
type and any special requirements associated with it. Except as modified by this chapter, the
general requirements of the HCV program apply to special housing types.

Part I: Single Room Occupancy

Part Il: Congregate Housing

Part lll: Group Homes

Part IV: Shared Housing

Part V: Cooperative Housing

Part VI: Manufactured Homes (including manufactured home space rental)

Part Vll: Homeownership

Page 15-1



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

PART I: SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY

[24 CFR 982.602 through 982.605; Form HUD-52641; New HCV GB,
Special Housing Types, p. 4]

15-1.A. OVERVIEW

A single-room occupancy (SRO) unit provides living and sleeping space for the exclusive use of the
occupant but requires the occupant to share sanitary and/or food preparation facilities with others.
More than one person may not occupy an SRO unit. HCV regulations do not limit the number of
units in an SRO facility, but the size of a facility may be limited by local ordinances.

When providing HCV assistance in an SRO unit, a separate lease, and HAP contract are executed
for each assisted person. The standard form of the HAP contract is used (form HUD-52641) with
the special housing type specified in Part A of the HAP contract, as follows: “This HAP contract is
used for the following special housing type under HUD regulations for the Section 8 voucher
program: Single room occupancy (SRO) housing.”

15-1.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE, AND HAP CALCULATION

The payment standard for SRO housing is 75 percent of the zero-bedroom payment standard
amount on County Housing’s payment standard schedule.

The utility allowance for an assisted person residing in SRO housing is 75 percent of the zero-
bedroom utility allowance.

The HAP for an assisted occupant in an SRO facility is the lower of the SRO payment standard
amount minus the TTP or the gross rent for the unit minus the TTP.

15-1.C. NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR THE PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF REAL ESTATE (NSPIRE)

NSPIRE requirements described in Chapter 8 apply to SRO housing except that sanitary facilities,
and space and security characteristics must meet local code standards for SRO housing. In the
absence of applicable local code standards for SRO housing, the following standards apply:

e Access: Access doors to the SRO unit must have working locks for privacy. The occupant must
be able to access the unit without going through any other unit. Each unit must have immediate
access to two or more approved means of exit from the building, appropriately marked and
leading to safe and open space at ground level. The SRO unit must also have any other means
of exit required by State or local law.

e Fire Safety: All SRO facilities must have a sprinkler system that protects major spaces. “Major
spaces” are defined as hallways, large common areas, and any other areas specified in local
fire, building, or safety codes. SROs must also have hard-wired smoke detectors, and any other
fire and safety equipment required by state or local law.

Sanitary facilities and space and security standards must meet local code requirements for
SRO housing. In the absence of local code standards, the requirements discussed below apply
[24 CFR 982.605].

Page 15-2



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

Sanitary Facilities: At least one flush toilet that can be used in privacy, a lavatory basin, and a
bathtub or shower in proper operating condition must be provided for each six persons (or
fewer) residing in the SRO facility. If the SRO units are leased only to males, flush urinals may
be substituted for up to one half of the required number of toilets. Sanitary facilities must be
reasonably accessible from a common hall or passageway to all persons sharing them and may
not be located more than one floor above or below the SRO unit. They may not be located
below grade unless the SRO units are located on that level.

Space and Security: An SRO unit must contain at least 110 square feet of floor space, and at
least four square feet of closet space with an unobstructed height of at least five feet, for use by
the occupant. If the closet space is less than four square feet, the habitable floor space in the
SRO unit must be increased by the amount of the deficiency. Exterior doors and windows
accessible from outside the SRO unit must be lockable.

For SRO housing, 24 CFR 5.703(d) only applies to the extent that the SRO unit contains the room or
facility referenced in 24 CFR 5.703(d). Because no children live in SRO housing, the NSPIRE
standards applicable to lead-based paint do not apply.

Page 15-3


https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/section-5.703#p-5.703(d)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/section-5.703#p-5.703(d)

Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

PART Il: CONGREGATE HOUSING

[24 CFR 982.606 through 982.609; Form HUD-52641; New HCV GB,
Special Housing Types, p. 6]

15-11.A. OVERVIEW

Congregate housing is intended for use by elderly persons or persons with disabilities. A
congregate housing facility contains a shared central kitchen and dining area and a private living
area for the individual household that includes at least a living room, bedroom and bathroom. Food
service for residents must be provided.

If approved by County Housing, a family member or live-in aide may reside with the elderly person
or person with disabilities. County Housing must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable
accommodation so that the program is readily accessible to and usable by persons with
disabilities.

When providing HCV assistance in congregate housing, a separate lease and HAP contract are
executed for each assisted family. The standard form of the HAP contract is used (form HUD-
52641) with the special housing type specified in Part A of the HAP contract, as follows: “This HAP
contract is used for the following special housing type under HUD regulations for the Section 8
voucher program: Congregate housing.”

15-11.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE, AND HAP CALCULATION

The payment standard for an individual unit in a congregate housing facility is based on the number
of rooms in the private living area for the assisted family. If there is only one room in the unit (not
including the bathroom or the kitchen, if a kitchen is provided), County Housing must use the
payment standard for a zero-bedroom unit. If the unit has two or more rooms (other than the
bathroom and the kitchen), County Housing must use the one-bedroom payment standard.

The HAP for an assisted occupant in a congregate housing facility is the lower of the applicable
payment standard minus the TTP or the gross rent for the unit minus the TTP.

The gross rent for the unit for the purpose of calculating HCV assistance is the shelter portion
(including utilities) of the resident’s monthly housing expense only. The residents’ costs for food
service should not be included in the rent for a congregate housing unit.

15-11.C. NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR THE PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF REAL ESTATE (NSPIRE)

NSPIRE requirements as described in Chapter 8 apply to congregate housing except for the
requirements stated below. Congregate housing is not subject to the requirement that the dwelling
unit must have a kitchen area. In place of the NSPIRE standards related to food preparation and
refuse disposal, congregate housing must have a refrigerator of appropriate size in the private living
area of each resident, a central kitchen and dining facilities located within the premises and
accessible to the residents, and food service for the residents, that is not provided by the residents
themselves.

The congregate housing must contain adequate facilities and services for the sanitary disposal of
food waste and refuse, including facilities for temporary storage where necessary.

The NSPIRE standards applicable to lead-based paint do not apply unless a child under the age of
six is expected to reside in the unit.

Page 15-4



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

PART Ill: GROUP HOME

[24 CFR 982.610 through 982.614; Form HUD-52641; New HCV GB,
Special Housing Types, p. 8]

15-11l.A. OVERVIEW

A group home is a state-approved (licensed, certified, or otherwise approved in writing by the state)
facility intended for occupancy by elderly persons and/or persons with disabilities. Except for live-
in aides, all persons living in a group home, whether assisted or not, must be elderly persons or
persons with disabilities. Persons living in a group home must not require continuous medical or
nursing care.

A group home consists of bedrooms for residents, which can be shared by no more than two
people, and a living room, kitchen, dining area, bathroom, and other appropriate social,
recreational, or community space that may be shared with other residents. No more than 12
persons may reside in a group home including assisted and unassisted residents and any live-in
aides.

If approved by County Housing, a live-in aide may live in the group home with a person with
disabilities. County Housing must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable accommodation
so that the program is readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities.

When providing HCV assistance in a group home, a separate lease and HAP contract is executed
for each assisted family. The standard form of the HAP contract is used (form HUD-52641) with the
special housing type specified in Part A of the HAP contract, as follows: “This HAP contract is used
for the following special housing type under HUD regulations for the Section 8 voucher program:
Group home.”

15-111.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE, AND HAP CALCULATION

Unless there is a live-in aide, the family unit size (voucher size) for an assisted occupant of a group
home must be zero- or one-bedroom. If there is a live-in aide, the aide must be counted in
determining the household’s unit size.

The payment standard used to calculate the HAP is the lower of the payment standard for the
family unit size or the pro rata share of the payment standard for the group home size. The pro rata
share is calculated by dividing the number of persons in the assisted household by the number of
persons (assisted and unassisted) living in the group home. The number of persons in the assisted
household equals one assisted person plus any County Housing-approved live-in aide.

The HAP for an assisted occupant in a group home is the lower of the payment standard minus the
TTP or the gross rent minus the TTP.

The utility allowance for an assisted occupant in a group home is the pro rata share of the family
unit size to the utility allowance for the group home.

The rents paid for participants residing in group homes are subject to generally applicable
standards for rent reasonableness. The rent for an assisted person must not exceed the pro rata
portion of the reasonable rent for the group home. In determining reasonable rent, County Housing
must consider whether sanitary facilities and facilities for food preparation and service are
common facilities or private facilities.

Page 15-5



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15
15-111.C. NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR THE PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF REAL ESTATE (NSPIRE)

The entire unit must comply with NSPIRE requirements described in Chapter 8, except for the
standards that relate to sanitary facilities, food preparation and refuse disposal, space and
security, structure and materials, and site and neighborhood and stated below.

e Sanitary Facilities: A group home must have at least one bathroom in the facility, with a flush
toilet that can be used in privacy, a fixed basin with hot and cold running water, and a shower or
bathtub with hot and cold running water. A group home may contain private or common
bathrooms. However, no more than four residents can be required to share a bathroom.

e Food Preparation and Service: Group home units must contain a kitchen and dining area with
adequate space to store, prepare, and serve food. The facilities for food preparation and
service may be private or may be shared by the residents. The kitchen must contain a range, an
oven, a refrigerator, and a sink with hot and cold running water. The sink must drain into an
approvable public or private disposal system.

e Space and Security: Group homes must contain at least one bedroom of appropriate size for
every two people, and a living room, kitchen, dining area, bathroom, and other appropriate
social, recreational, or community space that may be shared with other residents. Doors and
windows accessible from outside the unit must be lockable.

e Structure and Material: To avoid any threat to the health and safety of the residents, group
homes must be structurally sound. Elevators must be in good condition. Group homes must be
accessible to and usable by residents with disabilities.

e Site and Neighborhood: Group homes must be located in a residential setting. The site and
neighborhood should be reasonably free from disturbing noises and reverberations, and other
hazards to the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents, and should not be subject to
serious adverse conditions, such as:

- Dangerous walks or steps

- Instability

- Flooding, poor drainage

- Septic tank back-ups, sewage hazards
- Mudslides

- Abnormal air pollution

- Smoke or dust

- Excessive noise

- Vibrations or vehicular traffic

- Excessive accumulations of trash
- Vermin or rodent infestation, and
- Fire hazards.

The housing quality standards applicable to lead-based paint do not apply unless a child under the
age of six is expected to reside in the unit.

Page 15-6



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15
PART IV: SHARED HOUSING

[24 CFR 982.615 through 982.618; Form HUD-52641; Notice PIH 2021-05;
New HCV GB, Special Housing Types, p. 11]

15-IV.A. OVERVIEW

Families in markets with tight rental conditions or with a prevalence of single-family housing may
determine a shared housing living arrangement to be a useful way to secure affordable housing.
PHAs offering shared housing as a housing solution may also experienced some reduction in the
average per-unit-cost (PUC) paid on behalf of assisted families.

Shared housing is a single housing unit occupied by an assisted family and another resident or
residents. The unit may be a house or an apartment. The shared unit consists of both common
space for use by the occupants of the unit and separate private space for each assisted family.

An assisted family may share a unit with other persons assisted under the HCV program or with
other unassisted persons.

Shared housing may be offered in a number of ways, including for-profit co-living (such as a
boarding house, single bedroom with common living room/kitchen/dining room) run by a private
company [Notice PIH 2021-05].

The owner of a shared housing unit may reside in the unit, but housing assistance may not be paid
on behalf of the owner. The resident owner may not be related by blood or marriage to the assisted
family.

If approved by County Housing, a live-in aide may reside with the family to care for a person with
disabilities. County Housing must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable accommodation
so that the program is readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities.

When shared housing is offered as a housing option, HUD encourages PHAs to consider ways in
which the families may be assisted in finding shared housing, including for-profit shared housing
matching (such as roommates or single-family homes) and online sites that charge a fee for their
matching services, or nonprofit shared housing matching services. HUD further encourages PHAs
to include information about this housing possibility in the family’s voucher briefing.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will provide information to families regarding the shared housing option at
the briefing but will not provide any listings or information on housing matching services in
the community.

PHAs should be aware of potential local legal barriers to HCV participants using shared housing,
which can create additional obstacles for shared housing:

e Municipalities may have occupancy limits for the number of unrelated persons who may share
a housing unit.

e Local zoning codes for single-family housing may restrict occupancy in certain areas to
households whose family members are related by blood.

PHAs should work with local jurisdictions to find solutions that encourage affordable housing and
are consistent with the Fair Housing Act, Title VI, and other federal, state, and local fair housing
laws. PHAs should inform HUD if they encounter barriers to shared housing that may conflict with
fair housing laws.

Page 15-7



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

County Housing Policy

Although County Housing will not seek out solutions within the jurisdiction, County Housing
will inform HUD if it encounters barriers to shared housing that conflict with fair housing
laws.

When providing HCV assistance in shared housing, a separate lease and HAP contract are
executed for each assisted family. The standard form of the HAP contract is used (form HUD-
52641) with the special housing type specified in Part A of the HAP contract, as follows: “This HAP
contractis used for the following special housing type under HUD regulations for the Section 8
voucher program: Shared housing.”

15-1V.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE AND HAP CALCULATION

The payment standard for a family in shared housing is the lower of the payment standard for the
family unit size (voucher size) or the pro rata share of the payment standard for the shared housing
unit size.

The pro rata share is calculated by dividing the number of bedrooms available for occupancy by the
assisted family in the private, non-shared space by the total number of bedrooms in the unit.

Example: Family holds a two-bedroom voucher.
Shared housing unit size: bedrooms available to assisted family = 2
Total bedrooms in the unit: 3
2 Bedrooms for assisted family
+ 3 Bedrooms in the unit
.667 pro rata share
2 BR payment standard: $1200
3 BR payment standard: $1695 $1695 x .667 (pro rata share) =$1131 $1131 is
lower than the $1200 payment standard for the 2 BR family unit size $1131 is the
payment standard used to calculate the HAP

The HAP for a family in shared housing is the lower of the payment standard minus the TTP or the
gross rent minus the TTP.

The utility allowance for an assisted family living in shared housing is the pro rata share of the utility
allowance for the shared housing unit.

Example: A family holds a 2-bedroom voucher. The family decides to occupy 3
out of 4 bedrooms available in the unit.

The utility allowance for a 4-bedroom unit equals $200
The utility allowance for a 2-bedroom unit equals $100

The pro rata share of the utility allowance is $150 (3/4 of $200)

The PHA will use the 2-bedroom utility allowance of $100.

The rents paid for families living in shared housing are subject to generally applicable standards for
rent reasonableness. The rent paid to the owner for the assisted family must not exceed the pro
rata portion of the reasonable rent for the shared unit. In determining reasonable rent, County
Housing may consider whether sanitary and food preparation areas are private or shared.

Page 15-8



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

15-1V.C. NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR THE PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF REAL ESTATE (NSPIRE)

County Housing may not give approval to reside in shared housing unless the entire unit, including
the portion of the unit available for use by the assisted family under its lease, meets the housing
quality standards.

NSPIRE requirements described in Chapter 8 apply to shared housing except for the requirements
stated below.

e Facilities Available for the Family: Facilities available to the assisted family, whether shared or
private, must include a living room, a bathroom, and food preparation and refuse disposal
facilities.

e Space and Security: The entire unit must provide adequate space and security for all assisted
and unassisted residents. The private space for each assisted family must contain at least one
bedroom for each two persons in the family. The number of bedrooms in the private space of an
assisted family must not be less than the family unit size (voucher size). A zero-bedroom or
one-bedroom unit may not be used for shared housing.

Page 15-9



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

PART V: COOPERATIVE HOUSING
[24 CFR 982.619; New HCV GB, Special Housing Types, p. 14]

15-V.A. OVERVIEW

This part applies to rental assistance for a cooperative member residing in cooperative housing. It
does not apply to assistance for a cooperative member who has purchased membership under the
HCV homeownership option or to rental assistance for a family that leases a cooperative housing
unit from a cooperative member.

A cooperative is a form of ownership (nonprofit corporation or association) in which the residents
purchase memberships in the ownership entity. Rather than being charged “rent,” a cooperative
member is charged a “carrying charge.” The monthly carrying charge includes the member’s share
of the cooperative debt service, operating expenses, and necessary payments to cooperative
reserve funds. It does not include down payments or other payments to purchase the cooperative
unit or to amortize a loan made to the family for this purpose.

The occupancy agreement or lease and other appropriate documents must provide that the
monthly carrying charge is subject to Section 8 limitations on rent to the owner, and the rent must
be reasonable as compared to comparable unassisted units.

When providing HCV assistance in cooperative housing, the standard form of the HAP contract is
used with the special housing type specified in Part A of the HAP contract, as follows: “This HAP
contract is used for the following special housing type under HUD regulations for the Section 8
voucher program: Cooperative housing.”

15-V.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE AND HAP CALCULATION

The payment standard and utility allowance are determined according to regular HCV program
requirements.

The HAP for a cooperative housing unit is the lower of the payment standard minus the TTP or the
gross rent (monthly carrying charge for the unit, plus any utility allowance) minus the TTP. The
monthly carrying charge includes the member’s share of the cooperative debt service, operating
expenses, and necessary payments to cooperative reserve funds. The carrying charge does not
include down payments or other payments to purchase the cooperative unit or to amortize a loan
made to the family for this purpose.

15-V.C. NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR THE PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF REAL ESTATE (NSPIRE)

All standard NSPIRE requirements apply to cooperative housing units. There are no additional
NSPIRE requirements. County Housing remedies described in 24 CFR 982.404 do not apply.
Rather, if the unit and premises are not maintained in accordance with NSPIRE standards, County
Housing may exercise all available remedies regardless of whether the family or cooperative is
responsible for the breach of NSPIRE standards.

No housing assistance payment can be made unless the unit meets NSPIRE, and the defectis
corrected within the period specified by County Housing, and County Housing verifies the
correction (see Chapter 8).

Page 15-10



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

In addition to regular NSPIRE deficiencies, breaches of NSPIRE standards by the family include
failure to perform any maintenance for which the family is responsible in accordance with the
terms of the cooperative occupancy agreement [HCV GB].

Page 15-11



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

PART VI: MANUFACTURED HOMES

[24 CFR 982.620 through 982.624; FR Notice 1/18/17; New HCV GB,
Special Housing Types, p. 15;]

15-VI.A. OVERVIEW

A manufactured home is a manufactured structure, transportable in one or more parts, that is built
on a permanent chassis, and designed for use as a principal place of residence. HCV-assisted
families may occupy manufactured homes in three different ways.

(1) Afamily can choose to rent a manufactured home already installed on a space and County
Housing must permit it. In this instance program rules are the same as when a family rents any
other residential housing, except that there are special NSPIRE requirements as provided in
15-VI.D. below.

(2) Afamily can purchase a manufactured home under the Housing Choice Voucher
Homeownership program.

(3) HUD also permits an otherwise eligible family that owns a manufactured home to rent a space
for the manufactured home and receive HCV assistance with the rent for the space as well as
certain other housing expenses. PHAs may, but are not required to, provide assistance for
such families.

15-VI.B. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MANUFACTURED HOMEOWNERS WHO LEASE A SPACE

Family Income

In determining the annual income of families leasing manufactured home spaces, the value of the
family’s equity in the manufactured home in which the family resides is not counted as a family
asset.

Lease and HAP Contract

There is a designated HAP Contract (form HUD-52642) and designated Tenancy Addendum (form
HUD 52642-A) for this special housing type.

15-VI.C. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE AND HAP CALCULATION [FR Notice
1/18/17]

Payment Standards

County Housing’s payment standards for manufactured homes are determined in accordance with
24 CFR 982.505 and are the payment standards used for the County Housing’s HCV program. It is
based on the applicable FMR for the area in which the manufactured home space is located.

The payment standard for the family is the lower of the family unit size (voucher size) or the
payment standard for the number of bedrooms in the manufactured home.

Utility Allowance

County Housing must establish utility allowances for manufactured home space rental. For the
first 12 months of the initial lease term only, the allowance must include an amount for a utility
hook-up charge if the family actually incurred a hook-up charge because of a move. This allowance

Page 15-12



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

will not be given to a family that leases in place. Utility allowances for manufactured home space
must not include the costs of digging a well or installing a septic system.

If the amount of the monthly assistance payment for a family exceeds the monthly rent for the
manufactured home space (including the owner’s monthly management and maintenance
charges), County Housing may pay the remainder to the family, lender, or utility company.

Space Rent

The rent for the manufactured home space (including other eligible housing expenses) is the
total of:

e Therent charged for the manufactured home space;
e Owner maintenance and management charges for the space;

e The monthly payments made by the family to amortize the cost of purchasing the
manufactured home, including any required insurance and property taxes; and

e The applicable allowance for tenant-paid unities.
Amortization Costs

The monthly payment made by the family to amortize the cost of purchasing the manufactured
home is the debt service established at the time of application to a lender for financing the
purchase of the manufactured home if monthly payments are still being made. Any increase in debt
service due to refinancing after the purchase of the home may not be included in the amortization
cost. Debt service for set-up charges incurred by a family may be included in the monthly
amortization payments made by the family. In addition, set-up charges incurred before the family
became an assisted family may be included in the amortization cost if monthly payments are still
being made to amortize the charges.

Housing Assistance Payment

The HAP for a manufactured home space under the housing choice voucher program is the lower of
the payment standard minus the TTP or the manufactured home space rent (including other eligible
housing expenses) minus the TTP.

Rent Reasonableness

Initially, and at least annually thereafter, County Housing must determine that the rent for the
manufactured home space is reasonable based on rents for comparable manufactured home
spaces. County Housing must consider the location and size of the space, and any services and
maintenance to be provided by the owner. By accepting the monthly housing assistance payment,
the owner of the manufactured home space certifies that the rent does not exceed rents charged
by the owner for comparable unassisted spaces in the same manufactured home park or
elsewhere.

If requested, the owner must give County Housing information on rents charged by the owner for
other manufactured home spaces.

15-VI.D. NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR THE PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF REAL ESTATE (NSPIRE)

Under either type of occupancy described in 15-VI.A. above, the manufactured home must meet all
NSPIRE performance requirements and acceptability criteria discussed in Chapter 8 of this plan. In
addition, the following requirement applies:

Page 15-13



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

Manufactured Home Tie-Down
A manufactured home must be placed on the site in a stable manner and must be free from
hazards such as sliding or wind damage. The home must be securely anchored by a tie-

down device that distributes and transfers the loads imposed by the unit to appropriate
ground anchors to resist overturning and sliding.

Page 15-14



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

PART VII: HOMEOWNERSHIP
[24 CFR 982.625 through 982.643]

15-VII.A. OVERVIEW [24 CFR 982.625]

The homeownership option is used to assist a family residing in a home purchased and owned by
one or more members of the family. A family assisted under this option may be newly admitted or
an existing participant in the HCV program. County Housing must have the capacity to operate a
successful HCV homeownership program as defined by the regulations.

County Housing Policy

County Housing has instituted a minimum homeowner down payment requirement of at
least three percent of the purchase price and requires that at least one percent of the
purchase price come from the family's personal resources.

There are two forms of homeownership assistance described in the regulations: monthly
homeownership assistance payments and single down payment assistance grants. However, PHAs
may not offer down payment assistance until and unless funding is allocated by Congress. Since
this has not yet happened, only monthly homeownership assistance may be offered.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will offer the monthly homeownership assistance payments to qualified
families.

County Housing may choose not to offer homeownership assistance. However, it must offer
homeownership assistance if needed as a reasonable accommodation so that the program is
readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities. It is the sole responsibility of County
Housing to determine whether it is reasonable to implement a homeownership program as a
reasonable accommodation. County Housing must determine what is reasonable based on the
specific circumstances and individual needs of the person with a disability. County Housing may
determine that it is not reasonable to offer homeownership assistance as areasonable
accommodation in cases where County Housing has otherwise opted not to implement a
homeownership program.

County Housing must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable accommodation so that the
program is readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities.

15-VII.B. FAMILY ELIGIBILITY [24 CFR 982.627]

If County Housing offers the homeownership option, participation by the family is optional.
However, the family must meet all of the requirements listed below before the commencement of
homeownership assistance. County Housing may also establish additional initial requirements as
long as they are described in the administrative plan.

e The family must have been admitted to the HCV program.
e The family must qualify as a first-time homeowner or may be a cooperative member.

e The family must meet the Federal minimum income requirement. The family must have a gross
annualincome equal to the Federal minimum wage multiplied by 2,000, based on the income
of adult family members who will own the home. County Housing may establish a higher
income standard for families. However, a family that meets the federal minimum income

Page 15-15



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

requirement (but not County Housing’s requirement) will be considered to meet the minimum
income requirement if it can demonstrate that it has been pre-qualified or pre-approved for
financing that is sufficient to purchase an eligible unit.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will not establish a higher minimum income standard for disabled and/or
non-disabled families.

e Fordisabled families, the minimum income requirement is equal to the current SSI monthly
payment for an individual living alone, multiplied by 12.

o Forelderly or disabled families, welfare assistance payments for adult family members who
will own the home will be included in determining whether the family meets the minimum
income requirement. It will not be included for other families.

e The family must satisfy the employment requirements by demonstrating that one or more adult
members of the family who will own the home at the commencement of homeownership
assistance is currently employed on a full-time basis (the term full-time employment means
not less than an average of 30 hours per week); and has been continuously so employed during
the year before commencement of homeownership assistance for the family.

County Housing Policy

Families will be considered “continuously employed” if the break in employment does not
exceed two months.

County Housing will count self-employment in a business when determining whether the
family meets the employment requirement.

e The employment requirement does not apply to elderly and disabled families. In addition, ifa
family other than an elderly or disabled family includes a person with disabilities, County
Housing must grant an exemption from the employment requirement if it determines that it is
needed as a reasonable accommodation.

e The family has not defaulted on a mortgage-securing debt to purchase a home under the
homeownership option.

e Exceptfor cooperative members who have acquired cooperative membership shares prior to
the commencement of homeownership assistance, no family member has a present
ownership interestin a residence at the commencement of homeownership assistance for the
purchase of any home.

e Except for cooperative members who have acquired cooperative membership shares prior to
the commencement of homeownership assistance, the family has entered a contract of sale in
accordance with 24 CFR 982.631(c).

County Housing Policy

County Housing willimpose additional eligibility requirements. To be eligible to participate
in the homeownership option, families must meet the following criteria:

The family has had no family-caused violations of HUD’s Housing Quality or NSPIRE
standards within the past year.

The family is not within the initial one-year period of a HAP Contract.

Page 15-16



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15
The family owes no money to County Housing.

The family has not committed any serious or repeated violations of a County
Housing-assisted lease within the past year.

15-VII.C. SELECTION OF FAMILIES [24 CFR 982.626]

Unless otherwise provided (under the homeownership option), County Housing may limit
homeownership assistance to families or purposes defined by County Housing and may prescribe
additional requirements for the commencement of homeownership assistance for a family. Any
such limits or additional requirements must be described in the administrative plan.

When a PHA limits the number of families that may participate in the homeownership option, it
must establish a system for selecting those families.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will limit the number of families participating in the homeownership
program to a maximum of 100 families at any given time.

Families that have been participating in County Housing’s Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS)
program for at least six months or have graduated from the FSS program will be given
preference over other families. Elderly and disabled families will automatically be given this
preference.

Within preference and non-preference categories, families will be selected according to the
date and time their application for participation in the homeownership option is submitted
to County Housing.

All families must meet eligibility requirements as defined in Section 15-VII.B. of this plan.
15-VII.D. ELIGIBLE UNITS [24 CFR 982.628]

In order for a unit to be eligible, County Housing must determine that the unit satisfies all of the
following requirements:

«

e The unit must meet HUD’s
following:

eligible housing” requirements. The unit may not be any of the

- Apublic housing or Indian housing unit;
- Aunitreceiving Section 8 project-based assistance;

- Anursing home, board and care home, or facility providing continual psychiatric, medical
or nursing services;

- Acollege or other school dormitory;

- Onthe grounds of penal, reformatory, medical, mental, or similar public or private
institutions.

e The unit must be a one-unit property or a single dwelling unit in a cooperative or condominium.

e The unit must have been inspected by County Housing and by an independent inspector
designated by the family.

e The unit must meet NSPIRE requirements (see Chapter 8).

Page 15-17



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

For a unit where the family will not own fee title to the real property (such as a manufactured
home), the home must have a permanent foundation, and the family must have the right to
occupy the site for at least 40 years.

Families may enter into contracts of sale for units not yet under construction. However, County
Housing will not commence homeownership assistance for the family for that unit until:

1.

Either the responsible entity completes the environmental review as required by 24 CFR part
58, and HUD approves the environmental certification and request for release of funds prior to
the commencement of construction, or HUD performs an environmental review under CFR part
50 and notifies County Housing in writing of environmental approval of the site prior to
construction commencement; and

Construction of the unit has been completed, and the unit has passed the required NSPIRE
inspection and independent inspection, as addressed elsewhere in this chapter.

For County Housing-owned units, all of the following conditions must be satisfied:

- County Housing informs the family, both orally and in writing, that the family has the right to
purchase any eligible unit, and a County Housing-owned unit is freely selected by the family
without pressure or steering;

- Theunitis notineligible housing;

- County Housing obtains the services of an independent agency to inspect the unit for
compliance with NSPIRE standards, review the independent inspection report, review the
contract of sale, and determine the reasonableness of the sales price and any County
Housing-provided financing. All of these actions must be completed in accordance with
program requirements.

County Housing must not approve the unit if County Housing has been informed that the seller is
debarred, suspended, or subject to a limited denial of participation.

15-VII.E. ADDITIONAL PHA REQUIREMENTS FOR SEARCH AND PURCHASE [24 CFR 982.629]

It is the family’s responsibility to find a home that meets the criteria for voucher homeownership
assistance. County Housing may establish the maximum time that will be allowed for a family to
locate and purchase a home and may require the family to report on their progress in finding and
purchasing a home. If the family is unable to purchase a home within the maximum time
established, County Housing may issue the family a voucher to lease a unit or place the family’s
name on the waiting list for a voucher.

County Housing Policy

The family will be allowed 120 days to identify a unit and submit a sales contract to County
Housing for review. The family will be allowed an additional 120 days to close on the home.
An extension to either of these periods may be granted for good cause. The length of the
extension(s) will be determined on a case-by-case, butin no case will an extension exceed
a total of 125 days. The maximum amount of time a family will be given to locate and
complete the purchase of a home under the homeownership option is 365 days.

During these periods, the family will continue to receive HCV rental assistance in
accordance with any active lease and HAP contract until the family vacates the rental unit
for its purchased home.

Page 15-18



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

All requests for extensions must be submitted in writing to County Housing prior to the
expiration of the period for which the extension is being requested. County Housing will
approve or disapprove the extension request within 10 business days. The family will be
notified of the County Housing’s decision in writing.

The family will be required to report their progress on locating and purchasing a home to
County Housing every 30 days until the home is purchased.

If the family cannot complete the purchase of a unit within the maximum required time
frame, and is not receiving rental assistance under a HAP contract at the time the search
and purchase time period expires, the family will be issued a voucher to lease a unit.

15-VII.F. HOMEOWNERSHIP COUNSELING [24 CFR 982.630]

Before commencement of homeownership assistance for a family, the family must attend and
satisfactorily complete the pre-assistance homeownership and housing counseling program
required by County Housing. HUD suggests the following topics for required pre-assistance
counseling:

Home maintenance (including care of the grounds);
Budgeting and money management;

Credit counseling;

How to negotiate the purchase price of a home;

How to obtain homeownership financing and loan pre-approvals, including a description of
types of financing that may be available, and the pros and cons of different types of financing;

How to find a home, including information about homeownership opportunities, schools, and
transportation in County Housing’s jurisdiction;

Advantages of purchasing a home in an area that does not have a high concentration of low-
income families and how to locate homes in such areas;

Information on fair housing, including fair housing lending and local fair housing enforcement
agencies; and

Information about the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (12 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.) (RESPA),
state and Federal truth-in-lending laws, and how to identify and avoid loans with oppressive
terms and conditions.

County Housing may adapt the subjects covered in pre-assistance counseling (as listed) to local
circumstances and the needs of individual families.

County Housing may also offer additional counseling after the commencement of homeownership
assistance (ongoing counseling). If County Housing offers a program of ongoing counseling for
participants in the homeownership option, County Housing shall have discretion to determine
whether the family is required to participate in the ongoing counseling.

If County Housing does not use a HUD-approved housing counseling agency to provide the
counseling, County Housing should ensure that its counseling program is consistent with the
counseling provided under HUD’s Housing Counseling program.

Page 15-19



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

County Housing Policy

Families will not be required to participate in ongoing counseling after commencement of
homeownership assistance.

15-VII.G. HOME INSPECTIONS, CONTRACT OF SALE, AND PHA DISAPPROVAL OF SELLER [24
CFR 982.631]

Home Inspections

County Housing may not commence monthly homeownership assistance payments for a family
until it has inspected the unit and has determined that the unit passes NSPIRE standards.

County Housing Policy

When the family locates a home they wish to purchase and submits a copy of their
purchase offer/contract, County Housing will conduct an NSPIRE inspection within 10
business days. Any items found not to meet NSPIRE standards must be repaired before the
unit can be determined eligible for the homeownership program.

An independent professional inspector selected by and paid for by the family must also inspect the
unit. The independent inspection must cover major building systems and components, including
the foundation and structure, housing interior and exterior, and the roofing, plumbing, electrical,
and heating systems. The independent inspector must be qualified to report on property
conditions, including major building systems and components.

County Housing may not require the family to use an independent inspector selected by County
Housing. The independent inspector may not be a County Housing employee or contractor, or
other person under the control of County Housing. However, County Housing may establish
standards for the qualification of inspectors selected by families under the homeownership option.

County Housing Policy

The family must hire an independent professional inspector, whose report must be
submitted to County Housing for review. This inspector must be a member of the American
Society of Home Inspectors (ASHI) or other recognized professional society or a licensed
engineer. The inspector cannot be a County Housing employee or contractor.

County Housing may disapprove a unit for assistance based on information in the independent
inspector’s report, even if the unit was found to comply with NSPIRE standards.

PHA Policy

County Housing will review the professional inspection report in a timely fashion and,
based on the presence of major physical problems, may advise the family not to purchase
the home. The family may choose to purchase the home in spite of County Housing’s
advice.

While the family is receiving homeownership assistance, County Housing will conduct an
inspection every other year.

Contract of Sale

Before the commencement of monthly homeownership assistance payments, a member or
members of the family must enter into a contract of sale with the seller of the unit to be acquired by
the family. The family must give County Housing a copy of the contract of sale. The contract of sale
must:

Page 15-20



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

Specify the price and other terms of sale by the seller to the purchaser;

Provide that the purchaser will arrange for a pre-purchase inspection of the dwelling unit by an
independent inspector selected by the purchaser;

Provide that the purchaser is not obligated to purchase the unit unless the inspection is
satisfactory to the purchaser;

Provide that the purchaser is not obligated to pay for any necessary repairs; and

Contain a certification from the seller that the seller has not been debarred, suspended, or
subject to a limited denial of participation under CFR part 24.

A contract for the sale of a unit not yet under construction must meet all above requirements,
and requirements below. Commencement of construction in violation of the below
requirements voids the purchase contract.

The purchaser is not obligated to purchase the unit unless an environmental review has
been performed and the site received environmental approval prior to commencement of
construction in accordance with 24 CFR 982.628; and

The construction will not commence until the environmental review has been completed
and the seller has received written notice from County Housing that environmental
approval has been obtained. Environmental approval may be conditioned on the
contracting parties’ agreement to modification to the unit design or to mitigation actions.

Disapproval of a Seller

In its administrative discretion, County Housing may deny approval of a seller for the same reasons
a PHA may disapprove an owner under the regular HCV program [see 24 CFR 982.306(c)].

15-VII.H. FINANCING [24 CFR 982.632]

County Housing may establish requirements for financing the purchase of a home under the
homeownership option. This may include requirements concerning the qualification of lenders,
terms of financing, restrictions concerning debt secured by the home, lender qualifications, loan
terms, and affordability of the debt. County Housing must establish policies describing these
requirements in the administrative plan.

County Housing may not require that families acquire financing from one or more specified
lenders, thereby restricting the family’s ability to secure favorable financing terms.

County Housing Policy

As a check against predatory lending, County Housing will review the financing of each
purchase transaction, including estimated closing costs. County Housing will review the
loans for features, such as balloon payments, adjustable-rate mortgages, and unusually
high interest rates, all of which are prohibited. County Housing also will not approve “seller
financing” or “owner-held” mortgages. Beyond these basic criteria, County Housing will
rely on the lenders to determine that the loan will be affordable to program participants.

The mortgage the family applies for must require a minimum down payment of at least
three percent of the sales price, with one percent of the down payment coming from the
purchaser’s personal funds. County Housing will not require that the family have any more
than the minimum of one percent of their own money in the transaction. However, in cases

Page 15-21



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

where a lender requires a larger amount, the family may be held to the underwriting
guidelines set by their lending institution.

County Housing will approve a family’s request to utilize its Family Self-Sufficiency escrow
account after final disbursement for down payment and/or closing costs when purchasing
a unit under the HCV homeownership option.

15-VIl.I. CONTINUED ASSISTANCE REQUIREMENTS; FAMILY OBLIGATIONS [24 CFR 982.633]

Homeownership assistance may only be paid while the family is residing in the home. If the family
moves out of the home, County Housing may not continue homeownership assistance after the
month when the family moves out. The family or lender is not required to refund to County Housing
the homeownership assistance for the month when the family moves out.

Before commencement of homeownership assistance, the family must execute a statement of
family obligations in the form prescribed by HUD [form HUD-52649]. In the statement, the family
agrees to comply with all family obligations under the homeownership option.

The family must comply with the following obligations:

e The family must comply with the terms of the mortgage securing debt incurred to purchase the
home, or any refinancing of such debt.

e The family may not convey or transfer ownership of the home, except for purposes of financing,
refinancing, or pending settlement of the estate of a deceased family member. Use and
occupancy of the home are subject to 24 CFR 982.551 (h) and (i).

e The family must supply information to County Housing or HUD as specified in 24 CFR
982.551(b). The family must further supply any information required by County Housing or HUD
concerning mortgage financing or refinancing, sale or transfer of any interest in the home, or
homeownership expenses.

e The family must notify County housing before moving out of the home.

e The family must notify County Housing if the family defaults on the mortgage used to purchase
the home.

e The family must provide County Housing with information on any satisfaction or payment of the
mortgage debt.

e No family member may have any ownership interest in any other residential property.

e The family must comply with the obligations of a participant family described in 24 CFR
982.551, except for the following provisions which do not apply to assistance under the
homeownership option: 24 CFR 982.551(c), (d), (e), (f), (g) and (j).

County Housing Policy

Any deficiencies noted on any inspection after the initial inspection will have to be
corrected by the family within 30 calendar days as a condition of continued assistance.

15-VIl.J. MAXIMUM TERM OF HOMEOWNER ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 982.634]

Except in the case of a family that qualifies as an elderly or disabled family, other family members
(described below) shall not receive homeownership assistance for more than:

Page 15-22



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

e Fifteen years, if the initial mortgage incurred to finance purchase of the home has a term of 20
years or longer; or

e Tenyears, in all other cases.
The maximum term described above applies to any member of the family who:

e Has an ownership interest in the unit during the time that homeownership payments are made;
or

e Isthe spouse of any member of the household who has an ownership interest in the unit during
the time homeownership payments are made.

In the case of an elderly family, the exception only applies if the family qualifies as an elderly family
at the start of homeownership assistance. In the case of a disabled family, the exception applies if
at any time during receipt of homeownership assistance the family qualifies as a disabled family.

If, during the course of homeownership assistance, the family ceases to qualify as a disabled or
elderly family, the maximum term becomes applicable from the date homeownership assistance
commenced. However, such a family must be provided at least 6 months of homeownership
assistance after the maximum term becomes applicable (provided the family is otherwise eligible
to receive homeownership assistance).

If the family has received such assistance for different homes, or from different PHAs, the total of
such assistance terms is subject to the maximum term described in this part.

15-VII.K. HOMEOWNERSHIP ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS AND HOMEOWNERSHIP EXPENSES [24
CFR 982.635]

The monthly homeownership assistance payment is the lower of: the voucher payment standard
minus the total tenant payment, or the monthly homeownership expenses minus the total tenant
payment.

In determining the amount of the homeownership assistance payment, County Housing will use
the same payment standard schedule, payment standard amounts, and subsidy standards as
those described elsewhere in this plan for the HCV program. The payment standard for a family is
the greater of (i) The payment standard as determined at the commencement of homeownership
assistance for occupancy of the home, or (ii) The payment standard at the most recent regular
reexamination of family income and composition since the commencement of homeownership
assistance for occupancy of the home.

County Housing must adopt policies for determining the amount of homeownership expenses to
be allowed by County Housing in accordance with HUD requirements.

Homeownership expenses (not including cooperatives) must include amounts allowed by County
Housing to cover:

e Principal and interest on initial mortgage debt, any refinancing of such debt, and any mortgage
insurance premium incurred to finance purchase of the home;

e Real estate taxes and public assessments on the home;
e Homeinsurance;
e County Housing’s allowance for maintenance expenses;

e County Housing’s allowance for costs of major repairs and replacements;

Page 15-23



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

County Housing’s utility allowance for the home;

Principal and interest on mortgage debt incurred to finance costs for major repairs,
replacements, orimprovements for the home. If a member of the family is a person with
disabilities, such debt may include debt incurred by the family to finance costs needed to make
the home accessible for such person if County Housing determines that allowance of such
costs as homeownership expenses is heeded as a reasonable accommodation so that the
homeownership option is readily accessible to and usable by such person;

Land lease payments where a family does not own fee title to the real property on which the
home is located; [see 24 CFR 982.628(b)].

For a condominium unit, condominium operating charges or maintenance fees assessed by the
condominium homeowner association.

County Housing does not have the discretion to exclude any of the listed homeownership expenses
or to add any additional items.

Homeownership expenses for a cooperative member include amounts allowed by County Housing
to cover:

The cooperative charge under the cooperative occupancy agreement including payment for
real estate taxes and public assessments on the home;

Principal and interest on initial debt incurred to finance purchase of cooperative membership
shares and any refinancing of such debt;

Home insurance;

County Housing’s allowance for maintenance expenses;

County Housing’s allowance for costs of major repairs and replacements;
County Housing’s utility allowance for the home; and

Principal and interest on debt incurred to finance major repairs, replacements or
improvements for the home. If a member of the family is a person with disabilities, such debt
may include debt incurred by the family to finance costs needed to make the home accessible
for such person, if County Housing determines that allowance of such costs as
homeownership expenses is needed as a reasonable accommodation so that the
homeownership option is readily accessible to and usable by such person.

Cooperative operating charges or maintenance fees assessed by the cooperative homeowner
association.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will use the following amounts for homeownership expenses:

Monthly homeownership payment. This includes principal and interest on initial mortgage
debt, taxes and insurance, public assessments, and any mortgage insurance premium, if
applicable.

Utility allowance. County Housing’s utility allowance for the unit, based on the current
HCV utility allowance schedule.

Page 15-24



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

Monthly maintenance/major repair/replacement allowance. A single monthly
maintenance/repair/replacement allowance will be provided at $120 per month.

Monthly co-op/condominium assessments. If applicable, the monthly amount of co-op
or condominium association operation and maintenance assessments.

Monthly principal and interest on debt for improvements. Principal and interest for
major home repairs, replacements, or improvements, if applicable.

Land lease payments. Land lease payments where a family does not own fee title to the
real property on which the home is located.

County Housing may pay the homeownership assistance payments directly to the family, or at
County Housing’s discretion, to a lender on behalf of the family.

County Housing Policy

The housing assistance payment will be paid directly to the family. It will be the family’s
responsibility to make the entire payment to the lender. County Housing may make an
exception if the family requests the payment to go directly to the lender, and this
arrangement is acceptable to the mortgage company. If the assistance payment exceeds
the amount due to the lender, County Housing must pay the excess directly to the family.

15-VII.L. PORTABILITY [24 CFR 982.636, 982.637, 982.353(b) and (c), 982.552, 982.553]

Subject to the restrictions on portability included in HUD regulations and County Housing policies,
a family may exercise portability if the receiving PHA is administering a voucher homeownership
program and accepting new homeownership families. The receiving PHA may absorb the family
into its voucher program or bill the initial PHA.

The family must attend the briefing and counseling sessions required by the receiving PHA. The
receiving PHA will determine whether the financing for, and the physical condition of the unit, are
acceptable. The receiving PHA must promptly notify the initial PHA if the family has purchased an
eligible unit under the program, or if the family is unable to purchase a home within the maximum
time established by the PHA.

15-VII.M. MOVING WITH CONTINUED ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 982.637]

A family receiving homeownership assistance may move with continued tenant-based assistance
or with voucher homeownership assistance.

County Housing must determine that all initial requirements have been satisfied if a family that has
received homeownership assistance wants to move with continued homeownership assistance.
However, the following do not apply:

e Therequirement that a family must be a first-time homeowner is not applicable.

e Therequirement for pre-assistance counseling is not applicable. However, County Housing
may require that the family complete additional counseling (before or after moving to a new
unit with continued homeownership assistance).

Continued tenant-based assistance for a new unit cannot begin so long as any family member
holds title to the prior home. However, when the family or a member of the family is or has been the
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking, and the
move is needed to protect the health or safety of the family or family member (or any family
member has been the victim of a sexual assault that occurred on the premises during the 90-

Page 15-25



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

calendar-day period preceding the family’s request to move), such family or family member may be
assisted with continued tenant-based assistance even if they own any title or other interest in the
prior home.

County Housing may deny permission to move to a new unit with continued voucher assistance:
e |f County Housing has insufficient funding to provide continued assistance.
e |naccordance with 24 CFR 982.638, regarding denial or termination of assistance.

e |n accordance with the County Housing’s policy regarding the number of moves within a 12-
month period.

County Housing must deny the family permission to move to a new unit with continued voucher
rental assistance if:

e The family defaulted on an FHA-insured mortgage; and

e The family fails to demonstrate that the family has conveyed, or will convey, title to the home,
as required by HUD, to HUD or HUD's designee; and

e The family has moved, or will move, from the home within the period established or approved
by HUD.

County Housing Policy

For families participating in the homeownership option, requests to move will be approved
and/or denied in accordance with County Housing policies in Chapter 10.

County Housing will not require additional counseling of any families who move with
continued assistance.

15-VII.N. DENIAL OR TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 982.638]

At any time, County Housing may deny or terminate homeownership assistance in accordance with
HCV program requirements in 24 CFR 982.552 (Grounds for denial or termination of assistance) or
24 CFR 982.553 (Crime by family members).

County Housing may also deny or terminate assistance for violation of participant obligations
described in 24 CFR Parts 982.551 or 982.633 and in accordance with its own policy, with the
exception of failure to meet obligations under the FSS program as prohibited under the alternative
requirements set forth in FR Notice 12/29/14.

Homeownership assistance for a family automatically terminates 180 calendar days after the last
homeownership assistance payment on behalf of the family. However, County Housing may grant
relief from this requirement in those cases where automatic termination would result in extreme
hardship for the family.

County Housing Policy

In order for County Housing to consider granting relief from the requirement to
automatically terminate homeownership assistance 180 days following the last housing
assistance payment on behalf of the family, the family must submit a written request to
County Housing at least 30 days prior to the date of automatic termination. The request
must include an explanation of the circumstances that will cause extreme hardship for the
family (e.g., the imminent loss of income or employment) as well as documentation
supporting the request. County Housing will determine on a case-by-case basis whether to

Page 15-26



Administrative Plan: Chapter 15

grant relief from the requirement and for what period of time. In no case will County
Housing postpone termination beyond an additional 90 days.

County Housing must terminate voucher homeownership assistance for any member of the family
receiving homeownership assistance that is dispossessed from the home pursuant to a judgment
or order of foreclosure on any mortgage (whether FHA insured or non-FHA) securing debt incurred
to purchase the home or any refinancing of such debt.

County Housing Policy

County Housing will terminate a family’s homeownership assistance if the family violates
any of the homeowner obligations listed in Section 1, as well as for any of the reasons listed
in Section 2 of form HUD-52649, Statement of Homeowner Obligations Housing Choice
Homeownership Voucher Program.

In making its decision to terminate homeownership assistance, County Housing will
consider alternatives as described in Section 12-11.C and other factors described in Section
12-11.D. Upon consideration of such alternatives and factors, County Housing may, on a
case-by-case basis, choose not to terminate assistance.

Termination notices will be sentin accordance with the requirements and policies set forth
in Section 12-II.F.

Page 15-27



Certifications of Compliance with
PHA Plan and Related Regulations
(Small PHAs)

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 3/31/2024

PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations
including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairperson or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the __ 5-Year and/or X Annual PHA
Plan, hereinafter referred to as” the Plan”, of which this document is a part, and make the following certification and agreements
with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the PHA fiscal year beginning _ January 2025

in which the PHA receives assistance under 42 U.S.C. 1437f and/or 1437g in connection with the submission of the Plan and

implementation thereof:

1. The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating

such strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located (24 CFR § 91.2).

2. The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the
applicable Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (Al) or Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) as applicable, for the PHA's

jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable Consolidated
Plan (24 CFR §§ 91.2,91.225,91.325, and 91.425).
3. The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents

assisted by the PHA, consulted with this Board or Boards in developing the Plan, and considered the
recommendations of the Board or Boards (24 CFR § 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a

copy of the recommendations made by the Resident Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in
which the Plan addresses these recommendations.
4. The PHA certifies that the following policies, programs, and plan components have been revised since submission

of its last

Annual PHA Plan (check all policies, programs, and components that have been changed):

X _903.7a Housing Needs

X_903.7b Deconcentration and Other Policies Governing Eligibility, Selection, Occupancy, and Admissions

Policies
X 903.7c Financial Resources

Z 903.7d Rent Determination Policies
___903.7h Demolition and Disposition
X _903.7k Homeownership Programs

x_903.7r Additional Information

X _A. Progress in meeting 5-year mission and goals
B. Ceriteria for substantial deviation and significant amendments

ZC. Other information requested by HUD

x_1. Resident Advisory Board consultation process

x_2. Membership of Resident Advisory Board

x_3. Resident membership on PHA governing board
The PHA provides assurance as part of this certification that:

(1) The Resident Advisory Board had an opportunity to review and comment on the changes to the policies and
programs before implementation by the PHA;

(i) The changes were duly approved by the PHA Board of Directors (or similar governing body); and
(iii) The revised policies and programs are available for review and inspection, at the principal office of the

PHA during normal business hours.

5. The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public
inspection at least 45 days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a

hearing to discuss the Plan and invited public comment.
6. The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d—4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), Section 504 of

Page 1 of 3

form HUD-50077-CRT-SM (3/31/2024)



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101
et seq.), and other applicable civil rights requirements and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in the
administration of the program. In addition, if it administers a Housing Choice Voucher Program, the PHA
certifies that it will administer the program in conformity with the Fair Housing Act, title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and
other applicable civil rights requirements, and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in the administration
of the program.

The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing, which means that it will take meaningful actions to further the

goals identified in the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24

CFR § 5.150 through 5.180, that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to

affirmatively further fair housing, and that it will address fair housing issues and contributing factors in its

programs, in accordance with 24 CFR § 903.7(0)(3). The PHA will fulfill the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(0)

and 24 CFR § 903.15(d). Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA will fulfill the

requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) promulgated prior to August 17, 2015, which means that it examines its
programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those programs;
addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works with local
jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that require the

PHA’s involvement; and maintains records reflecting these analyses and actions.

For a PHA Plan that includes a policy for site-based waiting lists:

e The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and
timely manner (as specified in PIH Notice 2010-25);

o The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the
development in which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the
period of time the applicant would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at
each site;

e Adoption of site-based waiting lists would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be
inconsistent with a pending complaint brought by HUD;

e The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent with affirmatively
furthering fair housing; and

e The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil
rights laws and certifications, as specified in 24 CFR 903.7(c)(1).

The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age

Discrimination Act of 1975.

In accordance with 24 CFR § 5.105(a)(2), HUD’s Equal Access Rule, the PHA will not make a determination of

eligibility for housing based on sexual orientation, gender identify, or marital status and will make no inquiries

concerning the gender identification or sexual orientation of an applicant for or occupant of HUD-assisted
housing.

The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures

for the Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.

The PHA will comply with the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968,

Employment Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24

CFR Part 135.

The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and

Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.

The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises

under 24 CFR 5.105(a).

The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any documentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs

to carry out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance

with 24 CFR Part 58 or Part 50, respectively.

With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate

requirements under Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety

Standards Act.

The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine

compliance with program requirements.

Page 2 of 3 form HUD-50077-CRT-SM (3/31/2024)



18. The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential Lead-Based Paint
Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CFR Part 35.

19. The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Financial Assistance, including but not
limited to submitting the assurances required under 24 CFR §§ 1.5, 3.115, 8.50, and 107.25 by submitting an SF-
424, including the required assurances in SF-424B or D, as applicable.

20. The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and
will utilize covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its
Plan.

21. All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA
Plan is available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public
inspection along with the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all
other times and locations identified by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at
the primary business office of the PHA.

22. The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements,
including the Declaration of Trust(s).

Housing Authority of the City of Olivette MO-218
PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code
5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 -20 Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Year 2025

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith,
is true and accurate. Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or
civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Executive Director: Name of Board Chairman:
Shannon Koenig Nikeyia Ingram
Signature Date | Signature Date

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. Code, Section 1701
et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations. Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to
retain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality. This information is collected to ensure compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and related
laws and regulations including PHA plan elements that have changed.

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 0.16 hours per year per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching
existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not collect this information, and
respondents are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

Page 3 of 3 form HUD-50077-CRT-SM (3/31/2024)



MEMORANDUM

HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E] COUNTY HOUSING

To: Olivette Housing Authority Board of Commissioners
Through: Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO

From: William Barry, Director of Maintenance and Facilities
Date: August 27,2024

Subject: Capital Fund Action Plan

The Capital Fund Program (CFP) annually provides funds to public housing agencies (PHAs) for
developing, financing, and modernizing public housing developments and management
improvements. By providing financial support for capital improvements, the program helps PHAs
address the backlog of repairs, create healthier living environments, and promote the overall well-
being of residents in public housing communities.

I Recommendation
Staff recommend the Board approve the Capital Fund Action Plan for 2029.

1. 2029 Work Items
e Replace roofs and gutters for five units
e Operations

1l. Attachment
Capital Fund Program Annual Funding



Olivette Housing Authority

HOUSING ;
AUTHORITY Capital Fund Progra.m
i COUNTY HOUSING $35,641 Annual Funding

New 2029 Work Items and Administrative Funds

Replace roofs and gutters at five units $35,000
Operations $641
2029 Total $35,641

|Existing 2028 - 2025 Work Items and Administrative Funds

2028
Replace electrical service panels in six units $13,000
Replace windows in five units $13,000
Replace entry doors in three units $8,000
Operations $1,641
2028 Total $35,641
2027
Replace electrical service panels in six units $10,397
Replace windows in five units $13,000
Replace entry doors in three units $9,000
Repair and paint carport at one unit $1,000
Operations $2,244
2027 Total $35,641
2026
Repair and paint carports at fourteen units $9,157
Renovate kitchens in three units $11,000
Install sump pump systems in four units $8,640
Energy assessments $5,100
Operations $1,744
2026 Total $35,641
2025
Replace windows in five units $33,897
Operations $1,744
2025 Total $35,641




MEMORANDUM

HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E] COUNTY HOUSING

To:
Through:
From:
Date:

Subject:

Olivette Housing Authority Board of Commissioners
Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO
Kawanna Tate, Director of Housing Administration
August 27,2024

Housing Administration Report

During our last meeting, we discussed our performance projections for the Management
Assessment Sub-System (MASS) of the Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS). Today | will
cover our current projections.

Current MASS Performance

Below is a snapshot of our current performance for each of the sub-indicators of the
MASS. During this period, the occupancy rate has not changed and remains at an
average of 100%, resulting in a 16-point maximum.

Sub-Indicator Performance Projected Points | Max Points
Occupancy 100% 16 16
Accounts Payable Ratio 0.02 4 4
Tenant Accounts Receivable 0.485 0 5
Current Snapshot Standard Performer 20 25

Public Housing Updates
A. Tenant Accounts Receivable

Durning our last meeting, we discussed the possibility of a system error affecting
the calculation of Tenant Accounts Receivable (TAR). After conducting a thorough
investigation, we have determined that there were no findings of a system error. The
calculations for the Tenant Accounts Receivable have been reviewed and confirmed
to be accurate.

NSPIRE Inspection

Inspections took place on July 10, 2024. Residents were notified one month in
advance via mail. Areminder letter was sent out one week prior and a reminder
phone call was made four days prior to the inspection. Inspections are a
requirement of HUD to ensure that we meet the quality standards of safety and
sanitary living conditions for our residents.




August 27,2024
Page 2
C. Resident Advisory Board Meeting
The Resident Advisory Board (RAB) meeting was held on August 6, 2024. The
purpose of this meeting was to discuss the updates to our Annual PHA Plan, 5-Year
Plan, and Capital Funds Program.

D. Basement Inspections
Letters were hand-delivered to residents to notify them of a routine basement
inspection scheduled for August 19, 2024.

E. Evictions
We are proceeding with the eviction process for any residents who have notsetup a
payment agreement, have defaulted on their repayment agreement and, are ten
months or more behind in rent. This applies to only one resident.



MEMORANDUM

HOUSING
AUTHORITY

E] COUNTY HOUSING

To:
Through:
From:
Date:

Subject:

Olivette Housing Authority Board of Commissioners
Shannon Koenig, Executive Director and CEO

William Barry, Director Facilites and Property Management
August 27,2024

Maintenance Report

This memo summarizes the monthly maintenance and supply costs for the Olivette Public

Housing from June 1 through July 31, 2024.

Maintenance Supply Costs

The following are the repair and replacement costs for plumbing, electrical, and
carpentry work orders. These repairs are required to ensure the units meet NSPIRE

Standards.

June $ 0.00
July $42.00
TOTAL $42.00

A. Attachment Work Orders from June —July 2024.

Contracted Repair Costs
These costs include trash, HVAC repair, and plumbing services.

June $ 8.00
July $791.00
TOTAL $ 799.00

Other Maintenance Costs
These costs include vehicle maintenance and vehicle fuel costs.

June $ 78.00
July $ 63.00
TOTAL $141.00




August 27,2024
Page 2

Iv. Completed 2021 Capital Fund Projects (CFP)
CFP projects completed in 2024 include range and refrigerator replacements in 14 units
totaling $29,963.

V. National Standards for the Physical Inspection of Real Estate {NSPIRE)
July 2024 NSPIRE inspections were conducted by County Housing. Eight of the fourteen
homes passed the inspection and six homes failed the inspection with the following

deficiencies:

e Loosetoilet seats

e Faulty exhaust fan, bathroom, and kitchens
e Damaged storm doors

e Interior door repairs

Floor tile damaged

e Entry door weatherstripping

o Smoke alarm batteries

e Damaged kitchen cabinet doors
e (Clean gutters

e Damaged carport siding

The maintenance department will deploy a two-person team to complete the repairs.



HOUSING
AUTHORITY

£ COUNTY HOUSING

Work Order Detail
Olivette Housing Authority (1132bolv)
Work Orders active between 06/01/2024 and 07/31/2024

Days to Days open

Date Comple in Period

Unit wo WO Priority WO Category WO Brief Descriptior Call Date Completed te Reported
RH9356 38097 Routine Doors No screen 06/03/2024 06/10/2024 7 7
RH9330 38120 Routine General number for address 06/06/2024 06/06/2024 1 1
RH9364 38121 Routine Doors screen door 06/06/2024 06/06/2024 1 1
RH9388 38122 Routine General new mailbox 06/06/2024 06/06/2024 1 1
RH9342 38378 Routine Plumbing Kitchen sink is stoppe 07/15/2024 07/15/2024 1 1
RH9380 38379 Routine General Pipe fell over near the 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9388 38411 NSPIRE Low NSPIRE 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9364 38412 NSPIRE Moderat NSPIRE 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9364 38413 NSPIRE Low NSPIRE 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9356 38414 NSPIRE Low NSPIRE 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9356 38415 NSPIRE Low 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9342 38416 NSPIRE Low Building Exteri NSPIRE 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9342 38417 NSPIRE Moderat NSPIRE 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9330 38418 NSPIRE Moderat NSPIRE 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9387 38419 NSPIRE Moderat 07/15/2024 17 17
RH9364 38426 Routine Building Exteri Siding 07/16/2024 07/18/2024 2 2
RH9364 38427 Routine Plumbing Low pressure 07/16/2024 07/18/2024 2 2
RH9363 38436 Routine Electrical exhaust fan 07/17/2024 07/23/2024 6 6
RH9357 38438 Routine General Needing a new exhau: 07/17/2024 07/23/2024 6 6
RH9388 38504 Routine Windows Bedroom window crac07/30/2024 2 2
20
Total number of non-emergency work orders: 20
Average completion days: 9.95
Average completion days for reporting period 2 years | 2.00
Reduction in average completion days over the past tt -7.95

8/21/2024



	Binder2.pdf
	8.27.24 Agenda
	7.17.24 Olivette Special Meeting Minutes Draft
	Audit 2023 - Olivette Housing Authority Final Audit


	Memo re Executive Director's Report
	FinancialSummary Narrative06302024- AUGMTG
	Olivette Budget Comparison - June 2024
	Cash Reconciliation Summary-06-2024
	ChargeRegister06-2024
	Olivette 5-Year Plan
	Olivette 5 Year PHA Plan
	Civil Rights Certification
	2025 Annual PHA Plan and Certification of Compliance for Olivette
	2025 Annual PHA Plan
	2025 Annual PHA Plan DRAFT_SK Final Edits
	Combined Attachments
	ACOP_Chapter 6
	 Annual Income Full Definition (Exhibit 6-1)
	 Treatment of Family Assets (Exhibit 6-2)
	 The Effect of Welfare Benefit Reduction (Exhibit 6-3)
	Sections 6-I.B and 6-I.C discuss general requirements and methods for calculating annual income. The rest of this section describes how each source of income is treated for the purposes of determining annual income. Verification requirements for annua...
	HOTMA removed the statutory authority for the Earned Income Disallowance (EID). The EID is available only to families that are eligible for and participating in the program as of December 31, 2023, or before; no new families may be added on or after J...
	Calculation of the Disallowance
	Calculation of the EID for an eligible member of a qualified family begins with a comparison of the member’s current income with his or her “baseline income.” The family member’s baseline income is his or her income immediately prior to qualifying for...
	Independent Contractors
	Income received as an independent contractor is included in annual income, even if the source, date, or amount of the income varies [24 CFR 2.609 (b)(24)].
	An independent contractor is defined as an individual who qualifies as an independent contractor instead of an employee in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Federal income tax requirements and whose earnings are consequently subject to the Sel...
	Business Expansion
	County Housing Policy
	County Housing Policy
	Negative Business Income
	Withdrawal of Cash or Assets from a Business
	County Housing Policy

	Administrative Plan_Chapter 6
	Business Expansion
	County Housing Policy
	County Housing Policy
	Negative Business Income
	Withdrawal of Cash or Assets from a Business
	County Housing Policy
	Assets Owned by a Business Entity
	Introduction

	ACOP_Chapter 8
	Administrative Plan_Chapter 8
	Administrative Plan_Chapter 15


	Olivette Certification of Compliance

	Olivette Board CFP Action Memo 2025-2029 -ADJ
	Olivette Board CFP Action plan_2025-2029 -ADJ
	Olivette Housing Administration Report - August 2024 
	Olivette Board Maintenance Memo August 2024
	Olivette WO Detail_June-July




